PU IIC [%%g:slélg;‘n aQt PaClSo Holmes/Karen Hood

RYEDALE

Extension 310/386
DISTRICT

Date of Publication 10 August 2015
COUNCIL

E Mail jo.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk;

karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 18 August 2015 at 6.00 pm

Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

Agenda

1 Apologies for absence
2 Minutes of meeting held on 21 July 2015 (Pages 3 - 6)

3  Urgent Business

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest

Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 7 - 8)
6 15/00627/MOUT - Agricultural Contractors, Welham Road, Norton (Pages 9 - 29)

7 15/00612/MREM - Malton Livestock Market, Cattle Market, Malton (Pages 30 -
77)

8 15/00616/MREM - The Showfield, Pasture Lane, Malton (Pages 78 - 124)

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666 Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

15/00348/FUL - Boortmalt Group, Poplars Lane, West Knapton (Pages 125 -
141)

15/00620/FUL - Land To The Rear Of Woodmans Cottage, High Street, Cropton
(Pages 142 - 151)

15/00792/FUL - Land To The East Of Wold Lane, Staxton (Pages 152 - 182)

Part B Report - Developer Contributions from Small Sites (Pages 183 - 185)

Part B Report - Judicial Review - The Queen on the Application of Milton
(Peterborough) Estates Company trading as Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate v
Ryedale District Council (Pages 186 - 232)

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 233 - 240)

Update on Appeal Decisions (Pages 241 - 253)



Agenda ltem 2

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 21 July 2015

Present

Councillors Burr MBE, Cleary, Farnell, Frank (Vice-Chairman), Goodrick, Hope, Jainu-
Deen, Maud and Windress (Chairman)

Substitutes:

In Attendance

Jo Holmes, Gary Housden and Anthony Winship, Ellis Mortimer, Helen Bloomer, Jill
Thompson

Minutes

29 Apologies for absence
There was no apologies.

30 Minutes of meeting held on 23 June 2015

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 23 June be approved and
signed as a correct record.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 1]

31 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

32 Declarations of Interest
Councilor Application
Cleary 6
Jainu-Deen 6
Farnell 6
Frank 6
Hope 6,7,8,10
Windress 6
Maud 6
Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 21 July 2015

Page 3



33

34

35

36

Burr 6,7,8
Goodrick 6,7,8

Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the
applications for planning permission with recommendations there on.

15/00377/MFUL - Land At Mill Hill Farm, Cornborough Road, Sheriff Hutton

15/00377/MFUL - Installation and operation of a solar farm and associated
infrastructure including photovoltaic panels, mounting frames, inverters,
transformers, substations, communications building, fence and pole mounted
CCTV cameras and temporary construction vehicular access.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and any
further conditions from outstanding consultees.

[For 5 Against 3 Abstain 1]

In accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct Councilors Cleary, Jainu-
Deen, Farnell, Frank, Hope, Windress, Maud, Burr and Goodrick declared a
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

15/00099/MOUT - Land To North Of Sutton Grange, Langton Road, Norton

15/00099/MOUT - Residential development of up to 6 no. dwellings together
with formation of vehicular access - Site A (site area 0.9ha).

Decision
APPLICATION REFUSED - As recommended.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct Councilors Hope and
Goodrick declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.
Councilor Burr declared a personal and prejudicial interest and left the room.

15/00098/MOUT - Land Adjacent To Auburn Cottages, Langton Road,
Norton

Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 21 July 2015

Page 4




37

38

15/00098/MOUT - Residential development of up to 79 no. dwellings together
with formation of vehicular access - Site B (site area 3.65ha).

Decision
APPLICATION REFUSED - As recommended.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct Councilors Hope and
Goodrick declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.
Councilor Burr declared a personal and prejudicial interest and left the room.
15/00636/HOUSE - Orchard House, Main Street, Middleton, Pickering

15/00636/HOUSE - Erection of single storey rear extension.

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Subiject to conditions as recommended.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 0]

15/00601/FUL - Land At Cornborough Road, Sheriff Hutton

15/00601/FUL - Retention of timber cabin for use as an office, staff facilities,
storage area and incubator area.

Resolution

That the Council declines to determine the retrospective planning application
(received 20 May 2015) for the retention of a timber cabin for use as
office/WC/store room under Section 70C of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990(the 1990 Act).

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Member's Code of Conduct Councilor Hope declared a
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 21 July 2015

Page 5




39 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
There was no other business.

40 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously
circulated) which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of
Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of Delegated Decisions.

41 Update on Appeal Decisions
Members' were advised of the following appeal decision.
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/D/15/3007572 - 26 Piercy End, Kirkbymoorside, North
Yorkshire, YO62 6DF

The meeting closed at 8.20pm

Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 21 July 2015

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 5

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 18/08/15

6

Application No: 15/00627/MOUT

Application Site: Agricultural Contractors Welham Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Residential development of 23no. dwellings following demolition of
existing agricultural type buildings (site area 0.54 ha) - revised details to
refusal 14/00096/MOUT dated 09.06.2014.

7

Application No: 15/00612/MREM

Application Site: Malton Livestock Market Cattle Market Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Demolition of existing livestock market and erection of retail units, three
storey car park and public square (outline approval by Appeal Ref:
APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677 dated 29.10.2012 following refusal
11/00412/MOUT dated 12.04.2012 refers)

8

Application No: 15/00616/MREM

Application Site: The Showfield Pasture Lane Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of 34no. two bedroom dwellings, 59no. three bedroom dwellings
and 81no. four bedroom dwellings together with associated access,
garaging and landscaping to include formation of earth bund to eastern site
boundary. Phase 1 site area 6.32ha (outline approval 14/00427/MOUTE
dated 24.03.2015 refers).

9

Application No: 15/00348/FUL

Application Site: Boortmalt Group Poplars Lane West Knapton Malton North Yorkshire
YO17 6RN

Proposal: Raising the roof of part of existing building to allow installation of new

roasting plant and associated equipment, installation of external plant and
chimneys ranging in height from 12m to 23m and siting of an external steel
container.

Page 7



APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 18/08/15

10

Application No: 15/00620/FUL

Application Site: Land To The Rear Of Woodmans Cottage High Street Cropton Pickering
North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of detached 2 bedroom dwelling together with formation of 5no.
parking spaces for shared use with Woodmans Cottage.

11

Application No: 15/00792/FUL

Application Site: Land To The East Of Wold Lane Staxton Scarborough North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural building to include the housing of

livestock

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 6

RYEDALE DISTRIC T COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BEDETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFO RE THE MEETING

Item Number: 6

Application No: 15/00627MOUT

Parish: Norton Town Council

Appn. Type: Outline Application Major

Applicant: Thomas Crown Associates Ltd

Proposal: Residential development of 23no. dwellings following demolition of

existing agricultural type buildings (site area 0.54 ha) - revised details to
refusal 14/00096/MOUT dated 09.06.2014.

Location: Agricultural Contractors Welham Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire
Registration Date: 3 June 2015

8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 2 September 2015

O verall Expiry Date: 16 July 2015

Case Officer: Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276
CONSULTATIONS:

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions

Parish Council Recommend refusal

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards Not in the IDB area

Public Rights Of Way Recommend informative

Housing Services Recommend conditions

Countryside Officer No views received to date

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Object

Land Use Planning Recommend conditions

Tree & Landscape Officer No views received to date
Environmental Health Officer Recommend condition

Archaeology Section Further archaeological evaluation required
North Yorkshire Education Authority = Developer contribution request

Flood Risk (Stuart Edwards) Object - insufficient information

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Detailed comments, recommend conditions

Neighbour responses: David & Audrey Slaughter, Dinah & Howard Keal, Mr Chris Kirby, Mr
John Stuart, Mr Frank Greatorex, Mrs Mellisa Mackenzie,
Mr John Gelson, Patricia Greene, Mrs Nichola Scott, Mrs
Lisa Horton, Mr Daniel Gilbank, Mr David Cooper, Mrs A
Watts, Ms Dahne Moulding, Noel Revis, Mr & Mrs J
Calvert, Mr & Mrs J Simpson, Mrs Sharon Bone, Mrs
Yvonne Fogg, Mrs Karen Scott, Mr Stephen Waudby, Mrs
Carla Mitchell, Mrs Gill Coates, Mr John Deacon, Mrs
Joanne Clarke, Pat Wade, Mrs Irene Linfoot, Mr Paul Sandy,
Mr A Paine, Mr Trevor Moss, Mr James Urquhart, Mrs
Cathryn Hart, Mr Neil Campbell, Mr Reece Horton, Mrs P
Jones, E Moss, Mr Mark Kewley,

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 Ruggpe2015



SITE:

The application site is located within the development limits of Norton, approximately 100 metres to
the east of Welham Road and directly to the north of the Lakeside Way development. The site is
almost triangular in shape andto the northem boundary, the site abuts the rear gardens of dwellings in
Spring Field Garth. St Peter's Street lies further to the east. A footpath runs along the southem
boundary of the site and is part of a network of pedestrian links which run between Welham Road,
Lakeside Way, St Peter's Street, Springfield Garth and St Nicholas Street.

The site has a total area 0f 0.514 hectares (1.27 acres) and approximately 95% ofthe site lies within
Flood Zone 3 withthe remainder in Flood Zone 2. Mill Beck abutsthe sites westem boundary.

PROPOSAL:

The application seeks outline planning permmission for a residential development proposal of 23No.
dwellings, following the demolition of the existing buildings on site. The outline application seeks
approval for the reserved matters of both access and layout.

The layout is submitted at a scale of 1:500 and shows a development comprising a mix of flats and
houses. The submitted plan includes a schedule of accommodation which specifies the following
units on the layout.

Unit 1 - Detached 2/3 bed house

Unit 2 - Detached 4 bed house

Unit 3 - Detached 4 bed house

Units4 - 11 (inc) - 8No. 1 bed flat - located within a 3-storey block
Units 12 - 17 (inc) - 6No. 2 bed houses (terraced)

Units 18 - 20 - 3No. 3 bed houses (terraced)

Units21/23 - 2No. 3 bed houses (terraced)

Unit 22 - 1No. 2 bed houses (terraced)

The layout also shows ancillary garaging, open residents parking and also visitor parking spaces. The
density equates to approximately 42 dwellings/hectare.

In addition to the submitted plan, the application is accompanied by a Design & Access Statement; a
Planning Supporting Statement; an Ecological Assessment; an Arboricutural Assessment; an
Archaeological Desk Based Assessment; a Phase 1 Desk Top Study Report; and a Flood Risk
Assessment including Flood Compensation information. All of the technical reports can be viewed in
full on the Council's website.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY:

Relatingtothe Application Site

80/00129/0OLD (3/96/270/P A) - Erection of steel framed implement shed - Approved 31.03.1980
83/00128/OLD (3/96/270A/P A) - Toilet block - Approved 19.08.1983

12/00890/PREAPP - Pre-application advice in respect of Proposed Development - Advice given
18.10.2012

14/00096 MOUT - Residential development of 18No. dwellings following demolition of existing
agricultural type buildings (site 0.54ha) - Refused 09.06.2014

PLANNING COMMITTEE

1R Agpast 4915



Relating to Lakeside Way

91/00083/0OLD (3/96/335E/OA) -Residential development including provision of public open space,
lake, construction of Mill building and access improvements (site area 3.25 HA) at Leopold Nursery
and Beck Mill - Approved21.9.92

POLICY:

National Planning Policy

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practise Guidance

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing

Policy SP10 -Physical Infrastructure

Policy SP11- Community Facilities and Services

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Policy SP19 -Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Development Contributions and the Community Infrastructure
Levy

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:

The Parish Council have objectedto this application. The concems raised include:

e Overdevelopment of a relatively small site, with msufficient parking leading to more
congestion on surrounding streets;

e  Vehicular access tothe site cutting across a much used safe public footpath;

e Increased flood risk. This site is in the floodplain and any further development would limit
the drainage of ground water which is already a problem i the area;

e Impact on sewage system. The Victorian sewers are already at over capacity and any further
development puts residents in other areas, especially those living in the vicinity of Church
Street, the bottom end of St Nicholas Street and Welham Road at much greater risk of
having raw sewage impacting on their property whenever there is a period of heavy rain and
the system is under pressure.

In addition a significant number of objections (36 i total) have been received from members of the
public. The concerns they raise include:

e  The site is located withinthe flood zone;

e  The site and the surrounding area suffers from standing water in times of heavy rainfall;
e  The development will increase the risk of flooding elsewhere;

e  Surface water run-off will overload the existing drainage system;

e Impact on the local sewage system;

e The development is high density / overdevelopment;

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 Rugpe2015



e  The development would over dominate existing nearby residential properties;

e Impact on residential amenity of nearby dwellings;
Concems regarding increased highway activity, including noise levels and traffic;

e The existing local services (schools, doctors etc) are at capacity;

e The impact onthe public footpath network within the area;

e  The loss of valued open space;

e Ecology related issues;

e  Concems over the removal of Japanese knotweed,;

e  Affordable housing provision doesnot represent 35% of the total development;

e Inclusion /integration of affordable unit into the development;

e  Theplanning history ofthe site — does the site already have outline planning permission?

e In addition a petition against the development has been submitted, which is signed by 46
individuals

APPRAISAL:
The main considerations in the assessment of this application are:

1) The principle of the development

i) Flood related issues and the Site Sequential T est
iii) Affordable housing

iv) Site layout and design

V) Residential amenity

vi) Highway / Public Right of Way

Vvii) Archaeology

viii)  Ecology

iX) Impact on local sewerage system
X) Public open space
X1) Education contribution

Xii) Tree and Landscaping
xiii))  Land Contamination

The principle of the development

In considering the principle of this development, Policy SP1 (General Location of Development and
Settlement Hierarchy) and Policy SP2 (Delivery and Distribution of New Housing) of the Ryedale
Local Plan Strategy are relevant. These policies identify Malton and Norton asthe principle towns for
growth in the District and the mam focus for new development and housing within Ryedale. In light
of'this, the proposed residential development, which is located within the settlement limits for Norton,
is considered to be acceptable in principle, subject to compliance with other material considerations.

On the previous application, a member of the public raised concernsthat the site may already benefit
from outline planning permission. Officers have researched this matter, and it has been identified that
Planning Application ref. 3/96/335E/OA (Lakeside Way, Norton) did not include this application site
in the approved decision. Therefore, Members are advised that the site does not benefit from any
outline planning consent.

Flood related issues and the Site Sequential T est

With respect the Sequential Test, the NPPF forms an important material consideration. Paragraph 101
of the NPPF states that development should not be permitted if the sequential test demonstrates that
there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower
flood probability. The Sequential Test should therefore be applied to proposals for new development.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

19 Aupest 215



The National Planning Practice Guidance identifies the aim ofthe sequential test. It states:

“The Sequential Test ensures that a sequential approach is followed to steer new development to
areas with the lowest probability of flooding. The flood zones as refined in the Strategic Flood Risk
Assessment for the area provide the basis for applying the Test. The aim is to steer new development
to Flood Zone 1 (areas with a low probability of river or sea flooding). Where there are no
reasonably available sites in Flood Zone 1, local planning authorities in their decision making should
take into account the flood risk vulnerability of land uses and consider reasonably available sites in
Flood Zone 2 (areas with a medium probability of river or sea flooding), applying the Exception Test
if required. Only where there are no reasonably available sites in Flood Zones I or 2 should the
suitability of sites in Flood Zone 3 (areas with a high probability of river or sea flooding) be
considered, taking into account the flood risk vulnerability of land uses and applying the Exception
Test if required ”

The starting point in applying the Sequential Test is the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA).
The submitted FRA for this application has been assessed by the Environment Agency who has
recommended conditions to ensure that the development would be safe from flooding. Nevertheless,
as the Agency state in their letter dated 19 February 2014, the Sequential Test should be applied to the
site to determine if there are other available sites with a lower probability of flooding.

In terms of definingthe area to which the Sequential Test should apply, Malton and Norton should be
considered as they are the principle towns within the District and form the primary focus for growth
(as identified in Policy SP1 and SP2 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy). The FRA has considered
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) sites for both Malton and Norton, which
includes a number of sites both within and outside ofthe development limits for the town. Officers
consider that this approach is acceptable therefore those sites within the FRA have been considered in
the assessment of the Sequential T est.

Members will note that the current planning policy position is that the settlement limits identified in
the Ryedale Local Plan are in a transitional period where sites outside of the development limits are
being considered as part of the Council’s emerging Site’s Allocation Document. This is illustrated by
the fact that the Council has recently granted planning permission (for example ref. 10000977/MFUL,
10/00899/MOUT and 14/00427/MOUTE) to a number of housing sites which are located outside the
development limits of Norton / Malton (the principle towns of the district). The SHLAA also ncludes
numerous sites outside of the current development limits. In light of this, it is considered that sites
should not be discounted solely because of their location outside of the identified development limits.

Policy SP17 ofthe Local Plan Strategy states that:-
“Flood Risk will be managed by:

Undertaking a risk based sequential approach to the allocation of land for new development and in
the consideration of development proposals in order to guide new development to areas with the
lowest probability of flooding, whilst taking account of the need to regenerate vacant and previously
developed sites within the towns. In considering development proposals or the allocation of land, full
account will be taken of the flood risk vulnerability of proposed uses and the national ‘Exception
Test’ will be applied if required.”

As previously identified, the requirements of Paragraph 101 of the NPPF isto give preference to sites
in areas of lower flood probability. In this case, the application site is located within approximately
95% - 98% flood zone 3. It is also understoodthat part of the site is within the rapid inundation area .
This isthe zone withthe highest probability (1 in 100 or greater annual probability of river flooding).

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 REg20®



Given the comments identified inthe previous paragraph, Officers consider that there are clearly other
sites available with a lower flood risk, both inside and outside of development limits of Malton and
Norton, that have been discounted within the FRA. Therefore, based on the mformation within the
FRA, Officers consider that there are a number of sites which would be sequentially preferable to the
application site as they would direct the development area from the areas of highest flood risk. For
this reason, it is considered the Sequential Test has failedto meet the requirements of Paragraph 101
ofthe NPPF andthe NPPG.

Members are also advised that the Environment Agency has objected to the application on flood risk
grounds. The formal response states:-

"Flood risk

Flood risk Sequential Test

We object to the application in the absence of any evidence to demonstrate that the flood risk
Sequential Test has been applied. The application site lies within Flood Zone 3a, defined by Table 1
of the National Planning Practice Guidance as having a high probability of flooding, and as shown
on the Environment Agency's Flood Map. Paragraph 101 of the National Planning Policy Framework

(NPPF) requires decision-makers to steer new development to areas at the lowest probability of
flooding by applying a ‘Sequential Test’.

You can overcome our Sequential Test objection by providing the following information:-
- Written confirmation from the Local Planning Authority that the Sequential Test has been
undertaken in an open and transparent way, to fulfil the requirements of the NPPF, and that it has
been passed;

- Written confirmation that evidence to support the Sequential Test has been added to the planning
application file for the public record.

Should the development pass the flood risk Sequential Test, we would have the following comments to
make on the site specific Flood Risk Assessment:

Site specific Flood Risk Assessment

In the absence of an acceptable Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) we object to the grant of planning
permission and recommend refusal on this basis for the following reasons:

Reason

The FRA submitted with this application does not comply with the requirements set out in the
National Planning Policy Framework. The submitted FRA does not therefore, provide a suitable basis
for assessment to be made of the flood risks arising from the proposed development. In particular, the
submitted FRA fails to:

1. Consider the effect of a range of flooding events including extreme events on people and
property.
2. Demonstrate that surface water can be dealt with within the site.

Overcoming our objection

The applicant can overcome our objection by submitting an FRA which covers the deficiencies
highlighted above and demonstrates that the development will not increase risk elsewhere and where
possible reduces flood risk overall. If this cannot be achieved we are likely to maintain our objection
to the application. Production of an FRA will not in itself result in the removal of an objection.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

19 Aupest2915



Further detail is required regarding the impacts of an overtopping event from the River Derwent. The
standard of protection of the defences through Norton / Malton is up to the I in 50 year event. (This
means the defences protect against flood events that have up to a 1 in 50 chance of occurring in that
location in any given year. They do not protect against events that have less than a 1 in 50 chance of
occurring in that location in any given year — the defences will be overtopped during these larger
flood events). The applicant should also provide details of themitigation that is to be provided.

Further details are also required regarding surface water runoff. The applicant has stated that it will
be restricted to agricultural rates, but not what these rates are, nor the amount of attenuation
required and whether it can be incowporated into the site.”

In addition the response from North Yorkshire County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) confirms that the LLFA concur with the comments of the EA with respect to flood risk, and
that they also object to the application. The LLFA go on to state that msufficient information is
present with the application document to 'assess the priority of surface water management proposals.

In view of the above, and that there are other available sites in Norton and Malton that could
accommodate this development it is considered that the sequential test is not passed. Furthermore,
there is nsufficient information to demonstrate that surface water can be satisfactorily drained from
the site.

Affordable Housing

In considering affordable housing, Policy SP3 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy is relevant. This
policy identifies the levels of developer contributions that the Local Planning Authority seeks for
affordable housing. The policy also states:

“The size, type and tenure of affordable units will be expected to reflect the affordable housing needs
in the locality. Affordable housing contributions should comprise of both social and affordable rent
tenures as well as intermediate tenure types. Offsite provision in lieu of on-site contributions will
only be supported where it is agreed that this is preferable in temms of management arrangements or
where there are clear advantages or over riding reasons for contributions in lieu of provision on-
site.”

In this case, the proposed affordable units are proposedto be the 8 no.1 bedroomed dwellings (shown
as Plots 4-11) on the submitted scheme. The proposed affordable housing is considered to be
acceptable by the Council's Housing Manager, based on a split of 50% affordable rent, together with

the need for a developer contribution (commuted sum) equating to 0.05 of a dwelling unit (based on a
one bedroomed flat).

Site layout and design

Policy 16 (Design) of the Ryedale Local Plan states that “To reinforce local distinctiveness, the
location, siting, form, layout scale and detailed design of new development should respect the context
provided by its surroundings including:

o The grain of settlements, influenced by street blocks, plot sizes, the orientation of buildings,
boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size and scale of buildings.

As mentioned earlier in this report the application site has a total area of 0.514 hectares andthe mix of
development proposed provides for a density of development at approximately 42 dwellings/hectares.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 g 205



By way of comparison the adjacent post war development at Springfield Garth (a combination of
largely semi-detached two storey dwellings and bungalows) is developed at a density of approx. 28
dwellings/hectare.

Lakeside Way is developed mainly with larger detached dwellings at a density of approximately 19
dwellings/hectare (23 dwellings/hectare if excluding the Mill Pond and public open space).

The density of the development is therefore much higher than both of the adjacent sites to the north
and south of the application site.

The higher density of the development has been achieved through the introduction of larger numbers
of smaller properties in the form of 1 no. Bedroomed flats and 9 no. 2 and 3 bed terraced dwellings.
The block of flats is also proposed to be over three storeys. Whilst the scheme provides for a mix of
housing types it is considered that the application as submitted (even in outline form) fails to re-
enforce local distinctiveness in terms of form, layout and scale and as such it fails to adequately
respect the context provided by its surrounds.

The proposal is, therefore, considered not to satisfy Policy SP 16 ofthe adopted Ryedale Plan - Local
Plan Strategy.

Residential Amenity

With respect to residential amenity, concems have been received in relation to the impact of the
proposed development on the existing residential properties within the area. Such concerns include
overlooking, overbearing impact and the impact of increased traffic levels through Lakeside Way.

In terms of overlooking and overbearing issues, the impact of the development on the existing
amenities of the neighbouring occupiers will largely be dependent on the detailed design and layout of
the dwellings. With respect to the traffic related concerns created as a result of the proposal, it is not
considered that the development would result in a such an increase that would materially harm the
amenities of nearby residents. Therefore, it is considered that the development would not in principle
have a significant adverse impact on neighbouring amentities.

In the event that Members are minded to grant approval, the Councils Environmental Health Officers

have recommended an informative to restrict the hours of activity duringthe construction phase of the
development.

Highway / Public Rights of Way

NYCC Highway Authority have been consulted on the application. No objections have been received
to the proposal subject to conditions. The comments received from the Highway Authority do
however identify that as the proposal will increase the number dwellings served off Lakeside Way
would be beyond 50, that a dedicated altemative route for emergency service vehicles will be
required. The applicant has informed the Local Planning Authority that they have a right of access
over the track leading directly from Welham Road to the site which would address this issue. NYCC
have however identified that evidence of such rights will need to be provided to the Highway
Authority as part of the adoption process ofthe new estate road.

With regards to the Public Right of Way, NYCC Public Rights of Way Officers have not raised any
objections to the proposal. However, it is stated that the developer will need to agree a safe crossing
of the road from the PROW with the Highway Authority.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

1R Agpast 915



Archaeology

NYCC Historic Environment Team have requested a scheme of trial trenching prior to determining
this application because of the sensitivity of the site. A written scheme of mvestigation (W SI) for
identifying this work has been submitted to NYCC for their comments. Members will be updated.
Nevertheless, the lack of this information forms an additional reason for refusal at this point in time.

Ecology

The Council’s Countryside Officer has been consulted on this application. The comments received on
15 April 2014 identify that no objections are receivedto the development subject tothe mitigation and
compensation measures identified sections 9 and 10 of the submitted ecological report being carried
out.

Impact on local sewerage system

Members are referred to the comments received from Yorkshire Water dated 26 March 2014. This
correspondence identifies that Yorkshire Water do not have any objections to the development.
Within this correspondence it is identified that the public sewer network does not have capacity to
accept any discharge of surface water from the site therefore the use of SUDS is suggested as an
appropriate alternative. Yorkshire Water have also advised that a suitable watercourse could be used
for the disposal of surface water, such as Mill Beck located to the west of the site, however, members
will appreciate from earlier in the report that the Local Lead Flood Authority (LLFA) objects to the
proposal because the submitted information does not demonstrate that surface water can be
satisfactorily drained fromthe site.

Public Open Space

The layout provided does not allow for on-site public open space provision, although the applicant is
aware of the Council’s policy on this matter. Therefore, should Members be minded to approve this
application financial contributions will be sought for off-site provision.

Education contribution

NYCC Education Authority has been consulted on the application, and have made no objection
subject to the receipt of developer contributions to deal with anticipated need for additional primary
school places. The contribution sought is £78,177.

Tree and Landscaping

The Councils Tree and Landscape Officer has been consulted on the application, however, no
response has been received. Members will be updated on this aspect of the application in the late

pages.
Land Contamination

A Phase 1 Desktop Study Report has been submitted alongside the planning application. The Councils
Environmental Health Officers have considered this document. A condition has been recommended to
ensure further investigations are undertaken into the potential land contamination before any dwelling
on the site is occupied, if permission is granted.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 Rggse2015



Conclusion

Officers consider that there are other sites at the principle towns of Malton and Norton which are
preferable to the application site in terms of flood risk and which are capable of accommodating the
residential development proposed. The proposal is also considered to fail to reinforce local
distinctiveness and it is therefore contrary to Policy SP16. Inadequate information is currently
submittedto assess the impact on archacology and surface water drainage.

REC O MMENDA TIO N: Refusal

1

The proposed development is located within Flood Zones 2 and 3a as identified in the
Environment Agency’s flood maps. The Local Planning Authority considers that there are
sequentially preferable areas of land at Malton and Norton which are located in areas with
lower probability of flooding which are capable of accommodating the residential
development proposed. The development of this site is, therefore, considered to be contrary
toPolicies SP17 and SP19 ofthe Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Paragraph 101 of the NPPF statesthat development should not be permitted if the sequential
test demonstrates that there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed
development in areas with a lower flood probability.

The National Planning Practice Guidance identifies the aim ofthe sequential test. It states:

"The Sequential Test ensures that a sequential approach is followed to steer new
development to areas with the lowest probability of flooding. The flood zones as refined in
the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment for the area provide the basis for applyingthe Test. The
aim isto steer new development to Flood Zone 1 (areas with a low probability of river or sea
flooding). Where there are no reasonably available sites in Flood Zone 1, local planning
authorities in their decision making should take into account the flood risk vulnerability of
land uses and consider reasonably available sites in Flood Zone 2 (areas with a medium
probability of river or sea flooding), applying the Exception Test if required. Only where
there are no reasonably available sites in Flood Zones 1 or 2 should the suitability of sites in
Flood Zone 3 (areas with a high probability of river or sea flooding) be considered, taking
into account the flood risk vulnerability of land uses and applying the Exception Test if
required."”

In this case, the application site is located within 100% Flood Zone 2, and approximately
95% - 98% flood zone 3a. The Local Planning Authority considers that the Councils
SHLAA demonstrates that there are sequentially preferable sites in Malton and Norton
(including those located outside of development limits) which are capable of
accommodating market led housing in areas of lower risk of flooding. As such the
application fails the sequential test and is contrary to the requirements of paragraph 101 of
the NPPF andthe NPPG.

The proposed development by virtue of the density and quantity of residential units, on this
site and as detailed on the submitted layout the proposed development is not considered to
reinforce a local diginctive layout and density in this location. As a result the high density
proposal would represent an alien form of development within this medium density low-
level suburban environment. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy SP16 of the
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

1R Agpast 915



4 There is insufficient information submitted with the application to fully assess the impact of
the proposal upon known archaeology in the area. As a result the proposal is contrary to the
requirements of NPPF, Section 12 Conservation and enhancing the historic environment
with particular regardto Paragraphs 126 and 128.

5 There is nsufficient information submitted to demonstrate that surface water can be
satisfactorily drained from the site. The proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of
Policy SP17 and the NPPF.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE

18 Mg 205



\ SCHEDULE OF
\ ACCOMMODATION

23 UNITS

GO

G,q@a/

HOUSE 1 - 2/3 BEDROOM - 110.4 m? / 1,188 sq ft
' Integral single garage and 2 parking spaces
(not included in floor area).

HOUSE 2 - 4 BEDROOM - 174.5 m? / 1,878 sq ft
{ Integralsingle garage and parking space

T\ (not included in floor area).

HOUSE 3 - 4 BEDROOM - 147.4 m? / 1,586 sq ft
Integral single garage and 2 parking spaces

(not included in floor area).

FLATS 4- 11 1 BEDROOM - 50.0 m? / 484 sq fc
One car parking space

HOUSES 12 - 17 & 22 -2 BEDROOM - 60.8 m? / 654 sq ft
Two car parking spaces

HOUSES 18-23 -3 BEDROOM - 78.8 m? / 848 5q ft
Single garage and car parking space.

1,661 m?/17,878 sq ft TOTAL AREA
0.5417 ha TOTAL SITE AREA
| 42 DWELLINGS PER HECTARE

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROVISION 35%
FLATS 4- 11 = 8 NO. DWELLINGS

C PROPOSED BLOCK PLAN
SCALE 1:500 @ Al

EXISTING LOCATION PLAN
SCALE 1:1250 @ Al

Page 20

s e o b o e e & e oo el

N

Rev G 08.05.15 Schedule revised o sultcurent layout

Rev F 21.04.15 Housing leyout updated with additonal uits end

flood compensation measures added.

Rov E 19.06.14 Housing layout updated with proposad fished
‘ground and fiished floor loves.

Rev D 15.05.14 Housing layout updated to reflect new dwellng car
parking schedue.

‘Stroet rmoved. Yorkshire Water overflow ouls added. Secondary
Red e

oppicaton o aterod.

Rev B 25.11.13 Affordable flats added with acooss rom St. Peter
street Other houses from Lakeside way.
Rev A 09.11.12 Accass only from Lakesido way

The Planning & Design Partnership
PEANNING.ARGHITRCTURE INTENIORS LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Bam Studio,
The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Stamford Bridge,
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.

‘Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810
E-mail:chicorybarn@the-pdp.co.uk
website:www.the-pdp.co.uk

THOMAS CROWN ASSOCIATES LTD

LAKESIDE WAY, NORTON, MALTON

PROPDSED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT
DUTLINE APPLICATION DRAWING

NOVEMBER 2012 | RTJD
1300, 11250 G
Outline Planning

TCA/03



e

e

s

.

NOTES

LEVEL DATUM....0S ORTHOMETRIC HTS

GRO ORENTATION... 056836

NORTH

J

|

KEY

FIRE HYDRANT

BRITISH TELECOM MANHOLE
ELECTRGTY INSPECTION COVER
chmLe v

ELECTRIGTY POST/PTLON
e

TRAFFIC UGHT

ROAD SGN

TELEGRAPH POLE

STAY WRE

ROAD GULEY

KeRB UTET
DRAINAGE NANHOLE
wasouT

DRAN/DIE WATER LEVEL
ORAN/DIKE INVERT LEVEL.

100 oF BANK
BoTTO OF BANK
i

concremE
Ak

BuLDNG

ROAD CHANNEL

HeDGEROW

T

TREE CANORY.
— e

1 crtica Gmensions o be checked on ste_pror to
[brcatons. Piease report ony discreponcie. If in Goubt, osk

REVISIONS
e =
Landmark Surveys
(UK) Ltd
16 oo rom0
e
g
BaS
2 5t oo
e 9 T
R e
O T o S e cam
ror
ATE VALID R S
|23, oo, NowTH YRS
e m [ s
Fro o wncnxors |57 o who.vm:
ey [P 7o rorosose

Page 21




The Planning & Design Partnership
Planning.. Architecture.. Interiors.. Landscape

The Chicory Barn Studio, The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Stamford Bridge
York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.
Telephone 01759 373636  Fax 01759 371810 email: chicotvbarn@thepdp.couk

DESIGN & ACCESS STATEMENT Rev A

23 No. PROPOSED DWELLINGS TO LAND NORTH OF
LAKESIDE WAY, NORTON, YO17 9PG.

AERIAL VIEW OF SITE

Page 22



9

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
SITE ASSESSMENT

USE & AMOUNT

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT
LAYOUT & SCALE
LANDSCAPING

APPEARANCE

ACCESS

FLOODING

10 CONCLUSIONS

Page 23



1. INTRODUCTION

This Design and Access Statement has been prepared to support the re-submission of
an outline planning application with some matters reserved. A previous application for
18 No. Dwellings to the same site was refused (14/00096/MOUT 9% June 2014} on
the grounds of flood risk and failing the sequential test. Mitigating measures have been
incorporated into this scheme to overcome the flooding issue and within the same site
area, the layout redesigned to suit results in the application being a Residential
Development for 23 No. dwellings following the demolition of existing agricultural
type buildings. The site lies to the north of the modern housing development
bounding Lakeside Way, Norton YO17 9PG.

The Design and Access Statement has been carried out in accordance with the
guidance published by CABE regarding the preparation of such statements. The
statement has been written to show the efforts that have been made to provide for a
development that will be compatible with the site’s surroundings, having regard to
local character and will be accessible and inclusive.

The National Planning Policy Framework (PPS1) sets out the general planning policies
on the delivery of sustainable development through the planning system. Under
section heading of ‘Design’ PPSI states that:-

“Good design ensures attractive usable, durable and adaptable places and is a key
element in achieving sustainable development. Good design is indivisible from good

planning.”

PPS3 Housing seeks to promote more sustainable residential environments through
requiring developers to make efficient use of land and states that good design is
fundamental to this objective. It also includes an emphasis on the need to design in
order to create placers for people. New, well designed development can enhance the
character and quality of an area and intensification need not result in increased
building heights or low quality accommodation with inappropriate space.

2. ASSESSMENT OF SITE

The application site lies within the market town of Norton, within the development
limits and identified as Site No. 423 -‘Potential Developmet Sites in Norton’ shown
on the proposals map of Ryedale District Local Plan which was adopted in September
2013.

The application site is located north of Lakeside Way which forms the principle road
within a modern housing development and is currently occupied by Rawlings
Agricultural depot which is now redundant. It is bounded on all sides by housing
development from various eras and has a public footpath running along the southern

boundary.

Page 24



The site is 0.54 hectares in area and triangular in shape. Buildings and open roofed
structures currently occupy the site, with corrugated metal roofing to the main
building, metal barrel vaulting to sheds and timber contruction to walls. Hardstanding
areas surround the buildings with much of the site being grassed, but with some trees
and shrubs. An aboricultural survey has been undertaken to provide detailed,
independent and aboricultural advice on the trees present in the context of potential

housing development on the site.

In planning terms, the site is considerd to be ‘previously developed’. The National
Planning Policy Framework for Housing (PPS3), requires local planning authorities to
deliver a “flexible responsive supply of land including the re-use of previuosly
developed land, where appropriate”. Therefore, as the site is defined as a ‘brownfield’
or ‘previously developed’ and located within the agreed developement limits, it is
considered that there are no policy constraints which will prevent the site being

developed for residential use.

3. USE & AMOUNT

It is proposed to provide 23 new dwellings on the site by demolishing the existing
agricultural buildings and these would meet the miniumum housing density
requirement of 30 dwellings per hectare as set out in PPS3.

The proposals envisage that the development will comprise of several house types in a
variety of sizes. Each unit will have the required amount of parking provsion situated on
the driveways and permeable communal car parking areas on the site.

Overall, the indicative layout for the development proposes a mix of two & three storey
residential dwellings, providing for a range of needs and the inclusion of affordable
homes. Provision has been made for 1 bedroomed flats with parking/cycle and refuse
storage provision; 2/3 bedroomed terrace cottages, and detached dwellings with 3 and 4
bedrooms. Each house unit will have an adequate amount of parking provision
provided by permeable hardstandings to the front.

Accommodation Schedule

Building | No. of | No. of Floors Parking Provision Cycle/Refuse

No. Beds House Type Storage
1 2/3 2 Detached Integral garage and drive Garage
2 4 2 Detached Attached garage and drive | Garage
3 4 2 Detached Integral garage and drive Garage
4 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
5 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
6 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
7 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
8 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
9 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
10 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
11 1 3 Flat Carpark Space Cycle & Refuse St
12 2 2 End terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage

Page 25

4




13 2 2 Mid terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage
14 2 2 End terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage
15 2 2 End terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage
16 2 2 Mid terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage
17 2 2 End terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage
18 3 2 End terrace Attached garage and drive | Garage, External St
16 3 . Mid terrace Detached Garage Garage, External St
20 3 " End terrace Detached Garage Garage, External St
21 3 2 End terrace Detached Garage Garage, External St
22 3 2 Mid terrace Detached Garage Garage, External St
23 3 2 End terrace 2 Carpark Spaces External Storage

4. PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

Please See Planning Supporting Statement by Yew Tree Associates.

5. LIAYOUT & SCALE

In line with national and local government policy, considerable importance has been
placed on arriving at a layout which has been well thought out, to provide for a
development which is compatible with the site’s surroundings, having regard to local
character and which is accessible and inclusive.

The site has space to provide enclosed private amenity space for each house comfortably
and with adequate space for waste/bin storage either externally to the rear of each
property of within the curtilage of the garage. The one bedroomed flats have an external
single storey storage building for refuse/recycling waste also a cycle store in the building
with an accessible and communal gardens to the rear.

The majority of the housing surrounding the site is two with some three storey and this
theme has been continued and includes the affordable flats situated at the western end
of the site. It is proposed that the flats be reached via Lakeside Way as this provides
good visibility and sufficient space for turning heads and good overall access. The Flats
have been orientated in such a way as to limit the overlooking issues from first floor to
both existing and proposed neighbours. Landscaping this area to provide shrub and tree
screening will be provided to delineate the cormmunal areas and provide privacy for the

residents.

6. LANDSCAPE

Please See Arboricultural Assessment by Barnes & Associates.

It is intended that the site will be fully landscaped, with emphasis on retaining the
existing trees to the western end of the site and arcund the flats.

Page 26




Existing trees and hedgerows will be retained and supplemented with new planting to
form the enclosure of the proposed gardens. New tree planting and screening is also
proposed to the eastern side of the site where there is a dearth of soft landscaping to the
garden boundaries of Springfield Garth.

The access road will be a continuation of Lakeside Way with tarmac finish and road
gulleys, however the new private drive area will be finished with permeable block paving
to allow for natural drainage and retain rainwater for the new gardens. It is proposed
that all drives, pedestrian access and the communal car parking area to the flats will also
be finished with permeable paving.

7. APPEARANCE

Careful consideration has been given to the proposals to ensure that the design
maximises the use of the site without impacting on the existing built up suburban
environment. The units have been positioned on the site in a way which minimises the
overlooking issues and attempts to allow existing adjacent householders a degree of
openess to their rear gardens. Separation distances of properties are at or beyond the
normally accepted 21m from Spring Field Garth and Welham Road.

Materials will be of brick and roof tile to match samples submitted at reserved matters

stage.

8. ACCESS

The main vehicular access to the site is proposed off Lakeside Way as this allows for
good visibility in both directions along the two access braches to the turning and parking
areas, in line with the Manual for Streets recommendations.

9. FLOODING

Please See Flood Compensation Statement and engineered sclution and Flood Risk

AS sessment.

10. CONCLUSIONS

As stated in the accompanying Supporting Planning Statement, under PPE3, the reuse of

previously developed land is an effective way to supply housing development.

The proposed 23 residential units of differing type and size will help to meet the local

housing need.

Through this report and accompanying documents for the planning application an
appraisal of the site in relation to its surroundings has been undertaken to inform of the
initial design process. Every effort has been made to take account of any relevant
planning issues that may emerge through the consideration of the application.
Notwithstanding this, we remain willing to discuss any aspect of the proposal with the
Local Planning Authority.

Page 27



Town Clerk: Mrs R.Tierney

16 June 2015

Head of Planning Services,
Ryedale District Council.

Ryedale House,
Malton.
YOI17 7HH

Dear Sir,

AR o N

NORTON-ON-DERWENT
TOWN COUNCIL

Tel/Fax: 01653 695348
Council Chamber and Office
The Old Courthouse
84B Commercial Street
Norton-on-Derwent
Malton
North Yorkshire YO17 9ES

PLANNING APPLICATIONS NORTON-ON-DERWENT
T have to inform you that at its meeting on Monday, 15 June 2015 the Town Council made the
following recommendations in respect of the applications listed below:-

15/400511/FUL

15/00098/MOUT

15/0009%/MOUT

Erection of detached 1 bedroom dwelling together with formation of new
pedestrian access.

14 Church Street, Norton, YO17 9HS

For: Mr E Bromilow

RESQLVED: Recommend refusal, on the grounds that the site is situated in
a flood area and should be reconsidered at such time as the flood risk issues
are resolved.

Residential development of up to 79no. dwellings together with formation of
vehicular access — Site B (site arca 3.65ha).

Land Adjacent to Auburn Cottages Langton Road, Norton.

For: Gladman Developments

Residential development of up to 6no. dwellings together with formation of
vehicular access — Site A (site area 0.9ha).

Land to North of Sutton Grange Langton Road, Norton.

For: Gladman Developments

Both Applications were considered again together, and the recommendation
applies to both.
RESOLVED Recommend refusal on the following grounds;

This development lies on a green field site which is of considerable
importance to the town, and is outside the current development
limits therefore until such time as the sites allocations for the
Ryedale Plan are set no further development should take place.

E. Mail: norton.tc{@btconnect.com

Page 28



-

e
15/00627/MOUT

-

Yours sincerely,

Ros Tierney
Town Clerk

Congestion on Langton Road is already problematic especially
taking into account the proximity of not only Norton College but the
local Community Primary School as well. With this heavily used
road members fear that there will be a temptation to make use of
Bazley’s Lane a totally inappropriate route when trying to avoid the
congestion further in the town.

This development would have a detrimental effect on the important
local horse racing industry given that the designated horse path runs
straight along this section of Langton Road.

Impact on the sewage system the Victorian sewers are already over
capacity and any further development puts residents in other areas,
especially those living in the vicinity of Church Street, the lower end
of St Nicholas Street and Welham Road at a much greater risk of
having raw sewage impacting on their property whenever there is a
period of heavy rain and the system is under pressure

Lack of infrastructure to support another large scale development
especially in Norton with no sustainable provision without having to
access Malton.

Over-development, while this is only an outline application both
sites would seem 10 be allocating too many dwellings on what are
relatively small areas.

Residential development of 23no. dwellings following demolition of existing
agricultural type buildings {site area (.54 ha) — revised details to refusal
14/00096/MOUT dated 09.06.2014.

Agricultural Contractors Welham Road, Norton.

For Thomas Crown Associates Ltd.

RESOLVED Recommend Refusal on the following grounds;

Overdevelopment of what is a relatively small site, with insufficient
parking leading to more congestion on surrounding streets.

Vehicular aceess to the site cuts across a much used safe public
footpath.

Increased flood risk, this site sits in the floodplain, and any further
development would limit the drainage of ground water, which is
already a problem in this area.

Impact on the sewage system, the Victorian sewers are already over
capacity, and any further development puts residents in other areas,
especially those living in the vicinity of Church Street, bottom end of
St Nicholas Street and Welham Road at a much greater risk of having
raw sewage impacting on their property whenever there is a period of
heavy rain and the system is under pressure.

Increased number of dwellings overall since last application.
Increased number of three storey provision since last application,
meaning an ingrease in the number of properties that are overlooked.

E. Mal: norton.te{@btconnect.com

Page 29



AQ

enda Item 7

Item Number:

Application No: 15/00612/MREM

Parish: Malton Town Council

Appn. Type: Approval of Reserved Matters Major

Applicant: Fitzwilliam Malton Estate (Mr Roddy Bushell)

Proposal: Demolition of existing livestock market and erection of retail units, three

storey car park and public square (outline approval by Appeal Ref
APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677  dated  29.102012  following  refusal
11/00412/MOUT dated 12.04 2012 refers)

Location: Malton Livestock Market Cattle Market Malton North Yorkshire

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 27 August 2015
O verall Expiry Date: 29 July 2015

Case Officer: Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276

CONSULTATIONS:

NY Highways & Transportation Comments made

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Recommend conditions.

Historic England No commentsto offer.

Building C onservation Officer No Objection

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objection

Archaeology Section Advise that WSI is carried forward and undertaken in
advance of development commencing.

Land Use Planning Comments and conditions to be attached to any planning
permission granted

Environmental Health Officer Initial points and concems raised

Parish C ouncil No response

Highways North Yorkshire Comments made

Neighbour responses: Mrs C Woodhouse, Mrs Julie Stockdale, Miss B Foley,

SITE:

The site extends to approximately 0.9 hectares in area and is located adjacent to the boundary of the
Town Centre Commercial Limits identified on the saved proposals map in the Ryedale Local Plan.
Large areas of the site are hardstandings, with open-air animal pens and parking areas. There are also
two commercial 'bams' at each end of the site and other smaller buildings.

The site is bisected by Spital Street and The Shambles. The Shambles continues as a pedestrian link
into the Market Place.

There are terraced properties abutting the site on Victoria Road and other residential and commercial
propertties face the site along Horsemarket Road. Residential and commercial properties also exist on
Spital Field Court and Newgate. The eastern site boundary abuts the rear of properties located in
Market Place, many of these properties are listed and located within the designated Conservation
Area. The Spotted Cow public house is also Grade II listed and immediately abuts the application
site.

PROPOSAL:
This application is for the approval of reserved matters following the grant of outline planning

permission of the demolition of the existing livestock market including associated buildings and
redevelopment of the site for retail with 3-storey car-parking and public square.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
1R Agpas 915



The outline planning permission was granted on appeal on 25th October 2012 following the earlier
refusal of the application.

The earlier outline pemmission included the 'detail' of access as part of the submission and was
considered to be acceptable by the Inspector subject to the implementation of a number of planning
conditions relating to highway matters, mainly covered by Conditions No 5 -8(inc) in the decision
letter.

The other reserved matters relating to layout, scale, appearance and landscaping remain to be
approved.

Whilst the appeal application was submitted in outline it was accompanied by a number of detailed
documents and illustrative information which the Inspector considered as part of his deliberations. At
the time a detailed Design and Access Statement had been submitted (with addendum) a PPS 5
Assessment and a Heritage Statement addendum and illustrative plans and elevations.

The current application seeks approval for all of the outstanding reserved matters. Members may also
wish to note that to date the applicant has separately applied to discharge Conditions Nos. 6,8, 9, 10,
12 and 13 of the outline planning permission.

The reserved matters application is accompanied by a detailed set of plans and elevations which are
appended in full to this report, together with a 'street views' drawing.

The submission of this reserved matters application follows a series of pre-application discussions
with the developer. A covering letter dated 20th May 2015 from the agents White Young Green
accompanies the application and is also attached for Members information.

This reserved matters scheme has been screened in the light of The 2011 Environmental Impact
Regulations and the Town and Country Planning (E I A) (Amendment) Regulations 2015. The
amended thresholds now mean that this development is below the threshold set out within Schedule 2.
Even taking account of other live retail applications it is not considered that this site in combination
with others comprises E I A development.

RELEVANTHISTORY:

11/00412/MOUT : Outline Application for demotion of Livestock Market and associated outbuildings
and redevelopment for retail use together with three storey car park and public square (site area 0.9
ha) - Refused 12.04.2012. Allowed on Appeal 29.10.2012

POLICY:

NPPF - National Planning Policy Framework
NPPG - National Planning Practice Guidance
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

The principle of development has already been accepted by the grant of outline planning permission.
It is considered therefore that the following development plan policies are relevant to the
consideration of the remaining reserved matters.

Policy SP 12 - Heritage

Policy SP 16 - Design

Policy SP 18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

Policy SP 19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP 20 - Generic Development Management Issues

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Regppe 2016



It is also necessary to note that the reserved matters scheme proposals for 1,695 square metres of
comparison goods floor space (Comprising. Units 1, 2, & 3). This exceeds the minimum requirement
of 1,575 sq metres stipulated by the Planning Inspector in Condition 16 of the appeal decision letter.

APPRAISAL:

Whilst the outline permission did not approve the reserved matters in respect of layout, scale,
appearance and landscaping it is of note (as explained earlier in the report) that the outline application
was accompanied by a significant amount of addition documentation and plans which the Inspector
was able to consider.

Indeed, the Inspector saw fit to impose Condition No 4 which stated:-

4. The details to be submitted for approval of the matters reserved by Condition 1 above shall
follow the principles and parameters set out in the plans and the accompanying documents,
namely:

1)  the Design and Access Statement (DAS) (April 2011)

i1)  the PPSS Assessment and DAS Addendum (July 2011)

iii) the Development Schedule (September 2012)

iv) the drawings numbered 185-15, 185-22, 185-23, 185-24 and
v) the indicative drawings numbered 185-25 and 185-26

Following the grant of the outline planning pemmission a pre-application proposal was submitted to
the Local Planning Authority and this has resulted in the submission of'the current reserved matters
application which is considered to satisfy the 'principles and parameters' as required by Condition No
4 above.

Heritage/Design Issues

The design approved closely follows the principles and parameters set out in the Design and Access
Statement. Detail discussion in respect of the design and appearance of the scheme have evolved
through pre-application meetings with officers. The Councils Building Conservation Officer had
made two detailed design comments in respect of the column bases and fascia detailing (shown on
Elevation A) and alsothe proposed treatment of the fascias and shop windows.

The applicant has respondedto both of these detailed comments by stating:

"Firstly, concem was raised regarding the bulky column bases and elaborate fascia detailing on
elevation A. The bulky appearance comes from a partial rustication of these columns facing the public
square and is deliberate to denote strength and bulk, reflecting the role of the column within the
architecture of the building (i.e. a supporting structure). This approach is not unusual and there are
many examples ofthis around the world. Reducing the bulk would, in our view, create an incongruous
feature.

Secondly a concem has been raised regarding contrast between the heavily detailed comice / fascia
and the simple treatment of the shop windows. This approach is similarly not unusual in traditional
architecture, including classical work, which relies on relationships i.e. plainness is emphasised when
in contact with something more elaborate. The frontage of unit 2 is deliberately plain to reflect the
existing elevation of The Spotted Cow (Grade II Listed Building). The fascia detailing is more
elaborate to draw the eye to the entrance of this unit, and tie it to the wider development without
detracting from the existing listed building adjacent. This play between two styles provides interest."

Having reconsidered the scheme i the light of this response the Councils Building Conservation
Officer raises no objection to the proposals on design or heritage grounds.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
1R Agpas 2215



Members will also note that Historic England have considered the scheme and do not wish to offer
any comments. Their recommendation is that the application should be determined in accordance with
National and Local Policy Guidance and on the basis of the Councils specialist conservation advice.

Access/Traffic Issues

Access has already been considered as part of the outline approval. The applicant has also separately
submitted a discharge of conditions application to deal with Conditions 6 and 8 of outline permission
which are being considered by NYCC-Highways. Inrespect ofthe reserved matters proposal NYCC -
Highways has made the following comments:-

1. Use of non-standard materials within the existing or proposed highway would generally not be
acceptable due to the additional longterm maintenance costs.

2. The layout of the new footways on Newgate should take into account the proposed one way system
for Spital Street.

3. A delivery route is required through the site to facilitate access to the new retail units.

4. A suitable area to accommodate deliveries off Newgate to the back of the properties fronting the
Market should be provided.

5. The remaining section of highway opposite Mount Road should be amended to ensure parked cars
do not park and block access or use as a drop off area unless a suitable tuming facility is provided

Further plans and details have been submitted to address these comments and the final clearance of
NYCC - Highways is awaited. Members will be updated on the Late Pages or at the meeting.

Archaeology

The outline permission required the submission of a scheme for archaeology evaluation (Condition No
13) prior to the permission of the reserved matters. The condition discharge application was made as
required and the Historic Environmental Team at NYCC approved a Written Scheme of Investigation
for archaeological excavation and watching brief proposed by MAP Archaeological Practice on 9th
June 2015.

Secured by Design Issues

The Police Designing Out Crime Officer has submitted a report in relation to the application, together
with a crime and disorder analysis. The full report can be viewed on the Councils website. Whilst the
appeal decision did not include a condition relating to the prevention of crime and disorder the agent
has confirmed that the car park will be closed at night to prevent entry and this will deter anti-social
behaviour. The agent has confirmed, however, that this and remaining detailed comments set out can
be dealt with by conditions and that the applicant is happy to liaise with the Designing Out Crime
Officer onthese matters

Residential Amenity - Noise/dis turban ce

The scheme has been considered by the Councils' Environmental Health Officer who mitially made
some detailed comments relating to potential noise and disturbance. Detailed matters relating to fixed
plant and equipment and a Noise Management Plan are being dealt with separately through on-going
discussions for the discharge of Conditions 9 and 10 of the appeal decision. As mentioned above,
however, the car park entrance and exits will be closed with shuttered doors in order to prevent anti-
social behaviour in the evening and at night.

Whilst discussion are on-going in respect of the discharge of conditions the reserved matters scheme is
consideredto satisfy the requirements of Policies SP6 and 20 of the Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REge 200



Residential Amenity - Scale/Form/Privacy

The site is located close to a mix of existing residential and commercial uses as detailed earlier in this
report. The Inspector considered various aspect of the potential impacts on adjacent residents as part of
the outline proposals. In particular Condition No.18 make explicit reference to the boundary with
houses on Victoria Road. Condition No 18 states:-

18 The boundary with the houses on Victoria Road shall be formed on the line of the existing
boundary wall, or in any other event not closes to the houses that the same boundary wall. The
boundary shall consist of a wall (to maximum eaves level 40.950m Ordnance Datum with roof
ontop (maximum 43.250m Ordnance Datum to ridge height) as indicated in Drawing No 185-
27, accompanyingthe application.

Members will note from the agents submission letter and from the submitted plans and elevations that
the eaves and ridge levels of the car park comply with the datum heights of 40.95m and 43.25m
specified in the Condition. Elevation G (along Newgate) and Section B shows the relationship of the
new building in relation to the rear of properties in Victoria Road. Members will note that there are no
openings shown on this elevation and it is considered therefore that there are no privacy/overlooking
issues that could arise as a result of this aspect of the scheme. The mass of new car park building will
be apparent to the adjacent residents in Victoria Road. However, the eaves and apex heights of the
nearest part of the car park building comply with the requirements of the outline permission and the
scheme is therefore considered to be acceptable. Moreover, officers consider that rejection of the

reserved matters scheme in this respect would be unreasonable in the light of the earlier appeal
decision.

Other Matters

The proposed roofing material for the main retail unit is a lead grey coloured roof membrane with
solar PV panels being proposed to the south facing roof slope (these are shown of the roof plan
Drawing 185 - 44¢c). The Building Conservation Officer is content with this material and the principle
of locating solar PV panels in the roof. It is anticipated that the panels will be black in colour and also
likely to be positioned on the flat section of roof of Units 2 and 3. Full details of the measures to
reduce CO, omissions and other measures to address sustainability issues will be submitted to
discharge the specific requirements of Condition 17 of the appeal decision.

Third Party Comments

Malton Town Council has made no response to the consultation.

The occupiers of Nos. 6, 10 and 12 Victoria Road have made representations expressing concerns and
some objections to the scheme. Their full responses can be viewed on the Councils' website. Issues
raised include:

Objection tothe multi-storey car park

- scale

- impact on on-street parking

e Concem over roundabout/delivery vehicles

None impact from car park / air pollution

Loss of privacy/overlooking

Concems during building works/demolition
Vibration from construction/land stability

Car park must be locked at night

'Lane' should be widened at the back of Victoria Road

PLANNING COMMITTEE
1R Agpas 15



The consideration of the outline application dealt with many of these issues and the development was
accepted in principle subject to numerous planning conditions.

The detailed approach has addressed matters of scale, layout and design and it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable on the basis of the submitted plans, subject to receipt of the final comments
from NYCC-Highways.

Conclusion

This reserved matters application is considered to comply with the requirements of the outline
permission and the details shown inthe reserved matters submission are considered to comply withthe
policies contained in the adopted development plan. There are no other material considerations to
warrant a deviation from the adopted plan.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to receipt of final observations of NYCC -
Highways and subject to the following conditions

1 Prior to the commencement of works on site details of how the developer proposes to
address the issues raised in the Police Designing Crime Officers Report 2nd July 2015 shall
be submittedto the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved measures shall be
implemented in full prior to the first use of the development hereby approved.

Reason: In order to satisfy para 58 and 59 ofthe NPPF and to reduce the risk of crime and
anti-social behaviour.

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):
Red Line Plan
Drawing no. 185-15
Drawing no. 185-41c
Drawing no. 185-43¢c
Drawing no. 185-42d
Drawing no. 185-44c
Drawing no. 185-45d
Drawing no. 185-46¢
Drawing no. 185-47

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and inthe interests of proper planning.

INFORMATIVES:

1 The applicant/developer is advised to take account of the consultation response of Yorkshire
Water dated 10.06.2011 to the associated outline planning application - 11/00412/MOUT.

2 You should satisfy yourself, prior to commencement of any work related to this project, that
no part of the works hereby approved (including foundations and/or guttering) extended
onto or over adjoining land unless you have first secured the agreement of the appropriate
landowner(s).

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REpe 205



%

==
y

'//////////////A r////;

4

2

=
7
/

22

Lisasinsk B,
]

Page 36

N\

N

\
N

N\

~\\

Q
N




IREVISED PLAN|

HO|
e RSEMARKET Roap

ACCESS

LIVESTOCK
SQUARE

KING'S
HEAD PUB

ST MicHAELS
CHURCH

controctor s 1o verty a1 dimensons an e prioe

A R e Ees@ rve d /\/\atte rs =

h ‘ e i8s-4ld

4 arary 7015 - Nain Aot Unk

e 2015 — “Tha Snomes’ note odsed

g1 Octer 200t 1 e . H
MY 205~ ke Semis Yord nets

8%

Page 37



[REVISED PLAN|

LIVESTOCK ™
SQUARE

1 Ground Floor Plan
42

ST MicHAELS
CHURCH

Reserved Matters

‘ it

Page 38



REVISED PLAN]

LIVESTOCK
SQUARE

+ First Floor Plan
43

ST MicHAELS
CHURCH

Reserved Matters 85434

Page 39



IREVISED PLAN]

HO|
e RSEMARKET Roap

ACGESs
A / ' -
/ A | o

LIVESTOCK
SQUARE

KING'S
HEAD PUB

ST MicHAELS
CHURCH

185-444

&t 3
ehas to ma rotall urit

h
iy

Page 40



| IREVISED PLAN]

g'/ ‘Tfmﬂﬁml i

3 Elevation C
s

& Elevation D
a5 povatonsxme rowo

5 Section A
48,

0 20m
T [ | o | o
Reserved Matters - w185~ ey

Page 41




9,19’4-}[2\/\/ PQ/\JQGQE]

s, 38
£33
Ay
§ 588
. £t
gési—
2 oot
5 3%
: 3
O ]

snomqing

poom s
Ee

CeBl6eSELI0PL
WOTH

o ppn
ooy

py oaig

oL Ao

siopag e oy

ool

oviesres
g

VO Speie,

NIAWAN ONIMVAG

29%-49|

B E 0§

IIITI]
TTTIIT

EIOWARDS

T8

DATUM

1 Elevation E
48" THE SHAMBLES TO MOUNT ROAD

— 1 rr v eree
AT T [V ITTeY B = =

2 Elevation F
= ALONG SPITAL STREET

EXISTING TERRACE
HOUSES

B
= jadssase
\\
- B
i ﬁm =
T ! 2
/s Elevation G
DATUM 467 e nrwe e
30.600 = ALONG NEWGATE
APROVED 45.450
ROOF -
EXISTING 43.870 AS DWG
LIVESTOCK SHED o 43.250 185-27 43.450
N7 14 [
41,000 c/\
.000
| 39.500 [
250
38,000 | srem
36.920 —
) —_— 36.500 EXISTING
/ S — CONCRETE
35.000 ~BOUNDARY WALL
EXISTING
TERRAIN
LEVEL
4, Section B
DATUM 46
30:000——————

REVISED PLAN

. Elevation Key

41.000
H0x

‘ ‘ 38.000
o0

‘ ‘ 35.000
S5io0¢

‘VH' - -

DATUM

30000

5 Section C

20m

Page 42



Reserved Matters

Page 43




Ref: HA/AD92100

Date: 20" May 2015

FAQ Gary Housden
Ryedale District Council
Ryedale House

Old Malton Road
Malton

YO17 7HH

Dear Gary,

Reserved Matters Application for Demolition of Existing Livestock Market and Associated

Outbuildings and Redevelopment for Retail Use Together with 3 Storey Car Parking and Public
Square at the Livestock Market site, Malton

Outline Application Reference: 11/004120MOUT & APP /Y2736 /A/12/2174677

I am pleased to submit our reserved matters application for the redevelopment of the livestock market site.

This follows extensive pre-application discussions with RDC and the submission of a number of applications
to discharge conditions, including condition 13 which is required to be submitted in advance of the

reserved matters application.

For the avoidance of doubt the schedule attached to this letter provides the current position regarding

condition discharge.

The package of information provided to with this reserved matters application includes:

+ Basement Floor Plan Ref:
¢ Ground Floor Plan Ref:
e  First Floor Plan Ref:
+ Roof Plan Ref:
+ Elevations and Sections Ref:
+ Elevations and Sections Ref:
+ Street Views Ref:

The design of the proposed has evolved

185-41b
185-42¢
185-43b
185-44b
185-45¢
185-46b
185-47

in response to occupier requirements, more detailed site and

construction information and pre-application discussions with the Council. The principles and parameters
set out in the Design and Access Statement (April 2011), PPS5 Assessment and DAS Addendum (July
2011), Development Schedule (September 2012) and drawings 185-15, 185-22, 185-23, 185-24, 185-25
and 185-26 have been followed as required by Condition 4 of the

appeal decision.

Arndale Court, Otley Road, Headingley, Leeds, LS6 2U]

Tel: +44 (0)113 219 2217 Fax: +44 (0)0113 219 2317 Email: info@wyg.com www.wyg.com

WYG Envircnment Planning Transpert Limited. Registered in England & Wales Number: 3050257

Registerad Cffice: Arndale Court, Headingley, Leeds, LS6 201

creative minds safe hands

Page 44



Condition 16 requires a minimum of 1,575 m? (GIA) of comparison goods floorspace. The total floorspace
of units 1, 2 and 3 is 1,695 m’ (GIA) which is more than sufficient to enable compliance with this condition.

The height of the ridge and eaves of the car park, at the boundary with Victoria Road, is 43.250 and
40.950 respectively as required by Condition 18.

The design also conforms to the Design Code provided in the PPS5 Assessment Addendum (March 2012)
Section 4, although this was not subject to a specific condition.

The palette of materials for the proposed will include local bricks, lime mortar, limestone and sandstone,
lime render, clay pantiles and wooden and metal windows. Notwithstanding this, it is proposed to use a
lead grey, single sheet roof membrane for the main retail unit with solar PV panels fixed to south facing
roof slopes. The choice of this material has resulted from the detailed design process and is related to load
bearing issues, whereby a requirement to reduce the overall weight of the proposed was identified. This
area of roofscape is the largest in the development but also the least visible, being partially hidden from
view at street level by other buildings and the parapet. More visible areas of roofscape remain clay pantile,
retaining the traditional appearance of the development. The minimal impact of this change is clearly
illustrated in the Street Views provided.

The inclusion of Solar PV responds to the requirements of Condition 17 whereby a 10% reduction of
predicted co, emissions is required. We are investigating the options but anticipate the panels will be black
in colour, arranged to all south facing roof elevations on the main building, service yard and the flat roofs
of units 2 & 3 (facing south). This layout allows for a total system size of 146.9 kWp with a forecast output
of 129,566 kWh, providing significant CO, savings and supporting the overall sustainability of the
development. A report setting out the overall approach to sustainability measures, to fully comply with
Condition 17 will be submitted under a separate discharge of condition application prior to development
commencing.

The change in roofing materials and the inclusion of solar PV has been accepted in principle by the Building
Conservation Officer through the pre-application process (written response attached ).

The final detailed design was well received at the pre-application meetings with officers including the
Building Conservation Officer supportive of the scheme. Only minor issues were raised relating to design
detailing and signage (which will be the subject of a separate application). The following seeks to respond
to these final issues:

Firstly, concern was raised regarding the bulky column bases and elaborate fascia detailing on elevation A.
The bulky appearance comes from a partial rustication of these columns facing the public square and is
deliberate to denote strength and bulk, reflecting the role of the column within the architecture of the
building (i.e. a supporting structure). This approach is not unusual and there are many examples of this
around the world. Reducing the bulk would, in our view, create an incongruous feature.

Secondly a concern has been raised regarding contrast between the heavily detailed cornice / fascia and
the simple treatment of the shop windows. This approach is similarly not unusual in traditional architecture,
including classical work, which relies on relationships i.e. plainness is emphasised when in contact with
something more elaborate. The frontage of unit 2 is deliberately plain to reflect the existing elevation of the
Spotted Cow (Grade II Listed Building). The fascia detailing is more elaborate to draw the eye to the
entrance of this unit, and tie it to the wider development without detracting from the existing listed
building adjacent. This play between two styles provides interest.

Arndale Court, Otley Road, Headingley, Leeds, LS6 2U]
Tel: +44 (0)113 219 2217 Fax: +44 (0)0113 219 2317 Email: info@wyg.com www.wyg.com

WYG Envircnment Planning Transpert Limited. Registered in England & Wales Number: 3050257 . A .
Registerad Cffice: Arndale Court, Headingley, Leeds, LS6 201 creative minds safe hands

Page 45



We have also provided street views of the development as it will look when complete; these are in colour
as requested.

The proposed is in compliance with the principles and parameters of the design approved by the outline
application and the relevant conditions applied. It is also in compliance with Local Plan Strategy policies
including, but not limited to, SP12 Heritage, SP15 Green Infrastructure, SP16 Design and SP18 Renewable
and Low Carbon Energy. On this basis we consider the granting of planning permission is appropriate.

If there are any concems relating to the information submitted 1 would be grateful if you would contact me
on 0113 219 2250, to enable the application to be validated.

Yours Sincerely,

Hannah Andrew
Associate
For and on behalf of WYG

Amdale Court, Odey Road, Headingley, Leeds, LSE 210)
Ted: +44 (03113 219 2217 Fax: +44 (030113 219 2317 Email. info@wyg.com www. wyg.com

WS Ernaronment Panmng Transport Lmeed . Regestered in England & Wales Number: 3050297
Registered Office: Amdale Court, Headingley, Leeds, LS6 ZUl creative minds safe hands

Page 46



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

Decision Notice Ref: 2174477 (App: 11/00412/MOUT)

No | Text Status

1 Approval of the details of the layout, scale, appearance Reserved Matters Application Submitted
and landscaping of the development (hereinafter called
"the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local
Planning Authority in writing before any development is
commenced and the development shall be carried out as
approved.

2 Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be Reserved Matters Application Submitted
made to the Local Planning Authority before the expiration
of three years from the date of this permission.

3 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before
the expiration of two years from the date of approval of
the last of the reserved matters to be approved.

4 The details to be submitted for approval of the matters reserved | Reserved Matters Application is in general conformity with the
by Condition 1above shall follow the principles and parameters principles and parameters set out.

set outin the plans and the accompanying documents, namely:
i) the Design and Access Statement (DAS) (April 2011);

i) the PPS5 Assessment and DAS Addendum (July 2011)

i) the Development Schedule (September 2012)

iv) the drawings numbered 185-15, 185-22, 185-23, 185-24; and

v) the indicative drawings numbered 185-25 and 185-26.

5 No part of the development to which this permission Information to be submitted under a separate application
relates shall be brought into use until the carriageway and
any footway/footpath from which it gains access has been
constructed to basecourse macadam level and kerbed
and connected to the existing highway network with street
lighting installed and in operation. All road works, including
any phasing, shall be completed in accordance with a

Page 47



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

No | Text Status

programme approved in writing with the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Local Highway Authority.

6 There shall be no excavation or other groundworks, except for Condition discharge application for part A was submitted 4t August
investigative works, remediation works or the depositing of 2014

material on the site in connection with the construction of the
access road or building(s) or other works until:

i) the details of the required highway improvement works, listed
below, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Local Highway
Authority;

i) an independent Stage 2 Safety Audit has been carried out in
accordance with HD19/03 - Road Safety Audit or any
superseding

regulations;

iii) a programme for the completion of the proposed works has
been submitted.

The required highway improvements shall include:

a) provision of a mini roundabout at the Spital Field
Court/Victoria

Road/Middlecave Road junction, with associated parking
restrictions on Victoria Road.

b) provision of 2m wide footways along the site frontages on
Horsemarket Road, Spital Field Court and Newgate.

c) formation of new private accesses from the development
hereby approved, onto Horsemarket Road, Spital Field Court
and Newgate.

The required highway improvements shall be completed prior to
the development hereby approved being brought into use.

The remaining information has been submitted for discharge 18h May
2015

7 No development shall take place, including any works of Information to be submitted under a separate application
demolition, until a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide

Page 48



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

No | Text Status

for:

i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

i) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the
development;

iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including
decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where
appropriate;

v) wheel washing facilities;

Vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction;

vii) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from
demolition and construction works;

viii) proposed dates, times and duration of all piling operations.

8 Prior to the retail units hereby approved being brought into use, Discharged 30t June 2014
a Travel Plan shall have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
Highway Authority. This shall include:

i) the appointment of a travel co-ordinator;

i) a partnership approach to influence travel behaviour;

i)y measures to encourage the use of altemnative modes of
transport

other than the private car by persons to the site;

iv) provision of up-to-date details of public fransport services;

v) continual appraisal of travel patterns and measures provided
through the travel plan;

vi) improved safety for vulnerable road users;

vii) a reduction in all vehicle trips and mileage;

viii) a programme for the implementation of such measures and
any proposed physical works;

ix) procedures for monitoring the uptake of such modes of
transport and for providing evidence of compliance.

The Travel Plan shall be implemented and the development shalll

Page 49



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

No | Text Status

thereafter be caried out and operated in accordance with the
Travel Plan.

9 Prior to the operation of the retail outlets hereby approved | Submitted 18 May 2015
a Noise Management Plan shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
thereafter adhered to. The submitted Noise Management
Plan shall specify retail unit opening hours and shall include
measures to be implemented at the site to minimise noise
disturbance to local residents from deliveries, car parking
(including consideration of operating hours and physical
enforcement measures as required) and servicing
requirements.

10 No fixed plant and/or machinery associated with the Submitted 18" May 2015
development hereby permitted shall come into operation
until a scheme containing details of the fixed plant and
machinery serving the development hereby permitted
together with associated mitigation measures has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This scheme will include the anticipated
rating level of plant noise emitted from the site between
the hours of 23.00 and 07.00 and separately between 07.00
and 23.00 when assessed at the nearest noise sensitive
property. The measurements and assessment shall be
made in accordance with BS 4142: 1997. No further fixed
plant and or machinery shall be operated. There shall be
no operation of external generators.

1 Prior to the development hereby permitted being brought | Information to be submitted under a separate application
into use an external lighting scheme for the site shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local

Planning Authority, such scheme to be implemented in

Page 50



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

No | Text Status

accordance with the approved details prior to the
development being brought into use.

12 | No development shall take place until a site investigation | Condition discharge application submitted: 4 August 2014
of the nature and extent of contamination has been
carried out in accordance with a methodology which has
previously been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The results of the site
investigation shall be made available to the Local Planning
Authority before any development begins. If any
contamination is found during the site investigation, a
report specifying the measures to be taken to remediate
the site to render it suitable for the development hereby
permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be remediated
in accordance with the approved measures before
development begins. If, during the course of development,
any contamination is found which has not been identified
in the site investigation, additional measures for the
remediation of this source of contamination shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The remediation of the site shall
incorporate the approved additional measures.

13 The detdils submitted in pursuance of condition 1 shall be Part i) discharged 3th June 2014
preceded by the submission to the Local Planning Authority for
approval in writing, and subsequent implementation, of a
scheme of archaeological investigation to provide for:
i) The proper identification and evaluation of the extent,
character
and significance of archaeological remains within the
application
area;

i) An assessment of the impact of the proposed development on

Final report submitted for discharge 18th May 2015

Page 51



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

No | Text Status

any
archaeological remains;

This shall be followed by the submission of:

iii) Proposals for the preservation in situ, or for the investigation,
recording and recovery of archaeological remains and the
analysis and publishing of the findings, it being understood that
there shall be a presumption in favour of their preservation in situ
wherever feasible.

These proposals shall be approved by the Local Planning
Authority in writing and implemented before any development
commences.

14 The method statement described in section 4.2 of the bat
report dated August 2010 should be followed.

15 No development shall take place until details of the Information to be submitted under a separate application
proposed means of foul and surface water drainage,
including details of any balancing works and off-site works,
together with a programme for their implementation, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. These foul and surface water drainage
works shall then be carried out in accordance with the
approved details and programme.

16 The development hereby approved shall provide a The Reserved Matters Application meets the requirements of this
minimum of 1,575 sgm (gross intermnal area) of comparison | condition
goods floorspace.

17 | No development of any phase of the development hereby | The Reserved Matters Application includes Solar PV and a full
permitted shall take place until a report has been sustainability report will be submitted demonstrating compliance with
submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning this condition under a separate discharge of condition application.
Authority, identifying how the predicted CO2 emissions of
the development will be reduced by at least 10% through
the use of on-site renewable energy equipment,
sustainable building techniques and/or other sustainability

Page 52



Malton Livestock Market - Planning Conditions Schedule

No

Text

Status

measures. The carbon savings which result from this will be
above and beyond what is required to comply with Part L
Building Regulations. The development shall then proceed
in accordance with the approved report.

The boundary with the houses on Victoria Road shall be formed
on the line of the existing boundary wall, orin any other event
not closer to the houses than the same boundary wall. The
boundary shall consist of a wall (to maximum eaves level
40.950m Ordnance Datum with roof on top (maximum 43.250m
Ordnance Datum fo ridge height) as indicated in Drawing No
185-27, accompanying the application.

The Reserved Matters Application meets the requirements of this
condiition.

Page 53




E The Planning
' Inspectorate

Appeal Decision

Inquiry opened on 11 September 2012
Site visit made on 18 September 2012

by David Wildsmith BSc(Hons) MSc CEng MICE FCIHT MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 29 October 2012

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677
Malton Livestock Market, Horsemarket Road, Malton, North Yorkshire,
YO17 702

« The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant ocutline planning permission.

« The appeal is made by Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estates against the decision of Ryedale
District Council.

« The application Ref 11/00412/MQUT, dated 10 May 2011, was refused by notice dated
12 April 2012.

+ The development preposed is the demolition of the existing livestock market including
associated buildings and redevelopment of the site for retail with 3-storey car-parking
and public square.

+ The inquiry sat for 5 days on 11-14 & 19 September 2012.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and outline planning permission is granted for the demolition
of the existing livestock market including associated buildings and redevelopment
of the site for retail with 3-storey car-parking and public square at Maiton Livestock
Market, Horsemarket Road, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 0JN in accordance with
the terms of the application, Ref 11/00412/MQOUT, dated 10 May 2011, subject to
the conditions set out in the Schedule at the end of this decision.

Application for costs

2. At the inquiry an application for costs was made by the appellant against the
Council. This application is the subject of a separate Decision.

Preliminary matters

3. The application was submitted in outline, with only access details to be determined
at this stage.

Main issues
4, The main issues are:

i) whether the proposed development would accord with the sequential
approach to town centre uses, and its effect on the vitality and viability of
Malton town centre;

i) whether development of the site should be dependent on the relocation of
the existing livestock market;

iii) the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance
of the surrcunding area, having regard to built form, urban grain, and

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 54



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

designated and undesignated heritage assets, including nearby listed
buildings and conservation area; and

iv) the effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of
occupiers of properties on the eastern side of Victoria Road.

Site Description and relevant Planning History

5.

10.

The appeal site extends to some 0.9 hectares, adjoining the north-western
boundary of the "Town Centre Commercial Limits” as defined on the Proposals
Map of the Ryedale Local Plan, adopted in 2002. It is currently used as a livestock
market (LM) for 2 days each week, with additional special events on other days
throughout the year. Much of the site is laid to hardstanding, with open-air
animal pens and informal vehicle parking areas. In addition there are two large
commercial barns, one at the northern end of the site and one at the southern,
together with a number of smaller buildings. The site is split by both Spital Street
and The Shambles, with the eastern part of this latter road existing as a
pedestrian link to Market Place and the wider town centre.

Terraced residential properties facing Victoria Road abut the north-western site
boundary, whilst residential and commercial properties lie along Horsemarket
Road, which forms much of the site’s western boundary. Residential and
commercial properties also lie along Spital Field Court and Newgate at the site's
north-eastern boundary. The rears of listed buildings in commercial use line much
of the site’s eastern boundary, with these buildings also lying within the Malton
Conservation Area which contains the town centre and also an area to the west of
the site, centred on The Mount. Another listed building, “The Spotted Cow” public
house, lies immediately outside the site’s western boundary.

The appellant previously submitted an application in September 2007 for the
demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the LM site to provide a mix
of retail and residential uses. This application was withdrawn.

The current appeal proposal seeks to demolish all buildings on the site and
construct four new retail units with a total combined gross external floorspace of
4,092 square metres (sqm), together with a 3-storey decked car park and a new
public area, referred to as the “Livestock Square”. The main retail unit would
have a gross external floorspace of 2,360 sqm and is being promoted for a high
quality foodstore. The gross internal area would be 2,220 sqm, with a retail area
of some 1,590 sgm and 630 sgm for servicing. The three smaller units would
provide a total of 1,732 sgm gross external floorspace, giving some 1,575 sgm of
gross internal area.

The application was considered by the Planning Committee on 29 March 2012 with
a recommendation for refusal. It was subsequently refused planning permission
on 12 April for four reasons which have formed the basis of the main issues in this
appeal, as detailed above. The same March Committee Meeting also considered
an outline proposal for the erection of retail units (Use Class Al), offices (Use
Class B1), petrol filling station, car park and associated landscaping on the
Wentworth Street Car Park {WSCP), another edge-of-centre location, owned by
the District Council. In light of Ryedale District Council’s ownership of the WSCP
site, both applications were managed by planning officers at East Riding of
Yorkshire Council (ERYC).

Committee Members resolved to grant outline planning permission for this latter
proposal, with conditions, subject to the Secretary of State not calling in the

www,planningportal.gov,uk/planninginspectorate 2

Page 55



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

application for his own determination, and subject to the completion of a planning
obligation. At the time of the inquiry and the writing of this decision, no decision
notice had been issued for the WSCP proposal.

Reasons

The sequential approach, vitality and viability

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

This first main issue draws on the Council’s first and fourth reasons for refusal. In
summary, these maintain that the appellant has not demonstrated compliance with
the requirements of the sequential approach set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework (“the Framework”}, that the site is not currently available for the
proposed development or suitable for the type/mix of retail development proposed;
that the WSCP site is sequentially preferable to the appeal site; and that when
taken in combination with the commitment to approve an application for a
foodstore on the WSCP site the proposal would be likely to have a significant
adverse impact on town centre vitality and viability.

1 deal with these matters below, after summarising the retail needs of the area, but
it is of note that the Council’s position changed somewhat on certain of these
points, and on other matters included in the reasons for refusal, as the inquiry
progressed. Some aspects of the Council’s case were clarified in a Statement of
Common Ground {SoCG) agreed between the appellant and the Council, but as this
was not submitted until the final day of the inquiry its content had not been able to
influence the production and presentation of evidence. The SoCG does, however,
indicate that the appeal site provides a redevelopment opportunity, well located
adjacent to the existing town centre, with which it has strong pedestrian links.

Dealing first with the retail assessments for the District, the SoCG confirms that a
Retail Capacity Study was undertaken by Roger Tym and Partners (RTP) in 2006,
with RTP also carrying out updates in 2008 and 2011 and providing Supplementary
Advice on Convenience Retail Provision in 2009. The most recent of these retail
studies, the Ryedale Retail Capacity and Impact Assessment Update (RRCIAU) of
July 2011, was prepared to inform the final draft of the Council’s Core Strategy,
now referred to as the Local Plan Strategy (LPS).

This RRCIAU identifies Malton as the main comparison shopping destination in the
Overall Catchment Area (OCA), and considers it to be a generally busy, vital and
viable centre. However, it also notes that some 70% of total comparison goods
expenditure available within the OCA flows out of the District, principally to larger
centres such as York and Scarborough. In particular it notes that despite being the
District’s principal centre, Malton only retains a very low market share of the
available clothes and shoes expenditure, a key goods category. The low
comparison sales densities are seen as reflecting the restricted quality of retail
property available in the town centre and the study notes that in such
circumstances the PPS4 Practice Guidance® suggests a qualitative need to improve
the quality of existing stock or the performance of stores.

The RRCIAU comments that Malton town centre has a reasonably-sized convenience
sector and provides a range of food and grocery outlets. These include a recently
extended Morrisons store, a Sainsbury’s Local store and a Netto supermarket {now
trading as an Asda outlet), in addition to a number of smaller convenience shops.

It is noted, however, that the extended Morrisons is at the lower end of the
superstore size spectrum, with just over 2,500 sqm of sales floorspace, and that

! The Practice Guidance to Planning Policy Statement 4 (PPS4) “Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth”, which
is still extant, even though PPS4 itself has been superseded by the Framework

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 3

Page 56



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

16.

17,

18

19.

20.

21.

the majority of existing convenience operators in Malton tend towards the low or
discount end of the market. Accordingly, the study concludes that there is scope to
diversify the convenience offer through the provision of a higher-order supermarket
or foodstore, in order to enhance consumer choice.

The RRCIAU’s conclusions regarding the need for additional retail floorspace within
the District are set out in a number of scenarios. For the comparison goods sector
two scenarios have been considered, one assuming a “constant” expenditure
retention rate and the other assuming a “rising” retention rate of up to a 40% by
2021, remaining at this level until 2026. Under the constant retention scenario the
additional sales area requirements are shown as negative up to 2016: about 375
sgm by 2021 and about 1,620 sqm by 2026. In the rising retention scenario there
is considered to be capacity for about an additional 5,700 sqm in the pericd to 2021
and around 7,700 sgm in the overall 2011-26 study period.

For the convenience goods sector three scenarics are considered: the first assumes
a constant retention of expenditure within the catchment area; the second assumes
a rate of expenditure retention which rises from about 66% in 2011 to 85% by
2021, remaining at this level thereafter; the third scenario alsc assumes a rising
rate of expenditure retention, but also makes an allowance for the “over-trading” of
additional foodstores in the catchment area (such as the Malton Morrisons) to be
counted towards capacity. RTP do not advocate assuming a constant expenditure
retention as this would simply perpetuate the already low retention rate. Instead,
they consider it a sound policy aspiration for the Council to seek to increase the
overall level of convenience expenditure retention in order to encourage food
shopping to be undertaken on as localised basis as possible.

. As such, there is considered to be scope for some 1,260 sqm of additional

convenience sales area floorspace across Ryedale in the period to 2021 under
Scenario 2, or about 1,500 sgm when an allowance for overtrading is made under
Scenario 3. In the longer term period to 2026, the study considers that there is
scope for between about 1,650 sqgm and 1,900 sgm of additional convenience sales
area floorspace under Scenarios 2 and 3, respectively.

It is in response to these retail assessments that the appellant has put the appeal
propesal forward. By providing 1,590 sqm of convenience flocrspace and 1,575
sqm of comparison floorspace the appellant argues that the appeal proposal would
not only meet Malton’s convenience and comparison floorspace needs up to 2021
and beyond, but would do so on a site which is functionally and physically lccated
so as to boost the town’s economy and promote the linked trips that are a central
objective of planning policy for town centres.

The Council acknowledges that the LM is a key site for Malton, and points out that it
is actively pursuing the site’s redevelopment through the LPS. However it
maintains that the failure to promote a comparison-led development means that
the current proposal would not make the most of the site’s location, would not
properly fulfil the needs of Malton, but instead would represent a significant missed
opportunity for the town.

1 turn now to the sequential test, formerly set out in PPS4 and now carried forward
into the Framework, Paragraph 24 of the Framework explains that local planning
authorities should require applications for main town centre uses to be located in
town centres, then in edge-of-centre locations and only if suitable sites are not
available should out-of-centre sites be considered. It further notes that when
considering edge-of-centre and out-cf-centre proposals, preference should be given
to accessible sites that are well connected to the town centre, and goes on te say

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 4

Page 57



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

27

that applicants and local planning authorities should demonstrate flexibility on
issues such as format and scale.

The RTP retail assessments referred to above have consistently taken the view that
the LM site represents the most sequentially preferable opportunity in Malton.
However, in the LM report to Committee, Officers adopted what the Council referred
to at the inquiry as a “novel” application of the sequential test. As a result, the
Planning Committee was advised that the WSCP site was preferable to the appeal
site in PPS4 terms. A reading of the Committee Report reveals that this advice was
based on the Officers’ view that the appeal site was not suitable for the
development proposed; could not be considered as currently available for the
proposed development; and that the development proposed had not been
demonstrated to be viable.

However, at the inquiry the Council’s planning witness acknowledged that there had
been significant flaws in the way this matter had been approached. Firstly, thereis
nothing within the Framework, nor was there anything within PPS4, which requires
a developer to apply tests of availability, suitability and viability to the site being
promoted for development. The sequential approach is intended to establish
whether or not there are any more sequentially preferable sites for the
development proposed, than the site in question. In this case there is no dispute
between the parties that the LM site could accommodate the appeal proposal.

Moreover, an assessment of the site provided to the Council by RTP in the RRCIAU
comments that a retail-led scheme would be viable at the site and could form a
natural extension of the existing town centre. It considers that the site would be
an ideal location for a development providing a small number of unit shops to
attract the type of “high street” comparison retail outlets presently missing from
Malton’s offer. It further suggests that such units could potentiaitly form part of a
mixed-use development, described as possibly including a basket foodstore and/or
residential/office uses, although a supermarket-only scheme is not advocated. The
study also comments that the WSCP site is located about 160m to the north-east of
the Town Centre Commercial Limits and is more suited to convenience rather than
comparison retail development.

A final point of note is that the LM report to Committee acknowledges that the LM
site is not specifically allocated for comparison retail development at the present
time, The report does indicate that the supporting text to policy SP7 of the LPS
publication draft refers to the LM site as being particularly suitable for non-food
retailing, but there is nothing to suggest that this need be to the exclusion of other
uses. In any case, [ understand that objections have been lodged to this policy and
its supporting text, including from the appellant, and in these circumstances I can
only give this emerging policy limited weight.

Taking the above points into account it is my view that the LM site is the
sequentially preferable site to accommodate the development proposed and that its
development for such uses would be in line with guidance in the Framework.
Moreover, no firm evidence has been placed before me to suggest conflict with any
adopted development plan policy in this regard.

As already noted, and as stressed by the appellant, the foregoing is all that is
necessary in respect of a sequential assessment by a prospective developer.
However, the Council maintained that notwithstanding these points, it needed to
satisfy itself that the site in question is both suitable and available, and that the
development proposed is viable. I share the appeliant’s view that whilst such
matters are clearly appropriate for a Local Planning Authority to have regard to in

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 5

Page 58



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

28.

25.

30,

31.

32.

33

the development plan context, they are not appropriate matters for consideration in
relation to development management,

Nevertheless, in terms of any assessments of suitability the correct approach is to
consider whether the site is suitable for the development proposed, not for some
alternative development which others may prefer to see on the site, as set out in
the United Kingdom Supreme Court case of Tesco Stores Limited v Dundee City
Council?, referred to by the appellant. The Council’s planning witness accepted that
within the LM Committee Report the WSCP site should have been assessed for its
ability to accommodate the appeal proposal. He further agreed that if such an
assessment had been carried out, the WSCP site ought to have been considered
unsuitable for comparison retail units in view of its separation from the town centre.

I acknowledge the point made in the LM Committee Repott that the Framework,
which was only in draft at that time, indicates that needs for retail and other main
town centre uses should be met in full. However, as the amount of new floorspace
needed is dependent on the strategy or scenario adopted by the Council, it is not
possible to be definitive about this matter at the present time, It is the case,
however, as noted above, that with some 1,590 sqm of convenience floorspace and
1,575 sqm of comparison floorspace the appeal proposal would fully meet Malton’s
convenience needs up to 2021 and beyond, and would appear to be well placed to
make a significant contribution towards the comparison floorspace needs.

With regards to availability, although the LM Committee Report acknowledged that

the appellant, as owner of the LM site, was likely to exercise its right, under a break
clause, to terminate the lease for the LM, it then concluded that the site should not

be seen as currently available for the proposed development, But all that the PP54
Practice Guidance requires is that sites should either be available now, or “are likely
to become available for development within a reasonable peried of time ....". 1 have
no doubt that in these circumstances the site should be considered as available.

As to the viability of the appeal proposal the Council clarified, in opening its case,
that it does not seek to argue that the appeal scheme would be unviable if an
operator could be found and if the rents set out in the appellant’s evidence were to
be generated. Rather, its concerns centred around its view that the design and
location of the proposed development are likely to be much less attractive to an
operator than the WSCP scheme which the Council has resclved to approve.

However, whilst it is common ground that the grant of planning permission for a
larger store on the WSCP site would make it mare difficult for an operator to be
found for the appeal proposal, this underscores the need and purpose of the
sequential approach in seeking to promote and strengthen town centres. Despite
the Officers’ conclusion in the LM Committee Report, the submitted evidence as a
whole, leads me to conclude that the WSCP site is a sequentially less preferable
edge-of-centre site than the appeal site. Moreover, having visited both sites as
part of my inspection I consider that a development on the WSCP site would have
poorer pedestrian links to the town centre than the LM site, notwithstanding the
fact that enhancement works to the connecting route are proposed.

The second part of this first main issue flows from the Council’s fourth reason for
refusal, which maintained that when the appeal proposal is considered in
combination with the WSCP scheme, it would be likely to have a significant adverse
impact on town centre vitality and viability. In support of this view the Council
argued, when closing its case, that the WSCP proposal should still be viewed as a

2 Tesco Stores Limited v Dundee City Council (Scotland) [2012] UKSC 13 (21 March 2012)

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 6

Page 59



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

34,

35.

36.

37,

38.

39,

commitment and that it would therefore be appropriate to assess the cumulative
impact of both schemes in line with the PPS4 Practice Guidance.

However, I am mindful of the Council’s acknowledgement that Members will have to
re-assess their resolution to grant planning permission for the WSCP scheme in the
light of the concession, made at the inquiry, that the nature and application of the
sequential test was not properly spelled out in the LM Committee Report. In these
circumstances I conclude that it would not be appropriate to regard the WSCP
scheme as a commitment. On this basis the cumulative impact referred to by the
Council would not arise, although for completeness T do return to this matter later.

Taken in isclation the SoCG acknowledges that the proposed development would
provide three retail units with varying floor plates that could accommeodate
comparison retailers, and that this would improve local consumer choice in relation
to comparison goods and would also provide new employment opportunities in the
local area. There is also agreement that the amount of retail floorspace proposed
would not be out of scale with Malton’s role or function as a principal town as
defined in the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) or the draft
LPS. Although the Secretary of State has signalled his intention to abolish the RSS,
it still remains part of the development plan at the time of writing this decision,

The SoCG indicates that the Council does not accept that the LM site forms a logical
extension to the town centre, but this does not sit comfortably with its first reason
for refusal, which quite clearly states a contrary view. However, notwithstanding
this point the fact remains that at the present time the Council is promoting,
through its emerging LPS, a “northern arc” (which includes both the LM site and the
WSCP), to the north of the existing town centre, to accommodate new retail space
to support the role of the town centre. In addition, paragraph 5.25 of the LPS
Submission document of May 2012 notes that the LM site has the ability, over time
to form a logical extension to the town centre.

Having regard to these points and the fact that there would be good linkages
between a development on the appeal site and the town centre, I consider it
reasonable to assume that the appeal proposal would strengthen and enhance the
town centre, rather than adversely impact upon it. In coming to this view I have
also had regard to the retail advice consistently given to the Council by RTP prior to
this inquiry, through the various retail assessments referred to eariier, that the LM
site would be an appropriate location for further retail development. 1 do not
believe that this advice would have been given if RTP considered that it would result
in harm to the existing town centre.

Moreover, it became apparent during the inquiry that the appellant’s {withdrawn)
2007 scheme, supported by RTP, would have provided some 1,500 sgm of
convenience sales area and about 2,060 sqm of comparison floor area, compared to
about 1,590 sgm convenience flcorspace and 1,575 sgqm comparison floorspace in
the current scheme. Whilst the current proposal would provide about 500 sqm less
comparison floorspace than was the case in the 2007 scheme, I share the
appellant’s view that these two schemes should be viewed as broadly similar in
scale, and therefore likely to be similar in impact,

To my mind there is some inconsistency between the Council’s preference and
hence implicit support for a comparison-led scheme on the LM site, and its
contention that the current proposal, which would offer virtually a 50/50 split of
convenience and comparison floorspace, would be harmful to the town centre. The
Council has not submitted any firm evidence to demonstrate in what ways the
appeal proposal would be harmful, whereas the appellant’s evidence that

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 7

Page 60



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

40,

41.

42.

43.

44.

45,

convenience retailing is critical to a market town’s vitality and viability is drawn
from a research report for the former Department of Environment, Transport and
the Regions® (DETR). The appellant’s planning witness was the author of this
report and the oral evidence on this matter was not disputed by the Council,

In addition, I understand that the appellant is also a major land-owner in the town
centre, and because of this I can appreciate that its concerns regarding the appeal
proposal’s likely impact upon the town centre take on an added significance. There
is clearly merit in the argument that in such circumstances it woutd not make sense
for the appellant tc propose a scheme which would do anything but boost the
town’s vitality and viability. I consider that this adds weight to this proposal which,
in retail terms was accepted by the Council at the inquiry to fully comply with
guidance in the Framework.

Finally on this issue, I briefly consider the scenario whereby the WSCP scheme is
granted planning permission. The first point of note is that there is agreement
within the SoCG that the cumulative scale of both the appeal proposal and the
WSCP scheme would significantly exceed the retail capacity identified for Malton
within the RTP 2008 Retail Study. In addition, the submitted evidence indicates
that the WSCP scheme would draw trade from the town centre Morrisons store,
which is currently over-trading. However, [ accept that in resolving to grant
planning permission for the WSCP proposal the Council considered that the overall
impact on the town centre, including linked-trips, would be acceptable.

Nevertheless, trade would be drawn from the existing centre, and this impact would
be increased if the appeal site was also granted planning permission. In such
circumstances a judgement has to be made as to the overall extent of any impact,
having regard to the specific details of the cases and the locations of the respective
sites. In this regard it is of note that in asserting that the appeal proposal would
result in harm to the vitality and viability of the town centre, the Council has not
undertaken any specific assessment of this matter,

In contrast, the appellant has argued that although a greater impact on the existing
town centre would arise if both the WSCP and the appeal proposal were to proceed,
custom drawn to the LM scheme should be seen as contributing to town centre
turnover, in view of the general acceptance that it would function as a logical
extension to the town centre. Indeed the appellant argues that the on this basis
the appeal proposal would lead to an overall positive impact of 24%, compared to
the situation if only the WSCP scheme proceeds.

I fully accept that such arguments have to be treated with some caution, in light of
the view expressed by the Inspector and endorsed by the Secretary of State, in a
call-in case in Stoke on Trent?, that including edge-of-centre stores in assessments
of “functional” centres could generate misleading conclusions. However, I am not
persuaded that the particular circumstances of that case, which related to a much
larger centre and a different disposition and juxtaposition of foodstores, are directly
comparable to the current situation which involves a relatively modest development
immediately adjacent to an existing market town centre. On balance, and
particularly having regard to the Council’s aspirations for additional retail areas in
the “northern arc”, set out within the emerging LPS, I consider that the appellant’s
assessment of this matter is to be favoured.

Having regard to all the matters detailed above, I conclude that the proposed
development would accord with the sequential approach to town centre uses, set

* The Impact of Large Food Stores an Market Towns and District Centres - DETR 1998
* Ref: APP/M3455/V/10/2122016

www,planningportal.gov,uk/planninginspectorate 8

Page 61



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

out in the Framework, and would not have an unacceptable effect on the vitality
and viability of Malton town centre. Accordingly I find no material conflict with
policies YH5 or E2 of the RSS which seek, amongst other matters, to make Principal
Towns (such as Malten) the main local focus for shopping activities and facilities,
and to strengthen the role and performance of existing city and town centres.

Relocation of the existing livestock market

46,

47,

48,

49.

50.

The Council’s second reason for refusal states that the LM is an important element
of the local economy and the desirability of its retention in the local area is
considered to be of such importance that a redevelopment proposal for the existing
site should not be allowed until proper provisions are in place for the existing LM
use of the site to be relocated., The reason for refusal goes on to indicate that the
appellant has not demonstrated that it would be willing to enter into a planning
obligation to secure the LM’s relocation.

There is, however, no adopted policy backing for the Council’s stance, although
emerging LPS policies SP7 and SP9 do address this matter. Policy SP7 itself makes
no direct reference to the LM, but its supporting text states that redevelopment of
the livestock area would be predicated on the successful relocation of the existing
LM, which is greatly valued by the local farming community and many residents.
Policy SP9 indicates that Ryedale's land-based economy will be sustained and
diversified with indirect support being given to, amongst other things, the retention
of a livestock market in Ryedale which serves the District, is convenient to users,
minimises landscape impact and is located close to a market town to ensure a
continued relationship for associated services.

It is clear from the foregoing that the retention of the LM somewhere within
Ryedale District is an objective of the LPS, but that it does not necessarily need to
be retained on its present site. Indeed, the LPS makes it clear that the existing LM
site would be appropriate for retail development to support the existing town
centre, as already noted above. Moreover, the weight that I can accord to these
emerging policies has to be reduced as a result of the fact that specific objections
have been raised against those aspects which seek to link the redevelopment of the
existing site to the relocation of the LM.

Furthermore, the factual situation surrounding the current LM operation is an
important element in the consideration of this matter. In summary, the LM site is
within the ownership of the appellant, as the freeholder, and is currently subject to
a lease to Canteen Properties which was signed in 2008. This contains mutual,
unconditional break clauses every five years, under which either party can
terminate the lease. The appellant has exercised its option under these break
clauses, with legal notice having been served on the leaseholder that the lease will
be terminated on 5 October 2013, regardiess of whether the appeal proposal
receives planning permission. These matters are confirmed in the agreed SoCG,
which also notes that no scheme for the relocation of the LM has been identified
and that the Council has not identified a value for any financial contribution linked
to the relocaticn of the LM,

These points reinforce the appellant’s view that it is acting within its legal rights and
is under no obligation to find an alternative site for the LM to move to. 1 share that
view and note that there is no requirement in any development plan policy or in the
Framework which would seek to impose such an obligation on the appellant. The
Council did make reference to paragraph 70 of the Framework, which states that
planning decisions should guard against the loss of valued facilities and services but
this point, which falls under the heading of “Promoting Healthy Communities”, was

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 9

Page 62



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

51,

52.

53,

54

55,

not put directly to any of the appellant’s witnesses. Although the LM is undoubtedly
valued by some sectors of the community, no firm, factual evidence has been
placed before me to demonstrate its importance to the social and economic fabric
of the area, as claimed by the Council. Therefore, whilst I give some weight to this
matter, I am not persuaded that the loss of the LM would reduce the community’s
ability to meet its day-to-day needs, as referred to in this Framework paragraph.

With regard to objectors to the appeal proposal, 1 have been mindful of the
evidence presented at the inquiry by representatives of the leaseholding company,
the local auctioneers, local farmers and livestock hauliers, and directors of the
relatively newly formed Malton and Ryedale Farmers Livestock Market company.
But whilst I have sympathy with those who wish to see a LM retained in the area,
questions regarding the viability of the existing LM operation and the weight which
should therefore be attached to its retention on this site were raised by the
appellant and, in my opinion, carry some weight in this appeal.

In this regard Mr Stephenson, a Director of the company holding the lease of the
LM premises® and also a Partner of the Malton Livestock Auctioneers (MLA) stated
that MLA is able to pay the modern 2008 rent and still leave a modest profit.
However, whilst some general turnover figures for the LM for 2011 were provided,
these do not assist in establishing the viability of the existing operation. Moreover,
I understand that when the rent income from sub-tenants in The Shambles is taken
into account, the effective annual sum paid for the lease of the LM land is only
between £10,000 and £14,000. For a prime, edge-of-town centre location such as
this I share the appellant’s view that this is a very low figure, and I can well
appreciate why the appellant does not wish this existing situation to continue.

It is clear that the existing LM operators have known since at least the time of the
withdrawn planning application in 2007 that the appellant wished to redevelop the
LM site. In addition, Mr Stephenson indicated that he has tried to explore the
prospect of an out of town site for the LM since 1987, but with no success, althcugh
in this regard the appeliant maintained that discussions did not proceed because Mr
Stephenson would not accept the imposition of certain conditions on any sale of
land, The appellant considered such conditions necessary as Mr Stephenson’s
company had sold another livestock market site at Seamer near Scarborough to a
supermarket developer for more that £3 million over ten years ago and the
appellant wanted to avoid the possibility of a similar situation arising again.

Regardless of the actual details of this matter, the fact remains that other than
instigating a campaign to save the LM, which included a 5,000 signature petition in
favour of retaining the LM, submitted in April 2008, it is unclear what other positive
steps the operators have taken to secure an alternative site in recent years.
Although a new Malton and Ryedale Farmers Livestock Market company has now
been formed, it appears that this has only happened relatively recently, with no
business plan available at the inguiry, not even in draft form. Moreover, it was
confirmed that no architects or engineers have been engaged by the new market
company to assist in developing @ new livestock market.

No firm details of the likely cost of moving to a new site were placed before me,
and there was some inconsistency and vagueness in the figures given orally in
evidence. The capital sums involved in setting up a new LM were stated variously
to be between £1 million and £3.5 million, and although about £1 mitlion of
“working capital” was said to be already available, no firm details of this were

5 Mr Stephenson’s written statement indicates that Boulton & Cooper is the company which holds the lease of the
LM premises, but he confirmed in his oral evidence that the |ease is actually in the name of Canteen Properties
Ltd, as a result of the restructuring of the family business.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 10

Page 63



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

56.

57.

58.

submitted, nor was any clear indication given of how the remaining sums would be
raised. Although the new market company’s Chairman indicated that farmers
would be prepared to put money into a new market proposal without requiring
rates of return this, again, was not supported by any hard evidence,

In addition to uncertainties regarding financial matters, there was also a lack of
clarity regarding the likely timescales involved in establishing a new LM. The new
market company’s Chairman suggested that building the new market could take up
to two years, not including the planning permission timescale, whereas one of the
Partners of the Malton Livestock Auctioneers, Mr Watson, considered that an extra
18 months would be needed, beyond the lease’s termination in October 2013.
However, these suggested timescales have to be dependent, to some extent at
least, upon finding a suitable alternative site, and whilst I was told that an offer to
provide a site on the Pickering Road has been made by the Fitzwilliam Trust
Cooperation, this is another matter for which no firm details have been provided.

In summary, it is clear that the retention of the LM is a material consideration in
this appeal, but the weight I can attach to it is significantly reduced by the absence
of any firm, clear plans for its future from those with most interest in its continued
existence. Moreover, notwithstanding the fact that the appellant was characterised
as taking a long-term view of things, it would not be reasonable to consider
attaching a Grampian style condition tc any permission, specifying a date before
which no development should take place, as no clear, justified and verified
timetable for relocation has been submitted. Nor would it be appropriate to seek to
obtain a financial contribution towards relocation, as this would not accord with the
guidance on planning obligations set out in paragraph 204 of the Framework.

On balance, taking all the above paints into account, I conclude that it would not be
reasonable to make any develocpment on the appeal site dependent on the
relocation of the existing livestock market,

Effect on character and appearance

59, The Council’s third reason for refusal alleges that the application as submitted does

not adequately demonstrate, amongst other matters, that the proposed
development could proceed in a form which would be appropriate in design and
layout terms; that key elements would function well in the context of the
surrounding built form and established urban grain in the area; and that it would
have due regard to the designated and undesignated heritage assets of the area.

60. This matter was elaborated on at the inquiry by the Council’s conservation witness,

61.

who also contended that the design and layout as shown on the submitted plans
would not be appropriate in this setting. It is of note, however, that this witness,
who indicated that his evidence represented his own views and did not necessarily
accord completely with the Council’s stated concerns in its reascns for refusal, had
not had any involvement with this proposal prior to the appeal being lodged.

Be that as it may, in view of the fact that this is an outline application, for which
the Councii did not request further information under the provisions of the
Development Management Procedure Order®, I can give little weight to the claim
that insufficient information was submitted. In any case, it seems to me that the
appellant has submitted an extensive amount of information in the form of a Design
and Access Statement (DAS), a PPS5’ Assessment, a DAS Addendum and a
Heritage Statement Addendum, in addition to plans and illustrative drawings.

© The Town and Country Planning {Development Management Procedure) {England) Order 2010
7 Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate il

Page 64



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

62. Some of this information was submitted in response to comments and concerns

63.

64,

65.

66.

expressed by the Council’s Design and Conservation Officer (DCO), early on in the
planning application process. This Officer maintained that the LM area should be
seen as a non-designated heritage asset, in accordance with PPS5, the relevant
national guidance current at that time. In this context the DCO argued that the
street pattern had been an historic feature of this area and that any proposals
should retain Spital Street, The Shambles, Back Street, Mount Road and
Horsemarket Road where they are, and clearly delineate any development around
these existing streets and the land blocks they create. This was considered
necessary in order to retain the views into and out of the conservation area and
retain the setting, context and significance of the listed buildings within the area,
particularly the Spotted Cow public house.

However, the submitted evidence clearly indicates that amendments were made to
the scheme during the processing of the application, such that by the time it was
considered by the Planning Committee some of the concerns of the Conservation
and Design Officers dealing with this proposal had been addressed. It is of note,
that nothing more appears to have been said about the LM being a non-designated
heritage asset, and there is nothing before me to suggest that the Council ever
adopted this designation, the intended extent of which was never formally clarified.
I therefore give this suggested designation little weight. It is also of note that the
Committee was advised that the loss of the northern part of Spital Street (which
would be subsumed into the proposed car park) would be acceptably compensated
for, at least to a degree, by the proposal to extend the pedestrian link from
Newgate to the new Livestock Square and thence to Horsemarket Road.

Notwithstanding the above it is clear that some concerns remained over matters
such as scale and massing. These concerns were taken forward by the Council’s
conservation witness at the inquiry in relation to the two larger buildings, the main
retail unit proposed for the southern part of the site and the decked car park
building to the north. Whilst not taking exception to the individual height, width
and length parameters submitted by the appellant to define the scale of this outline
proposal, the Council’'s witness was critical of their combination insofar as they
would relate to these two buildings. Particular concern was expressed regarding
the absence of what was referred to as a domestic scale to the buildings; the length
of frontage which would be presented to Horsemarket Road and Newmarket; and
the unbroken roofline of the proposed car park building.

However, the illustrative drawings show how the massing of the larger retail
building could be broken up by variations in the roof-line and roof form, by the
choice and style of fenestration and by the use of different and contrasting external
surfacing materials. Moreover, whilst the length of fagade facing onto Horsemarket
Road would be a little in excess of 50m, this would not be that different in length to
the frontages of the terraced dwellings which lie on the western side of this road,
more or less opposite the appeal site. In addition, the illustrative material indicates
that this building would have a lower ridge height than both the existing terraced
dwellings on the western side of Horsemarket Road and existing nearby properties
on Market Place. I accept that this retail building could not be considered of
domestic scale, but in view of the comments set cut above I consider that it would
sit acceptably alongside the other, nearby buildings.

The proposed car park building is shown on the illustrative plans as having an
unbroken roof-line for much of the Newgate elevation, and this is one cf the points
highlighted as in need of “tweaking” by the DCO from ERYC who was commenting
on the application prior to determination. I generally share this view, but have

www planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 12

Page 65



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

67.

68.

69.

70,

71,

72.

noted the appellant’'s comment that this matter could be addressed through
changes to the ridge line of this roof. This is a matter which could be dealt with
through a subsequent application for approval of reserved matters, and if this were
to be done [ consider that this building would not appear unduly out of keeping with
its surroundings.

Overall, it is clearly the case that constructing new buildings on much of this
currently open and generally flat area would change its character and appearance
and would also change views across the site, into the site and out from the site.
However, I was able to consider these matters at my site inspection, with the aid of
photographs and the illustrative plans, and formed the view that by rebuiiding
street frontages and defining routes through the development the proposal would
repair the urban grain and result in distinct improvements to the townscape.

I accept that some of the lengthy views currently obtainable in this area would be
curtaited by new buildings, but as a result of my on-site observations I am not
persuaded that this aspect of the proposal wouid be unacceptably harmful. Nor am
I persuaded that new buildings of the size and scale suggested on the illustrative
plans would have any materially adverse visual impact. On balance 1 am therefore
satisfied that the proposed development would not adversely affect the character
and appearance of the surrounding area, and that the setting of the Malton
Conservation Area would therefore be preserved.

The information submitted by the appellant includes details of all the relevant
listings of the statutcrily identified heritage assets sited close to the appeal site.
These include the Spotted Cow public house, the King's Head public house on
Market Place and other Market Place buildings that back onto the appeal site. With
regard to these latter buildings, a particular concern of the Council’s conservation
witness was that there was insufficient information available to enable him to
assess the likely implications of the proposed development on their setting.

However, the PPS5 Assessment contains a comprehensive description of the rears
of these burgage plot buildings, which are referred to as the "working” elements of
the buildings, and the appellant’s evidence draws attention to recent alterations and
additions to them. As I saw at my inspection, many of these additions are
essentially modern in form and provide services ancillary to the LM in a manner
which has served to erode much of the properties’ original character.

Taking account of the appellant’s detailed evidence and the illustrative plans of the
proposal, 1 consider that the submitted information is sufficient to be able to
evaluate the appeal proposal in the context of the nearby listed buildings. Itis my
assessment that the proposed development would not have an adverse impact on
the nearby heritage assets, but instead would preserve the settings of these listed
buildings. Moreover, the proposals to erect two new retail buildings to the east of
the listed Spotted Cow public house, either side of a proposed pedestrian entrance
to the decked car park, would provide real potential to repair the townscape at this
location and enhance the setting of the Spotted Cow, a matter accepted by the
Council.

Having regard to all the above points, I conclude that the proposed development
would not have any unacceptable adverse impact on the character and appearance
of the surrounding area, and that it would preserve the settings both of the Malton
Conservation Area and the nearby listed buildings. No conflict with any
development plan policies was referred to in the Council’s reason for refusal,
although it asserted that the proposal has failed to satisfactorily demonstrate that it
would be in accordance with the provisions of the Framework.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/ptanninginspectorate 13

Page 66



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

73. In this regard I am mindful of the fact that in accordance with paragraph 56 of the

Framework the Government attaches great importance to the design of the built
environment, with good design being seen as a key aspect of sustainable
development and indivisible from good planning. The Framework goes on to point
out that planning decisions should not attempt to impose architectural styles or
particular tastes and should not stifle innovation, originality or initiative, although it
is proper to seek to promote or reinforce local distinctiveness. Whilst some concern
has been raised on matters of design by the various Council conservation officers
who have considered this proposal, any such details could be adequately considered
as part of a subsequent reserved matters application. Accordingly I find no conflict
between the appeal proposal and the design aspects of the Framework.

Effect on living conditions

74. This matter, forming one strand of the Council’s third reason for refusal, was

75.

76

speedily dealt with at the inquiry, and I can similarly deal with it shortly in this
decision. The contention made by the Council was that the application as
submitted does not adeguately demonstrate that the proposed development could
proceed in a form which would, amongst other matters, prevent any significant
impact on the amenities of occupiers of properties on the eastern side of Victoria
Road. These are terraced 2-storey dwellings set at a slightly tapering angle to the
appeal site’s north-western boundary. They have beth 2-storey and single storey
rear projections and are separated from an area of open and covered animal pens
by a backway, a few metres wide, bounded by a wall.

At the outset the Council indicated that this matter might be resolved during the
course of the inquiry. Indeed, matters were agreed between the parties by the
submission of an additional plan and a condition clarifying design matters and
dimensions relating to the elevation of the proposed decked car park which would
face the rear of these dwellings, I have noted that no development plan policy was
cited by the Council in this reason for refusal, and no conflict with the development
plan or national planning guidance was identified.

I visited this location as part of my site inspection, and walked along the backway
in question. Having considered the proposed positioning, eaves height and ridge
height of the car park building, and examined the illustrative material, including the
shadow studies and Daylight/Sunlight Repert contained within the appellant’s
evidence, I see no reason why the visual or physical impact of the car park building
should be unacceptable. Indeed I share the appellant’s view that it would improve
the outlook from the Victoria Road dwellings. I therefore conclude that the
proposed development would not have an adverse effect on the living conditions of
occupiers of these properties on the eastern side of Victoria Road. As noted above,
na conflict with any development plan policies has been identified in this regard.

Other matters

77. As already noted, the only matter of detail to be determined at this stage is access.

At the present time, vehicular access to the site is available from Newgate, Spital
Street, Middlecave Road and Horsemarket Road/Victoria Road. Vehicles are also
able to use The Shambles to cross part of the site. These arrangements would
have to change under the appeal proposal, with Spital Street being effectively
closed to vehicular traffic between The Shambles and Newgate/Spital Field Court.
The Shambles would alsc be closed to general vehicular traffic between
Horsemarket Road and the rear of properties on Market Place, although it would
rernain in its current location and would continue to operate as a public right of way

www.planningportal.gov,uk/planninginspectorate 14

Page 67



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

78.

79

through the site and could be used for servicing purposes. Entry to and exit from
the proposed decked car park would be from Newgate/Spital Field Court.

I understand from the Council's Committee Report that the Local Transport Plan
proposes changes to the highway network in the vicinity of the LM site, including
the introduction of a one way system. These changes have been taken into account
as part of the appeal proposal, together with a proposed new mini-roundabout at
the junction of Victoria Road/Spital Field Court/ Middlecave Road. In addition, the
appellant is proposing that the existing market day parking restrictions on Victoria
Road be removed as part of the development.

Deliveries and servicing of all the proposed retail units would be via the service
yard proposed for the southern end of the site, accessed from Horsemarket Road.
Delivery and service vehicles that are unable to turn within the service yard itself or
that are accessing retail units which are not serviced by this yard would travel
along the rear of the Market Place properties and exit the site onto Horsemarket
Road, via The Shambles. Servicing details and general transport matters covered
by a submitted Transport Assessment have been judged to be generally acceptable
by the local Highway Authority, North Yorkshire County Council.

80. The Council's Local Transport Plan also proposes a package of works to reduce

81.

congestion and associated delays in the town centre, thereby improving air quality.
A Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) sets out the details of the financial
contributions that developers will be expected to make to such improvements,
which are to be based on the number of vehicular trips which the development in
question is predicted to generate through the Butcher's Corner junction during the
AM peak period. Even though this SPD only appears to exist as an “Interim
Version”, its reasoning seems to be generally sound. Accordingly 1 see no reason
why this and the other contributions which are offered by way of a unilateral
undertaking made under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 should
not accord with the guidance in paragraph 204 of the Framework. In summary the
contributions offered are:

o £35,000 towards the implementation of a one-way system and footpath
improvements on Finkle Street;

« £2,500 towards costs associated with the making and implementation of
any Traffic Regulation Orders; and

« £135,000 towards the A64 Brambling Fields Scheme.

On other matters, I have noted that the conclusions of the “Retail” section of the
draft Malton and Norton Neighbourhood Plan add support to a development along
the lines of the appeal proposal, Although I can only give limited weight to this
Neighbourhood Plan as it has not been formally made or adopted it does,
nevertheless, indicate that the appeal proposal has some strong local support, a
point firmly put on behalf of the Town Council both in writing and at the inquiry.

Conclusions

82. Having considered the four main issues prompted by the Council’s reasons for

refusal alongside the submitted evidence, and taking into account the changed
position of the Council on @ number of key matters as the inquiry progressed, my
overall conclusion is that this proposal is acceptable and would represent
sustainable development, as detailed in the Framework. I therefore intend to allow
this appeal, subject to a number of conditions, as set out in the Schedule at the end
of this decision.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 15

Page 68



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

83,

84,

85.

86.

Conditions 1-3 are standard conditions for outline planning permissions, Condition
4 is necessary to safeguard the character and appearance of the area, the amenity
of adjacent uses, access issues and for the avoidance of doubt. Conditions 5-6 are
imposed to ensure the safety and convenience of users of the highway network,
whilst Condition 7 is necessary to ensure that the construction of the development
proceeds in a safe and appropriate manner. Condition 8 is imposed to establish
measures to encourage more sustainable non-car modes of transport. Although it
was suggested at the inquiry that this condition should only apply to the main retail
unit, the combined floorspace of the other three retail units would be comparable
with that of the main unit, and they could therefore have a significant number of
employees. In these circumstances I see no good reason why this condition should
not be applied to all the proposed units.

Conditions 9-11 are imposed in order to safeguard the living conditions of residents
in the surrounding area, whilst Condition 12 is needed to ensure that risks from
fand contamination are minimised during construction, and for future users of the
land and neighbouring land. For clarity, I have imposed a simplified version of the
condition discussed at the inquiry. Condition 13 is imposed as the site is of
archaeological importance and Condition 14 is imposed to ensure the protection of
bats in the area. Condition 15 is imposed to ensure that the site can be properly
drained, but other suggested conditions dealing with the positioning of buildings in
relation to water mains and sewers are concerned with scheme layout, and hence
are best dealt with at reserved matters stage.

Condition 16 is imposed to ensure the scheme secures the retail benefits intended.
I acknowledge that it is not usual to control the type of retail floorspace in this way,
but in view of the clear need to improve the comparison shopping offer in the town,
and to reflect the appellant’s stated intention for the proposed development, set out
in evidence and closing submissions, I consider such a condition appropriate in this
case. Condition 17 is imposed in the interests of sustainability and to minimise the
development’s impact on ciimate change, whilst Condition 18 is necessary to
ensure a satisfactory relationship between the development and existing residential
properties. 1 do not consider it necessary to attach the suggested condition seeking
details of servicing arrangements to be submitted and approved, as the intended
servicing arrangements are clearly shown on the submitted plans.

I have had regard to all other matters raised, but they are not sufficient to
outweigh the considerations which have led me to my conclusion.

David Wildsmith
INSPECTOR

Schedule of conditions (18 in total)

1)

2)

Approval of the details of the layout, scale, appearance and landscaping of the
development (hereinafter called "the reserved matters”) shall be obtained from
the Local Planning Authority in writing before any development is commenced
and the development shall be carried out as approved.

Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local
Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 16

Page 69



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

3) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two
yvears from the date of approval of the tast of the reserved matters to be
approved.

4) The details to be submitted for approval of the matters reserved by Condition 1
above shall follow the principles and parameters set out in the plans and the
accompanying documents, namely:

i) the Design and Access Statement (DAS) (April 2011);

i) the PPS5 Assessment and DAS Addendum (July 2011)

iii) the Development Schedule {September 2012)

iv) the drawings numbered 185-15, 185-22, 185-23, 185-24; and

v) the indicative drawings numbered 185-25 and 185-26.

5} No part of the development to which this permission relates shall be brought
into use until the carriageway and any footway/footpath from which it gains
access has been constructed to basecourse macadam level and kerbed and
connected to the existing highway network with street lighting installed and in
operation. All road works, including any phasing, shall be completed in
accordance with a8 programme approved in writing with the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Local Highway Authority,

6) There shall be no excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative
works, remediation works or the depositing of material on the site in connection
with the construction of the access road or building(s) or other works until:

i) the details of the required highway improvement works, listed
below, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Local Highway
Authority;

i} an independent Stage 2 Safety Audit has been carried out in
accordance with HD19/03 - Road Safety Audit or any superseding
regulations;

i) a programme for the completion of the proposed works has been
submitted.

The required highway improvements shall include:

a) provision of a mini roundabout at the Spital Field Court/Victoria
Road/Middlecave Road junction, with associated parking
restrictions on Victoria Road.

b) provision of 2m wide footways aleng the site frontages on
Horsemarket Road, Spital Field Court and Newgate.

c) formation of new private accesses from the development hereby
approved, onto Horsemarket Road, Spital Field Court and Newgate.

The required highway improvements shall be completed prior to the
development hereby approved being brought into use.

7) No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shali provide for:

i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

if) loading and unloading of plant and materials;

i) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the
development;

iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including
decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where
appropriate;

www,planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 17

Page 70



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

V) wheel washing facilities;

vi) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction;

vii)  a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demclition
and construction works;

viii} proposed dates, times and duration of all piling operations.

8) Prior to the retail units hereby approved being brought into use, a Travel Plan
shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. This shall include:

i) the appointment of a trave! co-ordinator;
i) a partnership approach to influence travel behaviour;
i) measures to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport
other than the private car by persons to the site;
iv) provision of up-to-date details of public transport services;
v) continual appraisal of travel patterns and measures provided
through the travel plan;
vi) improved safety for vulnerable road users;
vii)  a reduction in all vehicle trips and mileage;
viii) a programme for the implementation of such meastures and any
proposed physical works;
ix) procedures for monitoring the uptake of such modes of transport
and for providing evidence of compliance.
The Travel Plan shall be implemented and the development shall thereafter be
carried out and operated in accordance with the Travel Plan.

9) Prior to the operation of the retail outlets hereby approved a Noise Management
Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Pianning
Authority and thereafter adhered to. The submitted Noise Management Plan
shall specify retail unit opening hours and shall include measures to be
implemented at the site to minimise noise disturbance to local residents from
deliveries, car parking (including consideration of operating hours and physical
enforcement measures as required) and servicing requirements,

10) No fixed plant and/or machinery associated with the development hereby
permitted shall come into operation until a scheme containing details of the
fixed plant and machinery serving the development hereby permitted together
with associated mitigation measures has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme will include the anticipated
rating level of plant noise emitted from the site between the hours of 23.00 and
07.00 and separately between 07.00 and 23.00 when assessed at the nearest
noise sensitive property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance with BS 4142: 1997. No further fixed plant and or machinery shall
be operated. There shall be no operation of external generators.

11) Prior to the development hereby permitted being brought into use an external
lighting scheme for the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Lacal Planning Authority, such scheme to be implemented in accordance with
the approved details prior to the development being brought into use.

12) No development shall take place until a site investigation of the nature and
extent of contamination has been carried out in accordance with a methodology
which has previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available
to the Local Planning Authority before any development begins. If any
contamination is found during the site investigation, a report specifying the

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 18

Page 71



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

measures to be taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the
development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be remediated in accordance with
the approved measures before development begins. If, during the course of
development, any contamination is found which has not been identified in the
site investigation, additional measures for the remediation of this source of
contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved
additional measures.

The details submitted in pursuance of condition 1 shall be preceded by the
submission to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing, and
subsequent implementation, of a scheme of archaeological investigation to
provide for:

i) The proper identification and evaluation of the extent, character
and significance of archaeclogical remains within the application
area;

i) An assessment of the impact of the proposed development on any
archaeological remains,

This shall be followed by the submission of:

iii) Proposals for the preservation in situ, or for the investigation,
recording and recovery of archaeolegical remains and the analysis
and publishing of the findings, it being understood that there shall
be a presumption in favour of their preservation in situ wherever
feasible,

These proposals shall be approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing and
implemented before any development commences.

The method statement described in section 4.2 of the bat report dated August
2010 should be followed.

No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of foul and
surface water drainage, including details of any balancing works and off-site
works, together with a programme for their implementation, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These
foul and surface water drainage works shall then be carried out in accordance
with the approved details and programme.

The development hereby approved shall provide a minimum of 1,575 sqgm
(gross internal area) of comparison goods floorspace.

No development of any phase of the development hereby permitted shall take
place until a report has been submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning
Authority, identifying how the predicted CO; emissions of the development will
be reduced by at least 10% through the use of on-site renewable energy
equipment, sustainable building techniques and/or other sustainability
measures. The carbon savings which result from this will be above and beyond
what is required to comply with Part L Building Regulations. The development
shall then proceed in accordance with the approved report.

The boundary with the houses on Victoria Road shall be formed on the line of
the existing boundary wall, or in any other event not closer to the houses than
the same boundary wall. The boundary shall consist of a wall (to maximum
eaves level 40.950m Ordnance Datum with roof on top (maximum 43.250m
Ordnance Datum to ridge height) as indicated in Drawing No 185-27,
accompanying the application.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 19

Page 72



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

APPEARANCES

FOR THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY:

Mr ] Easton of Counsel instructed by the Local Planning Authority,
Ryedale District Council

He called
Mr M Johnston Senior Associate, Roger Tym & Partners
MA(Hons) MRTPI
Mr D Carruthers Building Conservation Officer, Forward Planning
BA(Hons) DipArch Section, Ryedale Borough Council
MA(Conservation) ARB
RIBA

FOR THE APPELLANTS:

Mr P Viliage QC instructed by Matthew Baker, Pinsent Masons LLP
Assisted by
Mr ] Strachan of Counsel

He called

Mr C Goddard BA(Hons) Senior Director, GVA

MRTPI MRICS

Mr ] Maciag BA(Arch) Principal, Jan Maciag Architects

BArch RIBA

Mr L Paviou BSc¢(Hons) Director, GVA

MRICS

INTERESTED PERSONS SUPPORTING THE PROPOSAL:

Mr P Andrews LLB BA Local Ward Councillor
Mr M Skehan Town Clerk, Malton Town Council
Mrs E Brooksbank Local resident

INTERESTED PERSONS OPPOSING THE PROPOSAL:

Mr J Stephenson MA(Cantab) Director of Boulton & Cooper; Partner, Malton

FRICS FAAV FLA Livestock Auctioneers

Mr P Foxton Local farmer and livestock haulier; Chairman of
the board of Directors, Malton and Ryedale
Farmers Livestock Market

Mr W Kobylka MBA MCIPS Director and owner, G Woodall & Sons Ltd,

ACIPD Malton; Director of the Malton and Ryedale
Farmers Livestock Market

Mr D Watson Director of Cundalls; Partner, Malton Livestock

Auctioneers; Director of the Malton and Ryedale
Farmers Livestock Market
Mr 1 M Douglas Local farmer

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 20

Page 73



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

CORE DOCUMENTS
Number Document Date

Earlier Livestock Market Site application 2007
Roger Tym and Partners Retail Statement - submitted as

CD1.1 part of LMS application Aug 2007
Current Livestock Market Site application 2011

cD2.1 Application forms Apr 2011
CD2.2 I.MS Planning and Retail Statement (GVA) Apr 2011
CcD2.3 Design and Access Statement (Jan Maciag) Apr 2011
cb2.4 Community Consultation Statement (GVA) Apr 2011
CD2.5 Lower Ground Floor Plan - Drg No 185-12 (superseded) Apr 2011
CD2.6 Ground Floor Plan - Drg No 185-13 (superseded) Apr 2011
CD2.7 First Floor Plan - Drg No 185-14 (superseded) Apr 2011
CcD2.8 Site Plan - Drg No 185-15 Apr 2011
CcD2.9 Transport Assessment (Sanderson Associates) Feb 2008
CD2.10 Transport Statement (Steer Davies Gleave) Apr 2011
Cb2.11 Archaeology Report (MAP Archaeological Consultancy Ltd) Jul 2007

CD2.12 Flood Risk Assessment (ARP Associates) Apr 2011
CcD2.13 Geo-environmental Report (Encia Regeneration Ltd) Mar 2011
CD2.14 Bat Survey report (Wold Ecology) Aug 2010

Further Correspondence with Ryedale District
Council /East Riding of Yorkshire Council in relation
to LMS application

cD3.1 Noise Assessment (AECOM) Jun 2011
CD3.2 Noise Report Cover Letter 18 Jui 2011
CD3.3 Community Consultation Report Addendum Cover Letter 18 Jul 2011
CD3.4 Community Consultation Report Addendum (GVA) Jul 2011
Community Consultation Report Addendum Attached
CD3.5 Comments Jul 2012
CD3.6 Daylight/Sunlight Report (GVA) 20 Jul 2011
PPSS Assessment and Design and Access Addendum
CD3.7 (GVA) Jul 2011
CD3.8 Transport Assessment Report (Steer Davies Gleave) Jul 2011
CD3.9 Letter from GVA to RDC re; Livestock Market lease 4 Jul 2011
CD3.10 Supplementary Retail Statement (GVA) Oct 2011
CD3.11 RTP letter on GVA Supplementary Retail Statement 7 Nov 2011
CD3.12 Response Letter to Retail Positicn (GVA) 13 Feb 2012
CD3.13 Dimensional Drawing - Proposal D, View 2 Mar 2012
CD3.14 Heritage Statement Addendum (GVA) Mar 2012
CD3.15 Livestock Market Materiality Letter (GVA) 7 Mar 2012
Last
E-mails between GVA and RDC Confirming Air Quality response 5
CD3.16 Assessment Acceptance Mar 2012
E-malls between GVA and RDC/ERYC regarding Transport Last e-mail
CD3.17 and Access Arrangements 12 Mar 2012

CD3.18 E-mail to ERYC/RDC confirming proposed transport works 12 Mar 2012
Additional Transport Information Technical Note (Steer

CD3.19 Davies Gleave) Feb 2012
CD3.20 Alternative Trip Rate Calculations Memo 1 Mar 2012
www.planningportal.gav.uk/planninginspectorate 21

Page 74



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

CD3.21 Vehicle tracking plan 2 Mar 2012

CD3.22 Service Yard Vehicle Tracking Plan 2 Mar 2013
E-mail to ERYC ({including revised plans and daylight Last e-mail

CD3.23 sunlight report attachments) confirming design matters 16 Mar 2012

CD3.24 Lower Ground Floor Plan - Drg No 185-22 Mar 2012

CD3.25 Ground Floor Plan - Drg No 185-23 Mar 2012

CD3.26 First Floor Plan - Drg No 185-24 Mar 2012

CD3.27 Elevations A to C - Drg No 185-25 (illustrative) Mar 2012

CD3.28 Elevations D to H - Drg No 185-26 (illustrative) Mar 2012

CD3.29 Car Park Visual - View 2 (illustrative) Mar 2012

CD3.30 Livestock Market Visual — View 1 (illustrative) Mar 2012
Further e-mail confirming update to Daylight/Sunlight

CD3.31 Report 16 Mar 2012
Malton Numbered Plan (as attached to e-mail document

CD3.32 44)

CD3.33 Email to ERYC regarding the Heritage Addendum 16 Mar 2012

CD3.34 Email from RDC confirming no AQIA 5 Mar 2012

CD3.35 LMS Committee Report 29 Mar 2012

Presented to
Members 29

CD3.36 Additional NPPF update to the Committee Report Mar 2012
Wentworth Street Car Park Application

CDh4.1 Planning Statement (GMI Holbeck Land (Malton) Ltd) Aug 2011

CD4.2 Proposed site plan

CD4.3 Retail Statement (Nathaniel Lichfield and Partners) 19 Aug 2011
Roger Tym and Partners Advice Note to ERYC/RDC on

CD4.4 Retail Case 24 Nov 2011
NLP Briefing Note on Retail Case in response to Roger

CD4.5 Tym Study 21 Dec 2011

CD4.6 Roger Tym Response on Retail Case 11 Jan 2012

CD4.7 Further NLP Briefing Note on Retail Case 23 Jan 2012

CcDh4.8 GMI Economic Case Report 22 Feb 2012

CD4.9 WSCP Committee Report 29 Mar 2012
Planning Policy Documents and Guidance Notes

CD5.1 Retail Capacity Study Report (Roger Tym and Partners) May 2006

CD5.2 Ryedale Local Plan 2002 - Schedule of saved policies 2007

CD5.3 Submission draft of former Core Strategy 2007
Developer Contributions towards Strategic Transport
Improvements at Malton and Norton (Interim version) -

CD5.4 consultation draft Jul 2007

CD5.5 Malton Transportation Review Technical note (Jacobs) Aug 2008

CD5.6 Regional Spatial Strategy - Yorkshire and The Humber May 2008

CD5.7 Retail Capacity Study Update (Roger Tym and Partners) Sep 2008

CD5.8 RDC Livestock Market Development Brief 2008

CD5.9 RDC Wentworth Street Car Park Development Brief 2008
Supplementary advice on Convenience Retail Provision

CD5.10 (Roger Tym and Partners) 2009

CD5.11 Malton Town Centre Study Report (WSP and Atisreal) 2009

CD5.12 PPS4 Planning for Town Centres - Practice Guide Dec 2009
PPS5 Planning for the Historic Environment - Practice

CD5.13 Guide Mar 2010

www.pfanningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 22

Page 75



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

CD5.14
CD5.15

CD5.16
CD5.17
CD5.18
CD5.19
CD5.20
CD5.21
CD5.22
CDé.1
CD6.2
CcDe.3
CD6.4

CD6.5
CD6.6

CDh7.1

CD7.2

CD7.3
CD7.4
CD7.5

CD7.6

CD7.7

Malton and Norton Strategic Transport Assessment Final
Report (Jacobs)

Malton and Norton Neighbourhocd Plan - Draft 2

Malton and Norton Neighbourhood Plan - Schedule of
Responses

Malton and Norton Neighbourhoed Plan - Analysis of
Responses

Retail Capacity Study and Impact Update (Roger Tym and

Partners)

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy - Publication Version
(formerly Core Strategy)

Retail Capacity Study Addendum (Roger Tym and
Partners)

National Planning Pelicy Framework

Ryedale Plan: Local Plan Strategy Submission Version

Additional documents — Ryedale District Council
Policy and Resources Committee Minute - Minute 397
Report of the Malton Town Centre Strategy &
Accompanying Development Briefs

Full Council Minute - Item 10 minute 397

Council meeting - Minutes 82

Council meeting - Agenda and Report

Transcript of Committee Meeting

Additional documents - Fitzwilliam (Malton)
Estates

Boulton and Cooper Lease on LMS

RTP Report: Audit of GVA’'s Planning and Retail
Assessment in relation to the Proposed Retail Scheme at
the Livestock Market, Malton

Planning Policy Statement 4: “Planning for Sustainable
Economic Growth”

FME Notice to Surrender the Boulton and Cooper Lease
Livestock Market Site Development Schedule

Bundle of three objections lodged by the Fitzwilliam
Malton Estate to The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Comparison of proposed floor areas for the 2007 and
2011 applications for development at the Livestock
Market Site

DOCUMENTS AND PLANS SUBMITTED AT THE INQUIRY

Jun 2010
Mar 2011

Jun 2011
Jun 2011
Jul 2011
Jan 2012
Jan 2012
Mar 2012
May 2012
2 Apr 2009
2 Apr 2009
27 May 2009
9 Feb 2010

9 Feb 2010
29 Mar 2012

19 May 2010

19 Qct 2011

2009
10 Sep 2012

Sep 2011

9 Mar, 8 May
& 24 Aug
2012

Sep 2011

Document 1 Letter of notification of the inquiry, and list of persons notified

Document 2  Opening submissions from the appellant

Document 3  Opening submissions from the Council

Document 4  Secretary of State decision and Inspector’s Report, 6 October
2010, relating to Appeal Ref APP/M3455/V/10/2122016 -
Application by Tesco Stores Ltd at Newcastle Road, Springfields
Retail Park, Trent Vale, Stoke on Trent

www,planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 23

Page 76



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/A/12/2174677

Document 5  Written Statement submitted by Clir Andrews

Document 6 Undated letter from the Simons Group, submitted by Clir Andrews

Document 7  Written submission from GMI Holbeck Land (Malton) Limited

Document 8  Planning Policy Statement 6: “Planning for Town Centres”,
submitted by the appellant

Document 9  United Kingdom Supreme Court Judgment - Tesco Stores Limited
v Dundee City Council, 21 March 2012, submitted by the appellant

Document 10 Written Statement submitted by Mrs Brooksbank

Document 11 Written Statement and attachment submitted by Mr Stephenson

Document 12 Written Statement submitted by Mr Foxton

Document 13  Written Statement submitted by Mr Kobylka

Document 14 Information on the Malton Livestock Market, submitted by Mr
Watson

Document 15 Written Statement submitted by Mr Douglas

Document 16 Letter from Ryedale District Council to Pinsent Masons LLP, dated
14 September 2012, relating to a proposed claim for Judicial
Review

Document 17 Details of numbers of sheep and cattle sold through Malton
Livestock Market, 2002 - 2011, submitted by Mr Stephenson

Document 18 Written submission from Mr ] Story dated 18 September 2012

Document 19 Appellant’s notice of an intention to make an application for an
award of Costs against Ryedale District Council

Document 20 Note on borrowing costs, prepared by Mr Pavlou, 14 September
2012 and submitted to the inquiry

Document 21 Written submission to the inquiry from Walton & Co, on behalf of
GMI Holbeck Land (Malton) Limited, including copy
correspondence from the Treasury Solicitor’s Department to
Pinsent Masons LLP, dated 15 August 2012

Document 22 Signed and dated planning obligation by way of a 5106 Unilateral
Undertaking, submitted by the appellant

Document 23 Signed Statement of Common Ground

Document 24 Letter from Pinsent Masons LLP, dated 6 September 2012,
responding to the letter from the Treasury Solicitor's Department
dated 15 August 2012

Document 25 Note detailing the Unilateral Undertaking contribution relating to
the Brambling Fields Junction, submitted by the appellant

Document 26 Suggested conditions, following round table session

Document 27 Parking Variation Drawing No 185-27, dated September 2012,
submitted by the appellant

Document 28 A0 version of Drawing No 185-25

Document 29 AO version of Drawing No 185-26

Document 30 Closing submissions on behalf of the Council

Document 31 Closing submissions on behalf of the appellant

Document 32 Bundle of four Autharities, relied on by the appellant in closing
submissions

Document 33 Council’s response to the appellant’s application for Costs

www planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate 24

Page 77



AQ

enda ltem 8

Item Number:

Application No: 15/00616/MREM

Parish: Malton Town Council

Appn. Type: Approval of Reserved Matters Major

Applicant: Linden Homes

Proposal: Erection of 34no. two bedroom dwellings, 59no. three bedroom dwellings

and 8Ino. four bedroom dwellings together with associated access,
garaging and landscaping to include formation of earth bund to eastern site
boundary. Phase 1 site area 6.32ha (outline approval 14/00427/MOUTE
dated 24.03.2015 refers).

Location: The Showfield Pasture Lane Malton North Yorkshire

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 21 August 2015

Owerall Expiry Date: 1 July 2015

Case Officer: Gary Housden Ext: 307

CONSULTATIONS:

Archaeology Section Recommend conditions

LEP Mr A Leeming No views received to date

Parish Council No views received to date

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Support - no concerns or issues

Natural England No views received to date

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date

NY Highways & Transportation No views received to date

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No comments

Land Use Planning Recommend conditions

Countryside Officer Recommend conditions

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date

Housing Services Comments made

Tree & Landscape Officer Detailed comments - objects to the loss of tree belt

Head Of Planning Services No views received to date

Economic Development No views received to date

National Grid Plant Prote ction No views received to date

North Yorkshire Education Authority = No views received to date

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend previous conditions (plus minor revision to
layout)

Neighbour responses: Mr Ricardo Valantino, Mr Duncan Humphreys,

SITE:

The showfield site at Pasture Lane, Malton is comprised of two parcels of farmland, together with a
small group of disused farm buildings. Pasture Lane abuts the southern site boundary with the A64
trunk road, forming the northem site boundary. To the east at lower level, is the established
Showfield Lane industrial estate and to the west is Outgang Road, an un-surfaced lane which runs
from Showfield Lane and which crosses the A64.

Further to the west is a substantial housing estate under construction by Taylor Wimpey Ltd. Three
separate residential properties are located adjacent to the south-western comer of the site. The site
generally falls from west to east and it is also elevated above the ground levels on Showfield Lane
industrial estate. The land also rises from south to north across the parcel of land denoted as ‘show
ground’.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
1R Agpast/Z915



PROPOSAL:

This application is for the approval of reserved matters for Condition No. 2 of the outline planning
permission granted on 24 March 2015, reference 14/00427/MOUTE.

The outline planning permission had already sought approval for the detail of access and the current
application seeks approval for the layout, scale, appearance of the buildings including a materials
schedule and landscaping. The application is accompanied by a Design & Access Statement produced
by STEW Architecture.

The outline planning permission was accompanied by thirty four planning conditions which will be
the subject of separate discharge procedures. The agents have, however, confirmed that this reserved
matters submission has been designed to comply with key elements ofthe outline planning permission
with particular regard to drainage, access, noise, crime prevention, sewer protection andthe provision
of 5% of the dwellings as bungalows.

The details provide for the creation of 174No. dwellings in total as part of this phase of the
development, together with the erection of the noise attenuation bund along with the entire eastem
boundary of the site.

The accommodation is proposedto be:

8No. 2-bed bungalows;

26No. 2-bed terraces;

49No. 3-bed terraced/semi-detached/detached units;
10No. 3-bed semi-detached; and

e 81No. 4-bed detached houses

The access point into the site is via a roundabout onto Showfield Lane. The road layout shown on this
phase of the development closely follows the 'indicative' plans submitted as part of the outline
application.

Prior to the submission of the application, the applicant submitted a pre-application proposal. The
design of the layout and in particular, the individual house types have been amended to reflect the
advise given by officers on the pre-application proposal.

The application has been accompanied by detailed reports including a Design & Access Statement;
Design Statement; Environmental Noise Survey and Assessment Review; Arboricultural Method

Statement; and Impact Assessment. All of these can be viewed onthe Council's website.

For ease of reference, the agents covering letter of 22 May 2015 and Design & Access Statement are
appended to this repott.

HISTORY:

14/00427/MOUTE: Outline planning pemmission for erection of circa 227 dwellings with associated
development (site area 11.%ha) - Approved 24.03.2015

POLICY:

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distributing of Employment Land and Premises
Policy SP9 - The Land-Based and Rural Economy

Policy SP10 -Physical Infrastructure

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REge 7S



Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP13 - Landscapes

Policy SP 16 - Design

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Policy SP19 -Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

Policy SP22 -Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions andthe Community Infrastructure Levy

APPRAISAL:
The principle of the development has already been established by the grant of planning permission
granted earlier this year, subject to the stipulations required by condition and the submission of the

remaining detailed reserved matters.

In the context of the remaining reserved matters and the consultees received, the following matters
remain relevant to the approval of thisreserved matters application.

The main considerations are:-

Layout/scale/mix and design;
Landscapingfree issues;
Highways/access;
Noise/residential amenity;
Drainage;

e Secured by Design; and

e Archaeology

Whilst the principles of the layout were shown on the illustrative plan accompanying the outline
planning application, the reserved matters still require approval for the layout of the site. Access into
the site from Pasture Lane is 'fixed' via the roundabout shown on the submitted layout with a large
area of Public Open Space (approximately 0.5ha) shown adjacent to the southern boundary of the site.

The layout is shown in more detail with the reserved matters scheme and follows the approach
promoted at outline stage with main 'spine roads' running broadly north-south, linked across the
northem extent of Phase 1. The interior of the site is accessed via smaller estate roads, shown mainly
surfaced with block pavings as an alternative surface material.

The net area of the site, excluding the large area of Public Open Space at the front of the site, is
approximately 5.8 hectares, giving an overall density of dwellings at 30 units/hectare net.

All of the dwellings are two-storey with the exception of §No. single-storey dwellings, submitted to
satisfy the requirements of Policy SP4 ofthe Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy which requires 5% of
all new homes in schemes of 50 dwellings or more to be built as bungalows.

The variety and type of dwellings have been considered prior to the submission of the application,
with standard house types modified to reflect traditional vernacular details found in the town.

The mix of dwellings is set out earlier in this report. The mix of house types is considered to be
acceptable. In particular, the scheme provides for a significant amount of smaller sized market
housing units, mostly promoted as terrace and smaller semi-detached units.

The application is accompanied by individual house type, designs, a series of street scenes and a full
materials schedule. The palette of materials is considered to reflect the colour and profile of tiles and

bricks found in the locality. Samples of the materials proposed have been requested and will be
available for consideration at the meeting.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
1R Agpas 815



Landscaping/T ree Issues

The application is accompanied by detailed landscaping drawings to accompany the arboricultural
method statement and impact assessment. The mformation also includes details of tree protection in
respect of those trees which are proposedto be retained.

The major consideration in respect of this issues relates to the proposed removal of trees and saplings
along part of the eastem site boundary, abutting the rear of commercial premises on Showfield Lane.

However, Members will be aware that at outline stage, there was a requirement for the developer to
build and construct a substantial acoustic screen in the form of an acoustic fence and bund along this
entire boundary. Without the screen, the future amenity of the residents living along this part of the
site would not be protected to the satisfaction of the Council's Environmental Health Officer.
Condition Nos. 18, 19 and 33 of the outline permission were imposed to ensure that this level of
amenity was protected.

In order to mitigate this impact, the landscape plan proposes the planting of replacement trees and
shrubs on either side of the bund and these will be the subject of the detailed landscaping scheme and
method statement required by Condition Nos. 15 and 16 of the outline permission.

Officers are, however, continuing to negotiate with the developer to investigate retention of existing
trees/saplings where possible adjacent to the south-eastern comer of the site where views from Pasture

Lane are most apparent. Members will be updated on the late pages or at the meeting.

Highways/Access Issues

NYCC Highways have made comments requiring minor revisions to the scheme in respect of
driveway lengths, position of traffic calming features and the precise location of the first distributor
road when entering into the site.

The layout plan has been amended to reflect these requirements and the formal comments of NYCC
Highways are awaited. Members will be updated at the meeting.

Noise/Residential Amenity

In principle, the EHO has confirmed no objection to this development at outline application stage.
Details discharge of conditions 19, 19 and 33 remains. However, the reserved matters proposed are
accompanied by a Noise Survey Assessment Review report and the required bunding and acoustic
fencing is shown along the eastern site boundary as anticipated. Comments of the EHO are also
awaited and will be reportedto Members.

Drainage

Yorkshire Water have repeated conditions previously recommended for the outline planning
permission. No other comments have been received, although it is of note that again, the outline
permission will require the formal discharge of a package of sustainable drainage solutions and both
foul and surface water details to be agreed before any development commences. These are covered
by Conditions 3,4, 6, 7,24 and 28 of the outline planning permission.

Secured by Design

The Police Designing Out Crime Officer has no concems and is pleased that most, if not all of his
recommendations have been considered and incorporated into the design of the scheme.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Regppe 2816



Archaeology

Due attention to the need for further investigation - this is already covered by Condition Nos. 08 and
29 and 30 and 31 ofthe outline permission.

Third Party Responses

Malton Town Council have not responded to their consultation onthis application.

Two letters have been received objectingto the scheme, raisingthe following points:-

e Too many houses being built at thetown - adverse impact on infrastructure, especially roads;
e Extranoise (traffic); and
e Lossofview

The above comments from third parties were considered at outline stage. Members will note that the
application was accompanied by detailed transport information and no objections were raised from
NYCC Highways or Highways England.

Similarly, the EHO did not object to the scheme subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions.

Members will be aware that the loss of (or spoiling of) a view is not a material consideration.

In the light of the earlier grant of outline permission and the detailed assessment above, it is
consideredthat there are no grounds to withhold approval of the reserved matters.

REC O MMENDA TIO N: Approval of reserved matters subject to final responses of
outstanding consul tees

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and inthe interests of proper planning,

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
1R AgpasB2R15



PLANNING LAYOUT | MALTON SHOWGROUND, MALTON

™~

|
Ik

/

ARCHITECTURE

Page 83




ARCHITECTURE

Page 84



MATERIALS LAYOUT | MALTON SHOWGROUND, MALTON

I

ARCHITECTURE

Page 85




SHOWFIELD | MALTON

SECTION A-A

SECTION B-8

SECTION B-8 CONT...

o

||?--1|!._!fj‘i|

=Rl

.....

SECTION C-C CONT..

ESES—— - =" ST=N
- et e ARCHITECTURE

Page 86



|ADDITIONAL PLAN]|

SHOWFIELD | MALTON

SECTION F-F

Revision notes: Drawing Number: Project. Date:
e
Rev: | Daw: Ravison: s MALTON SHOWFELD gt STEN Archincure Lig S ———
A 300615 Updated in line with revised matarial layout revision B MALTON Benton Office Park, ]
o sl @Az Bonnett Aveniue, Twitter: @STEN_arch
1200 sk Facebook: stenarchitectureitd jE=———]

Clint: Drawing Title: Wakefield,
e YESEN aiish, | O i ARCHITECTURE

10/08/15

LINDEN HOMES STREET SCENES.
EE0FF

Page 87



ADDITIONAL PLAN

T
SIDE ELEVATION
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN
e i
REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
FRONT ELEVATION
SCALED L]

REV A - Garage type corrected, garage to be as sales centre. - T5 - 23.06.15 A7 15100
Drawing Nurmber: Project Date:
1448.301 Malton Showield March 2015 ’/ STEN Avchitecture La Web: wonw.sten-architecture.co.uk [ ]

Malton

Scals @A3: ° :::?;&T:ﬁul;avk. Twitter: @STEN_arch |
- : Horbury,

Client: Drawing Title: 1:100 Wakefiogd Facebook: stenarchitectureitd [ ]
Linden Hormes Garage planning drawings Revision: oennons: o124 55424 | Linkedlin: Sten Architecture A R H I E R E

: HOMES CHITECTU

Page 88




ADDITIONAL PLAN

Facing material dependant on
site - refer to Materizls Layouf

50mm thick reconstituted stone coping

l_pmjsclmg 50mm either side of wall

50mm thick reconstituted stone pier
ap projecting 50mm beyond pier

Pier constructed to ends of wall as

indicated on layout

I I I I I I I [ I I I I I I 8
I I I I I I I I I [ [ I I I 8
I I I I I I I [ I I I I I I
I I I I I I I I I I I I I 1 I I
I I I I I [ I I I I I I [ [
I I I I I 1 I I I I I I I I I I
I I I I I I [ [ I I I I I I
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
I I I I I I [ [ I I I I I I
I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I
I I I I I I I I I I I I [ [
1 | | | I | | [ [ | | | | [ | |
I I I I I ] I I I I I I I I I
Elevation 440
ScALED AT i 2m
RWV A - Wll reightcorrected i e box - TS -0 07.15 120
Drawing Number: Project
Maton Showkd e 2015 ,:/ STENACHISAULE | (i et ok '
Maltor
aten Scale @A3: . el Twitter: @STEN_arch e
Client DrawingTitle: 120 I n e n m:;:id, Facebook: stenarchitectureltd | ]
Linden Hormes Boundary treatments Revision: Telenhone: 01624 55424 | Linkedlin: Sten Architecture A R ( H I I E ( I J R E
2.1m high brick wall - frontage only & HOMES

Page 89




ADDITIONAL PLAN

Red engineering on edgs coping
on2n0 courses tle creasing

Exoansion oint o run from DPC

to s of tle crease as shown

Red engineering

Elevation

y brick on edge —
ENIEEEEEEEEEENENREEER ARENEEEEEEEN RN EEENNEEE) coplngonZgno
I I I I I [ VAl T I I I I I / courses tile creasing
T J T I T l I i [ I 2 I 1 T 1 i ) T ‘ ! I ‘ T ‘ / - Note that solid Foundations should
I I [ 1 1 I [ [ I ] / engineering bricks be a minimum of 550
T T T I : [ [ I I I [ [ I to be used to the x 150 thick concrete
I I | I l I I l [ [ I T I | I | I I I I ] I/ ends of the soldier depth from GL to
| 1 [ I [ I I I [ [ T coursings underside 450mm
| ] ] ] [ [ I I I [ I"¢ minimum, all subject
I I I I [ I I I I I | \ g {osite investigation
L ] " ] L [ | : [ : : 1 . 1 : ] : [ [ : \\N\ 9 report ’
Il Il )
. ] I ‘ [ I [ : ‘ Il ‘ I[ ] [ [ \/
! T ‘ T I T ‘ I T ‘ T ‘ T ) I I ‘ / Minimum 2no course
I [ J [ [0 J ] [ / of red engineering
T J i J i l I ] I I i I T I T I I L L i/ bricks above ground
level to form DPC
GL )

Min 450mm

Section
T COPY D RSN WARDE 5Y OR WIT T AGTHONTY OF FYEDHLE
DISTICT COUNCILPURSUANT T0
AND PATENTS ACT 1988 UNLESS THAT ACT
oxcernon Gt
e PR pEMISsoN oF
REV A - Boundery wallincreased 10 2 1m figh - TS - 23.06.16 SOALED AT i 2
REV B Wall heign correctediin it bax - TS - 06.07.15 120
Drawing Number: Project Date:
STEN Architecture Ltd | ]
1448201 Malton Showield March 2015 ,/ Sufie 10, Unita, Web: www.sten-architecture.co.uk
Malion Benton Office Park, ]
Scals @A3: . il Twitter: @STEN_arch
: = Horbury,
Client: DrawingTitle: 120 Wepehoa Facebook: stenarchitectureltd ]
i WF4 5RA
Linden Homes Boundary treatments Revision: Linkedin: Sten Architecture

2.1m high brick wall

. HOMES

Telephone: 01924 669424

ARCHITECTURE

Page 90




vP

2.4 X 43M VISIBILITY SPLAY TO

KERB TANGENT

2.4 X 43M VISIBILITY SPLAY
FULL LENGTH ALONG KERB

ADDITIONAL PLAN|

Reproduced from Ordnance Survey material by permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Offioe © Crown oopyright Unauthorised reproduation

il

\ % 43 visiBILT PLAY ) 3

GENTRE OF CARRIAGEWAY ™

5
e

T

Q

o
.

=

(e}

<
=
o
54

24

X 35M VISIBILIEY-SPLAY TO KERB

Sk

PUMPING

DATE
10/0815
infringes Crown copyrignt and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings. Connest Consultants Ltd Licence numiber: 100046781
Oﬁf\ client scale date
‘gﬁ;’?@ LINDEN HOMES NORTH NT.S JULY 15
connec & s
Do MALTON SHOWGROUND rawn by checked by
CONSULTANTS 0@ o “mresersr | MALTON TAS cBW
CONNECT CONSULTANTS LTD, 76 BROAD STREET, committed to e B ltker
CHIPPING SODBURY, BRISTOL. BS37 6AG GCSECS VISION SPLAY TO ROUNDABOUT 15069 - SK150723.1
Tel: 01454 320 220 Web: www.connect-consultants.com SeASe) T ==
Fax: 01454 320 099 Email: bristol@connect-consultants.com Platinum award 15069 - SK150723.1




SHOWFIELD | MALTON

SECTION A-A

ik B

pomeas B

CEURLF
©

SECTION B-8

SECTION B-B CONT..

oo =

| SECTION C-C

SECTION C-C CONT..

N
L FLE

gugngEEyE
= 1f|m = NI
s 2/05/15

| A % = 2
uoms 313 morss morss. s sr-se ors
| 5 - b5 o 5 - s =

\J

] - e = S9T=N
veowewes || smemcoes | e ik s Artecne ARCHITECTURE

Page 92



Design and Access Statement

For a Reserved Matters Planning Application

Linden Homes | Malton Showfield

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 93



Contents

1.0| Introduction

2.0 | Summary of Approved Outline Application

3.0 | Design Development

4.0 | Design Solution

5.0 | Appearance

6.0 | Landscaping

7.0 | Summary

e
L I nd e n Client: Linden Homes

HOMES

e
S I — N Architect: STEN Architecture

ARCHITECTURE

F R E E T H S Planning Consultant: FREETHS

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 94



1.0 | Introduction

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 3

Page 95



1.0 | Introduction

This Design and Access Statement has been prepared by STEN Architecture on This document is submitted in support of the planning application and sets out to
behalf of Linden Homes to accompany a Reserved Matters Application for land at achieve the following:
Malton Showground . Identify the existing context of the site
. Identify the key development principles and framework which have informed
This document has been prepared in accordance with the Department for the detailed design of the scheme
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) ‘Planning Practice Guidance’ (March Provide mdetdiled deslgrranalysisand design selufion,
2014).
The ethos of the design is to:
. Create a high guality residential development
The aims of the statement is to provide a framework to explain how the proposed
development is a suitable response to the site and its setting, and demonstrate that ~ ® Create a legible and attractive place with a sense of identity
it can be adequately accessed by prospective users. . Create a sustainable and high quality living environment
® Make efficient use of land In terms of ecological enhancement and density
The Design and Access statement seeks to explain the design principles and o Provide a well planned sustainable settlement with dwellings which will meet
concepts that have been applied to the development. It also aims to demonstrate high architectural standards and the creation of pleasant and well planned
how the proposed development’s context has influenced the design. The Statement streets
also explains the approach to access and how relevant Local Plan policies have been
taken into account.
Linden Homes have collaborated with other consultants to prepare an appropriate
design solution which responds to planning policy and site context whilst working to
mitigate constraints and maximise the opportunities provided.
Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 4

Page 96



2.0 | Summary of Approved Outline

Application

Page 97



2.0 | Summary of Approved Outline Application

Planning History

Outline Planning Permission for Demolition of existing buildings and
structures and erection of circa 227 residential dwellings (Use Class C3) along
with all associated development including drainage, landscaping, cut and fill,
formation of earth bund, boundary treatments (including noise mitigation
measures) provision of services and access and associated highway works
(site area 11.90ha) was granted on Tue 24th Mar 2015 (14/00427/MOUTE )

The approval of the details of the layout, scale, appearance, and the
landscaping of the site were the reserved matters

Summary of Scheme

The application was made on behalf of Commercial Development Projects &
Fitzwilliam Trust Corp. Although the layout of the site was a Reserved
Matter, there was an indicative site layout included with the outline
application. This layout shows street and landscape infrastructure and cells
of development and is shown opposite.

The layout for the reserved matters application will be for the first phase of
development for 174 units. This will seek to retain the design principals of
this indicative site layout and develop them to a detailed stage.

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 6

Page 98



2.0 | Summary of Approved Outline Application

Design Principles

Within the Design and Access Statement for
the outline application there was a series of
design principles to help guide the detailed
design.

These principles will be considered during
the detailed design stage and incorporated
where possible. These design principles are
shown adjacent for reference together with
an artist’s impression of the green space to
the frontage

Create a common vocabulary for all of the buildings,
offering the opportunity for variation within a theme, but
creating a harmonious overall arrangement.

All of the buildings will be traditional in nature and
informed by the local vernacular

Roofs will be pitched

Windows will have heads either of masonry arches or
natural/artificial lintols, and natural/artificial stone cills
Front doors will be painted in a variety of colours

Front gardens will generally be bounded by hedges,
railings or low brick or stone walls. Rear gardens by
hedges or timber fences

To ensure that the character of the shared areas adds to
the overall high quality aspired to, generous areas of
landscaping will be created within the site.

Facing onto Pasture Lane there will be a large grassed
communal area, planted with informal groups of
woodland trees and shrubs.

Main distributor roads within the site will be in tarmac,
with conservation grade kerbs and good quality concrete
slabs on the pavement.

Subsidiary roads may be in block paviors or sealed
gravel, and may include some ‘shared-surface’ areas
The line of the roads will meander to create adjacent
green edges where trees will be planted

At two locations larger green communal spaces will run
east-to-west across the site to aid legibility and give
character

In order to integrate the development into the overall
landscape, and shelter the site from adjoining areas with
aggressive environments, shelter belts of native
woodland trees, containing a bank and topped by a
timber acoustic fence, will be planted along the eastern
and northern edges of the site.

Housing along the northern and eastern edges of the
site will follow the principles established in the special
house studies, both to give an acceptable environment
for eth residents, and to protect eth rest of the site
Lighting of shared areas will be designed in accordance
with BSEN 13201-2:2003, but be sympathetic to the
overall character of the development

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 99



3.0 | Design Development

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 8

Page 100



3.0 | Desigh Development

Pre-application Meeting

On Monday 26th January a pre-application meeting
was held with Ryedale Council. The adjacent layout
was presented at the meeting and below is a bullet
point summary of the feedback received:

. Noise bund details / mitigation important —
Minimum of 10m wide {1}

. 5 % Bungalow required

. Distance to existing houses to southern
boundary minimum 21m {2}

. Siting of house types around frontage ‘Village
green’ important and should be well thought
through {3} PHASE 2

. House types adjacent to emergency access
onto Pasture Lane to face onto street not back
onto. {4}

. Materials — Red / Buff brick with pantiles
. Dual aspect units to be used on corner plots (5)

. Junction stop dwelling to be centred on
junction and be of a non-integral / front parking
type {6)
Dwelling design — Simple elevations to suit
location

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 9

Page 101



3.0 | Desigh Development

Pre-application Meeting

A further pre-application meeting was held on
Thursday 19th March where a revised layout was
presented (shown adjacent) that aimed to address
the comments made at the previous pre-application
meeting.

It was agreed that the majority of the points had
been addressed, but the following comments were
made :

Location of 5 % bungalows welcomed {1)

Section through existing houses to southern
boundary to new required but can see
distance increased (2)

The use of detached types onto ‘Village green’
frontage welcomed. (3)

Use of non-integral / front parking types at
junction heads welcomed {4)

Dwelling design — Lose gables that have no
projections

Garages doors to be vertical types

Sections through bund and adjacent industrial
estate required (5)

Site sections required due to sloping nature of
site.

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 102

10



4.0 | Design Solution & Evaluation

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 11

Page 103



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluation

Introduction

The site constraints, considerations and strategies discussed in Design &
Access Statement that was prepared for the outline application have all been
borne with the final scheme incorporating refinements from earlier sketches
where deemed appropriate in order to address and improve certain aspects
following the consultation process. The following text clarifies the specific
detail of the submitted scheme.

Development Proposals

The proposal is for a first phase development of 174 new dwellings on a site
area of approximately 6.32 Hectares.

The new development will be served off a single vehicle access from Pasture
Lane however a new roundabout is proposed off this road with a turn into the
new residential development.

The layout has been designed so that there is good natural surveillance to all
areas of open space and roads with new dwellings looking onto these areas.

Dwellings are well laid out with garages set back in rear gardens. Most
dwellings or parking is alongside dwellings with some to frontage parking. This
mix of car parking arrangement allows for landscaping in the street.

Limited use of blocks of multiple dwellings have been used and these have
been kept to where we would have smaller 2 or 3 bedroom housing.

Dwellings are predominantly 2 storey in height with some single storey
bungalows in some locations.

Pedestrian connectivity has been thought of within the design allowing safe
movement into the site by means of 2m wide footpaths to primary routes.
The new site access also has 2m footpaths either side that run right into the

heart of the development.

The new houses respect the existing dwellings to the west by maintaining
sufficient distances from them to minimise overlooking.

Scheme Parameter

Total Number of residential units 174

Number of affordable units Off-site Provision at Peasey Hills

Average Density 33d/h

Storey Heights Mix of 1 and 2 Storey

Primary Means of vehicle access Pasture Lane (new roundabout)

Gross Site Area approx 6.32Ha

Area of Public Open Space approx 0.55Ha

Mix of dwellings 34 No. 2 Bed

59 No. 3 Bed

81 No. 4 Bed

Use and Amount & Scale

The proposed layout follows the principles that were set out in the outline
planning application (see page 6)

In total we are proposing a first phase development of 174 new residential

dwellings.

The proposed development includes a mix of 2,3 and 4 bedroom mews, semi-
detached and detached dwellings.. The majority of dwellings are 2 storey in
height with a small number of single storey bungalows in some areas

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 104

12



4.0 | Desigh Solutioh & Evalu

Access [A3]

A new vehicle access is proposed from Pasture Lane which has been designed
in detail by ‘Connect Consultants’ (see drawing on right hand side).

——z

A 5.5m wide road with 2m footpaths to both sides brings you into the site and
is the main road running into the site which combined with a series of shared
surfaces will create a very permeable layout.

Secondary roads will be shared surfaces that will have incidental visitor
parking located on them at a ratio of approximately 1in 5.

There will be 2 emergency vehicle access points into the new development
which can be seen identified on page 18. One of these will be to the western
end of the site onto Pasture Lane and the second will be on the western
boundary onto Outgang Road.

Inclusive access within the layout provides for ease of movement by all social
groupings and seeks certain minimum standards for disabled access for such
items as steps, ramps, door widths, etc. The 'approach' to the dwelling, the
area of land within the curtilage of the property from the boundary of the plot
up to the building itself, will have 'accessible’ paths and drives wherever
possible, taking into account the topography of the site. The use of various
surface materials, dropped kerbs, tactile paving, parking and drop off points
will be used to facilitate ease of movement by all.

= = =
P ———— o p—
PROPOSED DEVELOPHENT = i
CONSULTANTS 000 SHOWFIELD SITE. MALTON. TAS HF
e T e PROPOSED SITE AGCESS [Ss0s1-010

eI e FROM PASTURE LANE = =

BISER ST, - IR
Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 13

Page 105



4.0 | Desigh Sol & Evaluation

Access

A area of land has been
safeguarded at the site frontage
for the Smithson Court Signal
Junction if a future application off
Wentworth Street is granted:

[Fapces o G ey ety

o Bmrcn S vt o Cote o
g oo opr na

ey o o et Convet

(o o s G

AREA OF LAND WITHIN SITE T

A olismon

azzmarmzz | MALTON, SHOWFIELD SITE

BE RESERVED FOR FUTURE
HIGHWAY WORKS
o 3
Connec COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS PROPOSED srrswcsssmg
CONSULTANTS < PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENTS
7 SROAD TR, b S00URY. BRSTOL a1 B piaimam mard
o " e o

13051-SK150202.1 -

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 106

14



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluation

Layout

The location and orientation of the new dwellings respect the surrounding
properties and relate well to one another. They are generally positioned
parallel to one another, or at 90 degrees to their neighbours.

There are also some intimate dwelling clusters, typically at the head of the cul
-de-sacs.

Certain buildings are located to create focal ends and vista stops.

There is a clear definition between the public and private domain with all
properties having 'defensible spaces' to their frontages, and sides on a corner
position, with a variety of hard and soft treatments to the street, some giving
physical enclosure to the semi-private spaces such as railings, hedges and
shrub beds. Additional gable windows are also introduced to overlook public
areas and ensure 'active frontages' exist throughout the site creating a safe
and naturally surveyed environment.

All the properties will have individual footpath accesses to their rear gardens
giving direct control over their own private domain. This will aid security and,
with easy access, also enable waste and recycling provisions to be located at
the rear of the properties, out of sight from the street.

Where possible the dwelling's private amenity spaces back onto other
gardens or are screened from public areas by 1800 high brick pillar/fences or
vertically boarded fences, with rails inboard to reduce climbing potential.

Parking

All new private dwellings have car parking in curtilage. Detached dwellings
either have a drive to the side leading to a garage or has a drive to the front

with an integral garage.

Semi detached / terraced dwellings will have parking either in front or down
the side of each dwelling.

Mews / terraced housing either have parking in front of each house or in
some areas to keep the frontage free on cars have a small parking court
adjacent to them.

Visitor car parking is provided throughout the layout in the form of incidental
parking on the roads and designated visitor parking spaces on the shared
surfaces.

Appearance

On pages 23-25 we have included a series of Linden Homes proposed
dwellings for the site. The main material for the new dwellings will be brick
and further details of the materials proposed for each dwelling can be found
on the materials plan that has been submitted as part of the planning
application.

The street scenes and site section help to demonstrate the relationships
between the new dwellings and the existing site levels and site features.
These can be seen on page 25 and 26.

Designing out Crime

All new developments should create pleasant environments for residents
where they feel safe and quality of life is not undermined by crime or the fear
of crime. To this end opportunities for criminal activity should be recognised
and designed out where possible. The following considerations have been
taken into account when planning the scheme layout;

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 107

15



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evalu

. Well defined routes for cars and pedestrians which are well overlooked.

. Car parking overlooked, no rear courtyards.

. Structured places with no conflict between uses.

. All publicly accessible spaces overlooked.

. Well defined defensible spaces and the use of suitable planting.

. Management scheme to ensure landscaped areas are well maintained.
. Layout designed to minimise vulnerable rear and side boundaries

. Robust 1.8m high fences and lockable gates provided.

Sustainability

Environmental Design

The development will be designed to meet the requirements of the current
Building Regulations, specifically the requirements for Approved Document
Part 1 —Conservation of Fuel and Power, and Part F —Ventilation will ensure
good levels of heat retention and ventilation are achieved.

Energy Efficiency

The dwellings will be designed to have high standards of efficiency, by
limiting the heat loss across the building envelope, in order to minimise the
over energy demand in line with the requirements of the Building Regulation
Approved Document Part 1.

Waste Management

The development will make adequate provision for the internal and external

storage of non-recyclable household waste.

Delivering a Sustainable Community

The proposed scheme would create a highly sustainable community, which is
in accordance with NPPF. The site is within a close range of existing facilities
and services, all of which are easily accessible through a series of pedestrian
and vehicular routes.

Conclusion

As a whole, the site generally will be designed to meet the current Building
Regulation requirements and will therefore achieve the inherent standards
of energy efficiency and ventilation

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 108

16



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluatioh

Final Layout

Below is a copy of our final detailed layout that not
only follows the principles of the 'Development
Framework Plan” approved at the Outline
Application stage but incorporates revisions to the
last sketch scheme that were made at the pre-
application meeting with the Local Authority.

The following pages will explain in an illustrative
form the detailed design rationale behind our
proposed layout.

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 109

17



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluatioh

Road Hierarchy

" Primary highway
ﬂ& Secondary Highway

Private Drive

Key pedestrian route

q \ - Emergency Vehicle Access

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 110

18



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluatioh

Accomodation

4 Bedrooms

"N
4

v
=
15}
)
2
-
Jor
o
™

2 Bedrooms

19

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 111



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluatioh

Green Infrastructure

% Existing trees

% Proposed Tree Planting

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 112

20



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluatioh

Storey Heights

i“‘ 2 Storey dwellings
\.‘i,( Single storey dwelling
W a

o
.':“ Single storey garage

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 113

21



4.0 | Desigh Solution & Evaluatioh

Active Frontages

@ Active frontage
2|

.%,y Key frontages with positive

aspect over public spaces

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 .75

Page 114



5.0 | Appearance

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 23

Page 115



The images on this page and the
following two pages show examples
of the house types for use on this
development.

These examples show the scale and
appearance of the house types will
look

Further details can be found in the
accompanying drawing pack

MATERIALS
- Mixture of brick types
- Mixture of roof coverings
- UPVC Windows

- Black UPVC Rainwater goods

FRONT ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 116

24



5.0 | Appearance

FRONT ELEVATION

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 25

Page 117



SECTION A-A

SECTION B-8

SECTION 8-8 CONT...

» 3
il (eXie] jij (dis) (] Jis] PRy s

SECTION C-C

SECTION C-C CONT..

Street Scenes & Site Sections

SECTION 0-D

As the site has changes in level and sloping land combined with existing site
features we have produced a series of site sections and street scenes to allow a
clear picture of how the new dwellings will look and relate to each other.

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 118



0.000

25.000

SECTION A-A

40000

30000

25000

30000

25000

SECTION C-C

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

S——

g

Aot utong.
o=}

SECTION B-B

Street Scenes & Site Sections

As the site has changes in level and sloping land combined with existing site
features we have produced a series of site sections and street scenes to allow
a clear picture of how the new dwellings will look and relate to each other.

27

Page 119



6.0 | Landscaping

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 28

Page 120



6.0 | Landscaping

Landscaping

In support of this application Rosetta
Landscape Design have produced a
number of documents including:

]
\
\

U

- Arboricultural Impact Assessment,
- Arboricultural Method Statement,
- Tree protection Fencing Plan,

- Landscape Proposals.

e pmiE

=

Extracts from these documents are shown
here but more information can be found in i
the planning application pack.

0

o hod

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 29

Page 121



7.0 | Summary

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 30

Page 122



7.0 | Summary

This statement seeks to establish the most suitable potential design
solution for the development of the site.

This design solution has evolved from the outline planning application
through a number of options, with overriding design principles in place to
guide the development. It is considered that the approach to the
development of the scheme provides a robust design and it can be
demonstrated that the final plans and proposals are those most suitable
for the site within the context of the development and use proposed.

Below is a summary of the scheme proposals with the final layout on the

following page:

Scheme Parameter

Total Number of residential units

Number of affordable units Offsite Provision at Peasey Hills
Average Density 33d/h
Storey Heights Mix of 1and 2 Storey

Primary Means of vehicle access

Pasture Lane (new roundabout)

Gross Site Area approx 6.32Ha
Area of Public Open Space approx 0.55Ha
Mix of dwellings 34 No. 2 Bed

59 No. 3 Bed

81No. 4 Bed

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015

Page 123




ST=N

ARCHITECTURE

STEN Architecture Ltd
Suite 10, Unit 3 | Benton Office Park | Bennett Avenue | Horbury | Wakefield | WF4 5RA

Tel: 01924 669424 | Email: stuart@sten-architecture.co.uk | Web: www.sten-architecture.co.uk

Issue 2 | 7th May 2015 32

Page 124



Agenda Iltem 9

Item Number: 9

Application No: 15/00348/FUL

Parish: Scampston Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application

Applicant: Boortmalt Group (Mr Kevin Drillot)

Proposal: Raising the roof of part of existing building to allow installation of new

roasting plant and associated equipment, installation of extemal plant and
chimneys ranging in height from 12m to 23m and siting of an extemal
steel container.

Location: Boortmalt Group Poplars Lane West Knapton Malton North Yorkshire
YO17 6RN

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 28 May 2015

Owerall Expiry Date: 10 June 2015

Case Officer: Charlotte Comforth Ext: 325

CONSULTATIONS:

Environmental He alth Officer Comments received

Parish Council No views received to date

Neighbour responses: M E Carter, Richard Neasham, Ms Karen Sellers, Mr
And Mrs T C Cammish, Mrs Sally Mills, Mr & Mrs J
Simpson, Mrs Kim Burnett, Mr Thomas Cammish, Mrs
Sandra Piercy, Mrs Doreen Hicks, Mr Joe Simpson,

SITE:

The site comprises of numerous substantial buildings that are used to produce various types of malt.
The site is located within the wider open countryside, approximately 1.23 kilometres to the north of
A64 and approximately 0.8 kilometres to the north west of the village of West Knapton. The site is
also adjacent to the Malton — Scarborough railway line, with the residential properties of “The
Poplars’ to the south of the site and other residential properties to the north and west close to the
railway line.

PROPOSAL:

Raising the roof of part of an existing building to allow the installation of a new roasting plant and
associated equipment, the installation of an extemal plant and a chimney ranging in height from 12m
to 23m andthe siting of an extemal steel container.

Members should note that the proposal seeks the following;

- 2 extemal cooler cyclones at a height of 12m
- 1 extemal chimney at a height of 23m

- 1 extemnal steel contamner

- 2 mternal roaster machines

- 2 mtemal coolers

- 2 mtemal afterburners

- 4 mtemal fans

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REgpe 20155



Members should also note that the initial scheme was submitted without a noise survey. Following
discussions with the agent, a noise survey was submitted along with further noise, odour and dust
information. Members should also note that one chimney has been omitted from the mitial scheme;
thereforethe scheme now proposed one chimney and not two as originally proposed.

HISTORY:

There is extensive history in connection with the site. However, it is considered that there is no
relevant history pertinent to this planning application.

POLICY:

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)
National Planning Practice Guidance (2014)

The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distribution of Employment/Industrial Land and Premises
Policy SP13 - Landscapes

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 -Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

APPRAISAL:
The main considerations to be taken into account when consideringthe proposal are:

i.  The principle of development
ii. Impact upon the wider open countryside
iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity
a) Noise
b) Dust
¢) Odour
vi. Other matters
vi. Conclusion

i. The principle of development

Local and National Planning Policy is generally supportive of the expansion of existing established
businesses, including the Boomalt Group. Policy SP6 (Delivery and Distribution of
Employment/Industrial Land and Premises) is supportive of the expansion land for existing major
employers and established buildings within the wider open countryside. This proposal seeks to alter
and use an existing building within the site and will not mvolve any expansion of the application site
beyond its existing boundaries. It is therefore considered that the principle of development in this
location is considered acceptable.

1i. Impact upon the wider open countryside

The extemal elements of the proposal include the chimney, 2 cooler cyclones, a steel container and
the raising ofthe existing roof by 4 metres. The chimney and the raising of the existing roof will be
visible from the wider open countryside. There will be glimpsed views of the 2 cooler cyclones and
the steel container when approaching the site from the south along the B1258. However, it is
considered that the extemal elements will be read in the context of the existing buildings within the
site.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
RA Qe HOB15



The proposed cladding to raise the roof will be of a Moorland Green that matches the adjacent
buildings. It is therefore considered that the proposal will not have a detrimental impact upon the
wider open countryside.

11i. Impact upon neighbouring amenity — noise. dust and odour

The application has generated numerous objections from the occupiers of nearby properties. The full
letters of objection may be viewed on the Council’s website.

8 letters of objection were received as a result of the initial consultation and a further 3 letters of
objection have been received following the submission of a noise survey and further noise, odour and
dust information.

A summary ofthe objections include the following main points and material planning considerations:

- The proposal will make the odour worse for neighbouring properties

- The proposal will increase the noise that will impact upon neighbouring properties

- The proposal will increase the dust (which adds to air pollution) that will impact upon
neighbouring properties

- The proposal will increase traffic congestion

- The proposal will increase the risk of fire and explosion

- Blocking up on soakaways

- The discarding of rubbish into the drainage gutters

- The garden of a property has been flooded; therefore the infrastructure of the factory cannot cope
with the current level of production

- Fly infestations

- Property values

a) Noise

Following discussions with the Council's Environmental Protection Officer, the following comments
have been made with regard to noise:

A BS 4142:2014 Noise Assessment was submitted by the applicants. The assessment considered
measurements of existing noise levels at the nearest noise sensitive receptors: Station House on
Malton Road, which is situated ~ 75m away to the north east; and the closest property on Poplars
Lane, which is slightly further away and screened from the proposed development by parts of the
existing installation. Measurements were also taken of noise levels 5 metres from the existing
roasting plant whilst three of the existing four roasting ovens were in operation. By calculation, the
specific noise level predicted to arise at the nearest noise sensitive receptor as a result of the
operation of all existing roasters plus the two proposed additional roasters was then determined. The
calculated specific noise level at the nearest receptor was 40dB. The calculation was based on
attenuation due to the distance between the noise source and the receptor and assumed that there
would be no barrier attenuation. A +3dB penalty was added to this giving a rating value of 43dB.
This is 3dB below the measured background noise level at the receptor, a result that indicates that the
specific noise from the extended roasting plant will have no adverse noise impact.

This assessment may be considered cautious in respect of the fact that in determining the rating level
noise from the existing roasting plant has not been excluded. It’s exclusion would result in a lower
rating level However, the calculated rating level does also make an assumption that the two new
roasters (and the existing roaster that was not operating when the assessment was undertaken) will
have similar sound emission characteristics to the three existing roasters that were operating, thereby
resulting in a doubling of sound power. That is the basis on which the measured sound pressure level
of 61dBA at 5Sm from three roasters has been used to predict a level of 64dBA if six roasters
(including the proposed two new ones) operated together.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Rggpe20157



(Doubling the sound power results in a 3dB increase in the sound pressure level). This means that
there is a degree of uncertainty with regards to the predicted impact.

1 therefore recommend the following condition if the application is approved.:

The applicant shall arrange for noise monitoring to be undertaken by a suitably qualified acoustic
consultant to check that the noise level arising from the combined impact of the existing four roasters
and two new roasters does not exceed the level of 64dB (LAeql Smin) Smetres away from the external
facade of the building housing the roasters. This monitoring shall be undertaken within 2 months of
the completion of commissioning of the new roasters and whilst all six roasters are operating. If the
measured level exceeds 64dB(A), the applicant must identify and implement appropriate measures to
attenuate noise from the plant so that it does not exceed the predicted level of 64dB (LAeql Smin).

Reason : To protect the local amenity by preventing an increase in noise levels at noise sensitive
properties

b) Dust
The Environmental Protection Officer has also stated the following comments with regard to dust.

The proposed new plants incorporate cyclones to capture dust from the roasters and coolers. The
applicant has stated that there is a ‘small amount of deposition taking place from the roasters’ but
that this is limited to the wof area close to the flues and emissions are confined to within the site.
Furthenmore the applicant states that past complaints concerning dust have related to other parts of
the plant.

Environmental Health complaints records for the period 2011 to the present date do not show any
complaints relating to dust emissions from the installation.

I recommend the following condition if the application is approved:

Emissions to air from the roasting drums and coolers to which this pemission relates shall at all
times discharge through cyclone arrestment systems so as to minimise emissions of particulate matter.
Materials captured by the cyclones shall be transferred via enclosed conveyance systems to secure
enclosed storage vessels.

Reason : To protect the local amenity byminimising emissions of particulate matter

¢) Odour

The Environmental Protection Officer has also made with the following comments with regard to
odour and smoke:

Several complaints have been made in recent weeks concerning emissions of smoke from the roasting
plant  The production of high coloured malts may give rise to odour and visible smoke. This is
because production of darker malts involves subjecting the malt to more heat. These products are
currently produced exclusively using one particular roasting drum (No.5). This dmm has an
afterburner, the purmpose of which is to abate emissions of odour and smoke which arise from the
process. It should be noted that the smoke emitted through the nomal production of high coloured
malt is not the result of the malt catching fire (which is not part of the process). Green malt fed into
the roasting drum is heated indirectly by hot air blown through the rotating drum. In order to
minimise smoke and odour emissions the afterbumer must start up in time and attain the required
temperature in order to ensure effective oxidation of odorous compounds and smoke. My
understanding is that provided the afterbumer is operated properly it is effective and smoke and
odour emissions are minimal.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
RA Qe HOB15



Following a recent complaint from a local resident concerning smoke emissions, enquiries were made
and the operator confirmed that on 13 July there was a fire in No. 5 rmasting drum. Such incidents
are not common but if they do are occur are usually associated with the production of high coloured
malts. To minimise the risk of fire a sensor continuously measures the temperature of the malt The
detection of a high temperature automatically activates the release of water to flood the drum and
extinguish the fire. There is also a temperature sensor in the exhaust ductwork taking air from the
drum to the afterburner and there are smoke detectors in the roasting house. [ understand that the
automated extinguisher operated effectively on this occasion and although the fire and rescue
emergency services were called out as part of the standard operating procedures, the fire in the
roaster was extinguished before they arrived. The incident was caused by a batch of green malt
that had become sticky and having adhered to the inside of the drum becam e overheated.

The other three existing roasting drums are used to produce less colouredmalts and are not equipped
with afterbumers as the potential for smoke and odour emissions is low. The risk of fire is also lower
and consequently unlike drum 5, the other drums do not have automated emergency systems to detect
and extinguish fires, although they do have product and exhaust temperature sensors which are
monitored by the operator.

My understanding is that the demand for high coloured malts is growing significantly and the two
proposed new roasters, each of which will be equipped with an afterburner and automated systems to
detect and extinguish fires, will be used to increase the capacity to produce these products. The
applicant has stated that the afterburners of the new roasters will be more efficient than the one fitted
to existing roaster No. 5 and that there will therefore be little or no impact on emissions of smoke and
odour if the development is approved.

1 recommend the following condition if the application is approved:

Each of the two wasters to which this permission relates shall be equipped with an afterburner to
treat exhaust air from the roasters. The afterburners shall be operated for the appropriate time
duration and at appropriate temperatures so as to ensure the effective treatment of exhaust gases
thereby preventing or minimising emissions of smoke and odour at all times.

Reason : To protect the local amenity by preventing or minimising emissions of odour and smoke.

Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy
states the following regarding amenity and safety:

New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future
occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by
virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can
include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an
overbearing presence

Developers will be expected to apply the highest standards outlined in the World Health
Organisation, British Standards and wider international and national standards relating to noise

New development proposals which will result in an unacceptable risk to human life, health and safety
or unacceptable risk to property will be resisted. Developers will be expected to address the
risks/potential risks posed by contamination and/or unstable land in accordance with recognised
national and international standards and guidance

It is considered that with conditions suggested by the Environmental Protection Officer being attached
tothe Decision Notice (if planning permission is granted), the amenity of neighbouring properties will
be adequately protected in terms of noise, dust and odour. Members should also note that other
legislative procedures would take into account issues regarding nuisance in repsect of noise, odour,
dust and fire risk.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REgpe20159



vi. Other matters

The proposal will not involve a material increase in traffic and vehicular movements associated with
the proposed development.

There has been no response from the Parish Council with regard to the proposal.
v. Conclusion

In light of the above, it is considered that the raisingthe roof of part of an existing building to allow
the installation of anew roasting plant and associated equipment, the installation of an extemal plant
and a chimney ranging in height from 12mto 23m and the siting of an extemal steel container meets
the relevant policy criteria policy criteria outlined within Policies SP6, SP 13, SP16, SP19 and SP20 of
the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and with the policies contained within the National Planning
Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval, subject to the following
conditions.

RECO MMENDA TIO N: Approval

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .
Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 If the application is approved, the applicant shall arrange for noise monitoring to be

undertaken by a suitably qualified acoustic consultant to check that the noise level arising
from the combined impact of the existing four roasters and two new roasters does not
exceed the level of 64dB (LAeqlSmin) Smetres away from the extemal facade of the
building housing the roasters. This monitoring shall be undertaken within 2 months of the
completion of commissioning of the new roasters and whilst all six roasters are operating. If
the measured level exceeds 64dB(A), the applicant must identify and implement appropriate

measures to attenuate noise from the plant so that it does not exceed the predicted level of
64dB (LAeql5min).

Reason:- To protect the local amenity by preventing an increase in noise levels at noise
sensitive properties and to comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan
Strategy.

3 Emissions to air from the roasting drums and coolersto which this permission relates shall
at all times discharge through cyclone arrestment systems so as to minimise emissions of
particulate matter. Materials captured by the cyclones shall be transferred via enclosed
conveyance systemsto secure enclosed storage vessels.

Reason:- To protect the local amenity by minimising emissions of particulate matter and to
comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

4 Each of the two roasters to which this permission relates shall be equipped with an
afterburner to treat exhaust air from the roasters. The afterburners shall be operated for the
appropriate time duration and at appropriate temperatures so as to ensure the effective
treatment of exhaust gases thereby preventing or minimising emissions of smoke and odour
at alltimes.

Reason:- To protect the local amenity by preventing or minimising emissions of odour and
smoke andto comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
R8AeEEE1S



5 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and inthe interests of proper planning,

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REgo20 61



DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES
I

\

Gottzges

¥ ]

Leyel
Crossing

\

=

_—

0

Sios

/7 " '—

Knapton Stal

Station House

¥

ion

i

ier Tanks /
@ ‘ \ pZa
. Effluent Works ‘ it
\ Sludge Tank ”
Y
| GeneralNotes
= Site boundary
s Secondary boundary 47539 1 (approx )
/>V \\ \\ 11.7 acre, 4.73 hectare
General Arrangement _ Os Map _ 1: 2500
St [Job Title: O, it

PLANNING

13209 "M 100 001

Location/ 0s Map

Boortmalt Group
Knapton Maltings, Knapton

Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 6RN ‘

Roaster Project

Glent

Deseriton

FEVNS

) BOORTMALT

Malsier House, 160 High St
T @SS w

Gelder and Kitchen LLP
CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS

stan Upon Kull, HUT TRL
andKitshon.co.ur

1

o oy =
2500 | zsma/zms‘ AR ‘

Page 132




T SCALE ROM THS DRANNIG F0R CONSTRICTION PUR

General Arrangement _ Existing South Elevation_ 1 100 General Arrangement _ Existing West Elevation & Section A-A_ 1100

oloiol X A
o ("o o
o o o
ololb !
At Bt
o ! ] ! 0o
°o o
o 0 de
oo |y =
orkior
S 8 g®
General Arrangement _xisting Key Plan_ 1 : 500 ‘General Arrangement _Existing Ground level_ 1 200

Page 133

IDATE VALID
02/04/15

Gelder and Kitchen LLP
constauerio consu

o 16000 S0, g s
it

) BOORTMALT

e
Boortmall Group.
Krapton Malings, Knapton
Malton, North Yorkshite, Y017 6RN
Roaster Project

Existing detals
Plans, Section and Elevaion

PLANNING




[E-@/IF IN DOUBT ASK.

REVISED PLAN

bN

| \
A\ \|/
110/08/15
BOORTMALT

ROASTER PROJECT SIDE VIEW NO DUCTING
105 Yo, l “Scde.
=

Drawn By lw \r.-unzu

s 07/08/2015 1

ik -

Page 134




[E-@/IF IN DOUBT ASK.

REVISED PLAN

Q<)

[DATE
1008/15

BOORTMALT

ROASTER PROJECT END VIEW NO DUCTING
G e e S
B [ [ o
Ovawn By lw liﬁs‘n(h
o 07/08/2015 1
o o

Page 135



71

FO]IF IN DQUET ASK.
.

O7«C )

SHIEIE)S =

oUEACES: 0 s
5th EDmON

S
o o [10/08/15

i Fo. I T =
o By = =g
(rovig e -

Page 136




Knapton New roaster project

Architectural Design Statement

Gelder and Kitchen LLP

CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS

Page 137



Introduction

This Architectural Statement has been prepared by Gelder and Kitchen LLP, 1o be read in association with the submission of a planning application for
consent for a development at Boorimalt Group, Knapton Maltings, Knapton, Malton, North Yorkshire, Y017 6RN.

The document provides an overview of the key issues, design considerations in conjunction with the drawings submitted as part of this planning submission.

Our clients successful and well established business has developed over the years and as a result of increased demand there is a need to improve its existing
operations to meet the requirements of the food industry on a local, national and infernational level. As a result of this demand our client is looking for
consent to raise the roof of an existing building and for the installation of a new roasting plant which will increase their production to meet their business
demands.

Description of the Proposal
The proposal is for :

»  Raising the roof1o part of an existing building [4mtrs high x 5.8 mtrs wide] in order fo accommodate the installation of a new roasting plan & equipment
with associated coolers, cyclones and afterburners.

+ Installation of external plant and chimney’s ranging in height from 12mirs to 23mirs
» DBdernal steel container, 10 x 3 x 2.7mirs

Assessment

Context

The sile is located within open countryside adjacent to the Scarborough and York railway line, 1o the north of Knapton. The site is an established business /
industrial site, which covers a large area. The existing site is well screened by dense and malure vegelation. The site is within a designated Industrial /
business area that is afforded protection under Policy EMP8 — Existing industrial and business area as a local employment site within the Reydale District.

The site has an extensive planning history with in-excess of 20 application, polices applicable to this application are — ENY1, ENY25 and EMPG.
The property is nol stalulory Listed nor is it located within a Conservalion Area.

The proposed location is considered suitable for the proposed plant as it cannot be seen from any public vantage points and this area is already home fo a
number of similar service facilities. Therefore, when viewed in context, it is considered that the development proposed wouldn't cause any additional harm 1o
the external appearance of the property.

Use
Not applicable — There will be no change 1o the current use of the site and facilities.
Amount

The proposal would be located towards the north east of the site, bound by the existing industrial buildings. The proposal would be appropriate in erms of
its scale and orientation and it is considered that the proposal would not be detrimental to the character and appearance of the area nor would it have an
adverse affect upon the amenity of the near by properies.

Layout

The raised roof and associaled equipment shall be located within the centre of the site and is surrounded by various large buildings and similar plant and
equipment. The plant cannot be seen from any public vantage points and the closest residential properties are circa 100m to the south west [see submitted
drawings].

Scale

The physical characteristics of scale are to remain in keeping with the existing built forms onthe site. The existing param eters of height, width and depth
have set the precedent forthe proposal and, used as one of the principle considerations for the design of the development. The dimensions for all the plant
and raised section of roof are set out above and on the application drawings. When viewed within context, plant of this scale and location will cause no harm
to the overall visual appearance of the buildings and area.

Landscape & Access

Not applicable — the external plant is not sited in a location where landscaping would be considered appropriate. Public access is not required to the plant
and no changes are proposed o public access into or throughout the site and buildings.

Appearance

The appearance of the new building and plant will match the existing conlext and characleristics of the exisling buildings and use. Finishes and colours will
predominantly be neutral fo blend into the environment as much as possible.

Floor Risk

The site lies outside an area which may be at risk from flooding. According io PPS23, table D.1: Flood Zones: All uses of land are appropriate in this zone.
A Flood Risk Assessment will therefore not be necessary for the proposed development.

Noise & Smell

The proposed plant will be the same as the exisling roaster and associated equipment which is already housed within another part of the development
building, noise and smell from the new plant will not exceed that of the existing or exacerbate the current levels.

Boortmalt Group| Malton Roaster Projsct Architectural Statemsnt Gelder and Kitchen LLp
CONSTRUGTION CONSULTANTS

Page 138



ce

=] M@t_'l ‘
Charlotte Cornforth (‘%

From: Paul Hunt

Sent: 07 August 2015 11:14

To: Charlotte Cornforth

Subject: FW: Boort Malt Planning Application Ref. 15/00348/FUL

Dear Charlotte
My comments on this matter are as follows:

Noise

A BS 4142:2014 Noise Assessment was submitted by the applicants. The assessment considered measurements of
existing noise levels at the nearest noise sensitive receptors: Station House on Malton Road, which is situated ~ 75m
away to the north east; and the closest property on Poplars Lane, which is slightly further away and screened from
the proposed development by parts of the existing installation. Measurements were also taken of noise levels 5
metres from the existing roasting plant whilst three of the existing four roasting ovens were in operation. By
calculation, the specific noise level predicted to arise at the nearest noise sensitive receptor as a result of the
operation of all existing roasters plus the two proposed additional roasters was then determined. The calculated
specific noise level at the nearest receptor was 40dB. The calculation was based on attenuation due to the distance
between the noise source and the receptor and assumed that there would be no barrier attenuation. A +3dB
penalty was added to this giving a rating value of 43dB. This is 3dB below the measured background noise level at
the receptor, a result that indicates that the specific noise from the extended roasting plant will have no adverse
noise impact.

This assessment may be considered cautious in respect of the fact that in determining the rating level, noise from
the existing roasting plant has not been excluded. It's exclusion would result in a lower rating level. However, the
calculated rating level does also make an assumption that the two new roasters {and the existing roaster that was
not operating when the assessment was undertaken) will have similar sound emission characteristics to the three
existing roasters that were operating, thereby resulting in a doubling of sound power. That is the basis on which the
measured sound pressure level of 61dBA at 5m from three roasters has been used to predict a level of 64dBA if six
roasters (including the proposed two new ones) operated together. (Doubling the sound power results in a 3dB
increase in the sound pressure level). This means that there is a degree of uncertainty with regards to the predicted
impact.

I recommend the following condition if the application is approved:

The appiicant shail arrange for noise monitoring to be undertaken by o suitably qualified acoustic consuitant to check
that the noise level arising from the combined impact of the existing four roasters and two new roasters does not
exceed the level of 64dB (LAeq15min) Smetres away from the external facade of the building housing the roasters.
This monitoring shall be undertaken within 2 months of the completion of commissioning of the new roasters and
whilst ol six roasters are operating. If the measured level exceeds 64dB(A}, the applicant must identify and
implement appropriote measures to attenuate noise from the plant so that it does not exceed the predicted level of
64dB (LAeql15min).

Reason : To protect the local omenity by preventing an increase in noise levels at noise sensitive properties

Dust

_The proposed new plants incorporate cyclones to capture dust from the roasters and coolers. The applicant has
stated that there is a “small amount of deposition taking place from the roasters’ but that this is limited to the roof
area close to the flues and emissions are confined to within the site, Furthermore the applicant states that past
complaints concerning dust have related to other parts of the plant.

Page 139



Environmental Health complaints records for the period 2011 to the present date do not show any complaints
relating to dust emissions from the installation.

| recommend the following condition if the application is approved:

Emissions to air from the roasting drums and coolers te which this permission relates shall at all times discharge
thraugh cyclone arrestment systems so as to minimise emissions of particulate matter. Materials captured by the
cyclones shall be transferred via enclosed conveyance systems to secure enclosed storage vessels.

Reason : To protect the local amenity by minimising emissions of porticulote maotter.

Smoke

Several complaints have been made in recent weeks concerning emissions of smoke from the roasting plant. The
production of high coloured malts may give rise to odour and visible smoke. This is because production of darker
malts involves subjecting the mait to more heat. These products are currently produced exclusively using one
particular roasting drumn (No.5). This drum has an afterburner, the purpose of which is to abate emissions of odour
and smoke which arise from the process. It should be noted that the smoke emitted through the normal production
of high coloured malt is not the result of the malt catching fire (which is not part of the process). Green malt fed
into the roasting drum is heated indirectly by hot air blown through the rotating drum. In order to minimise smoke
and odour emissions the afterburner must start up in time and attain the required temperature in order to ensure
effective oxidation of odorous compounds and smoke. My understanding is that provided the afterburner is
operated properly it is effective and smoke and odour emissions are minimal.

Following a recent complaint from a local resident concerning smoke emissions, enquiries were made and the
operator confirmed that on 13 July there was a fire in No. 5 roasting drum. Such incidents are not common but if
they do are occur are usually asseciated with the praduction of high coloured malts. To minimise the risk of fire a
sensor continuously measures the temperature of the malt. The detection of a high temperature automatically
activates the release of water to flood the drum and extinguish the fire. There is also a temperature sensor in the
exhaust ductwork taking air from the drum to the afterburner and there are smoke detectors in the roasting house.
{ understand that the automated extinguisher operated effectively on this occasion and although the fire and rescue
emergency services were called out as part of the standard operating procedures, the fire in the roaster was
extinguished before they arrived.  The incident was caused by a batch of green malt that had become sticky and
having adhered to the inside of the drum became overheated.

The other three existing roasting drums are used to produce less coloured malts and are not eguipped with
afterburners as the potential for smoke and odour emissions is low. The risk of fire is also lower and consequently
unlike drum 5, the other drums do not have automated emergency systems to detect and extinguish fires, although
they do have product and exhaust temperature sensors which are monitored by the operator.

My understanging is that the demand for high coloured maits is growing significantly and the two proposed new
roasters, each of which will be equipped with an afterburner and automated systems to detect and extinguish fires,
will be used to increase the capacity to produce these products. The applicant has stated that the afterburners of
the new roasters will be more efficient than the one fitted to existing roaster No. 5 and that there will therefore be
little or no impact on emissions of smoke and odour if the development is approved.

I recommend the following condition if the application is approved:

Each of the two roasters to which this permission relates shall be equipped with on afterburner to treot exhoust gir
from the roasters. The afterburners shall be operated for the appropriate time duration and at appropriate
temperatures so as to ensure the effective treatment of exhaust gases thereby preventing or minimising emissions of

smoke and odour at all times.

Reason ; To protect the local amenity by preventing or minimising emissions of odour and smoke.

Page 140



"
N Best regards

Paul

Paul Hunt

Environmental Protection Officer
Ryedale DC

Ryedale House

0Old Matton Road

Malton

YQO17 7THH

Tel: 01653 600666 EXT 257
E:Mail: paul.hunt@ryedale.gov.uk
www.ryedale.gov.uk

This e-mail may contain information which is confidential, legally privileged and/or copyright. This e-mail is intended
for the addressee only. If you receive this in error, please contact the sender and delete the material from your

computer

Page 141



Agenda Item 10

Item Number: 10

Application No: 15/00620/FUL

Parish: Cropton Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application

Applicant: Mr John Standen

Proposal: Erection of detached 2 bedroom dwelling together with formation of 5no.
parking spaces for shared use with Woodmans Cottage.

Location: Land To The Rear Of Woodmans Cottage High Street Cropton Pickering
North Yorkshire

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 6 August 2015
O verall Expiry Date: 20 July 2015

Case Officer: Helen Bloomer Ext: 328
CONSULTATIONS:

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No detailed commentsto make
Land Use Planning No views received to date

Parish C ouncil No views received to date

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions

Neighbour responses: Mrs Janet Mckay, Dr David McHugh,
SITE:

The application site is the rear amenity space of Woodman’s Cottage, whilst the host dwelling is
within the Development Limits, the application site the subject of the application is not. The site is
within The Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value.

A Public Right of Way (Back Lane) runs along the eastern boundary, north — south.

PROPOSAL:

Planning approval is being sought for the erection of a two bedroom detached bungalow with the
formation of a separate amenity space and five parking spaces, which would be shared with the

existing Woodman’s Cottage, along with the existing vehicle access. The material pallet would match
that of the existing dwellinghouse

HISTORY:

3/31/67/OA Erection of a dwelling and garage at land adjacent to Woodmans Cottage. Refused.
Appeal Dismissed (1992)

14/01412/PREAPP Erection of a single storey dwelling. Principle not supported.
APPRAISAL:

The main considerations in assessing this application are:

1) Principle

i) Character and Form

iii) Neighbour Amenity
iv) Highways

PLANNING COMMITTEE
8 g b1R15



v) Other Issues

Principle

In accordance with S38(6) ofthe Planning Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 planning applications must
be considered against the adopted Development Plan unless material planning considerations indicate
otherwise. The adopted Development Plan is the Ryedale Local Plan - Local Plan Strategy, adopted 5
September 2013 and the 'saved' development limits shown on the proposals map ofthe Ryedale Local
Plan adopted 2002. Policy SP1 (General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy) directs
development to the Principle Towns of Malton and Norton, then to Market Towns, Service Villages,
new residential development within 'Other Villages' such as Cropton would only be supported in
principle when it is part of a continually built up frontage and would be subject to a Local Needs
Occupancy condition in line withPolicy SP21 (Occupancy Restrictions).

However the application site is outside of the adopted development limits and is therefore in open
countryside in the context of the development plan. Policy SP2 (Delivery and Distribution of New
Housing) only supportsthe principle of a new build dwellings in the locations, where it is necessary to
support the land based economy where an essential need for residential development within that
location can be justified. The proposed development is not required for the aforementioned purpose.
The applicant who currently resides in Woodman’s Cottage is a long standing member of the
community and states that he requires the bungalow due to health reasons. Whilst Officers sympathise
with the applicants situation and note the support for the applicant from members of the public, this is
not a material planning consideration. It is Officers opinion therefore that the development would be
contrary to the aims ofthe Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Prior to this application an earlier application was made for the erection of a bungalow and garage on
the site. Planning permission was refused and the applicant appealed the decision. The Inspector
dismissed the appeal. He did so for a number of reasons including that the proposal was not compliant
with the adopted policies, the reason being that the development was not within a location where
development is required to stimulate growth and it did not form part of a otherwise continually built
up frontage and that it would constitute backland development, which from Back Lane would be
extremely prominent.

The dwelling being considered by members is smaller in scale and is appraised under the more recent
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (adopted September 2013). The policy considerations remain
similar to the earlier adopted plan which the Inspector referred to when he dismissed the appeal. A
recommendation other than that of refusal would clearly be contrary to the aims of the development
plan, with no material planning considerations identified to justify the departure from policy.

Character and Form

Policy SP16 (Design) of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy requires new development to respect
the context provided by its surroundings including the grain of settlements, influenced by street
blocks, plot sizes, orientation of buildings, boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size
and scale of buildings. Whilst the design of the proposed development (subject to the relevant
conditions regarding materials is considered to be acceptable), it is not considered that siting of a
dwellinghouse with the amenity space of an existing dwelling respects the grain of the settlement.
Historically (an agricultural dependant village) the majority of dwellings have long amenity spaces
which stretch back from Main Street to the Back Lane. Policy SP13 (Landscape) seeks new
development proposals to contribute to the protection and enhancement of distinctive elements of
landscape character that are the result of historical and cultural influences. The proposed sitting of a
dwellinghouse and associated parking area would undoubtedly through the process of back land
development urbanise the historically rural character of this part of Cropton.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 REgpe20153



The impact on the landscape setting was a significant factor in the Inspector dismissing the earlier
appeal. The development is therefore considered to be contrary to the aims of Policy SP13
(Landscapes) and SP 16 (Design).

Neighbour Amenity

Policy SP20 (Generic Development management Issues) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy
expects that new development would not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or
future occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community
by virtue of the ... 'use, location and proximity to neighbouring uses'. The National Planning Policy
Framework Paragraph 17 seeks to secure ...a good standard of amenity for all existing and future
occupants of land and buildings.

The site is in an area currently used for residential purposes. Nevertheless the comings and goings
associated with two dwellings will be greater than for a single dwelling. The occupiers of Moor View
are likely to be the most effected. This is given the proposed siting of the car parking spaces which
would not only serve the proposed new dwelling but the existing Woodman’s Cottage running a large
proportion of their eastem boundary to their amenity area. The access road would run the entirety of
Moor Views northem boundary and amenity space. It is noted that the occupiers have not objected to
the proposed development. Nevertheless it is a requirement of both SP20 and Paragraph 17 of the
NPPF to consider the amenity of current and future occupiers. Officers consider the associated
coming and goings associated with the vehicle movements of two dwelling on the boundaries of Moor
View amenity space would adversely effect the amenity of current and future occupiers to such an
extent that the development would be contraryto both local andnational planning policy.

It is not considered that the development would result in a loss of privacy, light or have an
overbearing presence on the amenity of the neighbouring properties. If approval was to be granted a
landscaping condition would be advised to ensure a clear separation between the applicants existing
property and that of the proposed.

Highways

Subject to the relevant conditions North Yorkshire County Council Highway Authority has raised no
objection to the proposed development.

Other Issues

Drainage and Foul Waste

The treatment of foul waste would be dealt with viathe means of a package treatment plant; this is in
line with Govemment Guidance when it is not possible to connect to mains sewers. If Members are
minded to approve the application it Officers recommendation that a condition is attached requiring
the details of the treatment plant to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the LPA. Surface water
will be gathered in underground rainwater harvesting header tank, again if the members are minded to
approve Officers would recommend a condition requiring further details and a percolation test.

Trees
There is a number of existing tress particularly along the northem boundary of the site. If planning

permission is granted it is recommended that a scheme of protection be submitted to and agreed in
writing to ensure that none of the trees are damaged as a result of the development.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
8 g b1215



Consultation Responses

At the time of writing one letter of support had been received in relation to the Councils consultation
letters. A summary of the letter has been included below. The full version can be seen on the
Councils website.

i. The linear form of Cropton is a fagade with many dwellings having substantial buildings and
extensions to the rear and therefore would not be setting a president.

ii. Would be hardly visible if at all

iii. The applicants are long standing residents of Cropton and as their existing property no longer
meets the needs, the proposed dwelling would meet their needs and would allow them to remain part
of the community.

It is also noted that a number of letters of support were submitted at the time the application was
received as supporting information.

The Environment Agency has no observations to make.

At the time of writing no other written representations had been received. In consideration of the
above the recommendation is one of refusal.

REC OMMENDA TIO N: Refusal

1 The proposed dwelling is located outside of the Development Limits of Cropton. No
exceptional circumstances have been submitted to justify the erection of this dwelling in
open countryside. The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to Policy SP1 of the
adopted Ryedale Local Plan Strategy and contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework.

2 The proposed dwelling by virtue of its siting would fails to reinforce the village form of
Cropton through the creation of additional backland development. This type of
development fails to reinforce local distinctiveness and appear visually intrusive within the
Area of High Landscape Value, The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to
Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Local Plan Strategy and contrary to
the National Planning Policy Framework.

3 The proposed no.5 space car parking area and access road by virtue of its close proximity to
the neighbouring property (Moor View) (and the level of noise and disturbance arising from
such use), will not provide for a satisfactory level of residential amenity for the future
occupiers . The proposed development is considered therefore to be contrary to the Policy
SP20 ofthe Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and Paragraph 17 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Rggpe 20155



EXSTNG SITE SECTIONAA
Scale 1200

MR & MRS STANDEN

PICKERING
YO18 8HL

e
EXISTING SITE PLAN, SITE LOCATION PLAN
AND SITE SECTION

SaE
PLANNING

o e o
20438 o

TR0 A Mayams

g G

Page 146



AN

[DATE VALID!
11/06/15

PICKERING

YO18 8HL

e
PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN ELEVATIONS,

SITE SEGTION AN SITE PLAN
SaE
PLANNING
T Fa o
20438 @
2w, 1@t May2015
G

Page 147



DESIGN AND ACCESS STATEMENT

Date:
26™ May 2015

Prepared by:
Alex Green

Applicant and on hehalf of:
Mr & Mrs J. Standen

Address:
Woodmans Cottage
High Street
Cropton

Near Pickering
North Yorkshire
YO18 8HL

Application Type:
Proposed new dwelling to the rear garden of Woodmans Cottage, Cropton.

Notes:
This statement is to be read in conjunction with drawing 14/35 01 and 02

Introduction
Woodmans Cottage is located in the village of Cropton which lies in the District of Ryedale and is
with in the North Yorkshire Moors National Park.

Cropton is a small and attractive Moorland village without a village shop and no public transport
links. The village however boasts a church, a chapel and a recently refurbished village hall. The
village hall is an integral part of the small community.

Given villages restraint and lack of day to day amenities younger families in Cropton are generally

required to leave and look for more affordable and convenient accommodation elsewhere. This is
detrimental to the community and goes against the ethics and requirements outlined in the Parish
Plan.

The applicants Mr and Mrs Standen have lived in the village for a large percentage of their lives. Mrs
Standen is an active member of the community and has become integral to the village over along
period of time. Both Mr and Mrs Standen are highly respected in the village and this is reflected in
the heartfelt letters provided by local residents including neighbours which serve on the Parish
Council. A copy of these letters has been included with this planning application.

Over recent times Mr Standen’s health has deteriorated and as a result Woodman’s Cottage where
they have lived for over 30 years is no longer suitable for Mr Standen’s additional needs. Given the
lack of suitable accommodation elsewhere in the village of Cropton unless a new purpose built

dwelling can be constructed to meet Mr Standen’s health requirements the only alternative will be

Address: Alex Green, 3 Comfrey Close,
Harrogate, HG3 2XB

Mobile: 07966 576 346

Email: AMGarchitectural@outlook.com

Page 148



for a another long serving family to leave the village. Given the respect for Mr and Mrs Standen in
the village this would create a large void in the local community.

As aresult we have collectively taken the decision to submit a formal application to construct a new
dwelling in the rear garden of Woodman’s Cottage. Given the unprecedented nature of this
application we submitted a pre-application and a positive response was not received. However in
our opinion the planning officer did not consider the justifications for the proposals and considered
it an application for the purposes of profit.

There is a huge interest in this application throughout the village of Cropton and it goes without
saying that the whole community is whole heartedly in support of the proposals. This is reflected in
the letters of support received which have been appended to the formal application.

Appearance
The High Street is the main road which runs thru the village of Cropton. There are number of

properties which face the High Street and include deep rear gardens which include built forms.
Generally the built forms are ancillary to that of the main house which face the High Street, however
it is understood that some of the ancillary type buildings have been converted for the purposes of
additional accommodation and holiday lettings. It should be noted that a number of the ancillary
buildings are outside of the development limits.

The proposed new dwelling will follow a familiar trend to that on the High Street and will be ancillary
in appearance to the main house which is Woodmans Cottage. The proposed dwelling is a single
storey dwelling and the ridge height does not exceed that of Woodmans Cottage despite the fact it is
built on elevated existing ground.

In order to ensure the new dwelling is in keeping the materials will reflect those materials which give
Woodmans Cottage its character. The new dwelling will comprise of natural stone walling with
natural stone heads and cills at any openings and a pan tile roof. The doors and window styles will
mirror those on Woodmans Cottage and the finer elements such as guttering and chimneys will also
be similar in appearance and detailing.

Scale and Proportion

The scale and the proportion of the new single storey dwelling has been considered and a long and
narrow dwelling has been designed to ensure proposed ridge heights are kept to a minimum. It is
also important that the new dwelling remains ancillary in appearance to that of Woodmans Cottage.

The new dwelling sits in a large rear garden and as a result the new dwelling is not intrusive to either
of the neighbouring properties adjacent.

Amount of Development
The amount of development has been considered and both the new dwelling and Woodmans
Cottage still boast significant gardens despite the uplift in the number of dwellings on the site.

Address: Alex Green, 3 Comfrey Close,
Harrogate, HG3 2XB

Mobile: 07966 576 346

Email: AMGarchitectural@outlook.com

Page 149



Use
There is no change of use proposed with this development. The application has been made with the
sole purpose of safe guarding a respected elderly couple’s future in the village.

Layout
The layout has been specifically designed to meet DDA requirements for a person who is bound to a

wheelchair and in need of extra care. This is reflected by the layout and the oversized nature of the
living room, open plan kitchen, hallway, bedroom 1 and en Suite. An additional bedroom and
bathroom which are none DDA compliant are also provided in the likely event that carers are
required to stay overnight at the property.

Ecological Impact
The existing site is vacant and there are no trees, shrubs or hedges which will require removal prior

to any works been undertaken.

Although the site history is not fully known, the only known use for the land is agricultural over 125
years ago and therefore it is assumed that there are no contaminated land concerns.

Access

Woodmans Cottage includes a shared drive for the purposes of access to the rear gardens of
Woodmans Cottage and the adjacent neighbouring property. The drive closest to Woodmans
Cottage is the only area currently available for parking to Woodmans Cottage.

The proposals include the need for an additional dwelling and as a result special consideration has
been given for off street parking. 5No. spaces have been allocated for both Woodmans Cottage and
the new dwelling. The area for parking will also allow vehicles to suitably manoeuvre on site which
we believe will mitigate any highway concerns regarding vehicles reversing down the drive and onto
the main road. This is a significant improvement on the current parking arrangements where
vehicles are either required to park off site or at the side of Woodmans Cottage. The existing parking
arrangements require vehicles to reverse onto the High Street.

Level access is provided to the principle entrance and other external doors. The dwelling is all on 1
floor and internal doors will be wide enough to allow wheelchair circulation. The new dwelling will
be DDA compliant to meet the requirements for a wheelchair user.

It is also important to note that the new dwelling will meet the required Code for Sustainable homes
rating of Code 4.

Siting

Following comments received in the pre-application the new dwelling has been located to be as
close to the development limit line as possible. The new dwelling sits on the middle of the site and
does not impact negatively on either of the neighbouring properties.

hilst considering the above it is important to note that a Householder Planning Check will be
undertaken to make some alteration works to Woodmans Cottage. The intended works will consider

Address: Alex Green, 3 Comfrey Close,
Harrogate, HG3 2XB

Mobile: 07966 576 346

Email: AMGarchitectural@outlook.com

Page 150



the overall scheme and the principle entrance door which currently is on the side elevation facing
the drive will be relocated.

Summary

Although this is an unprecedented planning application for the village of Cropton the proposals do
not negatively impact on the village and the merits and justifications for the application are to
maintain the future wellbeing of the local community.

The residents in Cropton are not in support of mass development in the future should this
application be successful. The collective motive for this application to safeguard the local community
in the future. We are hopeful that the assigned planning officer and planning committee can take
this view when considering this application.

Address: Alex Green, 3 Comfrey Close,
Harrogate, HG3 2XB

Mobile: 07966 576 346

Email: AMGarchitectural@outlook.com

Page 151



Age

nda ltem 11

Item Number: 11

Application No: 15/00792/FUL

Parish: Staxton/Willerby Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application

Applicant: Glaves And McNay (Mr R. McNay)

Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural building to include the housing
of livestock

Location: LandTo The East Of Wold Lane Staxton Scarborough North Yorkshire

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 31 August 2015

O verall Expiry Date: 20 August 2015

Case Officer: Rachel Smith Ext: 323
CONSULTATIONS:

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date
Countryside Officer No comment to make
Highways Agency (Leeds) No views received to date
Archaeology Section No views received to date
Parish C ouncil Object

Highways North Yorkshire No objection

Neighbour responses: None

SITE:

PearTree Farm is situated within the village of Staxton on the northern side ofthe A64, and within an
Area of High Landscape Value. It comprises a two storey dwelling which is Grade II listed, together
with a range of outbuildings. The farm extendsto approximately 88 hectares in total, including arable
and livestock. There are currently 40 head of beef cattle together with a flock of 79 sheep. A range of
buildings including a grain store and livestock shed are situated on of the A64. The site rises up from
the road, and is bounded alongthe roadside by young ashtrees and saplings.

PROPOSAL:

Permission is sought for the erection of an agricultural building for the housing of livestock. The
building will have a footprint of 17m by 34m with a ridge height of 7.5m. It will be constructed from
Yorkshire boarding under a light grey fibre cement roof. The proposed building includes feed gates
and handling doors to allow ease of access and cleaning.

HISTORY:
2004: Pemmission granted for the erection of an agricultural building for use as a workshop and

general storage.
2008 Agricultural notification forthe erection of a general purpose agricultural storage shed.

POLICY:

National Policy Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Policy Guidance

PLANNING COMMITTEE
P8 gebER15



Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP9 - The land based and rural economy

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP13 - Landscapes

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water resources
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

APPRAISAL:

The material considerations in respect of this application are:

e the impact of the development on the character of the Area of High Landscape Value;
e appropriateness of the design;

e impact of development on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers;

e  access considerations;

e Archacological considerations; and

e  Highway implications

The principle of a building in this location has already been established with the erection of the
existing buildings. They are relatively small scale and not readily visible In the landscape. Indeed
during summer months, the site is only visible from directly opposite. This is largely due to the level
of planting that is situated along much of the boundary with the A64 in the vicinity of the site. It is
noted that there is a row of young ash trees and saplings to the immediate frontage of the proposed
building. Nevertheless it is considered that further planting to supplement that existing on site, will
improvethe screening throughout the year. Accordingly it isnot considered that the proposed building
will harm the character ofthe Area of High Landscape Value.

In relationto design, the building incorporates a traditional lnear form under a pitched roof. The use
of Yorkshire boarding will enable the building to blend into the environment. It is proposed however
to use natural grey for the roof. It has been noticed by officers that the use of light grey can appear
white when viewed from a distance, and during some weather conditions. This makes the building

more prominent than it would otherwise be. Accordingly, it isrecommended that a darker grey roof is
utilised.

In relation to neighbour impact, a letter of objection has been received from the Parish Council on the
following basis:

e the location and size of the building will have a detrimental impact on nearby residents;

e there will be a need to mitigate the smell of animals from nearby residents;

e there is aneed for screeningto reduce visual impact for nearby residents;

e the proposed building is too close to local housing; and

e the relocation of the building to the rear of the existing building will address concerns in
relationto neighbour impact.

The formal views of the Council's Environmental Health Officer are awaited, and Members will be
updated at their meeting. Nevertheless, preliminary discussions have determined that it is unlikely that
an objection on the basis of smell from the development will be raised. The site is situated in a rural
area, however 1t is separated from the nearest residential property by the A64 trunk road. Furthermore,
the cattle will be straw bedded. Manure will be spread on land in accordance with Environmental
guidelines. When possible straw based manure will be removed from the building, and spread on
available land. Otherwise manure is stored within a field heap waiting for landto become available
for spreading,

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Rage2053



Such heaps are sited away from sensitive areas such as dwellings and water courses/ditches. Positions
vary dependent on cropping, and weather conditions. Areas liable to flood are avoided.

Comments regarding the need for additional screening have been addressed earlier in the report.

In relation to comments that the building is too close to housing, the loss of a view is not a material
planning consideration. Nevertheless, the addition of further landscaping will ensure that the building
is not readily visible in any event. In addition it is not considered that a reason for refusal on this
basis can be sustained unless Environmental Officers conclude that there will be a likely adverse
impact on neighbouring occupiers by virtue of smell or additional flies as a result of the development.
The building has been sited in the proposed location for operational purposes. If it were movedto the
rear of the existing building, it would not create the same operational benefits. Furthermore, the
ground levels rise and there is potential for the building to be more prominent .

In relation to access, the existing building on the site is served by an unclassified road which runs in a
southerly direction from the A64 trunk road. It is not considered that the proposal will result in a
significant increase in vehicular movements. Comments are awaited from Highways England,
however the local Highways Authority has not objectedtothe application.

In relation to archaeology, the views of the County Archaeologist are also awaited, and Members will
be updated at their meeting.

In conclusion, it is considered that the location of the proposed building adjacent to other farm
buildings is acceptable in principle. Accordingly the recommendation is one of approval unless
objections are raised by the Council's Environmental Health officer, i relationto the proximity of the
site to neighbouring occupiers, and subject to the views of other outstanding consultees.

RECO MMENDA TIO N: Approval subject to no adverse comments being received from
the Council's Environmental Health Officer and County
Archaeology
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .
Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004
2 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs
and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The
submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on
planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including existing items to be retained.. All
planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the
first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer
period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs
which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of
similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any
variation.

Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply
with the requirements of Policies of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
P8 g bE15



The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted
waste management plan, unless details of a variation have first been submitted to, and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not have an adverse impact on the existing
amenities of neighbouring occupiers nor water courses in the area. And to satisfy the
requirements of Policies SP20 and SP17.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

(NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the
requirements of the condition discharged)

Reason: To ensure that the development hereby approved does not have a significant
adverse impact on the character of the Area of High Landscape Value, and to satisfy the
requirements of polices SP 13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Any conditions at the request of the Council's Environmental Health officer.
Any conditions at the request of the County Archaeologist
Any conditions at the request of Highways England.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Drawing no. 1142.1 - OS location and field plan
Drawing no. 1142.3 - Proposed site plan with levels
Drawing no. 1142.4 - Proposed plan and elevations
Drawing no. 1142.5 - Proposed section and elevations
Drawing no. 1142.6 - Proposed roof plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and inthe interests of proper planning,

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Reage2055



al

o

Location Plan 1.1250
0w w

e

Part Field Plan 1.5000 scale
100 20 30m

the site
3061 m2

eamer Ings.

/1868

2.32ha
o Crosing

0720
. 6860

design R
430

01

ertford Plantation

Robins Bottom.
Plantation

1455
155 /
o, S

Part Field Plan 1.5000 scale
S, 0L B4

Page 156

it}

proposed general purpose agriculluralivestock
buiding

Staxton
North Yorkshire. Y012 458

Glaves & McNay.
Roy Gibson ’/“"J”" R. ®
architectural - technician 4 s

Mk Woightan
e w1 a0ss York Y0331
emal: @0k ENGLAND
scale: 11250 & 15000 @ Al R Gibson
cate: june2015 1241




al design R ©
www.designr.org.uk
01 430 872 507
roy@designr.org.uk

sondesigny

existing north elevation 1.200 scale

88, UNLESS THAT ACT PROVIOES A RELEVANT

s w2 s22s s235 | - 2 : 4 Y. Y X 3
%
S P s . .
|| IR P SRR SrEUI, IR, 1
il e = o T existing existing liyestock
equipment | and equipment store
store
>
existing grain store prp—
sa0s sor1 on an
e
i
,.mm%]
503 sast

evstng
anciy
buiang

st stoned yaes

embankment

1142 -2

s

grass verge

. T T T T TS D S exist

plan with le

~— proposed general purpose agriculturalivesiock
buiding

540 rons

— Stax

ton
/’ North Yorkshie. Y012 458
0 scale with levels / Glaves & MeNay

existing site plan 1.
012345 10 -

Roy Gibson lesign R, ©
ectomia g napprrn 05\ i architectural  technician s s
TH: a1 e0srser Yo YO8N
\ emall Toy@designR.og. k. ENGLAND

\ scale: 1200 @A R Gitson

aae: junez0ns ez -

Page 157

TE VALID
0715

Al inersons s lvls o b chckad on st by ns crtacir.

B Pl g oy process may it iz




al design R ©

www.designr.org.uk
01 430 872 507
roy@designr.org.uk

proposed north elevation 1.200 scale

2n o s = P s 2 X Y Y ¥
g % %
¥ 3 3 3
e 7 ]
™
s o o
-
o i i i & fumo | exsng | existing liyestock | |
B equipment and equipment store
» Lo store
proposed livestock building [551 s e e S S =
- i sting grain store oxsting canc apron
sass 5071 conarote apron s overan || 178 sae
__________________ I et »
sass sos
[ —
euing
eSS iy
By

— 1142 3

proposed general purpose agriculturalivestock

mbankment
buiding
Pear Tree Fam
o —— e ———— O1d Malton Road
e S - — Staton Road
. — — —&F 2 | Staxton
it B AG4 T —— — —___ Notth Yorkshire, Y012458
s comil Glaves & McNay
Roy Gibson lesign R, ©
= architectural  technician 46 Hill Rise
T w1 as0ss York Y0331
emall roy@designR org sk ENGLAND
scale: 1200 @A R Gilson
cate: june2015 1423
ATE VALID Al dimensions snd levels 10 be cheched an s by ine contracior.
06/07/15 Fgured dmensons are b used m prafarence 1o scaied dmensions.

Page 158



al

Proposed Elevation east 1.1 s

wriedidge

fice
cement

External Matoriols:

Exposod Stoatwork
paintles

Pressure tanaise
Yarkshice boarding

Tinbac ts
Natual groy smostn
tinish procast
Cancrets wailing

satry it
raofiants.

f existing

design R ©

www.designr.org.uk
01 430 872 507
rey@designr.org.uk

yglbea:

deslgny

T COPY HAD BEEN WA 5Y OR WITH THE AUTHORITY OF FYECALE
ors110CT COUNCIL PURSUIANT T0SECTION 41 GF THE COPYRIGHT st
XCEPION T0 COPYRIGHT. THE COPY MUST NOT 8 COPIED WiTHOUT

new 1500 drains

Wi D cover and frame

all

Proposed Elevation north 1100 scse

precast
coevie L3
Waliing

procast |

Ys0a
Waliing rains

VAt precast Proposed general L
s ;
purpose agricultural - @f
il and livestock
e | L building. wn 1142 -
sz prop plan & ele ns
-
Bty
N \‘ :' v‘ Pear Tree Farm
(») i T Old Malton Road
i I R Nl | L Staton Foed
et Stasion
s ] ik B ox grain store Norh Yorkshire, Y012 458
o
A== — S Glaves & McNay
Concrote g 16 it D Roy Gibson /ﬁvfﬂu % )
yo @ I achiecs toomican 5 e
T u@ieommsr Yo VORX
o orasesmon ENGLAND
P P T
cfaciuier: iy sarry okl dmemsvonai 100 @A itson
R T e ey [DATE VALID
@ i DAL B s jnezors s -

Page 159

a1y dnons 1o i prlaren 1 Semed amnins.
B Pl g oy process may it iz




al

Proposed Elevation west 1 o0scas

veres e

design R ©

www.designr.org.uk
01 41?30 872 507
r.0rg.ulk

ygibeandesigne

| satery igm
| roaiights

Extornal Matoriala:
Natursl grey PO comugated
flbre coment sheet roof

UPVC guttors ans rwp's

presaure
seeraln 7 on trasted
RS A

Exposed Steaiwork
pla e e

Natura oy smooth finsn
precas concrots walling

Srucu el ramoprined
ang gloss

Timber puriins
PR

GHS stesl wing bracing

Ul - ui ﬂl nl \
Proposed Elevation south 1 ooscse

A S AT . L5 AT AL PROVIDES AR

Siostork tmbors, comneckors.
Bisesoundalions and floor
Gesignes by Sictural Engioaar
16 appropriate spocication

oot s p o 24t
§ TRan

all

Page 160

1142 5

propossd saction & sisvetions

proposed general purpose agriculturalivestock
buiding

Poar Tree Farm

O1d Malton Road

Station Road

Staxton

North Yorkshire. Y012 458

Glaves & MeNay
Roy Gibson /m’ﬂn R ®
architectural  technician 46 Hill Rise

Mk Woightan
e w1 a0ss York Y033
emal:  roy@designRomg.uk ENGLAND
scalo: 1501100 @Al R Gilson
cate: june2015 s -
A s s ol b ko i b e conis
P ot et vt s i
6P e reprog e



al

THE PRIOR PERMISSION OF THE COPYRIGHT OWNER.

g
[T R

vertedrge.

Natural gy lre coment
s heet roat

all

Page 161

design R ©
www.designr.org.uk
01 430 872 507
rey@designr.org.uk

proposed general purpose agriculturalivestock
buiding

Pear Tree Fam
Oid Maiton Road
Staton Road
‘Staxton
North Yorkshire. Y012 4S8
Glaves & McNay
Roy Gibson dlzsign R. )
architectural  technician M“ Hill Rise
T w1 as0ss York Y0331
emal: @0k ENGLAND
scale: 1100 @ A1 R Gitson
cate: june2015 128

Alinersons s vl o b chckad on st by ns cortacin.
1o dnons 1o e prlaren 1 Semed amniins.
B Pl g oy process may it iz




PearTree farm view from north

Claps

design, access and planning statement
FRA, Bio and Tree report, etc.
Photographs

2015 @ design R.

Page 162

Proposed cattle shed/general purpose
agricultural building.

Pear Tree Farm

Old Malton Road

Station Road

Staxton

North Yorkshire. Y012 45B

Glaves & McNay

Project/doc ref 1142-DAPS
June2015

Roy Gibson

architectural technician

t/a design R

Hill Rise Market Weighton YORK Yo43 3JX

01 430 872507
roy@designr.org.uk



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

This combination design, access and planning statement should be read in
conjunction with the submitted plans, these are available for viewing on the
councils public access website or at the council service centres, by
appointment.

The Farm

The applicants Glaves and McNay operate a livestock, intensive farming
and butchers business from Pear Tree Farm, Staxton.

The farm extends to about 88 hectares in total, cropping includes,
Winter Wheat, Barley, Oil seed Rape and Permanent Pasture.
Some adjacent land is rented (cross hatched on the 1.5000 scale map)

The farm has approx 40 head beef herd and a sheep flock of 79 with
followers, the current proposals will allow the beef herd to expand to 80
head.

All livestock is straw bedded, with manure spread on the land in line with
Environmental guidelines.

See manure plans and information attached to the end of this document

The Proposal

The proposal is to erect a general purpose agricultural/livestock building.
The building will be predominantly used for housing livestock, with
occasional general purpose use.

The new structure will allow the herd size to be increased and will also
provide better occupancy ratios with improved ventilation. The proposal
includes feed gates and handling doors which allow for easier clean out,
feeding and cattle movements.

Physical

Pear Tree Farm is situated in Staxton, north of the AB4, the farmstead
consists of a substantial two storey dwelling, with agricultural outbuildings,
traditional and steel framed. The butcher shop is situated at the northern
end of the farmstead facing on to Staxton Main Street.

The proposal site is opposite the farmstead, to the south of the A64.
Access to the proposal site is off the A64 via a short section of unclassified
road, Wold Lane, leading to a stoned access with secure gates.

The proposal site slopes down, from south to north. Existing structures are
steel framed and clad in either fibre cement sheet or profiled steel sheet.
Buildings include a Grain Store, equipment store and livestock shed. There
are concrete aprons at access points but most of the yard area is stoned.

The site is bounded on the north by a line of young ash trees and saplings,
set on top of an earth embankment adjacent to the A64.

To the east and south is open farmland; to the west is a mature tree group
and a field hedge adjacent to Wold Lane.

Design R.

Page 163



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

Biodiversity
Following a site walk over, it is considered that there is no likelihood of
protected and priority species being affected adversely by the proposed
development.

Flood Risk assessment
According to the Environment Agency web site, the site is not situated in an
area of flood risk.

Y012 488 at scale 1 15000 Other maps ) Data sesrch @ Text only version €

.
[+

| === )

Environment Agency flood map for planning

Tree Report
There are no trees within the red lined site area. There is a line of young
ash trees to the south. The works will have no impact on the existing trees
due to the distance away from the development.

Ground levels will not be changed within roots zones or canopy spread of
any existing tree or hedgerow, and no construction materials will be stored
against or adjacent to trees/hedges.

The excavation of isolated shallow concrete pad foundations for the main
stanchions will not affect the long term survival of any tree or hedge.

Service/drain runs have been positioned so as to avoid passing through
root protection zones.

| Additional hedge/tree planting is not proposed.

Design R.

Page 164



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

Noise
General farming activities do not generally create major noise problems.
There is very little likelihood of noise transmission to neighbouring sites or
any likely cause for complaints regarding noise in general.

Foul sewage & utilities assessment
The proposal is to erect an agricultural livestock building.
There is no requirement for foul drainage, none is proposed.

Surface water is dealt with via connections to an existing surface water
farm drain and new hollow soakaway. Location and details of the surface
water drains are noted on the submitted plans.

All rainwater pipes to be sealed at ground level to prevent contamination
entering soakaways or surface water sewer/drains

There is no gas requirement. Electricity connection is in adjacent building.
All pipe runs have been positioned to avoid any existing trees or hedges.

Climate Change Mitigation
The farm buys and sells all livestock locally and uses some stock for the
butchers business, food miles are kept to an absolute minimum, greatly
reducing fuel use and pollution.

The applicant is considering rainwater harvesting and the use of PV panels
at some time in the future.

Light Pollution
There are very few existing external lights on the farm; most are aimed to
yard level. The duration of light usage is not constant and varies with
seasonal daylight changes.

The lights provide a safe working environment for loading and unloading in
the hours of darkness and provide safe access to and from the buildings.

The new building will be lit with low power LED internal external lights,
ceiling mounted over access points. The lights will be aimed to yard
surface.

There will he no discernable increase in overall light levels on the whole site
and the lighting will not have an undesirable impact upon neighbouring
properties, the highway or night skies.

Transport
Vehicle movements will not be overly increased by this proposal.

Parking
The site already benefits from stoned areas which provide sufficient parking
and loading/unloading areas for current and future needs.

The proposal will not affect existing parking provision.

Design R.

Page 165



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

Planning Policy

Generally, government policy is that the expansion of existing rural
businesses is recommended. It is considered that the proposal is generally
supported by the following policies.

Ryedale Plan (extracts)

Economy

SP6 Delivery and Distribution of Employment/Industrial Land and
Premises, Wider Open Countryside.

Expansion land for existing major employers/ established businesses; small
scale conversion of existing buildings or provision of new buildings to
support appropriate rural economic activity in line with the provisions of
Policy SP9

SP9 The Land-Based and Rural Economy

Ryedale’'s land-based economy will be sustained and diversified with
support for:

» New buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a
working countryside, including for farming, forestry and equine purposes

« Appropriate farm and rural diversification activity including innovative
approaches

+» Local food production and sales. Farm shops which will meet a demand
for local produce and which contribute to the local economy will be
supported where they do not adversely affect easily accessible
convenience shopping.

And indirectly by supporting:

» The retention of a livestock market within Ryedale on a site which is
convenient to users, well related to the main road network and in a

location which is close to a Market Town but will not harm its character,
landscape setting or the amenities of nearby residents

» Local weekday and Saturday markets, farmer's markets and events

» Proposals or actions that would assist in utilising and retaining traditional
rural skills including land and woodland management, farming,
conservation, local traditional building technique

MANAGING AND CONTROLLING DEVELOPMENT

SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive
approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.

It will always work proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions which
mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure
development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions in the area.

Design R.

Page 166



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

MANAGING AND CONTROLLING DEVELOPMENT

SP20 Generic Development Management Issues

Character

New development will respect the character and context of the immediate
locality. Proposed uses and activity will be compatible with the existing
ambience of the immediate locality and the surrounding area and with
neighbouring land uses

Design

The design of new development will follow the principles established in
Policy SP16. Extensions or alterations to existing buildings will be
appropriate and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the
existing building in terms of scale, form, and use of materials

Amenity and Safety

New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of
present or future occupants, the users or occupants of

neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by virtue of its
design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses.

Access, Parking and Servicing

Access to and movement within the site by vehicles, cycles and pedestrians
would not have a detrimental impact on road safety, traffic

movement or the safety of pedestrians and cyclists.

National Planning Policy Framework

Achieving *sustainable development (extracts)

(6) The purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement
of sustainable development. The policies in paragraphs 18 to 219, taken as
a whole, constitute the Government’'s view of what sustainable
development in England means in practice for the planning system

(9) Pursuing sustainable development involves seeking positive
improvements in the quality of the built, natural and historic environment, as
well as in people’s quality of life, including (but not limited to):

emaking it easier for jobs to be created in cities, towns and villages;
smoving from a net loss of bio-diversity to achieving net gains for nature;
ereplacing poor design with better design;

eimproving the conditions in which people live, work, travel and take leisure

The presumption in favour of sustainable development (extract)

{(11) Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must
be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Design R.

Page 167



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy

(28). Planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in
order to create jobs and prosperity by taking a positive approach to
sustainable new development. To promote a strong rural economy, local
and neighbourhood plans should:

eesupport the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business
and enterprise in rural areas, both through conversion of existing buildings
and well designed new buildings;

espromote the development and diversification of agricultural and other
land-based rural businesses;

Decision-taking (extract)

(187) Local planning authorities should look for solutions rather than
problems, and decision-takers at every level should seek to approve
applications for sustainable development where possible. Local planning
authorities should work proactively with applicants to secure developments
that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area.

*Sustainable development - Brundtland Report: (1987) definition,
“development that meets the needs of the present without compromising
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs”.

Use
The proposed building will be used in connection with existing farming
operations.
Amount
The proposals are considered to be sufficient to enable safe and
satisfactory use, whilst making best use of available space.
Layout
The internal layout of the building will be purpose designed and gated by
others.
Scale
The scale of the works is considered to be appropriate for the proposed
agricultural use and rural/farmstead siting.
¢ Height to ridge 7.581m
+ Height to eaves 5.490 m max
+ External width 17.680 m
+ External length 33.720 m
Design R.

Page 168



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

Appearance

The building will be of simple agricultural design, utilizing a portal framed
steel structure and standard sheeting and precast concrete walling
components, plus treated timber (Yorkshire) boarding/cladding.

Material type and colours will generally be matched to those of the existing
structures to provide continuity of appearance.

Yorkshire boarding will be used to provide ventilation whilst maintaining a
degree of weather protection.

Natural colour grey fibre cement sheet will be used for the roof covering.
The Light coloured roof will reduce both visual impact and thermal gain.
Natural colour precast walling panels will be used for low level side walling.

Site Access

Access to the proposed building provides easy approach for likely vehicles
and foot traffic. Pedestrian and ambulant disabled access is unrestricted.

The farm access is of suitable dimensions to allow for all likely sizes of
vehicles requiring access, including fire service vehicles.

Building Access

Open Access for the general public and disabled is not encouraged but
access design is where possible in accord with Part M of the approved
documents, providing level or slightly sloping approach

NVZ information and Manure Plans (extracts)

The farm has current Nutrient Management Plans, prepared by Agronomy
Supplies, Mr J A Gaines. The information attached is copied from the plan
prepared for 2014/2015

Presently the farm only uses three fields to spread manure produced by the
beef herd and sheep flock, total area 21.41 ha. Additional nitrogen is also
imported to the farm to apply to these and other areas as required. The
amount of nitrogen imported will be adjusted to make allowance for the
increase in the farms organic manure production. Other field areas can also
be used for manure spreading in accordance with current legislation.
Without using other fields the imported nitrogen for field numbers 6023,
8046, 8489 can be reduced by half and replaced with organic manure from
the new cattle (40no.) without increasing predicted/required Nitrogen
loadings.

Conclusion

Following an assessment of the sites circumstances and characteristics it is
considered that the proposals are appropriate in a rural context.

It is considered that the proposal is generally compliant with and/or
supported by policies contained within National and Local Plans as noted in
this document.

The application is offered for approval.

Design R.

Page 169



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

NVZ info

PRTEY  ueaeiis:

N PLAN SCALE :lecen

sissbiaee | derems gl
Bxstrey kA i
Hie v

EE W
Ertten Caryrip i srtrrrid
DATe WYL

Low nire Ansar
185 acner Afpiox

Mo w
:? AfTE Sﬁgﬂ T 10m

G Aira Angay ;
o Il A ff::fmh
- NINTEA Ay uay

s s
YT

=

-_— e

|
|
It
|
|

Manure Plan.

Design R.

Page 170



Proposed building Works

design, access and planning statement

r o

E’iestock Manure Calculations 10k /15

Glaves & Mchay
Pear Tree Farm
Staxton
Scarborough
Morth Yorkshire

¥012 458

Nitrogen and Excreta Production from Sheep

79 Lowland Sheep Over 60kg + Suckled Lambs up to & Months:

11.9kg / N Per Year

Total N Combined of Sheep and Lambs for 1 Month

Total N Combined of Sheep and Lambs for 2 Months

| The Sheep and Lambs are kept inside for no longer than 8 weeks, therefore manure

| caleulations are based on this duration.

e

Manure calculation

ACRONOMY
SUPPLIES

5 940.1 kg
12 Months
= 78.34kg /N

= 156.68kg/N

Design R.

Page 171

10



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

’ N

__ Nitrogen and Excreta Production from Cattle

I 40 Beef Growers 13 manths to 25 months X S0kg / N Per Year = 2000 kg

Total N Combined of 20 Beef Growers housed for 12 Months = 1000kg
Total N Combined of 20 Beef Growers housed for 6 Months = 500kg

| Sheep Nitrogen - 156.68kg

_ Cattle Nitrogen - 1500.00kg = 4776.00 kg
imported Nitrogen - 3120.00kg
Combined N (4776kg) Divided By 21.41 Ha =223.28kg /N

Manure calculation

Design R.

Page 172

"



Proposed building Works

design, access and planning statement

i muddy [slele}ss]

,‘SOF?W.&RE

* Farm: Glaves & McNay, Pear Tree Farm
Annual rainfall: Moderate (6E&mm)

®

PLANET Nutrient Breakdown for

2015

| 7485 Cut Side W Wheat
| | Sail Type: Light sand | (Alchemy
7858 Far Gac | W Oilseed Rape yap <20 0 ) o
+  Soil Type: Medium {Catana } Mgty o 0
so3 75 75
lee ] o
N 190 17 173
'P205 85 148 0
8046 Roadside W Wheat 4bi | K20 105 9 ]
Soil Type: Medium 11 B Diego ) Mg o 0
|s03 40 a0
1 R o 1
20 A | N 220 17 203
'Pz05 e 148 0
8489 Front Field W Wheat e [ a 279 0
Soll Typa: Medium (1 B Dlega ) z Mgl o 0
I Is03 40 ap
[Lime a 0 |
[m 250 o £ |
PROS @ o == |
19652 Carr W Oliseed Rape 1196 L=y 55 a 55
| Soil Type: Medum {Catana ) | MgO o 0
so3 75 75
Lime L1} CJ

Frwwn Criyn Nuirerd. Recyimments v (i cabcuiiesd by e Gaines of Ay i e s (Rl R R AGEETGETy Sy L Dy (Geves B ScHuy.
WMMWmhmmm—mmwmiwnMnmwhwm

A embc st e e ugon the ecieonkt virsion oF e Periieer Maccal mwmn&mnmsmmmmwmm mmm

i T o cihusrwine or sy £ ( GMAQE prising omm neurats recommendtion) products thouph the Crogirlr Panet

& Muddy Boots Seftware Limited 10/12/2014, Al rights reseneed PLANET Page 2 of 3

Field Info.

Design R.

Page 173



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

® PLANET Nutrient Breakdown for
2015 :

LIl boots

SOFTWARE

Farm: Glaves & unuar, Pear Tree Farm
Annual rainfall: Moderate (686mm)

. 5
| 0278 Greenwoods Spr Bariey K20 50 g 50
Sail Type: Medium {Tipple ) 2.15 Mo 5 |
503 N ] R
Lirme 0 =3 g'_
L 280 g | 0 |
. P205 0 B 0
13030 Cow Pasture W Dilseed Rape K20 85 o | @&
| Sail Type: Light sand (Catana ) ¥ e 0 =
03 | 5 75
| Lime 0 o |
[ N 80 o 8 |
| P05 | 118 o 115
4850 34ac fw i!i‘hug 1383 K20 | 165 0 105
Soil Type: Organic {Alchemy ) 5 M0 o o
s03 -lb‘ 40
= me | o | i
N 170 17 153
P05 | 70 148 3
{Soi Tvpe: Medium (Caceiz ) 1214 fg "= 2Ix
. 503 40 40
_ |ume i) 0|
N 220 0 20
P205 I
G023 Railway Side W Wheat K20 75 o 7% |
il Type: Medium {Alchemy ) e S =
so3 | 40 [ % |
me | 0 |
B e B e s A anicio S PSS e Spp s Moy M e
Exlnd pccepts o0 Batiy Whvher 1 LOAv ket i e 47y b o g e e e B G T o oy B Sfieare
& Muddy Bonts Software Lirmibed 10/12/2014, All rights reserved P

BaTAINES LA e R WL

Field Info

Design R.

Page 174

13



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

® PLANET Nutrient Bl‘eakdown for
2015

LML boots

SGFTWARE

% Farm: Glaves 8 McNay, Pear Tree Farm [
_ Annusl rainfall: Moderate (686mm)
1

g e Requirerienis hewe been caiulaied wmmmmﬁmnmmmumnm ‘
’ﬁmm«ndm‘mmnm mw&-lmﬂummumn !

procuced by EFRA sl whick: & inCipossted win The Cmpisior Pare witwira. Py Beots Software

renaagh e

A cakcuks vy fused e (e dectries werson of Hhe Fevifions Mol (S120%)
wwwmmhmﬂlmbnnimm

A Mudidy Boots Seftware Limited 10/12/2014. All rights raserved Page 3 ol 3 |

B et

Field Info

Design R.

Page 175

14



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

The site viewed from Old Malton Road. View to south

Wold Lane and wetern bondry, suth of access

Design R.

Page 176



Proposed building Works

design, access and planning statement

ex buildms, vi

% -

= 2 3
ewed from access.

Design R.

Page 177

16



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

View across site to west.

Adjacent buildings view to south west.

Design R. 1

Page 178



Proposed building Works

design, access and planning statement

Adjacent buildings view to north west.

View across site to trees and A64, view to north.

Design R.

Page 179

18



Proposed building Works design, access and planning statement

View to site from Old Malton Road junction with A64, view to south

View to site from Old Malton Road, view to south

Design R. 19

Page 180



Proposed building Works

design, access and planning statement

Aerial view, arrow indicates site.

Design R.

Page 181

end

20



NSS

be},(..’('n
Karen Hood
From: AandC Adnitt
Sent: 22 July 2015 11:46 ; I — aA
To: Karen Hood *:%\f QDALE o
Subject: Planning Application 15/00792/FUL (]
Importance: High 22 JUL 2695
eyt REAE
A VA
Morning Karen MANAGE R i

Willerby Parish Council has received a number of objections from local residents to planning application
ref: 15/00792/FUL. In view of this the parish council wishes to make a formal objection for the following
reasons:-

1. The location and size of the proposed building will have a detrimental effect on nearby residents.

2. There will be a need to mitigate against animal smells from the building so as to minimise the effect on
residents in nearby housing,

3. There will be a need for screening to reduce the visual impact for residents living nearby.

4. The proposed building is too close to local housing and should be sited in a more suitable location away
from housing.

Local opinion suggests that the building should be located behind the existing building {south side). That
way the detrimental effects highlighted would be eliminated. Please present this objection to the planning
committee for consideration.

Regards
Chris Adnitt
Clerk to Willerby Parish Council

Page 182



Agenda ltem 12

RYEDALE

DISTRICT

COUNCIL

PART B: REC OMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 18 AUGUST 2015

REPORT OF THE: HEAD OF PLANNING AND HOUSING
GARY HOUSDEN

TITLE OF REPORT: DEV ELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS FROM SMALL SITES

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 For Members to consider the implications of the recent case of West Berkshire
District Council and Reading Borough Council v Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Government (2015) Case No: CO/76/2015, and to confirm the Council's
position regarding developer contributions from small sites.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Council resolves to:
(i) No longer treat the Ministerial Statement of 1 December 2014 on support for
small-scale developers, custom and self-builders as a material consideration
in the planning process.

(ii) To apply full weight to Policies SP3 (Affordable Housing) and Policy SP11
(Community Facilities and Services) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan
Strategy.

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To clarify the Council's position in relation to the implementation of the Policies SP3
and SP11 of the Local Plan Strategy following the recent court case, and the
consequential changes to the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS

41 There are no significant risks associated w ith the recommendations of the report. The
Council would at greater risk if it continued to apply weight to the Ministerial
Statement in the decision making process.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 183



5.0

5.1

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

This report specifically relates to Policies SP3 (Affordable Housing) and SP11
(Community Facilities and Services) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

REPORT

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

REPORT DETAILS

On the 1 December 2014 a Ministerial Statement on support for small-scale
developers, custom and self-builders w as published. The Planning Practice Guidance
(PPG) w as accordingly updated to reflect the changes to national policy as a result of
the Ministerial Statement. The effect of the Statement and the changes to the PPG
was to establish thresholds below which affordable housing and tariff-based
contributions should not be sought. These thresholds w ere higher than those in the
Council's adopted Policies.

The implications of the Ministerial Statement w ere presented to Members of Planning
Committee on the 10 February 2015. The report recommended that existing planning
policies should be implemented to take account of the revisions to national policy
introduced by the Statement.

The case of West Berkshire District Council and Reading Borough Council v
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government (2015) resulted in a
successful challenge against the Ministerial Statement. Accordingly, the Planning
Practice Guidance has been amended to remove any such thresholds concerning
developer obligations on small sites. On this basis, Members are advised that w eight
can no longer be afforded to the Ministerial Statement, and Planning Committee
should revert to determining applications on the basis of Policies SP3 and SP11 as
set out in the Development Plan.

IMPLICATIONS

The follow ing implications have been identified:

a) Financial
The reinstatement of SP3 and SP11 will increase capability to deliver public
open space and affordable housing.

b) Legal
The Ministerial Statement is no longer a material consideration in the decision
taking process. Paragraphs 12-23 have been deleted from the Planning Policy
Guidance on Planning Obligations. The adopted Development Plan has primacy.

c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)

The application of SP3 as drafted in the adopted Plan will increase the provision
of affordable housing across the District

NEXT STEPS

The court ruling means these changes should take immediate effect.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 184



Gary Housden
Head of Planning and Housing

Author: Rachael Balmer, Planning Officer (Forw ard Planning)
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 357
E-Mail Address: rachael.balmer@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:

¢ Planning Practice Guidance. Planning Obligations.

e Developer Contributions from Small Sites - Planning Committee 10 February 2015

¢ The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (September 2013)

e (Case No: CO/76/2015 in the high court of justice queen's bench division
administrative court planning court. Date: 31/07/2015
West Berkshire District Council and Reading Borough Council (claimants)
-and -
Department for Communities and Local Government (defendant)
Judgement

Background Papers are available for inspection at:

http://planningquidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/quidance/plannin g-obligations/plannin g-
obligations-quidance/

http://democracy.ryedale.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=117&Y ear=0
(10 February 2015)

http:/MWwww.ryedaleplan.org.uk/local-plan-strategy

Case CO/76/2015 is available in paper format to be view ed in the Members' Room

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 185



Agenda Iltem 13

RYEDALE

DISTRICT

COUNCIL

PART B: RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 18 AUGUST 2015

REPORT OF THE: COUNCIL SOLICITOR
ANT HONY WINSHIP

TITLE OF REPORT: JUDICIAL REVIEW - THE QUEEN ON THE APPLICATION
OF MILTON (PETERBOROUGH) ESTATES COMPANY
TRADING AS FITZWILLIAM (MALTON) ESTATEV
RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To advise members of the outcome of the judicial review proceedings against
Ryedale District Council w hich involved a review of a planning permission granted by
the Council on 12 September 2014 being for the construction of a supermarket and
fuel station at the Wentw orth Street Car Park Malton. (WSCP)

1.2  Toinform members of the reasons why the judicial review was successful.

1.3  To advise Council of the costs of the litigation and the proposed method of funding.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

21 That the outcome of the judicial review proceedings be noted.

2.2 That Council be recommended to meet the aw ard of costs from the improvement,
contingency and emergency fund.

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To ensure that Members of the Planning Committee are aw are of the decision of the
High Court, and the implication for the planning application and any future officer
report.

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS

41 There are no significant risks associated w ith the recommendations of this report.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 186



REPORT

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

This report relates to a judicial review case of the Queen on the application of Milton
(Peterborough) Estates Company trading as Fitzwillam (Malton) Estate v Ryedale
District Council. A copy of the approved judgement is attached. Judicial review is a
specialised type of public law legal action. The nature of this type of legal action and
other matters are summarised in a Q & A in the attached Appendix 1.

The planning history of this case is complex and is summarised in the attached
Appendix 2. The account below is a brief summary of the key matters.

The Planning Committee meeting on 24 April 2014 granted a planning permission for
the construction of a supermarket and fuel station at the Wentw orth Street Car Park
Malton. The planning permission w as issued on 12 September 2014.

A judicial review action was lodged in the Leeds High Court on 23 October 2014 by
the Claimants, the Milton (Peterborough) Estates Company trading as the Fitzw illiam
(Malton) Estate, w ho are landow ners affected by the grant of planning permission.

The court hearing took place before Mr Justice Dove in the Leeds High Court on
Wednesday and Thursday of 10th and 11th June 2015.

The High Court judge Mr Justice Dove handed dow n his judgement on 9 July 2015
which allow ed the claim, gave judgement for the claimants and ordered the Council

to pay costs. The Judge determined that the Councils decision to grant planning
permission for a supermarket and fuel station at the Wentw orth Street Car Park

Malton should be quashed.

POLICY CONTEXT

This case has a bearing on the implementation of the local plan policies and
managing the environment.

CONSULTATION

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, and the Forw ard Planning Manager
have been consulted on this report.

REPORT DETAILS
Why did the Council defend the judicial review action ?

The reasons why the Council defended the judicial review case may be summarised
as follows :

(i) After taking Counsel's advice, the Council defended its position.

(i) In making its planning decision and the planning permission being
issued, the Planning Committee w as functus officio. Functus officio is

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 187



latin for "having performed his function." The Planning Committee had
performed its function and could not revisit its decision;

(i) A Local Authority has a general duty to defend its reasonable
decisions. In this Judicial Review case, one High Court Judge had
found the claim to be “totally without merit” and a Single Lord Justice
had only found the case “arguable”. The view of the Council's barrister
was that the District Council had a good case. That w as also the view
of Leading Counsel for the interested party. The District Council relied
on its ow n independent legal advice.

(iv)  Against the background of clear legal advice from Leading Counsel
that the Council had a good case and the fact that the third party was
defending the judicial review claim, there was no good reason why
the District Council should concede the Fitzwillam Malton Estate’s
claimfor a judicial review of the Council’s grant of planning
permission.

The reasons why the judicial review was successful.

8.2 It is worthy of note that Mr Justice Dove made the follow ing observation at paragraph
44 of his judgement :

"During the course of argument the grounds as originally pleaded by the
claimant were refashioned and | propose to deal with them in the manner in
which they emerged during the hearing.”

8.3 The Fitzwiliam Malton Estate challenged the grant of planning permission for a
supermarket and fuel station at the Wentw orth Street Car Park Malton LPA Ref;
11/00927/MOUT on five grounds of which four were accepted by the Judge, namely :

Ground 1; The report to the Planning Committee had not properly reported
the Planning Inspectors decision on the Livestock market site appeal in
relation to the sequential approach.
Grounds 2 and 4; The report had not properly taken into account the Planning
Inspectors conclusions in relation to treating the Livestock Market site as a
tow n centre site for retail impact purposes.
Ground 5; The Council had not taken undertaken a further screening opinion
for the purposes of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.
Ground 3 relating to an allegation of the report to the Planning Committee not
properly reporting the intentions of Booths and Fitzwiliam Malton Estate on
redeveloping the Livestock Market site at Malton w as dismissed.
In his judgement Mr Justice Dove made a finding that the Officer report to the
Planning Committee seriously misled the Planning Committee. Members are advised
that there w as no intention to mislead the Planning Committee.

8.4  The essence of the High Court decision of Mr Justice Dove in the Judicial
Review case was mainly to the effect that and largely turned upon the reasoning
contained in the officer report to the Planning Committee meeting on 24 April 2014

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 188



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

in relation to the decision of the Planning Inspector on the Livestock Market Malton
appeal decision.

At the heart of these grounds w as the issue of w hether or not the retail impact of the
WSCP proposals on the Livestock Market site had been sufficiently and properly
addressed in the Officers report and the appended information as a material
consideration. Mr Justice Dove clearly considered that this had not been the case.

Litigation risk hugely increases if a matter is regarded as irrelevant or immaterial
rather than being dealt w ith as a matter of w eight.

The findings of the Judge were disappointing, particularly given the evidence
presented to him. The Planning Committee is requested to note the views of Mr
Justice Dove, that there was a lack of clarity in certain aspects of the report, namely
the reasoning relating to the Inspectors decision on the livestock market appeal and
the retail impact of the WSCP proposals on the Livestock Market site w hich was a
material consideration all of w hich emerged during the High Court’s scrutiny of the
case. Due regard also needs to be given to the need for further screening opinion for
the purpose of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2011 as amended.

Consideration was given to an appeal against the High Court's decision but, an
appeal was not recommended having weighed up the prospects of success
against the cost of further litigation. Accordingly it was considered that it w ould not
be in the general public interest to appeal the judgement.

The planning permission w hich was the subject of the judicial review has therefore
been quashed and, should the applicants wish to continue with the planning
application, that application will need to be reconsidered by the Council's Planning
Committee.

Whilst this is the first time that this Council has been involved in a judicial review
relating to its planning decisions w hich has been successful, it is not by any means
alone nationally. In the past few years there has been a significant growth in the
number of judicial review cases involving planning decisions across the country. By
way of context reference is made to a retail planning decision relating to The Queen
On the application of Midcounties Co-Operative Ltd v Forest of Dean District
Council (2015). That Council has had three successful judicial review challenges in
respect of the same retail planning application. In that particular case Mr Christopher
Katkow ski QC the most famous retail planning law barrister in England represented
the Interested Party.

Status of the Planning Application

As aresult of the judgement and court order quashing the planning permission dated
12 September 2014, the planning application remains live and the District Council as
Local Planning Authority has a duty to re-determine it, unless the application is
withdraw n by the applicant or called in by the First Secretary of State for him to
determine.

If the application is not withdraw n the Local Planning Authority would reassess the
planning application and address the issues raised in the judgement, and any
material changes in circumstances since the application documents w ere prepared
and since the 24 April 2014 Planning Committee meeting. This will require the

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 189



submission of additional information from the applicant, consultation with statutory
and non-statutory consultees and members of the public before it is reported to the
Planning Committee to be re-determined. The District Council would also need to
undertake a further screening opinion for the purposes of the Town and Country
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 as amended.

9.0 IMPLICATIONS
9.1 The follow ing implications have been identified:
a) Financial
The Council must pay the Claimant's reasonable costs for the judicial review .
b) Legal
Detailed in the body of the report. The Planning decision made by the Planning
Committee on 24 April 2014 is quashed. The Local Planning Authority has a duty

to determine Planning Applications before it.

c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &

Disorder
None.
Author: Anthony Winship
Council Solicitor
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 267
E-Mail Address: anthony w inship@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:
Planning Application LPA Ref 11/00927/MOUT

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 190



APPENDIX 1
Q&A
Approved Judgment: The Queen on the application of Milton (Peterborough) Estates
Company trading as Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate v Ryedale District Council -
CO/4915/2014
Q1. What is the background to this case ?
R1. Please see the attached chronology of events in Appendix 2.

Q2. What is a judicial review ? How does it differ to an appeal ?

R2. A judicial review is different to a planning appeal.

Judicial review is a type of court proceeding in w hich a judge review s the lawfulness of a
decision or action made by a public body.

In other words, judicial reviews are a challenge to the way in which a decision has been
made, rather than the rights and wrongs of the conclusion reached.

It is not really concerned w ith the conclusions of that process and w hether those w ere 'right',
as long as the right procedures have been followed. The court will not substitute what it
thinks is the 'correct' decision.

This may mean that the public body will be able to make the same decision again, so long as
it does so in a lawfulw ay.

In a planning appeal the Planning Inspector considers the merits of the proposal and
makes a decision to approve or refuse .

In a judicial review case the High Court judge is not considering the merits of the proposal
but the legality of the decision.

The judgement is not challenging the appropriateness of the development, but has
considered the process of reaching the decision.

The High Court ruling nullifies the decision taken by the Planning Committee in April 2014 if
there is no appeal. If there is no appeal the decision enables the application to be re-
considered by councillors of the Planning Committee at a later date.

Q3. What is the usual procedure for a judicial review ?

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 191



R3. The usual sequence of events in a judicial review action is briefly summarised. When a
planning application is approved, within a specified timescale, third parties with a legitimate
interest in the application can apply to the High Court to have the decision quashed. Judicial
review is a two stage process. At the first, the permission stage, an applicant needs to
satisfy the High Court that there is an arguable case. This stage is done on paper, although
there is scope for a hearing. If permission is refused then, subject to a right of appeal, that is
the end of the matter. If permission is granted, the matter goes to the hearing stage. The
parties submit detailed arguments and a full hearing is fixed.

At the full hearing, the Court may quash the Council’s decision to grant planning permission.
If this occurs, the decision is referred back to the Council for redetermination.

Q4. What w as the decision of Mr Justice Dove ?

R4. In challenging the grant planning permission for a supermarket and fuel station at the
Wentw orth Street Car Park (WSCP) Malton the barristers for the Fitzwiliam Malton Estate
relied heavily on the decision of the Planning Inspector in the planning appeal decision letter
dated 29 October 2012 for the proposed redevelopment of the Livestock Market site at
Malton.

The Fitzw iliam Malton Estate challenged the planning approval on five grounds of which four
were accepted by the Judge, namely;

Ground 1 - That the report to the Planning Committee had not properly reported the
Planning Inspectors decision on the Livestock Market site appeal in relation to the
sequential approach

Ground 2 and 4 - The Council had not properly taken into account the Planning
Inspectors conclusions in relation to treating the Livestock Market site as a town
centre site for retail impact purposes

Ground 5 - That the Council had not undertaken a further screening opinion for the
purposes of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.

Ground 3 - Relating to an allegation of the report to the Planning Committee not
properly reporting the intentions of Booths and Fitzwiliam Malton Estate on
redeveloping the Livestock Market site at Malton w as dismissed.

Q5 In his judgement Mr Justice Dove makes a finding that the officer's report did mislead
Members of the Planning Committee and misled them significantly.

Was there an intention by Officers to mislead Members of the Planning Committee ?

R5. In paragraph 31 of his judgement Mr Justice Dove makes reference to the principles

governing the approach to a committee report to seek to establish w hether or not there may
have been an error of law in the follow ing case relating to Selby District Council :

“An application for Judicial Review based on criticisms of the
planning officer's report will not normally begin to merit
consideration unless the overall effect of the report significantly
misleads the committee about material matters which
thereafter are left uncorrected at a meeting of the planning
committee before the relevant decision is taken.” (Oxton
Farms, Samuel Smiths Old Brewery (Tadcaster) v Selby

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 192



District Council (18" April 1997) 1997 WL 1106106 per Judge
LJ as he then was)

The officers’ recommendations were guided by national planning policy advice and
professional retail planning advice. They are a professional and dedicated team and are
committed to providing the best possible report.

Whilst Mr Justice Dove made a finding that the officer's report did mislead Members of the
Planning Committee and misled them significantly, Officers' did not intend to mislead
Members of the Planning Committee.

Q6. Does the judgement Mr Justice Dove mean that Wentw orth Street Car Park is not a
good site for a superstore ?

R6. No. As mentioned above in a judicial review case the High Court judge is not
considering the merits of the proposal but the legality of the decision.

The judgement is not challenging the appropriateness of the development, but has
considered the process of reaching the decision.

On 22 May 2013 at the Examination in Public hearing at Ryedale House Peter Village QC for
the Fitzw iliam Malton Estate made the follow ing points :

“Peter Village QC made the point that Wentworth Street Car Park is a more attractive
site for a supermarket operator and needed to be "strangled at birth" and that any
reference to the Northern Arc should be removed from the Plan. It will stifle the ability
of the LMS site to come forward.”

The above quote is taken fromthe minutes of the Examination in Public hearing.
Q7. Will the District Council have to pay costs in the judicial review case ?

R7. The general rule is that costs follow the event in the sense of the successful party being
entitled to an order for costs against the unsuccessful party. The usual costs order is that the
defendant pays the reasonable and proportionate costs of the claimant such costs to be
subject to detailed assessment if not agreed. In the absence of agreement on costs
assessment usually takes place before a High Court Official.

The terms of the order for costs in this case are still before Mr Justice Dove for his
consideration.

The Fitzw iliam Estate has claimed £145,602.71 plus VAT costs . The costs claimas a w hole
appears to be completely unreasonable and is being contested.

Q8. In 2012 RyedaleDistrict Council was ordered to pay £148,000 costs to the Fitzwiliam
Malton Estate in relation to the Livestock Market Appeal. Now the District Council will be
ordered to pay costs to the Fitzwiliam Malton Estate in the Judicial Review of the grant of

planning permission for the WSCP site. Has the District Council repeated the same
mistake?

R8. The District Council has not repeated the same mistake.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 193



In the Planning Inspectors Livestock Market appeal decision dated 29 October 2012, costs
were awarded against the Council for not being able to substantiate two out of four reasons
for refusal in refusing the retail planning application to redevelop the Livestock Market site.

The reason for the costs award was the misapplication of the retail planning policy
sequential testin PPS 4 terms.

There was no aw ard of costs on the remaining tw o reasons for refusal relating to impact on
heritage assets and loss of the livestock market. They were material considerations. The
Planning Inspector attached a different w eight to those reasons than the Council. He was
legally entitled to do that.

At the end of the day the High Court decision of Mr Justice Dove in the Judicial Review case
in relation to the grant of planning permission to redevelop Wentw orth Street Car Park
Malton, w as to the effect that and largely turned upon the reasoning contained in the officer
report in relation to the decision of the Planning Inspector on the Livestock Market Malton
appeal decision.

Mr Justice Dove made a finding that the officer's report did mislead Members of the Planning
Committee and misled them significantly.

The Fitzw iliam Malton Estate challenged the planning approval on five grounds of which
fourwere accepted by the Judge, namely;

Ground 1 - That the report to the Planning Committee had not properly reported the
Planning Inspectors decision on the Livestock Market site appeal in relation to the
sequential approach

Ground 2 and 4 - The Council had not properly taken into account the Planning
Inspectors conclusions in relation to treating the Livestock Market site as a town
centre site for retail impact purposes

Ground 5 - That the Council had not undertaken a further screening opinion for the
purposes of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.

Ground 3 - Relating to an allegation of the report to the Planning Committee not
properly reporting the intentions of Booths and Fitzwiliam Malton Estate on
redeveloping the Livestock Market site at Malton w as dismissed.

To state that the judicial review case was the repeat of the same mistake as the Livestock
Market appeal is not an accurate characterisation of the position.

Q9. What happens next ?

R9. The ruling nullifies the decision taken by the Planning Committee in April 2014 if there is
no appeal and means that the application will have to be re-considered by councillors of the
Planning Committee at a later date if there is no appeal or if the planning application is not
withdraw n.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 194



APPENDIX 2
CHRONOLOGY OF EVENTS

03.09.2007 Planning application LPA Ref 07/00813/MOUT w hich was submitted by the
Fitzw illiam Malton Estate for the redevelopment of the Livestock Market site Malton was
registered on 3 September 2007.

13.02.2009 Panning application LPA Ref 07/00813/MOUT w hich was submitted by the
Fitzw illiam Malton Estate was withdrawn on 13/02/09.

17.11. 2010 At its meeting on 17" November 2010 the Council considered and approved a
recommendation to accept an offer to purchase land at Wentw orth Street Car Park in Malton.
This decision was subsequently implemented through the completion of a legal agreement
with GMI Holbeck Land (Malton) Ltd (GMIHL) w hich was completed in May 2011.

10.05.2011 Planning application LPA Ref 11/00412/MOUT w hich was submitted by the
Fitzw illiam Malton Estate for the redevelopment of the Livestock Market site Malton was
registered on 10 May 2011.

26.08.11 The planning application LPA Ref 11/00927/MOUT w hich w as submitted by GMI
Holbeck Limited for the redevelopment of the Wentw orth Street Car Park w as registered by
the Council on 26 August 2011.

29.03.12 The planning applications LPA Ref 11/00412/MOUT and LPA Ref 11/00927/MOUT

were originally considered by Members at a Planning Committee Meeting on 29 March 2012.
It was resolved to :

(i) refuse planning application LPA Ref 11/00412/MOUT; and

(i) grant planning permission for LPA Ref 11/00927/MOUT for the proposed
development subject to the Secretary of State confirming that the application
did not need to be referred to him for determination, the completion of a S106
Agreement and the imposition of conditions. The Secretary of State
subsequently confirmed in writing that he w ould not ‘call in’ the
application for his ow n determination.

29.10.12 Livestock Market Site appeal decision issued, allow ing the appeal and granting of
planning permission for the Livestock Market Scheme. The Inspector made a partial aw ard
of costs against the Council. Despite the resolution of the 29 March 2012 Planning
Committee to grant planning permission for the WSCP scheme, and the Decision of the
Secretary of State not to call it in, the planning permission was not issued prior to the
Livestock Market Site appeal decision being published. However In the light of the
Inspector’s decision and specffically his observations relating to Wentw orth Street Car Park,
Officers considered that it was appropriate that the matter was considered afresh by
Me mbers.

13.05.13 The Fitzwiliam Malton Estate agreed the sum of £148,000 in costs. The original
claimfor costs was £251,505

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 195



26.11.13 Revised information for the Wentw orth Street Car Park application submitted by the
applicants to the Local Planning Authority taking into account the Livestock Market appeal
decision, as w ell as other amendments to the scheme.

24414 The revised Wentworth Street Car Park planning applicaton LPA Ref
11/00927/MOUT w as considered by Members at Planning Committee. It was resolved to
grant planning permission for the proposed development subject to the Secretary of State
confirming that the application did not need to be referred to him for determination, the
completion of a S106 Agreement and the imposition of conditions.

9.9.14 Letter received from the National Planning Casew ork Unit that the Secretary of State
would not ‘call in’ the application for his ow n determination.

12.09.14 Planning permission w as issued.

23.10.14 The Fitzwiliam Malton Estate lodged a claim for Judicial Review which w as issued
by Leeds High Court on 23 October 2014.

17.12.14 At first instance Mr Justice Gilbart designated the claim for Judicial Review as
“totally w ithout merit”.

29.12.14 The Fitzw iliam Malton Estate gave notice that they w ould appeal that Order. It w as
later confirmed that the appeal w ould be considered by Lord Justice Sullivan of the Court of
Appeal.

23.3.15 Lord Justice Sullivan found that the Fitzw iliam Malton Estate’s grounds for a Judicial
Review were properly arguable.

7.5.15 District Council election.

10-12.6.15 The Fitzwiliam Malton Estate’s grounds for Judicial Review were considered
before a Judge at Leeds High Court on 10 — 12 June 2015.

9.7.15 The High Court judge Mr Justice Dove handed dow n his judgement w hich quashed
the decision to grant planning permission for a supermarket and fuel station at the

Wentw orth Street Car Park Malton. The Council w as ordered to pay the reasonable costs of
the Estate.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 18 AUGUST 2015

Page 196



Meutral Citation Mumber: [2415] EWHC 1948 {Admin]

Caze Mo OO0 1552014

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE
PLAMNING COURT {LEEDS DISTRICT REGISTR Y

Faval Courts of Tustics
Btrand, Londan, W24 2LL

Date: 4OAFI20]5

Belore ;

ME JUSTICE DDYE

The Queen Claim anl
- o Lhe application of -
MILTON {PETERRDRODUGH) ESTATES
COMPANY TRADING AS FITZWILLLAM
{MALTON) ESTATE
- and -
EYEDALE DISTRICT COUMNLCIL Delend anl
-and -
GMI HOLBECK LAND {MALTDN) LIMITED Inieresied Parly

Peier Village OC & James Sirachan QO {instructed by Pingenl Mazong LLP) for the
Claim anl
David Manley QC {instruct=d by Ryedale District Council) for the Defend ant
Paul Tucker OQC and Michael Rudd {instructed by LB & Co Limiled) tor the Inieresied
Fariy

Hearing dates: W™ — 11% June 2015

Approved Judgment
I direct that pursuant to CPRE PD 394 para 6.1 noe offtcial shorthand noeta shall be taken of this
Tudprnent and that copies of this version as handed down may be treated as authentic.

Page 197



MR JUSTICE DOVE :

Introdwct ion

1.

Thiz claim i3 a challenpge by way of Judicial Review to the prant of planning
permizsioh by the defendant to the interested party for A1 retail units, offices, petrol
tilling station, car park and landscaping at a site Known a3 Wentworth Straet Car Park
{“WECE] in Malton, Worth Yorkshire. The planning permission was granted on 12
Eeptarnber 2014, The claimants are landowners wha owh a sipniticant part of Malton
tiwh centrs and who alse hawe the benetit of the prant of & planning perrission oh
appeal on 20% Dctober 2012 for another retail daveloprment i the town on what i3
knaweh a3 tha Livestock Marksat Sitz {*LME).

The clairant contends, in briet, that in granting planning permission the following
arrors of law occurred. Firstly, the members of the planning coramittes were seriously
miglad in relatioh o the cohclusions that the Inspector had reached h the claimant’s
appeal in relation o the LME site when he grantzd permission as set gut above. This
wad, (h particolar, i relation te the Inspector’s conclusions in respect of the
sequential rankinp of the LME site and the WECP site and his reazons tor concluding
that the tormer was preferabls o the latter. They were further misled by the failure to
allude at all te the Inspector’s conclusion that for the purposss of retail irapact
analysis the LME site should be countzd as part of the town cantre.

secohdly, v disapresing with the Inspector’s conclusions ih particular in r2lation to
the sequential test the offtcer’s report on which mermbers rlizd o maks their decision
o prant planning  permission, taied to provide adsquate reasons Tor  that
disaprazfment.

Thirdly, it i3 contendad that the council failed to have repard to the impact on planned
ihvestrosnt which would occur in relation o the implementation of the LME if
planning permission were prantzd for the WECP. It is contendad that the officers
tailad to properly disentangle the intentions of the proposed operator of the LME sits,
Bawtha, from the intentions of the claimant, the landowner, Finally, it i contendad
that consideration should hawe bean given o rescreaning the proposed daveloprsnt
tor E1A purposes in the light of circumstances having changed since it was originally
scresnad.

Hiztary

3.

On 10® May 2011 the claimant applied for planning permission for the retail
development of the LME site. The proposal sooght o derolish all buildings on the
site and construct Tour new ratail units with a total pross sdternal floor space of 4,092
squars matres along with a three sterey decked car park and new poblic arsa. The
largest of the ratail units was propossd for 2 high quality food store and had 2 pross
aaternal floor space of 2360 squars metres. The three smaller retail onils wers
proposad for comparizon poods retailing.

In Aupust 2011 the interested party applied for sufline planning permission tora new
Tood store of 5245 square metrss pross topether with other ancillary developroznt 43
desoribed above Aroound the tims of making the application the interested party
soupht the opinien of the datendant as te whether or not their proposed devsloprosent

Page 198



wad Envirohmental Impact Assessment {"EIA™) developrasnt pursuant to the then
relevant Regolations, namaly the Town and Country Flanning {Envirgnmantal Impact
Assezament] {England and Wales) Repulation 1999 This request for a screshing
opinion was rmads by way of a latter dated 22 Aupost 2311, Amongst a number of
characteristics of the propossd dsveloprment the latter addressed the question of
curnulative effect. The information providad in the lettar was as tollows:

*4.2 The Bubject Bits lies adjacent o the axisting Malten town
cantra commercial limits {Eyedals Local Flan adepted harch
2H¥2). The emerping Core SBtratzpy includes a proposal tor the
trwh’s comrmercial limits to be aatznded to an area knawh as
the Marthern Ar, which i3 suitable Tor mided use developraent
ihcluding new convenishcs and comparison retail ws2s. The
arza of the Bubject Bite propossd for boilt development liss
broadly within the Bortharn Arc and thare 3 currently anather
application for planning permission submittzd to RDC for retail
uses with the Morthern &rc and thus adjacent to the adisting
town centre commercial limits. Howsyver, the two sites are not
cohtipudus and are separatad by adisting town centre u3es and
residential strests. WMo adverse environmental effects are
anticipated wers both sites o inclode boillt developroent such a3
weould regult in a requirement for an E1A.

43 & full statement has been prepared by Mathanigl Lichtisld
and Partners {“MNLF"] pursuant to Flanning Policy Statement 4,
wehich covers retail iropact and the stratepic retaill policy
implications of the proposal. The work by WLP includss a
conclusion that only one largs new convenience storaffoodstors
cah be accommadatad in Malten or the District penerally. This
i3 congistent with work undertaken on behall of RDC by Baoper
Tyro and Partnars {*RTPY]. Additionally &rop has preparsd an
aconaric impact assessmant of the proposal which takes other
devslopment into account, whare such potential iz identified.
These documants have baen submitted as part of the planning
applicalion.

4.4 1t i3 subroittzd that there are o davelopments anticipatad to
ke constructzd or conductzd in the arsa which would opsether
Rive rise Lo signhificant environmental eftects such as to warrant
El4 of this schemea”

On 14% October 2011 the defendant respandsd to the screening opinion and the
corering letter rade clear that the opinion had Besn “piven strictly on the basis of the
informatioh provided in the submitted application™. The screening opinion concluded
that the dewsloprsnt, whilst within Schedole 2 of the Town and Country Planning
{Envirgnrental Impact Asssssment] Bepulations 2011 {the applicabls Repolations at
the time of providing the opinien], it was a devslopment which was not Tikely o pive
rise to sighiticant effects on the envirenmment and thersfors did not qualify as El&
daveloprosnt.

Page 199



On 12T Aprl 2412 the defendant refussd the claimant’s application for planning
permission tor tour reasons. The first and foorth reasons are of materiality to the
roatiers it this case. Bo far as relevant the first reason for refusal was edpressed as
Tollowa:

“Whilst the application sits is on edpe of centre a3 detined in
Mational Planning Policy, and would function a3 an immediate
and lopical extznsion b the tewn centre, if 3 considered that
the site i3 hot currsntly availabls for the proposed developrasnt
or suitable for the type/mix of retail development proposed by
thiz application. Furthermore, the applicants have fafled to
dermonstratz o the satistaction of the Council that the proposad
developrent would be wiable, and thersfore that the scheme
wegtuld be delivarable.

It is considersd that an alternative site, located to the sast of
Wentwadh Strest and corrently in use as a4 car park, i3
sequentially preferable to the application’s site on the basis that
it i3 available suitable and wiable.

The application @3 therefore judped b0 have failsd to
damianstrate cormpliance with the sequential approach raquired
b Matianal Flanning Palicy.™

The tourth reason tor refusal, apain so far as relevant, providad as follows:

*The Matignal Flanning Policy Framework states that where a
proposed developrasnt iz likely to have a sighificant adverss
irpact on  wn  centee Jitality  and  wviabdility  planning
permission should be refused

Thers i3 a resolulion Lo approve an application tor 2 Toodstore
with a proas tloor space of 4494 square rmetras {nat loor space
of 3086 square metres) a3 part of a2 scheme at Wentwaorth
Etraet, Malton taking the impacts of the proposed devslopment
intd account it s considered that in combination with this
comrmitrnent the proposed daveloprent s licely to hawve a
siphificant adverse irpact on town centre vitality and viability,
cohtrry o the provisions of the Wational Planning Policy
Framework and Bagional Spatial Strategy™

The claimants appealed and the appeal was heard by the poblic ihquiry procedurs.
Curing the course of the inquiry the tollewing raaterial Tormed part of the svidance
before the Inspectar wha mads the decision on the appeal on behalf of the Secratary
of Btate:

Page 200



¥ ithin the inquiry’s Core Documants the Inspector was presented with
reports fTrom Baoper Tymo and Partners {"RETE™ that had been
cofmrmissiohad to provide the evidence base for the defendant’s
erarping Torward plan {which started as a Core Btratzpy and later
developed into a Local Plan Stratzpy]. The rols of these reports was Lo
privvids the Council with evidance h relation to mattas COncerning
retail planning Both in tarms of the retail needs that had to be plannad
tor and also the potential candidate sites which might accommaodats
those needs. In the first report of May 2006 RTP noted that the LME
site had cloger adjacency to the towh centre and offered *pood potential
tor retail wses™ in particular for a small nomber of retail shops. Theay
hoted that the WECE site was “appred imately 164 metres to the north-
zast of the towh centre” and edpe of centrz in temns of the then
BMatignal Flanning Folicy on retail. They sugpestzd that the WECE had
pitential for retail warshousing, Ih the nedt report dated September
208 they advised in relation to the LME that it appearsd “to offer
axcellant potential tor retail uses because of its close adjacency to the
tirwh centre cors”. They noted that the site was already well connected
te the retail cors and “would fom a natural sdtension o the town
cahtre”. In particular they considered that the site would be a suitable
lecation Tor unit shops for comparison poods retailing. In respect of the
WCEF they observed that this site was “more peripheral being
separated Trom the town cantre by edisting residantial developrosant...
and being located on a different lowsr level o town centre shops™
They went on e 3ay that whilst pedsstrian linkages betweaen the siks
and the town centre sdisted “the depres of separation by other non-
retail uses means that the site i3 unlikely to form an “zdtension” to the
gdisting town centrs”. BRTF'S maost recant report was providsd in Tuly
2011 and in relation to the LME site they noted that the site was
“technically edpe of centre™ for the purposes of the saquential tast bul
waht o o provids a3 follows:

“Howeawer, the [LME] site is well-connacted to the retail cors of
Plaltan tewn centre, which can ke zasdy accessed by
pedastriang via The Sharmblzs or Spifle Btrest J Bew Gats.
Indzed the site lies just o the rear of the sdisting retail / sarvice
units at Market Place, which — in our professional judpment — is
part of the primary shopping area of Malton {althouph we
recoghise that the Proposals Map does not tormally datine 2
prirary shopping arsa). We theretors considar that the cattle
rarkal site, it developed for town cantre uses, would form a
hatuml extension of the town centre, and that it represents the
rogat saquent ially preferable apportunity in Malten™

RTE went on to reattirm their vizw that the LME site was well placed
o provids corparison retall ohits albeit a foodstors coold be
acceptable a3 part of 4 rix of wses at the site they did not advocate a
supermarkat only schems which would rule oot the prospect of
attracting comparison  ratailers. Bo far as the WECP site was
cohcerned they reiteratad that it was approdirmately 164 metrss to the

Page 201



11.

forth-cast of the towh and they went on o concluds that the site was
ke suited o convanisncs rather than cormparisan ratail developmant
“becauss new high-strest storss shoold be focuwssd on the catile
rnarkst site as the tirst pricrity given its closs approdimity to the
primary shopping arza®.

)] The Inspector received evidence from Mr Goddard on behalt of the
claimant contending that the fimst reason tor refusal sst oot above was
ratzconceivad and that the LMS site was sequentially preferable o the
WECP site. It appears from the closing subroissions of the defendant
that during the course of cross-sdamination their withess on retail
planning issuss, Mr JTohnston, acceptzd that the LME site was
“sequentially the most preferable site in Malton™. The council wers
theretors no longer able by the end of the inguiry to sustain the fimst
reaseh tor retusal in particular a3 it was concedad that members had not
been properly advised as to the policy content of the ssquential test
when thay had reached their decisions both on the LS bt alse on the
WECP which they had resolved to prant consent Tor at the same
raeating that they refused the claimant’s application. Mot only therstors
was the council’s case at the close of the Inquiry that the LME site was
sequantially preferable to the WECE site buot al3o they concaded that it
would be necessary for the members o reasssss their resolution to
grant planning perrission “in the light of the concession that the naturs
and application of the sequantial test was not properly spelled out in the
LhE Committes Report”.

) In ordar to address the fourth reason for refusal br Goddard undertook
a curulative irmpact on the town centre which included the impact of
Both the claimant’s and the WeCE proposzd dswvelopments. In
undartaking that analysis Mr Goddard incorporated the additional
turfiever trom the clairmant’s scheme within the overall figurs for
gapenditure in the town centra. The effect of the analysis was o show
that the claimant®s proposal would l2ad o an overall positive increass
tn the retail turndssr in the twn centre in the repion of 24.9% leading
to the conclusioh that the claimant™s proposals would have a positive
irpact an the town centre. This approach was predicatad on the BTE
acknowledpsrent that the LME site would form part of the functional
town centre. This approach was disputed by the datendant.

The Inspectar concludad that the claimant’s appeal should be allowsed in a decision
date 297 October 2012, The Inspector eaplained the backdrop provided for the
application by the BTP studizs and neted the daimant’s justification for the proposals
on the basis that they would fulfil Malten’s convenience and comparison retail tloor
space nesds op to MF2] and beyond. He then turned to consider the sequential
approach. His conclusions are sdprassaed as follows:

“21. 1 turn how to the saquantial test, formerly set out in PPE4
and now carrizd forward into the Framework. Parapraph 24 of
the Framsework edplaing that local planning authorities should
require applications for main town centre uses o be located in
tiwh centres, then in sdpsot-centrs locations and only of

Page 202



suitable sites are not available should ocutofcentre sites be
considerad. It further notes that when considering edpe-of-
centre and oul-otcantre proposals, preference should be piven
to accessible aites that are well connected o the town centrs,
and poes on tosay that applicants and local planning autharities
should dernonstrate flexibility on issues such as format and
scale.

22, The RTP retail assessments referrsd oo above have
consistently taken the view that the L site represents the most
sequahtially praferable opportunity in Malton, Howevar, in the
LM report to Committes, Officers adoptad what the Council
referred Lo ab the inguiry as a “novel” application of the
gaquential test As 4 resull, the Planning Committes  was
adwizsed that the WECP site was preferable to the appeal site in
FPEL terns. & reading of the Cormittse Beport reveals that
thiz adwice was based on the Cificers’ view that the appeal site
wad hot suitable for the development proposed; could not be
cohsidered a3 curranfly available for the proposed developrent;
and that the developmant proposed had not been demonstrated
b b wriabsle.

23, Howeawar, at the inquiry the Council’s planning withess
acknowledpsd that there had besn significant flaws in the way
this matter had bean approached. Fimstly, there s nothing within
the Framawark, not was there anything within FES4, which
requires a developer to apply tests of availability, suitabiity
and wiability to the site being premoted for development. The
saquential approach i3 intendad toestablish whether or nat thers
ars any mors saquentially preferable sites for the developrasnt
propoased, than the site v question. In this case thers 5 no
disputa  betwsaseh  the  parties  that the LB site could
accomroadats the appeal proposal.

24. Maorsaver, an azsessment of the site providad to the Council
by BTE h the BERCIAL comrments that a retai-led scheme
wiould Be viable at the site and could forma natural edtension of
the atisting town centrs. It considars that the site would be an
tdeal location for a developroent providing a small norober of
uhit shops te attract the type of “high strest™ comparison retail
ouflets presently missing Thrn Malten’s offer. It further
suppests that such units could potentially form part of 2 ridad-
use developroent, described as possibly incleding a baskst
Teodstore  andfor  residentialloffice uwses,  although 2
supermarketonly scheme i3 not advocated. The study also
commants that the WECE site 5 locatzd aboot 160m to the
nirth-2ast of the Town Centre Comrmercial Lirmits and i3 rore
suitad o conwvenisnce  rather  than comparison o retail
daveloprosnt.

Page 203



25, & final point of note i3 that the LM report te Comrmittes
acknowledpes that the LM site is not specitically allocat=d for
cofmparisoh retail developmant at the present time, The report
does indicats that the supporting teat o policy BPT of the LPE
publication draft refers to the LM site as being particularly
suitable for non-tood retailing, Bub there is nothing [ supgest
that thiz need be to the sdclusion of other uses. In any case, |
understand that objactions have been ledped to this policy and
itz supporting text, including trom the appellant, and in these
circumatances | can only give this emerping policy limited
we St

26. Taking the abowve points inte account it i3 my vigw that the
LM sitz is the sequentially preferable site o accommadats the
development proposed and that its development for such wses
weduld b in ling with guidance in the Framework. Moregver, no
tirm evidence has been placed betore me to suppest contlict
weithany adopted dzwelopment plan policy in this regard.

32, Howsver, whilat it is cormon ground that the grant of
planning permission tora largsr store on the WECE site would
roake it more diffecolt for an operator tobe found Tor the appeal
proposal, this onderscorss the need and purpose of the
gaquential approach in sesking Lo promate and strengthen v n
centres. Despite the Officers” conclosion in the LM Coraraittes
Feport, the sobrittzd evidsnce as 4 whols, leads me o
conclude that the WECP site is a sequentially less preferabls
adpe-ot-centre sitz than the appeal site. Moreover, having
vigited both sites as part of my inspection | considsr that a
daveloproent on the WECE site would have poorer pedestrian
links to the towh centrz than the LW site, notwithstanding the
Tact that snhancement works o the connecting roube ars
proposed.”

The Inspactor than turhed to consider the question of the fourth reason for refusal and
roatters related o retai irmpact. He fist leoksed penerally at the relationship betwasn
the LME site and the twn cantrs o assess whether or not thers woold be an advearss
aftect on the town cantre in principle and concluded as follows:

“36. The Bol0 indicates that the Council does nat accept that
the LM site forms a logical edtension to the town centre, but
thiz does not sit comfortably with its first reason for refusal,
wehich  Quite clearly states a contrary wisw.  Howsver,
hotwithstanding this point the fact remaing that at the present
tirne the Council s promating, throoph s emerging LES, a
*northern ard™ {which ihcludas Both the LB site and the
WECP), to the north of the sadisting town centre, to

Page 204



13,

accommodate new retai space o support the role of the town
centra. In addition, parapraph 525 of the LPE Submission
document of MMay 2012 notes that the LM site has the ability,
owertime b torm a lopical edtension to the town cantre,

37. Having repard to thess points and the tact that thers would
ke poord linkca ges betwesn a development on the appeal site and
the town centre, | consider i reasonable to assume that the
appeal proposal winld strengthen and enhance the town centre,
rather than adwersely impact upon i, Incoming to this Jiew |
havz alae had repard to the retaid advice congistently piven to
the Council by BTE prior te this inquiry, through the various
retail assessments referred to 2arlier, that the LM sit2 would be
an appropriate location tor further retail development. 1 do not
beliews that this adwvice would have been piven it RTP
considerad that if woold resoll in harm te the efdisting own
cantre™

The Inspector determined that the WECE scheme could not be regardsd as a
commrmitrent in the light of the concession that the resolution to prant planning
permizsioh had arisen from 2 committze report which had providad the membears with
arrahecus advice a3 to the proper application of the sequential test and that resolution
weiuld nesd to be revisited. Mevertheless in considering the arguments in relation o

irpact the Inspector provided conclogions on the analysis provided by bMe Goddard
o cufnolati e impact. His conclusions were a3 tollows:

*4]. Finally on this issus, 1 briefly consider the scenario
wehershyr the WECE schema s pranted planning permission. The
tirst point of note i3 that there is apresment within the BoCo
that the cumulative scals of both the appeal proposal and the
WECE scheme would siphificantly exceed the retail capacity
idantified for Malton within the RTP 2048 Ratail Stoudy. In
addition, the submitted evidence indicates that the WSCP
scheme wodd draw trade from the town centre Morrison’s
storz, which 3 currently sver-trading. Howewar, | accept that in
resolving to prant planning permission for the WECP proposal
the Council considersd that the averall impact on the wn
cantra, including linked-trips, would ba acceptabla.

42, Wevertheless, trade would be drawn from the ssisting
centre, and this irmpact would be increased if the appeal site was
alse pranted planning permissien. In such Circurfmstances a
judperment has to be made as to the overall extent of any
impact, having regard to the specitic dztails of the cases and the
locations of the respactive sites In this repard it i3 of note that
ih assarting that the appeal propoesal would result in harm B the
vitality and viability of the town centre, the Council has not
undartaken any specific assessmant of this matter

Page 205



14,

15,

45, In contrast, the appellant has argousd that althouph a preater
trapact on the sxisting town centre would arise if both the
WECE and the appeal proposal weare topraceed, custom drawn
t the LM schems should be s2en a3 contribubing b Hewn centre
turticedar, th Jizw of the peneral acceplance that it would
function as a logical sdtznsion o the town centre. Indeed the
appellant arppes that the on this basis the appeal proposal
would l2ad to an overall positive tmpact of 24%, comparsd o
the situation it only the WECP scheme procesds,

4. | fully accept that such arpuraents have to be treated with
sofne caution, in light of the view sapresssd by the Inspector
and endorsed by the Bacretary of State, ina call-in case in Stoke
oh Trent’, that including sdpsof-centrs stores ih assessments of
unctiehal™ centres could penerate misleading conclusions.
Howeaver, 1 am not persuadad that the particular circumsta nces
of that case, which related to a much larper centre and a
difterent disposition and judtaposition of toodstores, aredirectly
comparable to the current sitvatien which ivolves a latively
maodest devslopment  imrmediately adjacent [0 an adisting
matkcet twn centrz, On balance, and particularly having repard
tr the Council’s aspirations for additional retail areas in the
*“northern arc”, st gub within the emerging LES, 1 consider that
the appellant’s assessrent of this matter i3 to be favourad.

45, Having regard b all the matters detaiad abave, | concluds
that the proposed developroent wouold  accord  with  the
saquantial approach W Hewn cantre o3es, s2t ooub in the
Frmework, and would not have an whacceptable sffect on the
witality and viability of Malton town centre, Accordingly 1 find
e roaterial contlictwith policies YHS or E2 of the RES which
gagk, amohgat other matters, o make Principal Towns {Such a3
Malton] the main local focus for shopping activitiss and
tacilitizs, and Lo strenpthen the role and performance of sxisting
cily and towe hcentres.”

In the light of these conclusions the Inspector grantsd planning permission. He alao
concluded that the detfendant had behaved unreasonably in relation o “the very
sighificant admission that it had misapplied the sequential test™ and the members had
Beeh wronply advised that the WECE site was sequentially preferabls to the LME site.
The Inspector turther concluded that the defendant’s tourth reason for refusal was also
uhreasohable and costs were awarded apainst therm in respact of that issue a3 well.

On 19% Noveraber 2013 the interested party submitted revised documentation in
respect of their application which had a regolution to grant consent. The size of the
toodstore was reduced from 5205 square metrss pross to 4,530 squars metres pross
and other chanpss of dstail were made in the application. & suite of updated
documents including in particular an updatzd Retail Staterasnt from Wathaniel
Lichtizld and Partnars {*MNLEF"] vwas providsd.

Page 206



l6.

7.

18.

In Septermber 2413 the defendant adopted its “Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Stratepy™.
This obsarrad that current cormmitmants which had bean pranted consent accounted
tor most, if not all, of the quantitative additional food retail floor space which was
required to 2026. It indicated that if comrmitments faillad o come Torward then any
gutstanding requirernents within the district woold be directed to bMalton in ordar o
improve the range and choice of Tood storss in that town. 1t will e recalled that the
Inspecter had made reference o a “MNortharn Arc”. This was eaplained in parapraph
5.25 of the local plan stratzgy which provided as tollows:

525 Eaxcellent edpe of centre opportunities  sdist o
accommodate new retail space to support the role of Malton
Town Centre. & “Morthern Arc™ lies to the north of the town
and it stretches from  the sdisting Livestock Markst Lo
Wentworth Street Car Park. It is a band of axisting and former
apricultural buildings and spaces that were carved out of the
madizval straet pattarn to relecats livestock trading in the rmid
19% cantury. Today, whilat this broad area i3 not deralict, parts
of it ara under used and thers are opportunities to redevelop
sitzs and buildings to accommaodats additional ratail space with
edcellent connectivity with the edisting town cantra. &lthough
thiz decurnsnt does not allocate specific sites tor new uses, i i3
cohzidered that within thizs *Morthern Arc”, the Livestock
Markst area i3 of stratepic sipnificance. It provides a kay
opportunity o accommeodate 4 mix of wses and in particalar to
provide rmuch nesdad space for additional non food retailing.
YWhilat it currently occupies a location which abuts the edisting
tawn cantre, it has the ability — once developed — to fom a
lagical edtengion ta the wh centre, Currently gutling planning
cohsht has besn pranted for a mixed convenience and
comparisoh retail schems on the site.™

In order to assess the revised application which had besn previded by the interssted
party the defendant coramissionsd two pieces of independant work from consultants.
Firstly they commissioned a review of the MLP retail planning work which they
received tn Bebruary 240014, It i unhecessary ta set that rateral ool in datail at this
stage since it was, understandably, heavily drawn wpon in the compilation of the
cormrmittes report on the application. In summary England and Lyle {*EL"] endorsed
the conclusions of the WLP retail work that there was graatar potential for the craation
of retail floor space Tor conveniencs retailing and that the LME site and the WECP
site weare saquentially aqual. In the light of this and also the fact that the scals of the
toodstore propossd in the interested party’s application could not physically be
accommadatzd an the LME sita they accepted NLF's conclusien that the sequential
test weasd passed.

In relation to impact on planned investment EL relied opon the second pisce of
independant work cormrmissiohed by the council, narmsly 4 repart Trom DTZ dated ] 1"
February 2014, in rélation b the commercial viability of both the clairmant’s
cohsanted scheme and the intarested party’s propossd schems. In thair report DTE
concludad that nons of the principle focdstors operators would be interssted in the

Page 207



19,

243

21

cohsented schems on the LME site and that whilst that location might appeal to
Booths or Aldi the form of the consented scheme would be unacceptable to therm. It
would raquire redesipn Betora having anhy chance of attracting cormmarcial intarest,

Further objections wers mads W the application by the claimant’s plannin g consultant
on 11" March 24, That letter coincided with a latter from the clairmants enclosing a
latter of support from EH Booths and Company Limited {"Booths™] sipressing
Booths” interest in thesite and the Tact that they wers in the process of nepotiating an
apraament tor a lease with the clairmant for the foodstore glement of the LMS sitz. In
the letter the chairman of Booths indicated that they rernained “very concerned™ aboul
the htzrssted party™s whresolved planning application. Following this up dn 25®
March 2414 the clairmant wrete in the Tollowing terrms:

*The estate company 3 willing o accept the scals and risk
protile of investraent requirad to davelop the LME. Howsver
the threat of 4 largs area of excess ratail capacity in an edpe of
trwh cantre location with a surface car park oh WECP
siphificantly increases the risks of the investment in LME. With
that thrzat hanging awer the town, the Estate Company will be
unlikely to procesd with the LWE developroent.™

On 1 April 2014 Booths apain wrate to confirm for the avoidance of doubt that the
oufling consent oh the LME site was acceptable. In the light of these new
developments EL provide further advice to the council on g fpril 2414 Amongat a
nurber of mattars they addressed the recent contirmation of interest from Booths and
obaerved as tollows:

W have allowsad for a foodstors of the size approved on the
Livestock Mlarket site in the capacity analysis and the
cufnulative impact assssament. Althdugh a Booths store would
provide an improve range of chotce and convenience retailing,
a3 soupht by the Bysdals Plan thers refnaing a need for another
lamge toodstores in Malton to provide chaice and competition tor
Mornzon’s in rain food shopping and claw back leakape that
i3 poing o larpe storss slsewhers. But the nesd for a large
toodstore could not be met in the Livestock Market scheme, &
stora oh the WELCF and a Booths storz on the Livestock hMarkat
gite wituld have a complimentary rols”

EL wsant on to consider the question of retail impact in particular in terms of the
criticiam miged by the claimant’s planning cohsoltants that no scenario had been
provided seeking to test Toodstores being pragent on both the LME site and the WECP
ih the opening sear of 2018, They advised as follows:

*“In terns of retail impact, GVA& criticise the fact that WLE
considered only two scenarios, precluding new Toodstorss on
the WECF and Livestock Rarkcet sites in 2018, Ouor review
considers a third scenario in which Toodstoras are developed on
both sites and are tradmp in 2318, The larpsst owverall

Page 208



22

curmulative impact is predictad o e on the Morrison’s stors,
reprazenting three-quartars of total trade diversion from Malton
thwh centre. We do not anticipats that there woold be oa
sighificant adverse impact upon the overall vitality and viabiity
of Malton town centre which has 4 high lavel of witality and
wiabidity. The predicted overall trading iropacts on the other
trwn centres are small. We have assessed that the WECP
proposal would have a trading impact of 16% on a foodsters in
the Livestock Markat scheme. This is a matter of competition
with a store located outzids the town centre, not 4 town centre
iropact, not a matarial planning consids ration.™

The day betfors the planning corrmittes was doe to mest the claimant provided final
objections to the defendant in relation to the application. They alludsd i that
correspondances to a latter of objection frorm Booths in relation to the WECP proposal.
In relation b the impact upon planned investrment in the form of the LME scheme
thair obeervations were a3 tollows:

“For the avoeidance of doubt, Fitzwiliarm Malten Estate [FME)
i3 willing toe rakes the investmant in redeveloping the Livestock
Markat Site {LWE] 23 soon as it has sscured a pre-letting of the
roain food store to Booths, Whilst the preference is o have one
of rore of the smallar retail units lat betors we start on site, the
devsloprment i3 not conditiohal open retailer commitment for
thase units. However, the prospect of almoest dooukle the retail
Tloor space baing piven consent by RDC i3 considered to be 2
conziderabls thraat to FME’s investment in LWE. EME will not
rnake that inwestrment of consent is piven to the GMI
application...for a large superstors on Wenbworth Strest car

park.”

O 245 Aprl 2014 the dafendant’s planning corarmittes met o considar the interestad
party’s application. In addition o a lengthy committes report the rmerbars had a
uriber of matters appendad to the report incloding the EL report and letter of g®
April 2014 topsther with the advice which had been received from OTZE {which
included a response to the claimant’s plannin g consultant’s objections) alsa included
ih the appendices were corrsspondence from the daimant planning cohsultant and
Trara the claimant’s themselves and Booths, Mot incloded within the appendices
circulated to the cormittee bot provided to thern at the mesting was a copy of the
Inspactor’s report th relation to the claimant’s appeal.

The committes raport summarised the objectiaons which had been received to the
applications along with the other repressntations which had been mads. The first topic
that was addrassed by the officer’s conclusions was the question of retail planning
policy. The report noted the contant of the local plan strategy which has baen sat oot
absrvz, 1L went oh to 32t oot the provisiens of the Mational Planning Policy Framework
and, whilst the contents of the report ranped far widsr across the Framewotc tor
present purposes bwo parapraphs of the Framewark wers cantral, narmely paras 24 and
26 which provide as follows:

Page 209



*24. Local planning authoritizs should apply a ssquential st to
planning applications for main town centre uses that are not in
ah &disting centre and are nat in accordance with an op-to-date
Liacal Plan. They should require applications for man town
centre usss to be located in town centres, then in edpe of cantre
locations and only if suitable sites are not available should out
of centre sites be considared. When considering edpe of cantre
and out of centre proposals, preference should be piven to
acceasibla sites that are well connected to the towh centre.
Applicants and local planning awthoritizs shoold demanstrats
Tlas ibil ity oh i3suss such as format and scale,

26. When assessing applications for retail, leisurs and offics
devslopment outside of town centrss, which are not ik
accordance with an op-to—date Local Flan, local planning
authorities should require an  impact assessment o the
devslopment is ower a proportionats, locally sst floorspace
threshald {if thers i3 no locally sat threshold, the default
threshold is 2,50 3q m). This should include assessment of:

o The impact of the proposal onh adisting, comrmitted and
planned public and privats inwvestment in a centre or
centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and

e The irmpact of the proposal oh tewn centre vitality and
viability, ihcluding local consurer choice and trads in
the town centre and wider area, up to five years Trom
the time the application 3 rmade. For major schemes
whara the Tull impact will not be realised in five yoars,
the irnpact shoold also be assessed up to ten years from
the time the application s madsa ™

25, Dealing firstly with the sequential test derived from paragraph 24 of the Frameveark

and the comparative conclusions which had besn reached by the Inspector in the
clatmant’s appeal, the officers concluded as tollows:

0.7 Tha Livestack hlaricet Sitz i Malton i3 also considared
in datail within the submitted Updated Retai Statzroent. The
Livestock Market site benetfits from an extant planning
permissioh tor retail devslopment for four new retail onits,
comprising of 4 2360 3q9.m {gross) Teodstore and thres smaller
cofmparizon poods units {1,732 59.rm pross i total] and a three-
storey car park, pranted on appeal on 20a October 2412, The
Inspector concludad that the Livestock Markst site was both
sequantially praferable to the WECP site o accommaodats the
actual developrent proposed bot alse that the Livestock
Markst site was pensrally sequentially preferabls, stating at
Farapraph 32 ‘Alawewar, whiled o 2 compan ground fhai fhe
grani &f planaing permission for a larger siare on the WECEP

Page 210



aite wenald make 1 mare difficuli for an speraler o be found for
the appeal prapasal, ihis underscares the need and purpose af
the segueniial appradch i sadking 1o pramale and airengihen
fown cenires. Degpile the Offteers’ conclugion in the LS
Commiiies Repard, the mubmiiied evidence a2 a whale, leads me
i comclude thai the WECP sile (e a sequeniially less preferable
edpe-ci-cenire sile than the appeal zite. Moreswer, having
wistled beth siles ag pard &f my inspeciicon, 1 conzider thal a
deve iapreani an the WECE il would hdwe padrar madesirfan
finkz i the Jawm cenire fthan fhe DAL aide, nadwiihaianding he
Jacl thai enhancemen! works 1o the connecling roule are

fFriraned.

B.28 The Livestock Markeat Inspector’s Appeal Decisioh i3 an
important material consideration and rost carey sighificant
weaight in decisien-making. Howewsr, f 3 not a binding
precedent. The Inspector’s conclusion as o why the Livestock
Market site is sequentially preterabls o the WECP is not Tully
reasoned other than pointing o poorer pedestrian links. The
tssus of saquential preference iz one tor informed planning
fudpernant. Oificers have commissionsd an indepandent review
of the applicant™s Updated Ratail Stateraent by England &
Lyle, who have subrmitted a report dated February 24014, In the
report they consider whather the Livestock badest site is
gaquentially batter located than the WECE sita. England & Lyls
note that bath sites are within the ‘Mordhern Are’ and that the
difterences in accessibility to the town centre ars minimal.
Offtcers apres, Tor the reasohs satoul Below that the differences
ars 3o neplipitle that the sites are, tor all practical purposss, on
an aqual tooting in terms of sequential testing.

B.28 The Livestack Market Site lies adjacent o the dafined
Towen Centre Commercial Lirmits of Malton Town Centre and
i3 thersfors located sliphtly closer o the tewn centre than the
application site, although the ditfersnce is minirmal given the
application site itself only lizs 30m to from the Town Cantre
Comroercial Limits and it i3 noted that bath sites lie within the
adtent of the ‘MWerihem dre, " which s identified as an area that
offers opportunitiss o redevelop sites and buildings o
accommadats  additional  retail  space with  sdcellant
connectivily with the existing Town Centre. Furthermaore, i is
considered that there are minimal differences betweaen the sites
i tarms of accessibility and connsctivity with the town centre,
and the consequant ability o penerats linked trips. Both sites
offer easy access to the town centre for pedsstrians using
axistihg connactiohs that are easy to follow. On this basis, it is
cohsidared that the application sitz and Livestock Markest sits
should be considared as being ‘segueniially aqual

Page 211



B33 It iz noted that applications for planning and listed
bBuilding consent have recantly been submitted by Fitzewiliam
{Malten) Estates tor the srection of 4 teo storey retail & t2ngion
i edisting stors with attached stairwsll building on three levels
and saternal tlight of steps topether with formation of retail
unit{s] on two tloors within Building D to include installation
of new shop tronts, windows and chirmneys all following
reraoval  of  three  edisting  outbuildings  {LPA Rt
14MHHISO/FUL & 14MHHMLEC) at Elings Head Yard, which
lizz to the direct south of the consent Livestock Markst site.
The Flanning Statsment that accompaniss the Eings Head Yard
application contirrms that the developrent proposed can be
wizwesd 43 a stand-alone proposal, albeit 4 precorsor to the
Livestock Market developrent. It s suppested that the
proposed developrment will support the sdpansion of an eisting
retail business, as well a3 opening up a Key route intd the wh
centre from the Livestock Market developreant and residential
propartics o the sast. It i acceptad that the Eings Head Yard
propasals will provids an improved link betwesn the owh
centre and  the Livestock  Markest  sita, howaver, these
improvaments are not considered o be so significant as to alter
the conclugien that the Livestock Market site and WECE should
be considersd ‘pequeniially equal,” notwithstanding the fact
that the Eings Head Yard proposals do not yet benefit from
planning and listed building consent.

835 Tha applicant’s supplementary information conclodes that,
in the contestt ot the issuss outlined above, a large foodstors on
the Livesteck Market site, which 3 comparabls o that
proposed by the current application, could anly be devsloped
er beed of mors storeys. I s also likely that such a store
weduld need o be accommadatad by decked parking, in order to
provide a sufficient number of spaces. The applicant contends
that this would be unaccaptabls to the main foodstore operators,
wehi Ao not split their convenisncs pords sales arsa dver
ditterant floors and such a compromized scheme would be
highly wunlikely to attract any retailer interest. These findings
hawvzs been broadly endorsed by DTE, who were appointed by
the Council toadvise on the commeancial retail considerations in
relation o the planning application. The applicant alse suppests
that it i3 also hiphly questiohabls as to whathar a schems could
be developsd which would be satisfactory in heritaps,
residantial armenity and highways ! trarsportation Lerms.

6836 The applicant’s findings in this respect are broadly
accepted and, even taking inte account the scops Tor flexibility
in the tormat and scale of the proposal, it is not considered that
the Livestock Markat site offers a suitable practical alternative

Page 212



tr accormmadats the proposed developrsnt. However, aven if
the Livestock Marlet site was considered to be 4 suoitable
practical — altarhative o accommadate the propossd
dewslopment, the WECE and Livestock bMarkset sites are
cohsiderad o be peguentially @guad’ and, accordingly, would
not result in the sequential test being tailed.

8.37 The NEPG advises, in applying the sequential test, that it
i3 necessary Lo cohstder what contribulion mors central sites ars

able to maks individually @ accommadats the proposal and it is
noted that an objection received from GYA& on behalt of
Fitzwilliam {Malton] Estates suppests that the ssquential
assessment has failed to consider whether there are available
gites within or better intepratad sites on the edpe of the town
cantre that could accommdadate the proposed smallar m2iail unit.
The constitugnt main town centre glameants of the application
proposals comprise of a foodstore {4530 sq.m), 4 retail wnit
{227 3q.rm) and office accormmodation {253 sq.m) and, based
upoh Officers local knowladps of centres and a review of
commercial property websites to identify potential available
gites / premizes, Officers are satistied that thare are no suitable
and available ssquentially preferable premises or potential
devslopment  sites  thal coold accommaodate  any of the
conatitusnt  rmain  town  centres wses. Fuorthermors, o i3
conhsidered that the provision of the stand alone retail wnit
provides benetits Trom a dssipn perspective, helping to craate
an active and intzresting public frontape alang the Wentworth
Etrast Trontaps.

6838 It is thersfore acceptad that the application compliss with
the sequantial apprdach o sike selaction 32t ool ab Paragraph 24
of the WEPF and there are no saquentially preferabls sites that
arz suitable and available altzrnatives o accommdadate a large
teodstore developmeant™

28.  The report then turned o the question of refail impact and advised members as
tollawa:

*o.42 The planning application i3 accompaniad by an Updated
Retail Staterent preparsd by Wathaniel Lichtield & Partners.
The iropact assesament contained within the Updatsd Eatail
Statemant considers bwo potential scenarios:

o Seemarir 1 — this is based upon what MLE repard as the ‘masl
realizite zeenarts taking into account advice recetved from
cofrmarcial apants outlining a lack of operator intersst in the
Livestock Market Site. This scenarie thersfors assures that
WECFE site iz developed for a new larpe foodstore in isolation
awrer the period to 24018,

Page 213



o Segmariy 2 — thid scenarie condidsrs a sitvation whershy a
stare of the size approved on the Livestock Market site is
developed out over the longer period to 2F23, although BNLE
sugpest that this scenario i3 unlikely.

g.43 MLF state that the assumpticn that the Livastock blarkst
store comes torward over the period o 2023 i3 considersd to be
a cautious approach, particularly in the conteat of the views
Trom their cormercial apents that thers is no dermand for a
toodstore of the size currently proposed on the Livestock
Mlarket site and that the approved scheme s undeliverabls.
Matw ithstanding this, the Batail Baview andartaleen s England
& Lylz apress that Bcenarin 2 represants a possible curnulative

impact sitwation in Malton if both schemes were o be
dawaloped.

6.44 England & Lyle have therefore undertaken an indspendent
Fevizw of the retail iropact assessments Tor conveniznce and
comparizon poods and have fully reviewed WLP's Boenaria ]
and Bcenaric 2 assumptiens. In additien, althgugh BILF hawve
not considersd the potential cumulative impact of the propossd
and congentzd developmeant on the WECE sie and Livestock
Markst site coming Torward by 20418, England & Lyls have
revigwsd a scanaric tor 2018 in which both schemes are
developed tor sensiti vity purposss.

45 It i3 noted that Fitzwilliam {Malton] Estates hawve
suppestad that they would not bring forward the approwed
Livestock Market site if the current proposals are approved and
this would represent 4 sipnificant tropact on planned inveastrasnt
in the town centre. However, the Livestock Marksat lies o the
northarn 2dpe of the dstined Town Centre Comrercial Lirits
and is not thersfore in-cantre, which i3 4 pre-requisite of the
impact test contained at Parapraph 26 of the WEPF. In any
event, the Livestock Marksat site is a sequantially equivalant sits
to WECP. It iz noted that the Local Plan Stratzpy identities that
the Livestock Markst site abuts the sdting town centre and
has the ability, ohee developed, to form 4 lopical sdtension Lo
the town centre. Whilst the WECP liss slightly further trom the
trwn centre, the difference i3 miniral and both sites lie within
the identified ‘Marthern dre, ' which i identified as an arsa that
ofters potential o redsvelop sites and buoildings with sicellant
cohhectivily to the twn centre. It 8 considersd that the
application proposals provids an opportunity to improds choics
and competition ih hMalten and o claw back sdpenditurs, thus
helping o bBroadan the town™s consumarbase.

g.64¢ It is anticipated that in convenigncs poods the proposed
development on the WECE site would draw 15% of i3 trade

Page 214



Trarn inflow ! visitor spending, %% from claw back of leakape
and the remaining 45% from trade diversion within the
catchmant  arsa.  In comparisoh podds, the  propossd
devsloprment on the WECP site is sapected to draw 15% of @13
trade frrn inflow J wisitor spending, 55% from claw back of
leakape and the remaining 30% from trade diversion within the
catchrent area. In terms of cumuolative irapact, it i3 assumed
that, ta an 2xtant, the WECPF achamsa and the Livestock Barksat
schemsa would compete with 2ach other and draw soms of their
trade from the other scheme, albeit that, were bBoth o
cofmmancs trading, there is plainly an increased opportunity tor
clawing back trade to the town which presently leaks outside of
the district.

B.6]1 In convenisnce podds, the largest cumolative impacts of
the proposed developmant togather with the Livestock hMarket
scherme and commitmants in 2018 are predicted o be on
Maornzon’s in Malton {30%), the Co-op in Pickering {16%],
Lidl and #Asda in M™oerten {1138, the new Tesco in
Eirkbyraoorside {8%), Eirkbyrnoorside centre {7%%) and other
shops in Malton [68%%). The prdicted comolative irmpacts in
2023 are wery similar o thoss predicted for 2018 becauss the
turticedars of stores f centres and the turhovers of the propossd
schemas have bean increased in ling with edpenditure prowth ™

7. In respact of irmpact on plannad invastrant in centres the officers advised as follows:

569 Fitzwilliarm {Malton] Estates in their objection have
stated that they will not Bring forward their consented scherme if
the current application 3 approved and this woold repregent a
sighificant impact oh planned investasnt in the bewn centrs.
Hawsaver, the Livestock Markst liss toe the northern edps of the
detined Town Centre Commercial Limits and i3 not therstors
ih-centre, which is a pre-requisite of the impact test contained
at Parapraph 26 of the NPPF. In any svent, the Livestock
hlarket gite i3 4 sequantially equivalant site to WECE.

874 Daspite the advice received from OTZ highlighting
concerns over the deliverability of the approved foodstors on
the Livestock Markst site, the subssquent correspondsnce
received Trom GWA highlights retailer intzrest on behalt of
Bootha and suppests that the oufling consent delivers a stors
and layout with adaquate pafcing and sarvicing o mest their
requirernents. The contirration of interest Trom Booths in the
apprived schema on the Livestock hMarket sit2 is acknowledped
and Booths will be a welcome addition to the retail offer in
Malton. Howeawer, the sapression of interest in the Livestock
harket sits from Booths should nat, in Officer’s vizw, be s2en

Page 215



a3 4 reasoh o pravent the provision of a larger foodstors on the
WECE.

8.75 The indepandent review of the application undartaken by
England & Lyle illustrates that, whilst the capacity Tor twa naw
foodatoress {ie. Livestock Market site and WECE) in 2018 is
marpinal, the impact assessment demaohstrates that the two
stores would not have a sipnificant adverss irmpact o town
cantra witality and wiability in 2318, which is the policy test s&t
out in the WEPF. Furthermorz, thare wouold be more than
sutficiant capacity in both convenisncs and comparison poods
Tor Both storss th 24023, basad on a revised and more up-to-date
azsessmment than that uwsed to inforr the preparation of the
Boradale Flan — Local Flan Stratzgy. Althaogh it i3 evidant that
a Booths store would provids an improved rangs and choics of
cohwenience retailing, a3 soupht by the Local Flan Stratepy, it
i3 accepted that another large foodstors in Malten wouold
provide choice and competition for Maorrizon’s and claw back
leakape that i3 poing o stores 2laewhers and this has been
reflected within a number of letters of support received trom
local residants in respect of the application. & largs Toodstore
an WECE and a Booths store on the Livestock Marlest site
weduld have a cormplamantary role o one anather.

B.76 The correspondsnce received from GV A indicates that
Booths  remain wery  concemed’ regarding  the WeCE
proposals, although it i3 not edplicitly stated that they would
not proceed of the WECE proposals were approved and it is
hoted that Booths have edpressed an interzst v the Livestock
Markst site in Tull knowledge of the planning application that
has besn made on the WECE site. Fitzwilliam {halton] Estates
have, howeyer, suppested thal they ke unlikely to Bring torward
the Livestock Markst site scheme if the WECE proposals were
apprived, which woold represent a sipnificant iropact on
planned investroent in the town centre, However, Officers are
of the view that this statement should be treated with & degres
of caution piven that, whilal "wery cancemed, ' Booths havea not
edplicifly stated that thay would not procesd with a store on the
Livestack Market site wers the WECE proposals to be
approvad. With this in mind, thers s no reason o believe that
further investraent in the Livestock Market site in the torm of
compatizon shopping dsveloprsnt would not follaw the
devslopment of a Booths stors, as it i3 considered that Booths
would act as a catalyst for the dsvelopment of the consented
non-tood retail units. On this basis, Cittcers are of the opinion
that Fitzwilliam {Malton] Estates’ corments in respect of ot
Bringing torward the Livestock Markst site should planning
permission be forthcoming for the WECP proposals shouold be
treated with a dapres of caution.

Page 216



877 Motwithatanding this, the Livestock Market sits liss @ the
northarn edpe of the town centre and is not theretors 'fn-
cenire, " which i3 4 pre-raquisite of the impact test containad at
Paragraph 26 of the WEPF and, in any svent, the Livestock
Mlarkat site 3 a sequaentially equivalent site to WECF. The
planned inwestmeant within the Livestock Market site @ not
theretors conferred policy protection undsr the provisions of
the irapact test contained at Parapraph 26 of the WPPE and, 43
such, any iropact on invsstment in the Livestock Marlcet site
would not foma reasonable proonds for refusing planning
permissioh tor the WECP proposals.”

23, The offtcers surmarisad the retail policy considerations as tollows:

579 Capacity i3 not a policy test; it i3 simply an indicator of
whether any retail rapact may occur. Policy BF7 of the Local
Flan Stratepy indicatss thal current commitrmants account tor
the quantitativa convenience  retail nesds o 20260 The
recaphiticn within FPolicy BF7 that corrent commitmants mest
cohvehience retail nesds to 2026 was based upon the findings
of the ‘Ryedale Retall Capaciiy & Impact desessmeni Updaie’
preparsd by Roger Tyra & Partners, which formed part of the
avidence base Tor the Local Plan Strategy. However, it should
ba  acknowledped that the Betaldl Capacity & Impact
#aseasment Update was prepared in 2011 and it i3 claarly
important that forecasts of nasd are kept undar repular reviaw.
The assasarent of capacity for additional retail floorspacs rauost
be considersd on the basis of the latest available evidence to
ahzure that retail nesds are met The independent asssssment of
the proposals wndartaken by England & Lyles dermonstratas that
the capacity tor the propossd foodstors, 43 well 43 the appraved
schema on the Livestock Market site, would be marginal in
28, howsver, the impact assessment demaonstrates that the
devslopment of both schemes wouold not have 4 sipnificant
adwersa impact on whn centke vitality and wiability in 24018,
wehich i3 the policy test outlined in the NEFE. Furthermors,
there would be more than sefficient capacity in both
convenience and comparison poods for both storss in 2023,
weithin the Local Flan period.

B.82 It i3 apresd that the proposed foodsters on the WECE site
is nat likely to hawve any adverss impact wpon the abiity o
Brig torvard any other plannad investment in edisting centres.
Whilat it has been suppested that Fitzwilliam {Malton) Estates
would not bring forward the Livestock Markst site scheme,
which has secured retailer intersst from Booths, of the WECP
proposals wars approvad, if has been demonstrated that, whilst
the capacity tor two new Toodstorss {ie. Livestock Markst site
and WECF) in 2018 iz marginal, the bwoe stores would not have

Page 217



20, In the light of thess wiews the officers concluded that the relevant retail planning
policy tests had been passed. Having appraised a ranpe of other topics unrelated to
retail planning the overall conclusion reached by the officers was that planning
permizsion should be prantzd. That conclusion was accepted by the members and
permission was oltirmately prantzd following the complation of a 3106 oblipation on

a siphiticant adverss impact oh town centre vitality and
viability tn 2018, which i3 the policy test st oul in the NEPF.
Furtherrore, there would be mors than sutficient capacity in
bath convenishcs and comparison poods for both stores in
223, based on a revised and more wp-ti-dats azsesamant than
that used to inform the preparation of the Ryedale Flan — Local
Flan Stratzgy. Although it i3 evident that a Booths store would
provides an irmproved ranpes and choice of convenisncs retailing,
a3 soupht by the Local Flan Stratepy, it 3 accepted that anathear
lamge  foodstore in Malten  wouold provide choice and
cormpetition tor Maorison s and claw back leakape that is going
te storss elsewhers and this has been reflactad within a number

of letters of support recaived from local residents in respect of
the application.

6.85 Officers are of the view that the statement trom
Fitzwilliam {Malton] Estates that they would not bBring forward
the redevelopraznt of the Livestock Market site if the WECP
proposals are approved should be treated with a depres of
caution givan that, whilst ‘wery concermed,’ Booths have not
eaplicitly stated that thay would not procesd with 4 store on the
Livestock Markst site wers the WSCEP proposals to be
appraved. With this in mind, thers i3 ng reason o belicee that
turther investment in the Livestock Markst site in the form of
cofmparizon shopping development would not follow the
devslopment of a Booths stors, a3 it i3 considered that Booths
would act as a catalyst for the developrasnt of the consentad
hoh-food retail units.

.84 Motwithatanding this, the Livestock Market sits liss to the
noerthern edpe of the town centre and i3 not thersfors in-
cenire, " which is 4 pre-raquisite of the impact test containad at
Paragraph 26 of the WEPF and, in any svent, the Livestock
Mlarkat site 3 a sequaentially equivalent site o WECF. The
planned inwestmeant within the Livestock Market site @ not
theretors conterred policy protection undsr the provisions of
the irapact test contained at Parapraph 26 of the WPPE and, 43
such, any impact on investmant in the Livestock barket site
would not foma reasonable proonds for refusing planning
permissioh tor the WECP proposals.”

12% Beptermber 2014,

The Law

Page 218



3.

3.

32

The prant of planning permission i3 governad by sMH2) of the Town and Country
Flanning Aot 19943 which raquires the decision maksr i have rapard o the provisions
of the davelopment plan and any other material considsrations. Additionally s38{6) of
the Planning ahd Compulaery Purchaze Act 20K provides that if the datermination is
bBaing made with repard e the developmant plan than it most ke mads in accordance
with the plan unless material considsrations indicate otherwise. The interpretation of
the daweloprment plan, and indssd any other planning policy, s a matter of law for the
court {388 Tescn Stores Lirmited « Dundees City Council 2012 UEEC 13).

Heare, as 13 poodd practice, the planning application was determined by a committes
havwing the benafit of an officar’s report. The principles governing the approach to a
cofrmittes report b seak te astablish whether or not thers may have been an arror of
law were captored by Hickinbottom I oin B {Lurich Assumncs Limited Ua
Threadnesdle Investrments] v MWorth Lincolnshire Council 2412 EWHC 3708 at
parapraph 15 as follows:

<L

i. In the abssnce of contrary evidence it i3 4 reasonable
inference that members of the planning committee tollow the
reasonin g of the report, particularly where a recommendation is
adoptad

ii. When challenged such reports are not to be subjacted o the
same exepssis that might be approprate Tor the intarpretation
of a statute: what is required is 2 fair reading of the report a3 2
weNHE Cngequently

“&n application tor Judicial Review based on criticisms of the
planning officar’™s report will not normally begin o skt
conhsideration unless the overall ftect of the report siphificantly
roisleads the cormittae aboul material mattars which thereatter
arz latt uhcorractad at a mesting of the planning committes
betore the relevant decision i3 taken.™ {Cuton Farms, Bamoel
Srniths ©1d Brawery {Tadecastar] v Selbyw District Council {]E‘ﬁ
APl 19977 1997 WL 1106106 per judge LI ashe then was)

iii. In construing reports i has to be borne in mind that they ars
addressed o a “knowladgables readership™, including council
rarnbars “wha, by virtue of that membership, may be expected
td hawa a substantial local and backpround kKnowlzdps” (B v
Mendip District Council a0 parte Fabes {2HHF 80 F and CER
SOHF per Sullivan I as he then was). That background knowledps
ihcludes ™a working knowledpe of the statutory tests”™ for
determination of 4 planning application {Cuten Farms per Pill
L.

One of the malters capabls of being a material consideration in the determination of a
planning application s a previous decision, in particular 4 previcus appeal decision.
The commencement of the jurisprudencs in relation to this issus i3 the case of North
Wiltshire District Council v Secretary of state for the Envirenment [1993] 65 P&CRE
137 ab page 145 whera Mann LI observed a3 follaws:

Page 219



“Ti state that like cases should be decidsd alike presupposss
that the 2arlier case i3 alike and s net distinguishable in some
relevant respect. B it is distinguishabls then it usually will lack
rnateriality by reference o consistency although it may be
material in some other way Whers it i3 indistinguishabla then
grdinarily it muost ke 4 material considaration. & practical test
tor the Inspector is te ask himselt whether, if | decide this cass
i a particular way am | necessarily agresing o disapresing
with some critical aspect of the decision in the previcus case?
The areas tor possible apresment or disapreement cannot be
defined but they would inclode interpretation of policies,
assthatic judpments and asssssment of need. Whers there is
disaprazment then the Inspector rust weipgh the previcos
decision and pive his reasons for departure from it These can
o oocasioh be ghort, Tor eampls in the case of disapresment
ih assthatics. On other oocasiens  they may have to be
glabarate ™

33, This iEsue was turther considered by the Court of Appeal in the case of Dunster
Proparties Limited v FES MHF? EWCA Civ 236 where Lloyd LI ab paragraph 23

atatad a3 follows:

*In my judpment, notwithstanding Ms Olley's sobmission o
the contrary, Mr Read did not adequately perform his
obligation to give reasons for this decision in respect of his
refusal to follow the basis of the sarlisr appeal decision which
wedd 4 roaterial congideration. In this respect it s2ems o be that
by declining to comrnent, other than to reter to his own reasens
already eapressed, Mr Mead appears not to have taced up to his
duty to have repard to the previous decision so Tar as it related
o the point of principle as a material considemtbion. &n
omission to deal with the contlicting decision, as in the Marth
Wiltshire case, mightn’t have been sufficient in itself. Bub Mr
hizad’s last sentance in paragraph 8 suppests that he has not
prasped the intellactual netile of the disapresment, which is
what i3 needad i he i3 o have had proper repard to the
previous decision. Either he did not hawve a proper regard o it,
in which case he has failed to fulfil the duty to do so, or he has
done 30 but has not axplained his rmasons, th which case he has
not dischargad the obligation te pive his reasens.™

34. The szsence of the principle has also been applisd, as 4 matter of comrmon law, to
previous decisions of the local authority and their relevance o subsequent decisions.
In the case of B {Thorpson] v Catord City Council 2014 EWCA Civ 94 Lloyd Tones
LI statzd at parapraph 34 a3 follows:

“The principles stated in Dunster are of peneral application and
arz hot Limitzd to planning cases. The adplanation provided by
Llawd LI as to why the reasons prwvided wers inadsquats was
ih ni 32nse depandant on the planning contedt: on the contrary
it flows Trofm the function of reasons a3 a safepoard to sound

Page 220



35,

36.

3.

decisiaon making. Morsowver, | do not consider that Dunster
turnzd on its particular facts or the refusal to pive reasons
Tollowing a requast. Accordingly, | considar that whils it was
open to the Bub-Comrmittes in the present cass o depart trom
the dzcision of its predecessor, it was wndsr a duly o take
account of the sarlizr descision, to grasp the netlle of any
disaprezment with the zarlier decision and to statz (3 reasons
tor coming e a diffsrent conclusion. That obligation to pive
PEASONE Ari3es ab comioan law Y

Turning to the 3suss arding v relation o Enviconmental Impact Asssssment,
Regulatioh  3{4] of the Town and Couontry Planning {Environmsntal Irapact
Azzessment] Repulations 2011 prevents the decision maker from granting planning
permizsioh tor development which i3 EIA  developrasnt without having  first
conhsidered the snvirenmental information relavant to the developrsnt in the Term of
an Envirchmental Impact #sssssment. Bapolation 5 entitles a proposed daveloper o
raquest trom 4 local planning authority 2 Scresning Opinion, namely a dstermination
a3 to whethar or not ther proposed development s BELA dzvelopment.

In thiz case the quastion has arisen a3 to the correct approach o when, a3 a matter of
law, a devaloprent which has been the subject of' a Bcreening Opinien may raquirs a
turther Ecrzening Opinion ih ordar to dischargs the oblipation under Regulation 3 of
the 2411 Repulations. Refsrence was mads to the decision of Lindblom I in The
Quesn {on the application of CERE Liohbrook {gensral partners] Limited] v Roghy
Borcuph Council and anather 2014 EWHC 646. The circumstances of that case wars
that a planning applicatioh had Been mads by the intzrestad party and been the subyect
of a nepative Bcreening Opinion in September 2411, The application then changed
and in Wovember 2012 consultants instructed on behalt of the interested party drew
attentioh to the changes which were cohsidared to be slipht and invitad the local
planning authariby @ considar whethar or not the Scraening Opinign remained valid,
it being the opinion of those consultants that a fresh Scresning Opinien was not
needed. The council’s officer considered that enquiry and concludad that it was not
hecessary to submit a fresh ELA Boresning Opinion.

The roain submission rmads in the challengs browght by an interested dewveloper was
that the council ware compellad by tha 24011 Bepulations to re-screen the developrent
of b traat to enguiry of the consullants as a request for 2 Bcrzening Opinien. The
fudpe concluded that the consultant™s letker was not 4 raquast tor a Boresning Opinton.
It was in truth the assertion that no Turther Scresning Opinion was necassary as thers
had notbeen any matenal altsration to the proposal of its envirgnmental contedt. The
fudpe concludsd that the council’s positioh was lawiul and he sapressed the principles
a3 tollows:

“47. The thrust of this submission [Trom the defendant and
interested party], which | accept, is that the concept of a
devsloprmsent having baen the subject of 4 Boresning Opinion i3
broad encuph to includs a previous scresning process tor an
zarlier wersioh of the proposal, o long 43 the nature and eatent
of any subsequant changss to the proposal do not give rise to a
realistic prospect of a differsnt oulcorns o another tormal
Scheshing process ware o be pane throuph. This i3 classically a

Page 221



33.

30,

roatter of judpraent for “the relavant planning authority™. It will
always turn on the Tacts of the particular case.

48. The essential paint 3 that Bagolation 7 allows the aotharity
i judgs whathar any chanpss (o a proposal are such a3 o cast
doubl on the continuing walidity of the scresning opinion for
the proposal in 13 previcus torm. In principle, and subject to
reviaw by the court on Wednesbury prounds, i s open o oan
autharity o conclode that in the screéshing process if has
already condocted the essential characteristics of the site of
proposal bearihg on the crocial question - whather the
devslopment is likely to have any sighificant effects on the
envirmnment — have baen faken intd account and the ralavant
gcreehing thresholds criteria applisd.

49, I the result of that process was a Boresning Opinion
detarmining that the project was not “E1& developroeant” and if
the result of a Turthar screening process tor the revised proposal
weguld hevitably be the same, the aothority would be abls to
concluds that it’s Scresning Opinioh i3 compstent for the
proposed developroent in s moditied forrm. The judproent
embodied v that Bcreening Opinioh will be nd less valid and
aftective tor the proposal 43 revised as it was for the proposal
az  aofipinally  concsived. The potential  etfects of  the
development will already have besn dzalt with in 2 formal
scrkeshing process. The development would have been “the
subject of a Bcrsening Opinion™ — the concept in Bepuolation
{B). The provisions of parapraphs {4) and {3 of Regulation 5
weill not be engapad. The scraening process will not have o be
repeated. I it were repeated it would be of no benelit to the
autharity, no bensfit teoanyons likely to be affected by the
outcome, and no benafit to the public intersst and the ElA
repire being operated being opsrated with the rigoor required ™

It will be apparent from the facts of that case that the point which arisss in this case,

harmely what i3 the threshold ab which 4 previgosly nepatively screensd propossd
devslopment naeds o be re-scresned in the lipht of chanped circumstances, did not
directly arize. On the tacts of that case there had been no changs in the envirenrsntal
contedt and such chanpes as were proposed to the application were insiphificant.
#octive consideration had been pivan to whathar the new proposals woold have piven
rige bt a potentially different cutooms o the Boresning Opin ion.

Durifig the courss of arpument reterence was mads to the case of Mapsean v B5CLG
and anather {2011) EWCA Civ 863 {which was subsaquenfly applied in the case of
Emyth v EBCLG and others 2013 EWHC 3844). The circummstances of that case were
that follewing a positive Scresning Opinien by the local planning authority the
propoensnt of the developrment asked the Secretary of State for a screening dirsction
uhder Repulation 6 of the 2011 Repulations. Buch a dirsction is binding on the
planning authority for the purpose of reaching its decision on the application. The
Secretary of State concluded that the proposed devslopment was not ElA
devslopment. After the screening direction and betore the consideration of an appaal

Page 222



apainat the subsequant refusal of planning permission the site becams part of an area
designatad a World Heritape Zit2. The challenpe procesdsd on the basis that the
Inspecter cught te have invited the Becratary of Brale o reconsider the screshing
direction which had been tssusd in the light of the World Heritape Site designation.
Lord Justice Sullivan sapressed his conclusions on this poeint a3 ©llows:

w2 It is common pround that an Inspector detarmining an
appeal on behall of the Beorstary of Btate does have powsr to
tnvite the Becretary of State to reconsidar 4 screening direction.
Although the obseryations of Simon Brown LI in paragraph 24
of Ewans wers obiter they do in omy judpsroent provide
eminently ssnsibla puidslines as to the circumstances i which
an Inspector not rerely ray but should invite the Secretary of
State o reconsidsr 4 screshing dirsction with a wiew 0
deciding that an application Tor planning permission i3 atter all
an application tor ElA development. An Inspactar i3 undar an
oblipation to invite the Becretary of State o reconsider the
roatter only if the Inspector considers that, becauss Tor example
of a chanpe of circumstances, such as the inscription of the
WHE in the present case, thers 5 “ab the wery l2ast a realistic
prospect”™ of the Becretary of Blrate coming to a different
gereening conclusion. Althaugh Evans was a case where the
scresning dirsction had precedsd an inquiry by only a few
rmonths, 1 4o not accept Mr Elolingky’s submission fhat the
obaervations in parapraph 24 of Evans are not applicable to the
circumatances of the pressnt case whare thers was a change of
circurnstances by reason of the inscription of the WHSE atter the
gcreehing direction. The court plainly had th mind cases whers
“other material facts [corns] to light™ after the screening
direction. Whether those other material facts come to lipht
because they were not appreciated at the time of the dirsction
of becanse of a subssquent changs of circumstances is in my
judgroent immaterial. The puidance is equally well applicable.

21, Althouph as Mr Eolingky submits, it is for the Bacratary of
State to decide whether a proposed developrent i@ liksly to
hawe sipniticant environmental effects for the purposs of
issuing a screening direction, whether there 3 a “realistic
prospect” of the Becretary of Btate changing his of her opinioh
az to the likely environmental effects on the development is
pre—sminsntly a mattar of planning judpraent for the Inspector.
The Inspector’s judpmant on that issus can be challznped on
rationality pround: sez Evans It is not for the court te decide
tor itzelf whether there was of was not 2 “realistic prospect™ of
the Secretary of State rnaking a difterent screening direction.

2. Pracisely because an Inspectar has o wsz his ar har own
planning judgraent on that issus the mere fact that he or sha has
not been asked by any of the parties to the appeal to exercise
the powsr to reter the rmatter back to the Bacratary of State will

Page 223



4].

42,

not necsssarily be fatal to a lepal challsnge to a failure to
axercize power. Howsevear, an applicant under 2288, which iz of
course concerhed with an error of law on the part of the
Inspecter datzrmining the appeal, will tace a Tormidabls task in
such a case & &288 challenge in those circumstances will
succeed only iof the court i3 satistied thal any reasonable
Inspecter would, on the facts befors the Inspector i that
appeal, hawe concloded that they shoold exercise the powser o
reter the matter back to the Bscratary of State of their own
roatich, hot withstanding the fact that they had not been asked
bt Ao S0 b any party e the appeal ™

The decision in the case of Mapsean {and to some satent in the CBRE case] was
diftzrent to the pressnt circumstances. In Mapeean the Inspector had to considsr
axercising his of her planning judprasnt a3 to whether on the facts as known at the
tirns of the appeal the screening direction should be rferred back to the Secretary of
Etate. Here the question iz when, in the absence of that oblipation, the point arises
wehere consideration should be piven as o whether or not the Scresning Opinion
cught o be revisited. The challenpe is not therefors o a positive decision not to
reconsider an zarlier Scresning Opinion; the challenpe is to a fafure to considsr the
point at all.

In roy wigw the perm ol the answer to this quastion i3 o be found in both of the
autharities o which | hawe referred. In parapraph 47 of the CBRE cass Lindblom [
cavzatad the braadth of a previous screening process by stating that it would continue
tr have validity “so long a3 the nature and satent of any subsaquent chanpss o the
proposal do not give rise o a realistic prospect of a diffsrent cuteoms o another
Tormal scragning process ware Lo be pons throuph®™. In the Mapesan case the question
tor the Inspector distilled in parapraph 21 of the judpment is “whether ther i3 2
“rzalistic prospect” of the Secratary of State changing his of her opinion™. Thus the
tripper point, if 4 developrasnt has beeh previcusly nepatively scraensd, to deternine
wehethar any change in i3 envirgnmental contadl oF its proposals require considaral on
i b2 piven as b owhether or not the Scraening Cpingn dught b be revisited in ordar
te dizcharps the duty under Repulation 3{4) at the point at which consent is grantad is
whether or not thoss changes create any realistic prospect of the Bcresnin g Opinion
being difterent. I such circurastances arize and the local anthority apply thair mind to
the point and reach a further negative Bcreening Opinion then that i3 a dscision
challan geabla on the normal poblic law proends. Failurs W pive any consideration @
the izsue places the local authority in the position of subsequantly pranting perrmission
tor ElA development withoot having gone throuph the procedors required for ElA
daveloproent by the 2011 Bapolations.

It s correct to obszrre that the 2411 Repulations o not edpressly contain any
cohtinuing duby in relation to Bcheduls 2 dsvelopment which has been previcuosly
nepatively scrsened. However, | accept the submission mads on behalt of the clairmant
by Br Strachan QT that the sffect of Repulation 3{4) iz that the discharpe of the
requiremants ohdsr the Repolatioh crystallises at the poaint abt which planning
permission i3 granted since at that point the Repulations praclude the grant of consent
tor daweloprmsnt which is in truth El& dsveloprasnt It follows that in order to
discharpe that oblipation it i3 necessary for a decision makar, dzaling with 2 Boheduls

Page 224



43,

2 dzveloproent subject of 4 nepative Boresning Opinion {and not the subject of a
detinitiwe direction in that respect under Bepolation 3] of the 2011 Repulations) to
cohtinua b ehsure that the requirements of the Rapgolations and the directive are maet
threughout the litetire of the application prior te consent.

Dznial of this propositien could envisape a Schedule 2 application being mads to the
local authority and the subject of 2 nepative Scraening Opinion followsed by a chanpe
ih its envirenrental circurmstances of in the nature of the proposal which wouold maks
it obwiously E14 developrent bul which 43 a result of the sarlier Screening Opinion
the local authority were undar ng duby or oblipation o recongider. Such an approach
would l2ad to the grant of consent Tor that developrasnt withoot it having been the
subject of ElA contrary to Bzpolation 3{4) and indesd the wider scope and broad
purpose of the parant Dirsctive. In such circumstances, therstore, the local planning
authority are cleady undsar an oblipation in grdar to dischargs their dofizs under the
2011 Rapulations o ksep the circurstances of the application under revizw and, if
thare i3 4 realistic prospect that a change of circumatances may lead to a differant
gutcoame e the Screening Opinion, to reconsider that question. That i3 the Key
differenca betwsesn the present case and the CBRE casz. In the CBRE case the
question was condidersd and a conclugion reached; in the present case the question
wedd Mever considared atb all.

Cirhel waians

A4,

Drurifig the course of arpursnt the prounds as originally plaadsd by the claimant wers
refashionad and | proposs te dzal with them in the mannsr in which they smerpad
during tha haaring.

Grtubd ]

45,

6.

Priot to embarking upon the substance of Ground 1 it is iroportant o oftfer some
gbaervations about submissions that were made in relation to the corract approach o
the officer’s raport. Attention was drawn to the 2atensive backpround documentation
which was appendsd to the officer’s report topether with other docurmentation
cirgulated during the committes maeting. Motwithatanding this ratarial in o visw it
rmust ke the officer’s analysis which is the key o understanding the members
decision and the legality of it In this case they Tollowed the officar’s recormmendation
and prantzd planning permission and thersfors can be taken o sndorse the officer’s
reasons in reaching that decision. The basis for the recommendation is, of course, set
out in the officar’s report not the backpround documentation. That material no doubt
i3 present to provids further information but it i3 irmportant to note that it containg
rnaterial on both sides of the argpument. The resolution of those issues and the
fustification for the decision to grant permission is Tound within the officer’s report
and in particular within the officer’s conclusions on the various topics that wers
raizzd. It is theretors o the officer’s report that it i3 necessary to look Lo see whether
thars has baen any arror of law.

Ground 1 is the allegation that the officer’s report siphificantly misled the comrmittes
about the contents of the Inspector’s report i relation o the saquential approach.
Betors snpaping with that arpurent in detail it is worthwhile abserving that in this
case it i3 bayvond argument that the Inspector’s dzcisionh on the claimant’™s appeal was
an iroportant material considsration that carried sipnificant weight. Bo much was

Page 225



47,

43.

obaervad it termms in paragraph 6.28 of the officer’s report. Thus whilat the Inspector’s
dacisioh was obwvicosly net binding on the mambers if was nonathelzss a weighty and
sighificant matter in their decision making procsss. It i3 also wndoobtzd that in
relation b the tssus of the sequential tast the Inspector had mads an assessment of the
same izsue apainst the backproound of, for instance, the same physical circumsta ness
on the pround in relation to the location of the sites, the disposition of surrounding
uzes and their relationship te the functioning of the town centre. Equally claarly the
Inspactor had reachad a contrary conclusion e that which was conterplated by the

interested party and the council’s consultants in ragpect of the status of the WECP
gite.

Hawving considersd the material in this cass | am satistied that the officer’s report did
ruislead roernbers, and roislead them sipnificantly, as to the findings and conclusions
of the Inspector in relation to the saquential test. The starting point of the officer’s
repart {having set cub solsly paragraph 32 of the Inspector’s decision] was that the
Inspecter’s conclusions ware ‘hot fully reasonsd other than pointing o poorer
pedestrian links’. That observation which appears to be the summation of the officer’s
uhderstanding of the Inspector’s conclusions was nob mersly a pross over
simplification but fundamentally misrepresantad the Inspector’s decision. A3 will be
clear frorm the far rore sdtensive passapes trom his decision that | have set oot above
his conclusions were fully raasoned and in a mannar which was lepally impeccable
{ragardless of the fact that thare was no challengs by the council on this basis after the
decision was recetved). The totality of the reasons for his decision are to be found
Tror parapraphs 21 of the dacision latter onwards. Withoul repeating them, thoss
Feasons wers not ohly Toully sapressed bob covered 2 ranpe of avidence to which the
Inspecter was referring when, in parapraph 32, he rélated his conclusions to th &
submitted evidence as 2 whele’. The reasons providsd enpaped firstly the consistent
tindings of BTP in relation to the saquential preference for the LME site bearing in
raind its idaal location Tor incorporation within the functioning of the town centre and
itz ability to operats as an sdtension of the town centre unlike the WECP site. The
Inspecter’s analysis also enpaped with the erronsous approach of the detendant in
their datzrrmination of the LME application and, irmportantly, their revised stance that
in fact the LME site was the best site sequentially and their conclusions in the first
reason tor refusal could notstand to the axtent that no further decision could be mads
ah the WECE site ontil the srronegus sequantial analysis was cormected by a new
report re-advising the cormittze. Whilst if s not made sdpress ng doubt such a
corrected report would have involved re-advising members along the lines of the
revised podition which the council presentzd to the appeal. Further the Inspectoar’s
reasons enpaped with the consistency of his conclusion with emerging developreant
plan policy. Thus tar from Being “not fully reasonsd’ the Inspector’s decision, which
wead addregsed tooan informed avdisnce not 1east the defendant, erobraced in its full
reasons a range of pieces of avidence 4ll supporting the conclusion that the LME site
wad decisively preferable to the WECE site in tarms of the sequential st

This l2ads to the second way in which Ground 1 i3 pul, narely that since the officers
wegka (Witing membars W reach 4 contrary conclusion on the saquential test to that
which had Been reached by the Inspector, did they provids adequate reasons to justity
that disapreement and an alternative dacision ¥ In my vigw it i3 clear that they did not.
That is parhaps unsurprising piven that they thaopht, arranaoosly, that the Inspector’s
repart wash’t tully reasoned’ save with respect to pedestrian links. A3 & result of not

Page 226



44,

having propetly appreciated the wealth of reasoning provided by the Inspector they
therzattar do not sngape with those reasons in sdplaining why a different answer o
the ona reached by the Inspector should be provided. There is in the officer’s raport at
parapraphs 628 — 6.38 {and in particular in parapraph 6.29] no mention of the
previcus congistent advice from BTP providing the evidence bass for the local plan
strategy, the council’s previcus position and no engapament with the substance of the
points raised by RTP and the Inspector in relation o the capacity of the LME site to
inteprate intirnately with and function as part of the town centre without any
intervening developrmant which undarpinned the praference for the LME site and the
cohclusieh in the RTP evidence that the WECP site was far less soitable as an
adtansion o the thwn cantre. The principle paragraph which deals with the Inspactor’s
conclusions, parapraph 6.29, focuses on distances betwesn the town centre and the
sites and the potential for linkage bot does not dzal with the capacity for physical
intepration. & subsequent assertion later in the report that the WECE sitz “also has
pitential to form an edtension to the twn centrs” which was relizd upon by the
detendant and the interested party in their submissions does not assist in that regard.
This is bacause that assertion does not enpape with the conclusions of RTP and the
Inspecter that it was the abssnce of existing intervening developroant and uses
betweesn the site and functional town centre which rendered the LME site prefarabla
and, in termas, the WELCF 1233 30 This obaarvation does nothing to 2xplain why thoss
zarlier, less assertive and more fully sdaplained justifications for preferring the LME
site ars to be overridden. The reasons theretors are ihadequatse.

I am unable to accept the submission mads by Mr Toucker QO on behall of the
interested party that this was a matter, like for instance an assthatic judpment, whars
reasons could be simpls or briet This was an 3508 which related to saplaining earlier
and fully reasoned conclusions in both earlisr independent advice obtained by the
council trem BTP, and alsa the full reasons provided by the Inspector. Thess sarlier
fudgrsnts were not subjective assessments for instance in rdlation too visual
irpregsieh, bul wers prooundsd in the physical circumstances of the sites and
surrcunding uses and their physical prodirity and linkages to the functional town
cantre. It required tn ry judpment reasons and eaplanations which wers alb lezast
cofmparable Lo those which the defendant was sesking o patn say, and mat the points
with which they disapreed. Littfle more than contradiction is not an adaquate torm of
reasoning in thess circurnstances. It is notable that the officers did not in the materal
that they privvided sesk to rely upon any physical or other contadtoal or policy matters
which had changed since the clatrmant’s appeal. | am theretors satistied that the
reasons providad by the officers in support of the conclusion that a differant decision
should be reached from that of the hapector was basad on misleading advice to the
cofrmittes and was inadequately reasoned. A1 that said thers is an important ssus for
discration which | shall analysa later.

Grouhds 2 and 4

3

These b prounds run topethar and they ars baged on the allepation that the officer’s
report tailed to take account of or advise members about the Inspector’s conclusions
ih particular ab parapraph 44 of his dacision that the LME site should be treated for
planning purposes a3 part of the town cehtre in particular when assessing retail impact
and its quantitication.

Page 227



3l

32

335,

34,

Having analysed the officer’s report thers i ne doubt that it did not reter at all toe the
Inspector’s conclusions in parapraph 44 of the decision that ‘having repard to the
council’s aspirations Tor additional ratail areas in the ‘Marthern Are” 38t oot within the
emerging LES the LME proposal should be ssen as contributing o town osntre
turticedar and creating {in the analysis then available) a 24 % positive mpact oh the
trwn centre™s tumawer. The question thal arises i3 a3 o whather or not that omission
raiglesd the members signiticantly, or alternatively whether that left oot of account a
roaterial considaration in the analysis of retail policy and retail rapact.

Having considersd the subrmissions mads in this respect 1 am in ng dookt that this
oraizsion did amount o sighificantly mislzading the members about an important
matarial considsration, namely the conclusions previcusly rsached by the Inspector.
Althouph, a3 szt oul above, reference was rmads in the officer’s report o the LME site
having the ability to form a logical satzngion to the towh centre whal was important in
this respect was the failure of the analysis in the officer’s report in relation to retail
impact to treat the LME site {as the Ingpector had) as part of the town centre for the
purposes of assessing impact. The econamic modelling rasults which were presented
to roerobers datailing the sffects of the establishment of the WECP proposal did not
gither includs the LME site within the town cantre overall oF, rmors imopaertantly,
analyse in quantative tzrrms the irmpact of the WECPE scheme on the LME proposals.
&3 Mr Tucksr onh behall of the interested party correctly observad the aclusion of the
LME sitz from the ovarall turnover of the towh cahtre i3 perhaps of little moment.
That i3 Becaose its inclusien would have dilutad the impact percentapes craated by the
WECP schems. The real question that was obvicusly and in any event betore the
roarfobars was the effects of the WECP proposal on the LME schems.

The officer’s report repeatedly contends that the LME site is not protectsd by
parapgraph 26 of the Framework because it is not in the town centre. That is an
absarvation that is mads in parapraphs 645, 6.69, 677 and 6.84. That 3 a cohclosion
which has, howswsr, besn reached withoot regard to the imporant material
cohsideration that the Inspector concludsd i analysing the irmpact of the LME site
that it should be includsd within the town centre. B the Inspector’s approach had been
taken inte account that conclusion may well have been very differsnt. His
ihcomporation of the LME site in the centre would have justified s inclusion in
parapgraph 26 as a commmitment to planned in centre investrient. Thus the sxclosion of
thiz aspect of the Inspector’s decision on the clairmant’s appeal meant that the
application of the Framework’s policy osocurred withoul taking account of 4 matsrial
COhE idara ticn .

During the coumse of argument Mr Manlay QO submittzd on behalt of the dstendant
that the LME site could anly ever be an edpe of centre site and therstors could never
b protected by parapraph 26 becawse the LME schame had not been dewveloped and
the proposal had not besh implemented. Inory judpment that is an interpretation of
the policy which is difficult if not impossibla o sustain sspecially Bearing in mind the
particular circumstances of the present case The reference in paragraph 26 Lo
‘comroittad and planned poblic and privats investmant in 4 centre o centres” claarly
contemplates davelopments which are planned for and have yet o materialise on the
grownd. The particular circurnstances invalvad in the presant case ars that the LME
proposal was a commitrment tor which perroission had been prantsd on the basis that it
would function a3 part of the town centre and indeed the sapenditure it penerated

Page 228



35,

36.

.

38,

should b counted a3 part of the toewn centre. Furthermars the reference in parapraph
26 to the analysis of irmpact "up to five years Trom the time the application was made’
ahvisapss 4 progpective sdamination of retail impact. Thos in the particolar

circumatances of this case the application of parapraph 26 to the LME site cannot be
edcludad.

Mr Tucker submitted that thers was no need for any quantitied assessment of the
impact on the LME scheme, bat the difficulty with that subraission is that if paragraph
26 applied that 3 precizely what if requirss and indesd what was wndertalken and
reportzd to members in terms of the impact upon both Malton towh centre as a whale
and individual 2lements of it such a3 the Morrison’s store. This {so far as possible)
objective, transparent and quantitied analysis is 4 well recoghised means of testing the
aconomic impact of retail proposals.

It is corract to observe that a3 set out above in their latter of 8 fpril 2414 EL appeat
tr hava undertaken some analysis of the irmpact on the LME sters and placed a figurs
of 16%% a3 an outcoms of their analysis. Howsver, that rmaterial did not fzaturs as any
part of the officer’s conclusions and further, and perhaps mors roportantly, was
accompanied by the obwisosly erronsous conclusion that the impact an the LME
propasal was not 4 material consideration. That was a proposition which neither Mr
mlanlay nor br Tucker wers prepared to suppart and rightly s¢. The appreach which |
take b this roatarial i3 povarned by what |have sat gut abovs in parapraph 45 The e
April lettar was part of the background raterial furnished to members bot it is clear
this element of their advice did not feature in the officer’s conclusions which are the
important source tor the member’s reasons. IE 1 were wrong abouot that and reliance
wad b be placed upon this raterial as perfecting the absence of any analysis of
impact on the LME proposal then it is in turn atiected by the lapal error of suppesting
that that iS3us was imrmateral.

It & sirailar vein, bath n relation te these prounds and alsoe Grrand 1, reliance was
placed by the detendant and the interasted party on the fact that members had access
b the Inspector’s report. | am onable to accept that this step perfected or overcams the
arrors which | have identified. Firstly, for the reasons which | have given above, in
circumstances where the members accepted the officer’s recommendation the basis
tor that racom mendation providss the reasoning W justify it and in this case that is as
set gut in the officer’s conclusions. In any event it is clear that the Inspector’s decision
wad ohly provided o members on the night of the mesting and not as part of thair pre-
reading. Providing them with a relatively lenpthy decision letter at the start of the
rnesting was no sensible substitute Tor the officers providing them with proper advics
a3 to the content and conclusions of this earlier sighiticant decision.

To conclude, the omission of any mention of the Inspector’s conclusions in relation to
the incorporatioh of the LMS site within the town centre for retail impact purposss
wad a material and siphificant misrepresentation to mermbers. Wo reasohs wers
provided for departing from the Inspector’s conclusion. The concdlusions which the
officars reached and which the members adopted on the application of parapraph 26
of the Framswork and the absence of protection for the LME proposal were rmads
withoul regard to that iraportant material consideration and thus wers unlawtul

Page 229



Grund 3

5.

w13

In this ground the claimant contends that, in particular in paragraph 676 of the
officar’s report, the defendant conflated the visw of Booths {who were solely the
proposed tenant and operator of part of the proposed scheme] with the views of the
clairmant {who had to fund and davslop the totality of the proposal]. Having reviewsd
this elarnent of the officer’s report it is clear in my view that sach of the positions of
the parties, both Booths and the clatamant, wers fairly and properly put befors
mambers. Howsever, beyond the advice that the claimant®™s vigws should be treated
with caotion it is a little unclear what definitive view the officers formed about the
prospects of the LME proposal being implemented of consent was prantzd for the
¥WECF scheme They ssemed to conclods that it woold still happsan but during the
coursz of arpument Mr hManlay was unwilling to be detinitive a3 to what precisely the
prospect of that scheme happening was in the minds of the officers. Whilst | am not
satistied that on a fair and Tull reading of the officer’s report they muddled wp or
conflated the views of the claimant with that of Booths and thersfore provided
rneribers with incohersnt advice, the failure of this ground does not overcome in any
way the problamms which | have identitied for the detendant in relation to Grounds 2 &
4.

The ‘caution’ that the officers counselled in relation to the claimant’s vigws of the
prospects tor the LME site coming forward is qualitied by the contzntion that becanse
the LME site iz not part of the town centre paragraph 26 of the Frameword did not
apply. For the reasons | have already piven the latter conclusion was infected with
arror and led to a failure to undertake any quantitizd impact analysis on the LME
schema. I the Inspector’s conclusions had been taken into account and his approach
of including the LME within the town centre had been adopted then the econormic
trapact of the WECP would have bean fully analysed and that would have provided an
important means of tasting the realism of what both the claimants and Booths wers
contending. A3 a result of the approach in the officer’s report and the absence of
analysing the impact on the LKE schere the conclusions which they reached in
relation to the impact on planned investment weare ihchoatz. A 4 resoll simpls
reparting of the position of the clairmant and its intended operator did not amount to
reaching a decision on plannsd investrisent bassd opon all of the relevant or
potantially relavant rnaterial congiderations.

Grtubd &

&1

2.

For the reasons which | have sat out abowve in relation to the lepal argument which
relates to this ground | am satistied that the correct approach is that the dsfendant
nesded to keep under continual review the walidity of the Bereening Opinion which it
had given bearing in mind any changss in circumstancss which might lead tooa
Aittzrent conclusion. In the light of that lepal backpround the factual questioh which
then emerpes is a3 o whether or not there were any chanpes in the circumstances of
the WELCP proposal which raight lead to a different conclusion being reached and
wehich required attention i be piven o whether the Bcreening Opinign needad o be
recingide red.

There i3 no doubt ih ey izw that the ariginal Scresnin g Opinioh requast mads by the
interested party clearly drew attention to the sistence of the LME proposal as an
application Tor planning perrission atb the time when the request was made. Equally

Page 230



B3.

clearly the reference o it in paragraph 4.2 in relation to comolative sffect relates to
environmental impacts caused by built developroent. Parapraph 4.3 of the raqusst then
pioes oh b deal with the sconomic effects and in particular considerations of retail
impact. There can be ne doubt that this parapraph in relation te sconomic sffects is
predicated on the MNLE ‘conclusioh that anly one new largs convenience store J
Toodstore can be accomrmodated in Malten or the district penerally’. Thass
parapraphs, ona dzaling with sffects from built devdlopraznts and the other dzaling
with sconomic sffects are the foundation of the conclusion suppestad in parapraph 4.4
of the raquest that cumolative sffects wouold not pive rise o any signiticant
anvironrental sftects warranting E1A.

A wilhess statement has been prodoced from Ms Lancaster who was the officer of
East Riding of Yorkshire Council who undertook the screening opinion. It shoold be
noted that at the tirme when the Borsening Opinioh accurrsd the detendant had passed
the assessment of the LME and WECP applications to East Riding of Yorkshire
Council on the basis that they owned the WECE site. In a withess statement dated the
107 Decermber 2004 Ms Lancaster states that she was fully awarz and took into
account the LM application a3 part of the cumuolative impact of the respective retailing
proposals’. It is undsrstandable pivan the rernove of tirme that M3 Lancaster i3 not able
to provids any information beyond that observation. 1 have no doubt that she has been
ihvalvad th considering roany many other applications in the meantime | have
aqually no doubt that she was awara and ook account of the LME application in
torming har Jisw a3 s&t oot above that its sdistence was drawn Lo her attention
through the screening raquest. Howevsr none of this answers the critical quastion
which i3 whether or not the cumulative sconomic effect of both stores in operation
wad taken inte account in the Bereening Opinion. On the basis of the evidence which |
haws set out | arm not satistied that it was. Indesd, | can 322 no reason why Ms
Lancastar would have considersd the corwlative sconhomic eftect of both schemes
trading when she had been told in the screening raquest that that was not 4 possibidity.

It may b said that the suppestion that both schemes might be trading {and 1 Bear in
rmind a3 | have already observed the absence of any absolute or definitive position
adopted by the officers in their assessroent of the contentions mads by the clairant
and Booths in respect of iapact on planned investrent]) was not detinitively
concluded upon. Mevertheless once the position had changed from one where only
ane store could possibly be operating o citcummstances where the couhcil wers
uhdoubtedly contzmplating the prospect of both stores operating the need to assess the
curulative ffects of that in economic terms arose leading to the conclusion that on
the basiz that this right lead o a different outcoms o the Boresning Opinion
cohsidaration nesded to be piven to whather or nat the screenin g process should be
revisited. This issus was simply never considered prior to the prant of planning
perrission and that was, in my judpment, an error of law in dealing with the
application.

Criscratian

B5.

In the event of e reaching adverse conclusions in respect of the prounds of challenps
the detendant and the interssted party raised questions pertaining to the starcize of
discretion. | deal with the matters raised in tuen. In particolar in relation e Groand 1 it
wad contendsd that whataver may have been the positioh aboot the Inspector’s
approach o the saquential test, becanse of the scale of the proposal and the inability o

Page 231



tit it on the LME site the conclusion was bound to be reachad that the WECP proposal
rnet the requirsments of the saquential test because there was no other site suitable o
accormaodate it piven its stz In my view thers is Torce in this submission and it is
ang which is baged clearly on the conclusions set out in the officer’s report that the
scale of the WECP proposal could not be acoommodatzd on the LMS site. That is a
cohclusion which has not and could not in substance be challengad. Thus wers the
arrars contined to Ground 11 would not have been persuadad that it was appropriate
b prant reliet 3o a3 to quash the dacision.

BE. | Ao not considar, howsader, that siriar considerations partain o Grounds 2,4 and 5.
Eotar a3 Grounds 2 & 4 are concernad the failure o take account of the Inspector’s
cohclusions in paragraph G4 in the way that Fhave analysed abowve doss not snabls me
i+ 3ay that wers the matter to be reconsiderad the same dacisioh would arise. Upan
recohstdaration it would be necessary for the defendant to actively consider whether
the Inspecter’s conclusions i paragraph 44 ars accepted, and in accordance with their
lepal duly saplain why they weare not accepted if that bacame their position. I they
did accept the Inspectyr’s conclusions then issues would arise horelation o the
analysis of the irpact on the LME scherme which have not Been wundartaken. & rangs
of planning judprents thersfors would nsed to be reached and it is simply not
possible o conclude that the decision would nevitably {or 2ven very liksly) be the
Fame.

g7,  Bimilarly in relation W the Screaning Opinien oandsr Groond 3, whilst @b was
cohtehdad by the defendant and the interested party that there was no evidence to
sugpest that any differant conclusions might bBe reached |am not satistiad that that is
the cage. As was pointed out by M Strachan in reply this is not a case like the CERE
Ligntrink cass whers the Council had indsed edpressed a view about whather or nat
scresning was required. The fact is that on the conclusions | have rsached the
detendant has never considered the point and on the evidence betors me it i3 simply
not possible Lo say that the difference betwaen both schemes operating and only one
of the schemes oparating i3 50 inconsequantial that the sulcome of re-screaning would
inevitably be the same. This is not a case therefore whers the failure i3 purely
procedural or trivial in character But i3 in truth a matter which calls for investigation
and about which it would be improper b 2dercise discretion.

Crrerall Conclusion

Ba. For the reasohs given the claimant™s case soccesds on Grounds 1, 2, 4 &5 and the
decision of the detendant to grant planning permission on 2% Septembar 2014 o the
interested party shoold e quashed.

Page 232



Agenda Iltem 15

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS

PERIOD 13 JULY - 8 AUGUST 2015

1.

Application No: 14/01267/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Broughton Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Dylan Townend

Location: Quarry Farm Broughton Road Broughton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6QG

Proposal: Erection of a three bedroom replacement dwelling following demolition of existing
two bedroom dwelling and outbuildings

2

Application No:

15/00248/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Heslerton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr John Stroud

Location: Roseville Church Lane East Heslerton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8RN

Proposal: Installation of 10no. solar panelsto south elevation roof slope of existing rear
extension.

3.

Application No: 15/00364/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Nawton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr David Foster

Location: 12 The Sidings Nawton Helmsley North Yorkshire YO62 7TJ

Proposal: Erection of timber garden shed

4.

Application No: 15/00376/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Staxton/Willerby Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs J Flower

Location: 10 Church Walk Staxton Scarborough North Yorkshire YOI12 4SG

Proposal: To crown lift to provide 4m clearance from ground level, and crown reduce laterals
by a maximum of 1.0m T18,19,20,21 (limes)within TP O 327/2010.

5.

Application No: 15/00431/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Harome Parish Council

Applicant: Harome Parish Committee

Location: Sports Field Owmen Field Lane Harome Helmsley

Proposal: Erection of detached sports pavilion with village hall facilities together with

formation of a 15 bay parking areato include the demolition ofthe existing pavilion.

Page 233



6

A'pplicati on No:

15/00524/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Ampleforth Parish Council

Applicant: Ampleforth Surgery (Dr Black And Dr Howlett)

Location: Doctors Surgery Back Lane Ampleforth YO62 4EF

Proposal: Erection of extensionsto south and east elevations of existing building to include
2no. dormer windows to provide a first floor area together with reconfiguration of car
parking area and additional hard and soft landscaping.

7.

Application No: 15/00534/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Sproxton Parish Meeting

Applicant: Ms Rosy Eaton & Mr Fraser Hugill

Location: Throstle Nest Farm Main Street Sproxton Helmsley YO62 SEQ

Proposal: Demolition of existing farmhouse and erection of a four bedroom replacement
dwelling (revised details to approval 14/00606/FUL dated 30.07.2014)

8.

Application No: 15/00535/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mrs C Archibald

Location: Isabella Court 72A Westgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AU

Proposal: To crown lift T1 (sycamore) and T2- T22 (beech) within TPO No. 72/1985 to
provide 5.1m of clearance from ground level.

9

Application No:

15/00557/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Acklam Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Roland Groves

Location: Acklam Grange Main Street Acklam Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9RG

Proposal: Erection of block of four timber stables for domestic use on site of demolished
stables

10.

Application No: 15/00570/HOUSE Decision: Refusal

Parish: Harome Parish Council

Applicant: Mr J Marwood

Location: The Grey House Main Street Harome Helmsley YO62 5JF

Proposal: Replacement of 8no. timber single glazed windows to front elevation with 8no.
PVCU double glazed windo ws

11.

Application No: 15/00577/FUL Decision: Refusal

Parish: Kirby Grindalythe Parish Council

Applicant: Harrison Farms (Kilham) Ltd

Location: Thirkleby Wold Farm Croome Road Sledmere East Riding Of Yorkshire YO25 3XZ

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of pigs.

12.

Application No: 15/00579/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Bisca

Location: Bisca Design (Unit 1) Sawmill Lane Helmsley YO62 5DQ

Proposal:

Erection of eXtBéifél eto Q}gﬂng workshop (Use Class B1)



13.

Application No:

15/00580/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council

Applicant: Mr P And Mrs V Bainbridge

Location: Land And Building Harrow Cliff Hurrell Lane T homton-Le-Dale Pickering North
Yorkshire

Proposal: Change of use of agricultural land and buildings to equestrian, to include installation
of internal partitions within existing buildings to form stabling for up to 19 horses,
tack and feed roomsto form livery and riding centre.

14.

Application No: 15/00582/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Great & Little Barugh Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Allen

Location: Barsdale Farm Wandale Lane Great Barugh Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6 XF

Proposal: Demolition of existing farmhouse and erection of a four bedroom replacement
farmhouse on an adjacent site

15.

Application No: 15/00586/REM Decision: Approval

Parish: Thixendale Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Steve Anstey and Mrs R Smith

Location: Land Behind Round The Bend Main Street Thixendale Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of 1no four bedroom dwelling with integral garage and 1no three bedroom
dwelling with detached single garage to include formation of separate vehicular
access for each dwelling and single garage to serve Round The Bend (outline
approved 13/00105/0OUT dated 10.05.2013 refers).

16.

Application No: 15/00587/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Great & Little Barugh Parish Council

Applicant: Mr N Paylor

Location: Bennisons Cottage Barugh Lane Great Barugh Malton YO17 6 XD

Proposal: Erection of brick boundary wall (retrospective application).

17.

Application No: 15/00600/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Barton-le-Willows Parish

Applicant: Mr Andrew Craven

Location: Aspen House Barton Hill Malton YO60 7JZ

Proposal: Erection of two storey front extension - part two storey/part single storey rear
extension with first floor balcony, single storey sun room, raising of roof height of
existing garage and roofing over adjacent open areato form single garage.

18.

Application No: 15/00602/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: McColl's Retail Group Limited

Location: General Store 1 Milton Avenue Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7LB

Proposal: Installation of external staircase and first floor entrance door to rear north elevation

Page 235



19.

Application No: 15/00605/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Leavening Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Smith

Location: Graceland 10The Rise Leavening Malton YO17 9T A

Proposal: Raising of roof height of existing attached garage to allow formation of additional
domestic accommodation to include installation of 3 no. roof lights to east elevation
roofslope and 3 no. roof lights to west elevation roofslope.

20.

Application No:

15/00611/FUL Decision: Refusal

Parish: Nawton Parish Council

Applicant: Miss Jenny Bulmer

Location: Land Rear Of Number 1 Chapel Street Nawton Helmsley

Proposal: Erection of Ino.three bedroom dwelling together with vehicular access, parking and
amenity area.

21.

Application No:

15/00614/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Harome Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs E Sylvia Andrews

Location: Knavesmire View Back Lane Harome Helmsley YO62 5JA

Proposal: Alterations to existing outbuilding to include raising of roof height, timber cladding
and repositioning of entrance door for continued domestic use as hobby room and
store.

22.

Application No: 15/00618/GP AGB Decision: Prior Approval Granted

Parish: Brawby Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Tim Easterby

Location: Mount Sinai Cottage Brawby Lane Brawby Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6QA

Proposal: Change ofuse of agricultural building to athree bedroom dwelling (use class C3).

23.

Application No:

15/00621/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs J & M Read

Location: South View West End Sheriff Hutton YO60 6SH

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey side extension to east elevation.
24.

Application No: 15/00622/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Nawton Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs M Kilcran

Location: The Bield Chapel Street Nawton Helmsley YO62 7RE

Proposal: Erection of enclosed porch tothe rear following demolition of existing enclosed

porch.

Page 236



25.

Application No:

15/00634/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: PKW Properties LLP (Mr Andrew Mason)

Location: 24 Wheelgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7HP

Proposal: Extension of retail area into covered former external passage to include removal of
timber plank door and installation of section of shop front.

26.

Application No:

15/00635/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: PKW Properties LLP (Mr Andrew Mason)

Location: 24 Wheelgate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7HP

Proposal: Extemal and internal alterations to allow extension of retail area into covered former
extemal passage to include removal of sections of existing blockwork wall and
replacement oftimber plank external door by section of shop front

27.

Application No:

15/00639/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Adrian Lawrence

Location: Village Farm Main Street Flaxton Malton YO60 7RJ

Proposal: Installation of 3no conservation style roof lightsto rear roof slope, replacement of
existing first floor casement windows with sliding sash windows to gable ends and
installation of rear entrance door with canopy above.

28.

Application No:

15/00640/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Adrian Lawrence

Location: Village Farm Main Street Flaxton Malton YO60 7RJ

Proposal: Extemal and intemal alterationsto include installation of 3no. conservation style roof
lights to rear roof slope, replacement of existing first floor gable end casement
windows with sliding sash windo ws and installation of rear entrance door with
canopy above following demolition of existing UP VC porch, together with
re-modelling of intemal layout and widening of existing fireplace within proposed
kitchen.

29.

Application No:

15/00649/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs K Davison

Location: Land West Of Middlecave Cottage Maiden Greve Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of 2no. three bedroom dwelling with attached single garage and formation
of individual vehicular accesses.

30.

Application No: 15/00650/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Sproxton Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr Stephen Burgess

Location: Whitestone Lodge Main Street Sproxton Helmsley YO62 SEF

Proposal: Erection of garden room extension to rear elevation.

Page 237



31.

Application No:

15/00651/HOUSE Decision: Refusal

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Matthew Anderson

Location: Welgarth Welburn Malton North Yorkshire YO60 7EP

Proposal: Raising of roof height to include the installation of 7no. dormer windows to allow
formation of first floor domestic accommodation.

32.

Application No: 15/00656/HOUSE Decision: Refusal

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr David Beeson

Location: The Mount 37 Potter Hill Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AD

Proposal: Erection of single storey glazed rear extension to include extension of rear patio with
retaining wall and steps.

33.

Application No:

15/00659/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Westow Parish Council

Applicant: Lady Grimthorpe

Location: Herbert Cottage Main Street Westow Malton YO60 7NE

Proposal: Extemal and intemal alterationsto include removal of east elevation ground floor
window with enlargement of opening to form entrance door, installation of soil vent
pipe to eastem roofslope, reposition doors adjacent to oil tank and utility areas,
installation of intemal platform lift, replacement of section of first floor and
alterations to internal layout to include removal of some mntemal walls and
installation of stoothing walls

34.

Application No:

15/00670/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Keith Davies)

Location: 18 Castlegate Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7DT

Proposal: Intemal and extemal alterationsto include demolition of existing rear lean-to
extension, formation of openingto ground floor party wall between 18 and 20
Castlegate and demolition ofparts of internal wallingto first floorof 18 Castlegateto
form an open plan layout.

35.

Application No: 15/0067 1/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council

Applicant: Felicity Hirst

Location: Souters Cottage Brookside Hovingham YO62 4LG

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension and alteration of rear entrance door and
window to a window

36.

Application No: 15/00672/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council

Applicant: Felicity Hirst

Location: Souters Cottage Brookside Hovingham YO62 4LG

Proposal: Extemal and intemal alterationsto include erection of a single storey rear extension,

alteration of arear entrance door and window to a window, installation of a rooflight
and flue pipe to rear roofslope, removal of false outer wall in kitchen and installation

of aclo akroonﬁlélag I?ggg



37.

Application No:

15/00674/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Norton Town Council

Applicant: Mr Stephen T owse

Location: 115 Langton Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9AE

Proposal: Erection of two storey side extension to include integral garage and front porch
38.

Application No:

15/0068 8/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Slingsby Parish Council

Applicant: Dr Philip Jackson

Location: Southlands The Green Slingsby Malton YO62 4AA

Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension to replace existing porch

39.

Application No: 15/00689/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Derby

Location: Bridge Farm Station Road Gilling East York YO62 4JW

Proposal: Erection of detached garage and store with washroom facilities and additional
storage above.

40.

Application No:

15/00707/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council

Applicant: Ampleforth Abbey & College (Mrs Laura Kilby)

Location: St Martins Ampleforth The Castle Main Street Gilling East Helmsley Y062 4HP

Proposal: Extemal and intemal alterations to North Wing of Foal Yardto include replacement
of 4no. ground floor windows by 4no. entrance doors and alterations to internal
layout.

41.

Application No: 15/00712/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Habton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs M Brennan

Location: Ryton Grange Ryton Rigg Road Ryton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6RY

Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension with glazed link to adjacent out building and
replacement of 3no. first floor windows to north east elevation of existing house.

42.

Application No: 15/00714/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Habton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs M Brennan

Location: Ryton Grange Ryton Rigg Road Ryton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6RY

Proposal: Extemal and intemal alterationsto include erection of a single storey extension with

glazed link to adjacent out building and replacement of 3no first floor windows to
north eagt elevation of existing house.

Page 239



43.

Application No:

Parish:
Applicant:
Location:
Proposal:

15/00724/HOUSE Decision: Approval
Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Mr & Mrs S & C Brackley

Holme Lea Gillamoor Road Kirkbymoorside YO62 6EL

Erection of a single storey extension to south elevation, porch to east elevation and
replacement single storey extension to north elevation following demolition of
existing single storey extension (revised details to part approval 15/00433/HOUSE
dated 03.06.2015)

Page 240



Agenda Item 16
| ﬁiﬁ The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decision
Site visit made on 6 July 2015

by Mrs A Fairclough MA BSc(Hons) LLB(Hons) PGDipLP(Bar) IHBC MRTPI

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 23/07/2015

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/D/15/3013860
9 Ducks Farm Close, Kirby Misperton, Malton, North Yorkshire, England
YO17 6XH

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Andrew Head against the decision of Ryedale District Council.

e The application Ref: 14/01208/HOUSE dated 4 November 2014, was refused by notice
dated 19 January 2015.

e The development proposed is described as a “single story extension to rear of house to
come out 3.3m”.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main Issue

2. The main issue is the effect of the proposed development on the living
conditions of existing and future occupiers of No 9 Ducks Farm Close in terms
of private amenity space.

Reasons

3. No 9 Ducks Farm Close is a 4-bed, end of terrace property within a terrace of
three modern dwellings. The proposal comprises the erection of a single story
brick extension to the rear of the appeal dwelling. It would have a hipped slate
roof and the highest point of the roof would sit slightly below the existing first
floor window cills. The plans indicates that it would be close to the shared
party boundary with No 8, which is a high timber fence, and would project
some 3.3m rearwards from the existing rear elevation into the rear yard.

4. Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy’ (RPLPS) states, amongst
other things, that new development will not have a materially adverse impact
on the amenity of present or future occupants.

5. One of the Core planning principles of the National Planning Policy Framework
(the Framework) is to always seek to secure high quality design and a good
standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings.

6. The private amenity space associated with the appeal dwelling includes a
flagged yard area to the rear, which is some 39.5sgm. The proposal would

! Local Plan Strategy with Main Modifications and Additional Modifications- Text only version dated 5 September
2013.

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectoratepage 241



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/D/15/3013860

10.

reduce this amenity space by approximately half. Although there is additional
space to the side and front of the dwelling with garden furniture and pots,
these areas are highly visible from the street on the basis they have low-level
walls. In any case part of this space is allocated for car parking?.

In my view, a well-designed family size dwelling, such as a 4 bed house, can
reasonably be expected to provide outdoor space for, amongst other things,
children to play safely, the occupiers to sit out in privacy and space for drying
clothes. However, the proposal would result in a rear yard which would be an
awkward tapered shape. The remaining rear amenity area would provide
insufficient space to carry out these activities.

I note that the appellant contends that the use of the space around his dwelling
is his choice and that he has no intention of moving. If he were to do so then
future occupiers could choose to buy his house or not. However, occupation of
property is not permanent in nature in the same way as development is.
Although future occupiers would have the choice of seeing the development
first and then the choice of moving in or not, that does not, in my view, justify
allowing something that I consider would unacceptably harm the living
conditions of whoever occupied that property.

I also note the appellant’s reference to flats without gardens and other
properties in the area with less land that the appeal dwelling. However, the
appeal property is not a flat and as such is distinguishable. In addition, I have
not been made aware of other similar properties in the locality. In any case, I
am required to determine each appeal on its planning merits in the light of
current policy. I have done so in this appeal.

I consider that the proposal would have a materially adverse impact on the
living conditions of the existing and future occupiers of the property and as
such would conflict with RPLPS Policy SD20 and the Framework.

Other Matters

11.

Concerns have been raised by a neighbouring occupier in terms of impact on
character of the area, loss of light, loss of privacy as well harm as a result of
noise and disturbance. I will deal with each in turn. In terms of character, the
proposal would be located at the rear of No 9 and it would be a modest
extension, which has been designed to complement the existing dwelling.
Although there would be an increase in the overall mass of the appeal dwelling
and in relation to the ratio of the garden area, this would not significantly harm
the character of the locality and would not be visible from nearby roads. With
regard to light, No 8 is positioned to the north east of the appeal dwelling.
Given the orientation of the dwellings and the existence of a high fence
between Nos 8 and 9, I consider that there would be little change to the
amount of daylight or sunlight received to the rear habitable room windows of
No 8 as a result of the proposal. This reduction, if any, would be so marginal
that it would not materially harm the living conditions of the occupiers of the
dwelling. With regard to privacy, the proposal would include 4 ground floor
windows and a pair of double doors, which would face approximately
westwards and to the south away from the party boundary with No 8. Given
the presence of the high party fence separating the appeal dwelling from the

2 As part of the planning permission Ref: 07/00328/FUL

www.planningportal-gOV-Uk/P|a””i”9mSpeCtp§ge 2&2



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/D/15/3013860

ground floor habitable rooms at No 8, I consider there would be no overlooking
of the rear habitable rooms or garden of No 8 from the proposal.

12. Regarding the reference to noise and disturbance, the appellant confirms that
the existing fence would not be removed and that the construction would not
cause disruption. The appellant also states that any construction material,
including rubble, would remain within the appeal site. Given that the proposal
would be constructed some 0.2m from the party boundary, I have no reason to
disagree with the appellant that there would be no need to remove the party
fence or that the proposal would result in a safety hazard for the children at No
8. In terms of noise during the construction phase, any noise created would be
relatively short lived and would be low impact.

13. I note the appellant’s dissatisfaction about the way that the planning
application has been handled by the Council. However, that is not a matter for
me in the determination of this appeal. I also note that there are concerns that
further building at the site would be likely to increase surface water run off
from the site. However, given the development relates to a modest extension
and that the external area is already hard surfaced, there would be negligible
change to surface run off such that it is not material to my decision in this
case.

Conclusions

14. Although I have concluded that there would be no harm to neighbours’ living
conditions in terms of daylight/sunlight, privacy or noise and disturbance, I
consider that there would be a materially harmful impact on the living
conditions of the existing and future occupiers of the appeal dwelling in terms
of loss of private amenity space. This is the determining factor.

15. For the reasons given above, the appeal is dismissed.

Mrs A Fairclough
INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gOV-Uk/P|annin9in5PeCt°ratePag63 243



| ﬁiﬁ The Planning Inspectorate

Appeal Decisions
Site visit made on 8 July 2015

by Martin Joyce DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 5 August 2015

Appeals A & B: APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255 & 2219256
Land to the north of York Lane, Flaxton, York, North Yorkshire

e The appeals are made under Section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.
e The appeals are made by Mr A J G and Mrs F J Brooks against an enforcement notice
(Notice 1) issued by the Ryedale District Council.
e The Council's reference is 13/00126/UD.
e The notice was issued on 17 April 2014.
e The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is, without planning permission,
carrying out the following operational development:
(i) The erection of two 72m? timber stable blocks;
(i) Engineering work to create a large excavated area for an all-weather riding area
manege;
(iii) Excavation and formation of hardstanding areas; and,
(iv) Laying of concrete slabs.
e The requirements of the notice are to:
(i) Dismantle and remove the materials comprising the two 72m? timber stable blocks
from the land;
(iil) Remove any hardcore and surface material from the manege area on the land;
(iii) Excavate and remove the hardstanding materials from the land filling excavated
areas with topsoil;
(iv) Remove from the land all building materials and rubble arising from compliance
with requirements (i) above (sic);
(v) Restore the land to its condition before the breach took place by levelling the
ground with topsoil and re-seeding it with grass; and,
(vi) Restore the land to its former condition as agricultural land.
e The period for compliance with the requirements is 90 days.
e The appeals are proceeding on the grounds set out in Section 174(2)(a), (b), (c), (f)
and (g) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. The deemed planning
applications also fall to be considered.

Summary of Decision: The appeals are allowed subject to the enforcement
notice being corrected in the terms set out below in the Formal Decision.

Appeals C & D: APP/Y2736/C/14/2219257 & 2219258
Land to the north of York Lane, Flaxton, York, North Yorkshire

e The appeals are made under Section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

e The appeals are made by Mr A J G and Mrs F J Brooks against an enforcement notice
(Notice 2) issued by the Ryedale District Council.

e The Council's reference is 12/00014/CU.

e The notice was issued on 17 April 2014.

e The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is, without planning permission,
the material change of use of the land from agriculture to a mixed use for agriculture

WWW.pIanningportaI-90V-Uk/P'a””ingi”Speapffge 244



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

and the keeping of horses for recreational purposes with siting of two horse shelters,

storage of associated equipment used to keep horses, motor vehicles, trailers and horse

boxes together with the following operations to facilitate that use:

(i) The erection of two 72m? timber stable blocks;

(i) Engineering work to create a large excavated area for an all-weather riding area
manege;

(iii) Excavation and formation of hardstanding areas; and,

(iv) Laying of concrete slabs.

The requirements of the notice are to:

(i) Discontinue the use of the land for any purpose other than agricultural use or a
temporary use permitted by permitted development rights under Part 4 of the
General Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended or any Order replacing
the 1995 Order;

(ii) Discontinue the use of the land for keeping horses for recreational purposes,
manege and the parking of horse boxes and trailers, motor vehicles;

(iii) Remove the horses from the land;

(iv) Remove all trailers/horse boxes from the land;

(v) Remove from the land all vehicles and equipment brought on to the land for the
purposes of that use. You may keep on the land any vehicles or equipment which
you use solely for the purposes of agriculture on the land;

(vi) Dismantle and remove paddock fencing from the land; and,

(vii) Dismantle and remove the horse shelters from the land.

The period for compliance with the requirements is 90 days.

The appeals are proceeding on the grounds set out in Section 174(2)(a), (b), (c), (f)

and (g) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended. The deemed planning

applications also fall to be considered.

Summary of Decision: The appeals are allowed subject to the enforcement
notice being corrected in the terms set out below in the Formal Decision.

Matters Concerning the Notices

1.

The appellant has questioned the validity of Notice 2 and I have a number of
concerns about the wording of both notices. I shall deal with these matters
before considering the main grounds of appeal.

With regard to the question of validity, the appellants contend that both notices
are invalid because the reasons for expediency of their issue are unclear, as
they do not state what harm is being caused by the developments. This makes
them invalid and incapable of correction. They are also invalid because they
are confusing, with one notice relating to operational development and the
other a material change of use yet with much overlap between the two and
both notices containing references to the same elements of the alleged breach.
The notices therefore fail to comply with Section 173(1) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (TCPA) as they do not allow the recipient to know
what he or she has done wrong, and they should be quashed as invalid.

Section 173 of the TCPA sets out what an enforcement notice shall contain. It
includes requirements that the notice shall state the matters which appear to
the Local Planning Authority to constitute the breach of planning control®. It
then states that a notice complies with subsection (1)(a) if it enables any
person on whom a copy of it is served to know what those matters are®. It
does not, as a matter of fact, require that the notice sets out the reasons for
the issue of the notice, including the alleged harm caused, but this matter is

! Section 173(1)(a).
2 Section 173(2).

www.planningportal.gOV-U|</IF>|a"\"\i"\§J“’ISF"ECtorateF’age2 245



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

covered by a subsequent Regulation®, as provided for in Section 173(10). The
overall aim of these statutory requirements is to enable a recipient of a Notice
to know what he or she has done wrong, and why the Local Planning Authority
considers it expedient to issue the Notice.

4. In this case, I am satisfied that the notices meet the statutory requirements.
Both state the alleged breach of planning control; Notice 1 is aimed at alleged
unauthorised operational development, whilst Notice 2 concerns an alleged
material change of use, together with operational development that facilitates
such use. Both notices also set out the reasons for issue, mentioning proximity
to a Conservation Area, harm to the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, failure to improve the character of the area and to enhance
the local environment, and a lack of survey information to show no adverse
impact on protected species. They also set out, in some detail, the
Development Plan policies that are thereby contravened. I accept that Section
4(iii) of the notice appears to be more abstract in saying that "Unauthorised
development results in harm to the character and appearance of the
surrounding area ...”, but this could simply be a typing error, with the preceding
word “The” omitted by mistake. However, I consider that there can be little
doubt as to why the notices were issued, and the reasons for the Council taking
such action. Neither notice is, therefore, a nullity or invalid, as claimed by the
appellants.

5. Notwithstanding my conclusions above, I consider that the notices are
confusing, particularly through the reference in Notice 2 to the operational
development that facilitates the alleged unauthorised material change of use,
as set out in Notice 1. In this context, I am of the view that the appellants
have misinterpreted the wording of Notice 2, in their reference to “incidental”
operational development, and that they have not appreciated the relevance of
the word “facilitates”. It is quite permissible for a material change of use
notice to require facilitating operational development to be removed, having
regard to pertinent case law (Somak Travel® and Murfitt>) which found that not
only could such development be required to be removed, but that even matters
that would not normally constitute development may also be required to be
removed, such as an internal staircase (Somak Travel). Notice 2 does not,
however, as a matter of fact, require the stated operational development to be
removed, only other elements associated with the material change of use,
including the horses, trailers/horse boxes, vehicles and equipment, paddock
fencing and horse shelters. This could have had unwanted consequences for
the Council, having regard to Section 173(11) of the TCPA were it not for the
fact that the removal of such development is required by Notice 1, as
compliance with the remainder of the notice could have granted planning
permission for those works under Section 73A.

6. Having regard to all of the above points, I am of the view that, whilst the
notices are not invalid or a nullity, they would benefit considerably from
correction with a view to greater clarity. In this context I am mindful of the
duty of an Inspector to get a notice in order if it is possible to do so®. I

3 Regulation 4 of the Town and Country Planning (Enforcement Notices and Appeals) (England) Regulations 2002
(SI 2002 No 2682).

* Somak Travel v Secretary of State for the Environment and London Borough of Brent Council [1987] JPL 630.

5 Murfitt v Secretary of State for the Environment [1980] JPL 598.

& Hammersmith London Borough Council v Secretary of State for the Environment and Sandral [1975] 30 P and
CR19.

www.planningportal-gov'Uk/planninginSpeCtpgge 2@6



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

10.

consider that this would be possible through combining the two notices into
one, so as to create a composite notice which alleges both a material change of
use of the land, to a mixed use of agriculture and the keeping of horses, and
operational development that has facilitated that material change of use,
including the elements which might not, by themselves, require a specific grant
of planning permission. I consider that this can be done, using the powers
available to me under Section 176(1) of the TCPA, without causing injustice or
prejudice to either the appellants or the Council.

Turning to other matters concerning the wording of the notices, I am uncertain
as to the legitimacy of requirement (vi) of Notice 1, as it seems to duplicate, to
some extent, that of requirement (v), albeit with a reference to restoring the
land to its condition as agricultural land (my emphasis). This implies a
requirement to return the land to agricultural use but, if that was what was
intended, it would not be legitimate, having regard to the judgement in
Lipson’. In such circumstances, it is sufficient to require restoration of the land
to its condition before the breach took place. This would thereby also meet the
requirements of Section 173(4)(a) of the TCPA.

With regard to Notice 2, I find a number of matters relating to the
requirements to be of concern. Firstly, requirement (i) appears to be seeking
to restrict the future use of the land, by limiting such use to either agriculture
or any temporary use that may be permitted under Part 4 of the General
Permitted Development Order 2015 (GPDO)®. Whilst this may also be taken to
be attempting to comply with the Mansi principles®, such a requirement, if
upheld, would prohibit other uses that would not require a grant of planning
permission, such as forestry use. Section 173(4)(a) of the TCPA sets out the
purposes of a notice as including the discontinuance of the use of the land and
that is all that can be required in this instance.

On a second point, requirement (ii) does, as a matter of fact, require the
discontinuance of the use of the land for the keeping of horses, but this step
becomes confusing in that it goes on to include “manege and the parking of
horse boxes and trailers, motor vehicles”. The manege has been identified as
an element of operational development thus it should not be included as a use
of land. Moreover, the allegation refers not only to a use for the keeping of
horses, but also to the “storage of associated equipment used to keep horses,
motor vehicles, trailers and horse boxes”. There is no explicit reference to the
cessation of such storage, although the requirements to remove all
trailers/horse boxes (Step (iv)), and all vehicles and equipment brought on to
the land for the purposes of that use (Step (v)), could be taken to require such
cessation.

Drawing all of these matters together, I conclude that the notices should be
combined into a single composite notice, alleging both a material change of
use, and the associated or facilitating operational development that has taken
place, with the requirements corrected to provide greater clarity as indicated
above. This is necessary not only in the event of the notices being upheld, but
also to clarify the terms of the deemed planning applications that will be the
subject of the appeals under ground (a). This will mean that Notice 1 will be

7 Lipson v Secretary of State for the Environment [1976] 33 P and CR 95.

8 The notice refers to the General Permitted Development Order 1995 (GPDO) as amended or any Order replacing
the 1995 Order. Since the date of issue of the notice, the 2015 Order has come into effect.

® Mansi v Elstree Rural District Council [1964] 16 P and CR 154,

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectoratePage4 247



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

corrected to include both the material change of use and the associated
operational development, and Notice 2 will be quashed.

THE APPEALS ON GROUND (b)

11. The appeals on ground (b) relate to a contention that the horse shelters
referred to in Notice 2 are in fact buildings constructed on the site, and that the
reference to their siting is incorrect. The Council, however, state that they are
moveable buildings albeit that if, following the site inspection, it is found that
they are buildings they could be added to the items of operational development
listed in Notice 1.

12. The legitimacy of such amendment is debatable as it could be seen to make a
notice more onerous than if no appeal had been made. However, at my site
inspection I saw no such shelters on the land, only the two main stable blocks,
and some smaller wooden buildings at the western end of the site used in
connection with the keeping of pigs on the land, albeit that there were no pigs
there at that time. I have seen photographs of the shelters in question, but
they did not appear to be on the site when I inspected it, which tends to add
weight to the claim that they were moveable structures. In all of these
circumstances I can, therefore, reach no firm conclusion on the question of
whether the horse shelters referred to in Notice 2 are buildings or moveable
structures. As the burden of proof lies, in legal grounds such as this, with the
appellants®®, I can only conclude that the appeals on ground (b) must fail.

THE APPEALS ON GROUND (c)

13. The appeals on this ground relate to the erection of the paddock fencing,
required to be removed under Notice 2. The appellants claim that, if it is
operational development it should have been included in Notice 1 but, in any
event, it is permitted development as it is less than 2m in height.

14. I have largely dealt with this matter in my considerations on the wording and
form of the notices. The appellants are correct in that such fencing would
normally be permitted development under Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the GPDO,
but insofar as it facilitates the material change of use to the keeping of horses
that has taken place, it is legitimate for Notice 2 to require its removal.
However, I saw that the south-western end of the site is fenced so as to
provide nine enclosures for the keeping of pigs, together with four pig arks
thus, as this represents part of the agricultural element of the alleged mixed
use, the notice cannot lawfully require the fencing in this area to be removed.
The appeals on ground (c) succeed to this extent and Notice 2 will be corrected
accordingly.

THE APPEALS ON GROUND (a)
Main Issues
15. The main issues in these appeals are:

a) the effect of the use and development on the character and appearance of
the surrounding area including the setting of the Flaxton Conservation Area;
and,

10 Nelsovil v Minister of Housing and Local Government [1962] 1 WLR 404.

www.planningportal-gov'Uk/planninginSpeCtpgge 2&8



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

b) the effect of the use and development on interests of nature conservation,
including protected species.

Reasoning
Effect on Character and Appearance

16. The appeal site comprises a flat roughly rectangular-shaped area of land on the
northern side of York Lane. Access is gained close to the south-eastern corner,
across a strip of land that is classified as common land. The site lies within
open countryside to the west of the village of Flaxton, a largely linear
settlement and Conservation Area, with many of the buildings on the eastern
side of the main road through the village, albeit that, south of the junction with
York Lane, there is development on both sides including opposite the entrance
to the appeal site.

17. The character of the surrounding area is largely rural, with flat open
agricultural land to the west of a village that comprises mainly two-storey
buildings in a variety of styles and materials. In terms of appearance, the
large fields are mostly bounded by thick mature deciduous hedgerows with
hedgerow trees. One slightly discordant element, however, is the village hall,
sited to the west of the Village Green, immediately north of the appeal site, as
its materials and style do not reflect the high quality architecture of much of
the remainder of the village. It is not, however, unduly prominent because of
screening vegetation and its location set back from the main road.

18. The appeal development comprises areas of hardstanding, inside the entrance
gates, and then two timber buildings each containing five stables, of about 4m
in width and 19m in length, built parallel to one other. Beyond is a fenced
manege, surfaced with sandy material, and a series of paddocks, including a
row of smaller enclosures at the south-western end used for the breeding of
pigs. I saw four horses in the paddocks, with a further horse and foal in one of
the stables. Three of the stalls were being used for storage, and two were
locked, presumably because they contained more valuable equipment and
materials.

19. The Council’s planning policy for this area is set out in the Ryedale Local Plan
Strategy (LPS), which was adopted in September 2013. A number of policies
are pertinent, to varying degrees, in these appeals. Policy SP1 relates to the
general location of development and settlement hierarchy, and states that, in
the open countryside, development will be restricted to that which is necessary
to support a sustainable, vibrant and healthy rural community. Policy SP9
concerns the land-based and rural economy, and states that it will be sustained
and diversified with support for a number of elements, including new buildings
that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working countryside,
including for farming, forestry and equine purposes, and appropriate new uses
for land. Policy SP12 relates to Heritage and seeks to protect the District’s
historic assets and features, including through sensitive expansion, growth and
land use changes in and around villages, safeguarding elements of historic
character and value, including Visually Important Undeveloped Areas (VIUA).
Policy SP13 concerns Landscape Character and aims at the protection and
enhancement of the quality, character and value of Ryedale’s diverse
landscapes. Finally, Policy SP20 deals with generic development management
issues, and requires that new development respect the character and context
of the immediate locality and the wider landscape/townscape character in

www.planningportal.gOV-U|</IF>|a"\"\i"\§J“’ISF"ECtorateF’age6 249



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

terms of physical features and the type and variety of existing uses. The
appeal site does not lie within a VIUA, or the Flaxton Conservation Area, but
it’s north-eastern boundary abuts both areas, as defined in Inset 31 of the
Ryedale Local Plan 2002.

20. The LPS accords largely with the policies set out in the National Planning Policy

Framework (The Framework). I am particularly mindful of Section 3 of the
latter which is entitled “Supporting a prosperous rural economy” and states
that planning policies should support economic growth in rural areas in order to
create jobs and prosperity by taking a positive approach to sustainable new
development. This includes the promotion of the development and
diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses. Section 12
is also relevant, dealing with the conservation and enhancement of the historic
environment, in relation to the effect on the setting of a Conservation Area.

21. The use, including the associated operational development that has taken place

has a very limited visual impact, albeit that the buildings would be more visible
from York Lane in winter months when the deciduous vegetation has less
screening effect. Nevertheless, even in more open winter views, all that would
be seen are a pair of unexceptional and functional stable buildings, of neat and
tidy design in appropriate materials, together with paddock fencing and small
areas of hardstanding where associated vehicles may be parked. These
elements are not prominent, and can only be seen to any extent from upper
floors of buildings some distance to the east and south. The use of land such
as this is for the keeping of horses is not at all unusual in locations close to
settlements, and is clearly provided for in Policy SP9 of the LPS as a viable
alternative to traditional agricultural uses.

22. The appellants do not claim that they are running a business, although they

23.

had intended to breed pigs. The horses are kept for private recreational
purposes, and they do not intend to use the stables for livery purposes, as
alleged by some third parties. This could be covered by an appropriate
condition on any grant of planning permission.

It is clear that considerable visual disruption, as well as noise and general
disturbance, took place during the construction of the stables and hardstanding
areas, but I can only consider the impact of the final development as it is not,
as a matter of law, illegal to undertake development without first obtaining
planning permission, albeit that it may result in enforcement action being
taken, as in this instance. It follows, in conclusion on this issue, that I do not
consider that the development has resulted in any material harm to either the
character and appearance of the surrounding area or the setting of the Flaxton
Conservation Area. The use and development thereby complies with relevant
policies in the LPS and The Framework.

Nature Conservation

24. There is a pond immediately east of the south-eastern corner of the appeal site

which is a habitat and breeding ground for great crested newts, a protected
species under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The Council contend that
it has not been shown that the use of this land for the keeping of horses, if
approved, would safeguard this species, as no survey information has been
provided, and also that harm may have occurred during the construction phase
of the development. In this context, Policy SP14 of the LPS, concerning
Biodiversity, states that proposals which would have an adverse effect on any

www.planningportal-gov'Uk/planninginSpeCtpgge 250



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

site or species protected under international legislation will be considered in the
context of the statutory protection which is afforded to them. Paragraph 109
of The Framework is also pertinent; this states, amongst other things, that the
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by minimising impacts on biodiversity.

25. The appellants draw attention to the fact that no action, by any relevant

26.

27.

28.

authority, such as Natural England, has been taken in respect of impact on
protected species, indicating a lack of concern on their part, and that removal
of hardstandings and buildings, as required by the notices, would also be likely
to cause harm if the Council’s arguments are accepted, thus it is a more
reasonable approach to allow the use to continue.

It is clear that there is no survey information available to me about the likely
presence or otherwise of great crested newts on the appeal site and I consider
that such work would have been of benefit before any development took place.
However, the pond does not, as a matter of fact, lie within the appeal site,
neither does it have any specific designation or protection. It is not, for
example, a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) or local Site of Nature
Conservation Interest (SNCI). I understand that it is one of three ponds
around the village that contains great crested newts and it follows that
migration between these sites is possible, including across land which may be
part of the appeal site. Nevertheless, Natural England has not been consulted
on this development and this suggests that the impact on the species is likely
to be somewhat less that than suggested by opponents of the development.

I am mindful of the fact that the highest risk of harm to great crested newts
would have occurred during the construction phase of the development, but
this has now passed, and it appears that no formal action of any sort was taken
by relevant authorities in respect of curtailment of such work on the basis of
the need to protect the species. Now that the development is effectively
complete, the risk of harm is significantly lessened, and migration pathways
across the land are likely to have been resumed. In all these circumstances,
therefore, I conclude on this issue that the continuation of the use would not
materially harm protected species and the aims of Policy SP14 and Paragraph
109 of The Framework would thereby be met.

It follows from my conclusions on the main issues that the appeals on ground
(a) succeed, thus planning permission will be granted. In these circumstances,
the appeals on grounds (f) and (g) do not need to be considered.

Conditions

29.

The Council has not suggested any conditions in the event of the appeals being
allowed and planning permission granted. In such circumstances, I consider
that only one is required, which would prevent the use of the site for livery
purposes without the further approval of the Local Planning Authority, as such
a use could have significant traffic implications which have not otherwise been
considered. The appellants have specifically stated that they do not intend to
use the site in this way, only for private recreational purposes, thus this
condition would not be unduly onerous.

www.planningportal.gOV-Uk/P|annin9in5PeCt°ratePagé 251



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

Other Matters

30. I have taken account of all other matters raised in the written representations
but they do not outweigh the conclusions I have reached in respect of the main
issues and the grounds of appeal.

Conclusions

31. It is clear from my deliberations above that the notices require correction. I
am satisfied that no injustice will be caused by this and I will therefore correct
the enforcement notices, in those respects, in order to clarify the terms of the
deemed applications under Section 177(5) of the 1990 Act as amended.

32. For the reasons given above, however, I conclude that the appeals should
succeed on ground (a) and I will grant planning permission in accordance with
the applications deemed to have been made under Section 177(5) of the 1990
Act as amended, which will now relate to the corrected allegation.

FORMAL DECISIONS
Appeals A & B: APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255 & 2219256
33. The enforcement notice (Notice 1) is corrected by:

a) The deletion of Section 3 in its entirety and the substitution therefor of
the following allegation:

“3. THE ALLEGED BREACHES OF PLANNING CONTROL

1. Without planning permission, the material change of use of the Land
from agriculture to a mixed use for agriculture and for the keeping of
horses for recreational purposes, including the siting of two horse
shelters, the storage of associated equipment used for the keeping of
the horses, and the parking of motor vehicles, trailers and horse boxes;
and,

2. Without planning permission, the carrying out of the following
operational development:

(i) The erection of two 72m? timber stable blocks;

(i) Engineering work to create a large excavated area for an all-
weather riding area manege;

(iii) Excavation and formation of hardstanding areas; and

(iv) The laying of concrete slabs.

b) The deletion of Section 5 in its entirety and the substitution therefore of
the following requirements:

(i) Discontinue the use of the land for the keeping of horses for
recreational purposes, including the siting of two horse
shelters, the storage of associated equipment used for the
keeping of the horses, and the parking of motor vehicles,
trailers and horse boxes;

(i) Remove all horses, trailers, horse boxes and motor vehicles
associated with the keeping of horses from the land;

www.planningportal-gOV-Uk/P|a””i”9mSpeCtp§ge 2@2



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255, APP/Y2736/C/14/2219255

(iit) Remove all equipment brought onto the land for the purpose
of the keeping of horses;

(iv) Dismantle and remove paddock fencing from the land, other
than that which is required for agricultural purposes;

(v) Dismantle and remove the horse shelters from the land;

(vi) Dismantle and remove the materials comprising the two
72m? timber stable blocks from the land;

(vii) Remove any hardcore and surface material from the manege
area on the land;

(viii) Excavate and remove the hardstanding materials from the
land, filling excavated areas with topsoil;

(ix) Remove from the land all building materials and rubble
arising from compliance with the above requirements; and,

(x) Restore the land to its condition before the breach took
place, by levelling the ground with topsoil and re-seeding it
with grass.”

34. Subject to these corrections, the appeals are allowed and the enforcement
notice is quashed. Planning permission is granted on the application deemed
to have been made under Section 177(5) of the 1990 Act as amended, for the
development already carried out, namely the material change of use of the
Land from agriculture to a mixed use for agriculture and for the keeping of
horses for recreational purposes, including the siting of two horse shelters, the
storage of associated equipment used for the keeping of the horses, and the
parking of motor vehicles, trailers and horse boxes; and, the carrying out of
the following operational development:

(i) The erection of two 72m? timber stable blocks;

(i) Engineering work to create a large excavated area for an
all-weather riding area manege;

(iii) Excavation and formation of hardstanding areas; and,

(iv) The laying of concrete slabs.

on land north of York Lane, Flaxton, North Yorkshire, subject to the following
condition:

1) The use and buildings hereby permitted shall not be used for livery
purposes except with the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority.

Appeals C & D: APP/Y2736/C/14/2219257 & 2219258

35. The enforcement notice (Notice 2) is quashed.
Martin Joyce

INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gOV-Uk/P|annin9in5PeCt°ratePagel(?53



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 21 July 2015
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 15/00627/MOUT - Agricultural Contractors, Welham Road, Norton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Design & Access Statement
	5 - Parish

	7 15/00612/MREM - Malton Livestock Market, Cattle Market, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Floor Plan
	4 - Revised Elevations
	5 - Illustrative Plan
	6 - Supporting Doc
	7 - Outline Permission Appeal Decision

	8 15/00616/MREM - The Showfield, Pasture Lane, Malton
	2 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	3 - Revised Plan
	4 - Additional Plan
	5 - Streetscape
	6 - Design & Access Statement

	9 15/00348/FUL - Boortmalt Group, Poplars Lane, West Knapton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Existing Plans
	4 - Revised Plans
	5 - Design & Access Statement
	6 - Environmental Health Report

	10 15/00620/FUL - Land To The Rear Of Woodmans Cottage, High Street, Cropton
	2 - Existing Plan
	3 - Proposed Plan
	4 - Design & Access Statement

	11 15/00792/FUL - Land To The East Of Wold Lane, Staxton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 - Design & Access Statement
	6 - Parish

	12 Part B Report - Developer Contributions from Small Sites
	13 Part B Report - Judicial Review - The Queen on the Application of Milton (Peterborough) Estates Company trading as Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate v Ryedale District Council
	2 - High Court Decision

	15 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	16 Update on Appeal Decisions
	North of York Lane appeal decision


